
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESCOTT TOWN COUNCIL
AGENDA

 
August 22, 2022

6:00 pm
Council Chambers
360 Dibble St. W.
Prescott, Ontario

 
Our Mission:

To provide responsible leadership that celebrates our achievements and invests in our future.

Pages

1. Call to Order

We will begin this meeting of Council by acknowledging that we are meeting on
aboriginal land that has been inhabited by Indigenous peoples.

In particular, we acknowledge the traditional territory of the Huron-Wendat,
Anishinaabeg, Haudenosaunee, Anishinabek, and the Oneida and
Haudenosaunee Peoples.

2. Approval of Agenda

RECOMMENDATION
That the agenda for the Council meeting of August 22, 2022 be approved as
presented.

3. Declarations of Interest

4. Presentations

5. Delegations



6. Minutes of the previous Council meetings

6.1. July 18, 2022 1

RECOMMENDATION
That the Council minutes dated July 18, 2022, be accepted as
presented. 

6.2. July 28, 2022 - Tri-Council Minutes 16

RECOMMENDATION
That the Tri-Council minutes dated July 28, 2022, be accepted as
presented. 

7. Communications & Petitions

8. Consent Reports

All matters listed under Consent Reports are to be considered routine and will
be enacted by one motion. Should a member wish an alternative action from the
proposed recommendation, the member shall request that the item be moved to
the applicable section of the agenda.

RECOMMENDATION
That all items listed under the Consent Reports section of the agenda be
accepted as presented.

8.1. Information Package (under separate cover)

8.2. Staff Report 76-2022 - Alzheimer's Society Toll Road Fundraiser 20

RECOMMENDATION
That Council approve the request from Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds
Grenville to hold a Toll Road Fundraiser on September 17 from 9 a.m.-12
p.m. on King Street.

8.3. Staff Report 77-2022 - Financial Report - July 2022 22

RECOMMENDATION
For information. 

8.4. Staff Report 78-2022 - Tri-Council - Direction 25

RECOMMENDATION
That Council receive Staff report 78-2022 for information and endorse the
creation of a steering committee for physician recruitment efforts; and



That the Council endorse the creation of a Tri Municipal website.

9. Committee Reports

10. Mayor

11. Outside Boards, Committees and Commissions

12. Staff

12.1. Staff Report 79-2022 - Official Plan Approval 27

RECOMMENDATION
That Council adopt the Town of Prescott Official Plan; and

That the Official Plan be forwarded as adopted, along with the “Record”
as required under the Ontario Planning Act, to the Minster of Municipal
Affairs and Housing for final approval.

12.2. Staff Report 80-2022 - Museum Update and Fall Opening Hours 158

RECOMMENDATION
That Council approve the request for the Museum and Visitor Centre to
remain open from September through to December 17, 2022,
Thursdays to Saturdays from 11 a.m. - 5 p.m.

12.3. Staff Report 81-2022 - Pedestrian Crossing Evaluation and Options
Update

161

RECOMMENDATION
That Council direct Staff to proceed with the following intersection
recommendations:

Installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and
Centre Street at a cost of $16,000.

1.

Installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and
George Street at a cost of $21,600.

2.

Relocate the PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and St.
Lawrence Street to the west side of the intersection with rapid
flashing lights as previously approved.

3.

12.4. Staff Report 82-2022 - Support Services Available to Vulnerable
Individuals 

169

RECOMMENDATION



For information. 

13. Resolutions

14. By-laws

14.1. Official Plan Adoption 172

RECOMMENDATION
That By-Law 37-2022, being a by-law to authorize Council to adopt an
Official Plan and submit it to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing for approval, be read and passed, signed by the Mayor and
Clerk, and sealed by the seal of the Corporation. 

15. New Business

16. Notices of Motion

17. Mayor’s Proclamation

18. Closed Session

RECOMMENDATION
That Council move into Closed Session at _______ p.m. to discuss matters
pertaining to:

18.1 Approval of Closed Session Minutes

18.2 Purchase & Sale 

Under Section 239(2)(c) of the Municipal Act - a proposed or pending
acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality; and

•

That the CAO, Clerk, Director of Operations, Deputy Clerk, and Economic
Development Officer remain in the room. 

 

19. Rise and Report

20. Confirming By-Law – 38-2022 300

RECOMMENDATION
That By-Law 38-2022, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Council
meeting held on August 22, 2022, be read and passed, signed by the Mayor and
Clerk, and sealed by the seal of the Corporation. 



21. Adjournment

RECOMMENDATION
That the meeting be adjourned to Tuesday, September 6, 2022. (Time:   p.m.)



 

 1 

 

PRESCOTT TOWN COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

 

Monday, July 18, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers 

360 Dibble St. W. 

Prescott, Ontario 

 

Present Mayor Brett Todd, Councillor Leanne Burton, Councillor Teresa 

Jansman, Councillor Lee McConnell, Councillor Mike Ostrander, 

Councillor Gauri Shankar, Councillor Ray Young 

  

Staff Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, Nathan Richard, Director of 

Operations, Lindsey Veltkamp, Director of Administration/Clerk, 

Dana Valentyne, Economic Development Officer, Kaitlin Mallory, 

Deputy Clerk 

  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Todd began the meeting by acknowledging that we are meeting on 

aboriginal land that has been inhabited by Indigenous peoples. 

In particular, we acknowledge the traditional territory of the Huron-Wendat, 

Anishinaabeg, Haudenosaunee, Anishinabek, and the Oneida and 

Haudenosaunee Peoples. 

Page 1 of 300



 

 2 

He then called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 

  

  

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion 161-2022 

Moved By McConnell 

Seconded By Ostrander 

That the agenda for the Council meeting of July 18, 2022 be approved as 

amended. 

Carried 

 

The agenda was amended by moving Item 18.2 - Purchase & Sale to Item 18.1. 

  

  

3. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest expressed. 

  

4. Presentations 

There were no presentations.  

  

5. Delegations 

There were no delegations. 

  

6. Minutes of the previous Council meetings 

6.1 June 20, 2022 

Motion 162-2022 

Moved By Burton 

Seconded By Young 

Page 2 of 300



 

 3 

That the Council minutes dated June 20, 2022, be accepted as presented. 

Carried 

 

  

  

6.2 June 29, 2022 - Tri-Council Minutes 

Motion 163-2022 

Moved By Ostrander 

Seconded By Shankar 

That the Tri-Council minutes dated June 29, 2022, be accepted as 

presented. 

Carried 

 

7. Communications & Petitions 

There were no items under Communications & Petitions. 

  

  

8. Consent Reports 

Motion 164-2022 

Moved By Burton 

Seconded By Jansman 

That all items listed under the Consent Reports section of the agenda be 

accepted as presented. 

Carried 

 

Councillor McConnell spoke to Item 8.1 - Information Package: BIA minutes, May 

10, 2022. 

Mayor Todd spoke to Item 8.2 - Projects Update -July 2022. 

  

  

Page 3 of 300



 

 4 

8.1 Information Package (under separate cover) 

1. Approved Prescott Police Services Board Minutes – May 26, 2022 

2. Approved BIA Committee Meeting Minutes – May 10, 2022 

3. Approved Planning Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – May 5, 

2022 & June 27, 2022 

4. Community Improvement Plan – Grant Summary July 2022 

5. Leeds, Grenville & Lanark District Health Unit Board of Health Meeting 

Summary – June 16, 2022 

6. Leeds, Grenville & Lanark District Health Unit Weekly Zoom Call Notes 

– June 17, 2022 

7. Ontario Energy Board Notice to Enbridge Gas Customers re: 

Application to Dispose of Certain Deferral and Variance Accounts 

8. Municipality of Brighton resolution of support re: Expanding Amber 

Alert System 

9. County of Hastings resolution of support re: Expanding Amber Alert 

System 

10. Town of Cobourg resolution of support re: Expanding Amber Alert 

System 

11. City of Mississauga resolution of support re: Expanding Amber Alert 

System 

12. County of Frontenac resolution of support re: Community Schools 

Alliance Action Plan and Social and Economic Impact for Small 

Communities in Ontario 

13. Municipality of Shuniah resolution of support re: Release of Federal 

and Provincial Documents related to Former Mohawk Institute 

Residential School 

14. City of Owen Sound resolution of support re: Removal of Municipal 

Councillors under Prescribed Circumstances 

15. Township of Mulmur resolution of support re: Climate Emergency 

Declaration 

  

  

Page 4 of 300



 

 5 

8.2 Staff Report 70-2022 - Projects Update - July 2022 

Recommended motion: 

For information. 

  

8.3 Staff Report 71-2022 -  RiverWalk District Promenade Installation  

Recommended motion: 

That Council approve the closure of Edward St. from King St. to Water St. 

occurring from Friday, July 29 to Monday, August 1, 2022, to 

accommodate the second installation of a pedestrian mall pilot project to 

be known as the “RiverWalk District Promenade”.  

Carried 

  

  

9. Committee Reports 

9.1 PAC Report 08-2022 - Site Plan Agreement  

Motion 165-2022 

Moved By Young 

Seconded By McConnell 

That Council approve the proposed Site Plan application SPC 2021-04 

subject to the following conditions: 

1. The balance of any outstanding taxes, including penalties and interest, 

(and any local improvement charges, if applicable) shall be paid to the 

Town. 

2. That the site plan agreement of the lands, shall be registered and 

submitted to the Town. 

Carried 

 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the report. He referenced 

the location of the development, the development plans, and the inclusion 

of electric vehicle charger installation.  

Page 5 of 300



 

 6 

Discussion was held regarding the Planning Advisory Committee's 

decision, the concerns surrounding the signage and crosswalk at the 

location.  

Further discussion was held regarding the improvement of only one 

entrance on Edward Street, the number of pumps at the location, the 

number of parking and queuing spaces, and the potential increase in 

traffic to the area.  

  

  

10. Mayor 

Mayor Todd spoke to his attendance at the Canada Day celebration, the success 

of the Promenade, and an event held at Puck's Garden celebrating the Queen's 

Jubilee.  

He spoke to the popularity of Centennial Park, the improvements to the 

waterfront, and the hard work of operations staff maintaining the parks. 

  

11. Outside Boards, Committees and Commissions 

Councillor Burton spoke to an upcoming Spyder Bike Rally event taking place on 

August 6. 

Councillor Jansman spoke to the success of the promenade held on the July 

weekend, congratulated the Community Award recipients, and Christine Sloan 

and her art students on their artwork. She spoke to her attendance at the recent 

BIA meeting and Planning Advisory Committee meeting. 

Councillor McConnell spoke to the Prescott Public Library and TD Summer 

Program's "Story Walk" along the Heritage Path. He referenced the YMCA and 

Connect Youth making use of the Library programs, and the St. Lawrence 

Shakespeare Festival's performances.  

Councillor Ostrander spoke to the Sunday Night Concert Series performances, 

his attendance at the Community Awards presentation, the renaming of the 

Rotary Pavilion and provided Council with an update on the Ukrainian family.  

Mayor Todd spoke to the Community Awards and the upcoming plaque unveiling 

for Joanne Crack. 

Page 6 of 300



 

 7 

Councillor Shankar spoke to the promenade, the Canada Day event, the opening 

night of the St. Lawrence Shakespeare Festival, the Sunday Night Concert 

Series, and updating the TODS signage.  

Councillor Young spoke to his attendance at the St. Lawrence Shakespeare 

festival. 

Councillor Burton mentioned the additions to the mural along the Heritage Trail 

path to be installed following the start of the school year. 

  

12. Staff 

12.1 Staff Report 72-2022  -RiverWalk District Decorative Lighting 

Motion 166-2022 

Moved By Jansman 

Seconded By Shankar 

That Council approve the purchase and installation of fourteen (14) 

decorative lighthouse themed pole mounted lights throughout the 

RiverWalk District at a cost to the Town not to exceed $9,000, in 

partnership with the Prescott Business Improvement Area.  

Carried 

 

Dana Valentyne, Economic Development Officer, spoke to the report. She 

referenced discussions with the BIA regarding the downtown beautification 

plan including the decorative lighthouse themed pole mounted lights. She 

spoke to the cost sharing with the BIA, the rotation between the lighthouse 

and the snowflakes on the downtown poles and requesting mock-ups to 

select a light colour.  

Discussion was held regarding the project, the Town's partnership with the 

BIA, and the size of the lights.  

Further discussion was held regarding the location of the lights, the 

potential expansion, and use of the modernization funding towards the 

project.  

Mayor Todd spoke to connecting the downtown to the parks and paths. 

Discussion was held regarding the timeline for installation. 

  

Page 7 of 300



 

 8 

  

12.2 Staff Report 73-2022 - Tri-Council Direction 

Motion 167-2022 

Moved By Ostrander 

Seconded By Burton 

That Council receive Staff report 73-2022 for information and endorse the 

creation of a Tri-Council Website for Recreation and Tourism Assets; and 

That Staff be directed to bring back recommendations on the feasibility of 

initiating a tri-municipal website and branding opportunities; and 

That Staff be directed to bring back more information on healthcare and 

recruitment to the Tri-Council meeting of July 28, 2022. 

Carried 

 

Lindsey Veltkamp, Director of Administration/Clerk, spoke to the report. 

Discussion was held regarding the intent of the meeting held on June 29, 

the continued accomplishments, and suggestions for a shared social 

media page.  

Discussion was held regarding the tri-website specifically the process 

associated with development and the responsibility of staff to manage the 

site.  

  

  

12.3 Staff Report 74-2022 - St. Lawrence Street south of King Street 

Motion 168-2022 

Moved By Burton 

Seconded By Shankar 

That Staff be directed to install beach signage indicating beach rules and 

welcoming visitors, and that a temporary speed bump be installed at the 

end of St. Lawrence Street to reduce the use of private laneways by motor 

vehicles. 

Carried 

 

Page 8 of 300



 

 9 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the report. He referenced 

the notice of motion provided by Councillor McConnell at the June 20 

meeting. He provided an overview of the report and recommendations 

which included additional signage. 

Councillor McConnell spoke to concerns he has received from residents 

regarding the issue and his suggestion of the removal of parking spots.  

Discussion was held regarding improving of signage, providing 

educational social media campaigns,  expressed concerns regarding the 

removal of the concrete barrier, and the addition of a speed bump.  

Further discussion was held regarding towing versus ticketing parking 

infractions. 

  

12.4 Staff Report 75-2022 - Pedestrian Crossings Evaluation and Options 

Motion 169-2022 

Moved By Young 

Seconded By Burton 

That Council direct Staff to proceed with the following intersection 

recommendations: 

  

1. To remove the excess signage and correct the pavement markings at 

Edward Street and Victor Street at an estimated cost of $1,500, and 

that staff obtain a quote for the installation of audible indicators. 

2. To obtain a quote for the installation of a mid-block pedestrian signal at 

Edward Street and Irvine Street. 

3. To remove the excess signage and correct the pavement markings at 

Edward Street and Park Street at an estimated cost of $1,500, and that 

staff obtain a quote for the installation of audible indicators. 

4. To install directional signage and make the repair to the signal head at 

Edward Street and King Street at an estimated total of $6,500. 

5. To obtain a quote for the installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian 

crosswalk at King Street and Centre Street, and that staff obtain a 

quote for the installation of audible indicators. 

Page 9 of 300



 

 10 

6. To obtain a quote for the installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian 

crosswalk at King Street and George Street, and that staff obtain a 

quote for the installation of audible indicators. 

7. To install signage, correct the pavement parking, extend the traffic 

arm, and replace the flashing lights with RRFBs at St. Lawrence Street 

and King Street at an estimated cost of $15,500, and that staff obtain a 

quote for the installation of audible indicators. 

Carried 

 

Nathan Richard, Director of Operations and Matthew Armstrong, 

CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the report. They provided Council with an 

overview of the findings and recommendations for each intersection. 

Discussion was held regarding increased traffic with future developments 

on Edward Street and obtaining quotes for the audible indicators at all 

intersections. 

Jim Doris joined the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 

Further discussion was held regarding the location and clarity of signage 

and the importance of uniformity of the lighting.  

Steve Paquette joined the meeting at 7:43 p.m. 

Council discussed the timeline for implementation, consistency between 

the pedestrian crossings, and the feasibility of four-way stops at the 

intersections located at King Street and George Street and King Street 

and Centre Street.  

  

  

13. Resolutions 

13.1 Parking on St. Lawrence Street 

There was no discussion held under Item 13.1 - Parking on St. Lawrence 

Street. 

  

14. By-laws 

14.1 Site Plan Agreement - 965 Edward Street North 

Page 10 of 300



 

 11 

Motion 170-2022 

Moved By Young 

Seconded By Burton 

That By-Law 32-2022, being a by-law to authorize a Site Plan Agreement 

between the Corporation of the Town of Prescott and Grant Castle 

Corporation, be read and passed, signed by the Mayor and Clerk, and 

sealed by the seal of the Corporation. 

Carried 

 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the enacting by-law for the 

MacEwan property previously discussed under Item 9.1 - PAC Report 08-

2022 - Site Plan Agreement.  

  

  

14.2 Sale of Surplus Land - South of CN Rail Line 

Motion 171-2022 

Moved By Young 

Seconded By Shankar 

That By-Law 33-2022, being a by-law to authorize the sale of 

approximately 4.72 acres of land, legally known as: LT A N/S BLK 1 PL 19 

Prescott, except PR177247; Prescott; PIN Number 681570311 by the 

Corporation of the Town of Prescott to 9695443 Canada Inc., be read and 

passed, signed by the Mayor and Clerk, and sealed by the seal of the 

Corporation.  

Carried on a division of 6 YEAS and 1 NAY, as follows: 

YEAS: Councillors Burton, Jansman, Ostrander, Shankar, Mayor Todd, 

and Young 

NAYS: Councillor McConnell 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the by-law. He referenced 

the public planning process and the property for development. 

Discussion was held regarding informing residents of the site plan and the 

timeline for the planning applications.  

Page 11 of 300



 

 12 

Further discussion was held regarding the requirement of the agreement 

for the inclusion of the walking space and the public park space in the 

development, the use of the proceeds from the sale to go towards 

improvements to the park space, and an addition to the Purchase and 

Sale agreement. 

  

  

  

14.3 Transfer Payment Agreement - ICIP Green 2021 

Motion 172-2022 

Moved By Jansman 

Seconded By Burton 

That By-Law 34-2022, being a by-law to authorize a Transfer Payment 

Agreement between her Majesty The Queen in Right of Ontario as 

represented by the Minister of Infrastructure and the Corporation of the 

Town of Prescott, be read and passed, signed by the Mayor and Clerk, 

and sealed by the seal of the Corporation.  

Carried 

 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the by-law. He provided 

background on the funding, the purpose to replace the water tower, 

timeline for RFP, and project competition.   

Mayor Todd thanked the Township of Augusta for their cooperation on the 

funding application and spoke to the partnership. 

  

  

14.4 Asset Management Policy Adoption  

Motion 173-2022 

Moved By Ostrander 

Seconded By Jansman 

Page 12 of 300



 

 13 

That By-Law 35-2022, being a by-law to adopt an Asset Management 

Plan for the Corporation of the Town of Prescott, be read and passed, 

signed by the Mayor and Clerk, and sealed by the seal of the Corporation.  

Carried 

 

Matthew Armstrong, CAO/Treasurer, spoke to the by-law. He thanked 

Council for their work on the policy, made note of Councillor McConnell's 

suggested changes to the policy which included the percentage of 

municipal properties connected to the municipal water system and stated 

the numbers would be adjusted. 

  

  

15. New Business 

There was nothing under new business.  

  

  

16. Notices of Motion 

There were no notices of motion expressed. 

  

17. Mayor’s Proclamation 

There was no Mayoral Proclamation. 

  

  

  

18. Closed Session 

Motion 174-2022 

Moved By McConnell 

Seconded By Shankar 

That Council move into Closed Session at 8:55 p.m. to address matters 

pertaining to:   

Page 13 of 300



 

 14 

18.1  Purchase & Sale 

 Under Section 239(2)(c) of the Municipal Act - a proposed or pending 

acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality; and 

18.2 Approval of Closed Session Minutes  

That the CAO, Clerk, Director of Operations, Deputy Clerk, Economic 

Development Officer remain in the room; and 

That Steve Paquette and Jim Doris, Viking Energy Group Inc., remain in the 

room for Item 18.1 Purchase & Sale. 

Carried 

 

Motion 175-2022 

Moved By Ostrander 

Seconded By Shankar 

That the meeting be extended. (Time: 9:01 p.m.) 

  

Carried 

 

Motion 176-2022 

Moved By Ostrander 

Seconded By Shankar 

That Council reconvene in Open Session.  (Time: 9:41 p.m.). 

Carried 

 

19. Rise and Report 

During the Closed Session Council received information and gave Staff direction 

on Item 18.1 - Purchase & Sale and approved Item 18.2 - Closed Session 

minutes. 

  

  

20. Confirming By-Law – 36-2022 

Page 14 of 300



 

 15 

Motion 177-2022 

Moved By Burton 

Seconded By Ostrander 

That By-Law 36-2022, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Council 

meeting held on July 18, 2022, be read and passed, signed by the Mayor and 

Clerk, and sealed by the seal of the Corporation. 

Carried 

 

21. Adjournment 

Motion 178-2022 

Moved By Burton 

Seconded By McConnell 

That the meeting be adjourned to Monday, August 22, 2022. (Time: 9:43 p.m.) 

Carried 

 

 

 

   

Mayor  Clerk 

   

 

Page 15 of 300



 

Tri-Council - July 29, 2022 1 

 

MINUTES 

TRI-COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
Thursday, July 28, 2022 

6:30 PM 
Council Chambers and by Zoom 

18 Centre Street, Spencerville ON 
Contact the Township Office to Register 

(613)658-3055 
 
PRESENT: Township of Augusta 
 Mayor Doug Malanka (7:15 p.m.), Deputy Mayor Jeff Shaver 
  
 Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal 
 Mayor Pat Sayeau, Deputy Mayor Tory Deschamps,  
 Councillor Hugh Cameron, Councillor Stephen Dillabough, 

Councillor John Hunter 
  
 Town of Prescott 
 Mayor Brett Todd, Councillor Leanne Burton, Councillor Teresa 

Jansman, Councillor Lee McConnell, Councillor Mike Ostrander, 
Councillor Gauri Shankar, Councillor Ray Young 

  
REGRETS: Councillor Michele Bowman, Councillor Tanya Henry, Councillor 

Samantha Schapelhouman 
  
STAFF: Township of Augusta 
 Annette Simonian, Clerk 
  
 Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal 
 Dave Grant, CAO, Rebecca Williams, Clerk 
  
 Town of Prescott 
 Lindsey Veltkamp, Clerk, Dana Valentyne, Economic 

Development Officer 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Mayor Sayeau welcomed everyone to the Tri-Council meeting. 

2. Call to Order 

Mayor Sayeau called the meeting to order at 6:40p.m. 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Page 16 of 300



 

Tri-Council - July 29, 2022 2 

Moved by: S. Dillabough 
Seconded by: M. Ostrander 

THAT the agenda for the Special Tri-Council meeting of the Township of 
Augusta, Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal, and Town of Prescott be 
approved as presented.  

Carried 
 

4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof 

There were no declarations of interest expressed. 

5. Opening Statement from Mayor Sayeau, Mayor Malanka and Mayor Todd 

Mayor Sayeau welcomed everyone in attendance and spoke to the collaborative 
approach of the Tri-Council meeting, while indicating that there is no initiative for 
amalgamation amongst the municipalities. 

Mayor Todd thanked Edwardsburgh Cardinal for hosting the meeting and spoke 
to the potential opportunities of collaborating together to improve health care 
services in the area.  

6. Business Arising from the Previous Tri-Council Meeting Minutes 

None. 

7. Delegations & Presentations 

a. Health Care Recruitment Update 

Update was provided on the recent meeting held with the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing with respect to the area seeking a 
competitive position for physician recruitment. A letter from the Minister 
was summarized for the Tri-Council. It was noted that the municipalities 
will seek to lobby for physician recruitment at the upcoming AMO 
conference. 

Dr. Mathews, with the Prescott Family Health Team (PFHT), spoke to the 
PowerPoint presentation and provided an overview of the Family Health 
Team (FHT), work model, services offered, patient population and 
locations, current issues/concerns the FHT has identified, and possible 
solutions. A copy of the presentation is held on file. Dr. Mathew referenced 
that additional support from local municipalities, such as 
physician/healthcare recruitment incentive packages, reduction to 
overhead costs, possible local hospital residency opportunities, additional 
health care provides, and additional transportation could aid in the PFHT 
attracting more physicians.  

The Mayors and Councillors discussed possible next steps, including 
providing subsidized River Route bus tickets, facility locations, life 

Page 17 of 300



 

Tri-Council - July 29, 2022 3 

lab/testing facility, financial physician recruitment incentive packages, 
funding to reduce physician overhead expenses, residency programs, 
possible recruitment of other medical professionals, bursary programs, 
and continuing to work with the PFHT and Dr. Mathew to set priorities and 
budgets. 

Further discussion was held regarding factors that attract physicians to the 
area, work life balance, and number of patients healthcare professionals 
can manage versus the number that do not have a family physician in the 
area.  

Moved by: B. Todd 
Seconded by: G. Shankar 

THAT the Tri-Council endorse the creation of a steering committee for 
physician recruitment efforts and to refer discussions back to each 
municipal council. 

Carried 
 

8. Focused Discussion 

a. Cross Promotion of Recreation Assets and Tourism Events 

Dana Valentyne, Prescott Economic Development Officer, spoke to the 
PowerPoint presentation and provided an overview on a potential future 
shared website concept, with additional promotional sources. A copy of 
the presentation is held on file. Ms. Valentyne outlined potential costs and 
next steps associated with creating a separate shared website that could 
be dedicated to the promotion of recreation assets and tourism events.  

Discussion was held regarding the potential opportunities of a shared 
website, implementation and maintenance costs, website design, 
resources to continually maintain and update such a website, current 
municipal website design, connectivity to current municipal websites, ease 
of access to information by the public, public/business/organization buy in 
to supply event information, domain name, branding and timeframe to 
create and implement a new shared website. 

Moved by: L. Burton 
Seconded by: T. Deschamps 

THAT the Tri-Council endorse the creation of a Tri Municipal website and 
to refer back to each municipal council for further discussion. 

Carried 
 

b. Municipal Drug Strategy Update 

Page 18 of 300



 

Tri-Council - July 29, 2022 4 

Mayor Malanka provided an update on the Municipal Drug Strategy. 
Discussions with the Health Unit continue to determine how the Municipal 
Drug Strategy program and committee may be restored. It was suggested 
that each municipal council needs a champion representative to assist 
with the strategy. 

9. Roundtable 

Each member of the Tri-Council was provided an opportunity to comment under 
the Round Table portion of the agenda. The following comments were raised: 

 Suggestion to hold another meeting in early September - Prescott hosting 

 Provide Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing an update regarding the 
healthcare/physician recruitment discussion 

 Circulation of letter being prepared by Mayor Sayeau to the Minister was 
requested 

10. Adjournment 

Moved by: S. Dillabough 
Seconded by: H. Cameron 

THAT the Special Tri-Council does now adjourn at 8:40 p.m. 

Carried 
 

 
 

   

Mayor  Clerk 

   

 

Page 19 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 
 
 

 

STAFF REPORT TO COUNCIL         Report No. 76-2022 
     
Date: August 22, 2022  
 
From: Samantha Joudoin-Miller, Manager of Community Services 
 
Re: Toll Road Fundraiser by Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville   
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That Council approve the request from Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville to 
hold a Toll Road Fundraiser on September 17 from 9 a.m.-12 p.m. on King Street. 
 
 
Background / Analysis:  
 
The Town has been approached by the Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville with 
a request to run a Toll Road Fundraiser on Saturday, September 17, 2022 for World 
Alzheimer’s Day (which is Wednesday, September 21, 2022). This type of fundraiser is 
similar to a boot drive, in which the Society would be stopping vehicles at a specific 
location and asking the drivers for spare change if they are willing to donate. 
 
The Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville is a registered charitable organization 
and all money raised remains local to support families in the communities living with a 
diagnosis of dementia. 
 
Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville held a toll road fundraiser in Prescott in 
September 2021 from 9 a.m. – 12 p.m. and raised $2,525. They were situated on King 
Street in front of Walker House with a police vehicle parked onsite to slow traffic and 
OPP Auxiliary were on site. “Special Event” signage was set up onsite and volunteers 
helped the Society. The Society believe that the fundraiser was well received and that it 
helped to raise awareness of this disease that affects so many people.  
 
Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville will be running this fundraiser in Gananoque 
again on September 10, 2022. September is World Alzheimer’s Month. 
 

Page 20 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 
 
 

 

The Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville plans to offer volunteer hours to high 
school students who choose to volunteer for this event, and they will also contact the 
OPP Auxiliary once a date is confirmed.  
 
Request Summary: 

 
- Event: Alzheimer’s Society Leeds Grenville Lanark Toll Road Fundraiser 
- Date: Saturday, September 17, 2022 
- Time: 9 a.m.-12 p.m. 
- Suggested Location: King Street (in front of Walker House) 

 
 
Alternatives:  
 
Council could decide to choose an alternative location to hold this type of fundraiser or 
choose not to approve the request for this type of fundraising event. 
 
 
Financial Implications: 
 
There are no financial implications to the Town of Prescott for approving this type of 
fundraising initiative as it will be run by the Alzheimer Society Lanark Leeds Grenville.  
 
 
Environmental Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 

- None 
 
 
Submitted by:     
         
Samantha Joudoin-Miller 
Manager of Community Services 

Page 21 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Policy / Action Req’d   

Strategic Plan   

 
 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
Date:  August 22, 2022      Report No. 77-2022 
 
From: Matthew Armstrong, Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer 
 
RE:    Financial Report – July 2022 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: 
 
For information. 
 
 
Analysis 
 
The attached income statement for the first seven months ended July 31, 2022, highlights 
the financial picture year-to-date.   
 
The interim property taxes were billed in February and are reflected in the report.  This is 
equal to 50% of the prior year property taxes.  The Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund 
payments are received in January, April, July and October.  Those two items make up the 
vast majority of corporate revenue.  The Rideau St. Lawrence dividend was received in 
August and will be reflected in the August financial statement. 
 
Protective Services revenue tends to occur in the second half of the year, as various grant 
payments are received.  Several large construction projects are expected to start over the 
next several months which will generate building permit fees.  The majority of the 
transportation revenue is derived from the Ontario Community Infrastructure Funding 
which is received throughout the year.  Environmental revenue is below budget due the 
timing of blue box grant payments and bag tag revenue changing over from the sale of 
garbage bags to the sale of bag tags.  Social Services revenue is received as part of the 
St. Lawrence Lodge debentures that is supported by the Ministry of Health and Long-
Term Care.  This is received twice per year with one payment in January and one payment 
in July.  Recreation and Culture programs generate revenue in the summer months from 
June through September. 
 
From an expense perspective all are below budget with the exception of Transportation, 
Social Services, and Planning and Development.  The Transportation Services is higher 
than expected due to the paving being completed in June.  This will correct itself in the 

Page 22 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Policy / Action Req’d   

Strategic Plan   

 
 

coming months.  The Social Services is higher than budget due to the timing of debt 
payments for St. Lawrence Lodge. This also will correct itself by the end of the year.  
Planning and Development is over budget due to successful continuation of the Digital 
Mainstreet Coordinator which is offset by additional revenue. 
 
The water and wastewater revenue budgets are below budget due to the timing of 
payments from Rideau St. Lawrence Utilities.  The expense budgets for the water and 
wastewater departments are slightly below budget by 7%. 
 
There have been no material variances that will impact the total year budget identified to 
date.  Staff is closely monitoring fuel, natural gas, and hydro costs which are causing 
inflationary cost pressures.   The availability of products and services continues is an on-
going focus of staff. 
 
 
Alternatives: 
 
None 
 
 
Financial Implications: 
 
Outlined above. 
 
 
Environmental Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 

- Financial Report – July 2022 
 
 
Submitted by 
        
Matthew Armstrong     
Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer        

Page 23 of 300



Income Statement

2022 Operating Budget

Month Year-to-Date Total Notes

Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 2022

B (W) B (W) Budget

Revenue

Corporate 673,918   3,023,943   2,379,818   4,717,423   7,356,594   2,847,722   8,087,010   

Protective 30,528     4,306          (26,043)      213,694      117,373      (96,322)      366,333      

Transportation 48,249     91,565        43,316        337,744      368,939      31,195        578,990      

Environmental 19,143     15,093        (4,050)        133,999      125,541      (8,458)        229,712      

Social 6,708       -             (6,708)        46,958        80,826        33,868        80,500        

Recreation and Cultural 53,916     62,154        8,238          377,411      290,858      (86,553)      646,990      

Planning & Development 4,375       17,426        13,051        30,625        63,361        32,736        52,500        

Total 836,836   3,214,486   2,407,622   5,857,854   8,403,491   2,754,188   10,042,035 

Expenses

Corporate 117,477   122,163      (4,686)        822,336      813,519      8,817          1,409,719   

Protective 188,929   170,031      17,915        1,322,505   1,310,166   12,339        2,267,152   

Transportation 223,077   169,944      53,133        1,561,540   1,596,718   (35,178)      2,676,925   

Environmental 31,465     4,175          27,290        220,252      175,653      44,599        377,575      

Health Services 28,459     30,542        (2,083)        199,212      208,653      (9,441)        341,506      

Social Services 63,968     28,625        35,343        447,774      448,529      (754)           767,613      

Recreation and Cultural 150,613   160,407      (9,795)        1,054,288   1,016,298   38,077        1,807,352   

Planning & Development 32,849     32,694        155             229,946      242,453      (12,507)      394,193      

Total 836,836   718,581      117,272      5,857,853   5,811,990   45,951        10,042,035 

Net Operations 0              2,495,905   2,495,905   0                 2,591,502   2,591,501   -              

Water & Wastewater Revenue 244,950   326,854      81,904        1,714,648   537,733      (1,176,916) 2,939,397   

Water & Wastewater Expense 244,950   188,604      56,346        1,714,648   1,592,802   121,846      2,939,397   

Net Water & Wastewater -          138,250      138,250      -             (1,055,069) (1,055,069) (0)                

Page 24 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

STAFF REPORT TO COUNCIL  Report No. 78-2022 

 
August 22, 2022        
 
From: Lindsey Veltkamp, Director of Administration/Clerk  
 
RE: Tri-Council Meeting – Direction  
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Council receive Staff report 78-2022 for information and endorse the creation of a 
steering committee for physician recruitment efforts; and  
 
That the Council endorse the creation of a Tri Municipal website.  
 
 
Background / Analysis:  
 
At the Tri-Council meeting held on July 28, 2022, members of Council from the three 
municipalities received information from Dr. Dinny Matthews, with the Prescott Family 
Health Team regarding physician recruitment and provided an overview of the services 
offered, current issues, and suggested solutions. The following motion was passed: 
 
That the Tri-Council endorse the creation of a steering committee for physician 
recruitment efforts and to refer discussions back to each municipal council. 

  
Following the presentation from Dr. Matthews, discussion was held regarding a 
presentation provided by Dana Valentyne, Economic Development Officer on the 
creation of a Tri-Council Website which resulted in the following motion: 
 
That the Tri-Council endorse the creation of a Tri Municipal website and to refer back to 
each municipal council for further discussion. 

 
As these Tri-Council meetings still require each individual Council to approve the Tri-
Council motions, staff are bringing these motions forward for final discussion and 
approval at this evening’s meeting. 
 
  

Page 25 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

Financial Implications: 
 
The initial cost of the website is estimated to be $1,000 plus an on-going monthly cost of 
$150 for a total yearly cost of approximately $3,000.  This amount would be split 
evening between the three municipalities therefore costing the Town of Prescott $1,000.  
This can be covered through the existing allocations in the operating budget. 
 
 
Environmental Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
   
 
Submitted by: 
____________________ 
Lindsey Veltkamp,  
Director of Administration/Clerk           
 
    

Page 26 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

STAFF REPORT TO COUNCIL  Report No. 79-2022 
  
Date: August 22, 2022 
 
From: Matthew Armstrong, Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer  
 
Re: Official Plan Review – Adoption   
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Council adopt the Town of Prescott Official Plan; and 
 
That the Official Plan be forwarded as adopted, along with the “Record” as required under 
the Ontario Planning Act, to the Minster of Municipal Affairs and Housing for final 
approval. 
 
 
Background / Analysis:  

The Town of Prescott is undertaking the legislated review of its Official Plan as required 
by the Planning Act. The Town’s current Official Plan was approved by the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing in 2006 and was last amended in May 2018. The Official 
Plan Review will update and refine the goals, objectives, policies, and schedules of the 
Official Plan to ensure that it is consistent with the 2020 Provincial Policy Statement and 
reflects matters of local interest. 

It is noted that the formal Official Plan Review process has been ongoing since 2019 
and has included an online Visioning Workshop and community survey in October of 
2020.  Public feedback received has been and continues to be considered in the 
advancement of updating policies in the Town’s Official Plan. A Special Meeting of 
Council was conducted on April 19, 2021, to review the public engagement and 
consultations to date, reflect and provide feedback on the background reports, 
contemplate the recommendations, and provided the public to speak to revisions that 
may be required as part of the Town’s Official Plan Review.   The Statutory Public Open 
House occurred on April 25, 2022, where additional public participation and feedback 
was elicited.  On June 27, 2022, the Statutory Public Meeting was held by the Planning 
Advisory Committee where it was demonstrated how public input was considered and 
incorporated throughout the process.  Key changes were reviewed, and input was 
obtained from both the Committee and the public. 

Page 27 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

The graphic below illustrates the steps in the Official Plan Review process. 

Project Process

Visioning Workshop and Survey

Special Meeting of Council

Statutory Public Open House

Statutory Public Meeting

Confirm Consultation Plan

Pre-consult with Ministry

Discussion Papers

Growth Management Analysis

Background Report

Prepare Draft Official Plan 

Ministry Review (90 days)

Prepare Final Official Plan 

Council Adoption –August 22, 2022

Submit for MMAH Approval

(120 days)

Public Engagement Events Official Plan Review Phases

Phase 1: 
Consultation, Visioning and 

Issues Identification

Phase 2: Background 
Research and Report

Phase 3: 
Draft Official Plan

Phase 4: 
Recommended Official Plan

Official Plan Approval

Key Activities

 
 
The purpose of this report is to recommend to Council the adoption of the Final Official 
Plan. 
 
 
Analysis: 
 
The new Official Plan incorporates the various changes that were introduced by the 
Provincial Policy Statement in 2020.  It also incorporates new sections, goals, and policies 
that will allow for the continued growth of the Town of Prescott both in terms of population 
and as a commercial and industrial hub.  The Town of Prescott is the largest settlement 
area on the St. Lawrence River between Brockville and Cornwall. 

Page 28 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

 
New Sections of the Official Plan 
 
An entirely new section has been added to the Official Plan which speaks to Natural 
Heritage, Culture Heritage, and Development Constraints.  This new section brings 
together, clarifies, and strengthens the goals and priorities specific the Environment and 
Natural Heritage Management, Cultural Heritage Resources, Hazards, and Mineral 
Aggregate Resources. 
 
New Subsections of the Official Plan 
 
New subsections have been added to the Official Plan covering Growth Management, 
Accessory Uses, Buildings or Structures, Compatibility and Built Form, Short Term 
Rentals, Tiny Homes, and Urban Agricultural.  These subsections resulted from change 
in the Provincial Policy Statement, Council feedback, and Public input. 
 
Key Changes to the Official Plan 
 
There has been a myriad of changes made to update Official Plan which reflect the goals 
and policies.  Some of the key changes of note are as follows. 
 

- Active Transportation 
o Incorporating active transportation design aspect in new development and 

redevelopment projects 
 

- Wayfinding 
o Need for an official way finding strategy to support commerce, recreation, 

and tourism 
 

- Additional Housing Units 
o Adds required policies to support the Provincial Policy Statement on 

additional housing units 
 

- Tiny Home 
o Adds the required policies to support Tiny Homes in Prescott 

 
- Tourism, Economic Development and Downtown Revitalization 

o Adds goals and policies that support mixed uses in the Downtown Core 
o Adds supportive policies for Commercial Lodging in Prescott 
o Provides the ability to establish and Economic Development and Tourism 

Committee 

Page 29 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

o Provides supporting policies to strengthen Town Branding 
- Urban Agriculture 

o Adds policies to allow for community and roof top gardens 
 

- Indigenous Engagement 
o Provides to policies that strengthen when and how Indigenous Communities 

are to be engaged 
 

- Natural Heritage 
o Adds new policies to mitigate the impact of development on Wetlands, 

Woodlands, and Wildlife Habitat 
 

- Environmental Protection 
o Adds new goals and policies on how to assess the environmental impact on 

sensitive areas 
o Adds a policy in support of use of native species in development 

 
 
Alternatives: 
 
Council could choose to make further changes to the plan and have it brought forward to 
a future meeting for final consideration and adoption. 
 
 
Financial Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Environmental Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 

- Final Official Plan 

 
 
 

Page 30 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 

 
 
Submitted by:      
       
Matthew Armstrong       
Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer 

Page 31 of 300



Page 32 of 300



Page 33 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption i 

 

Table of Contents 

 

  

1.1 Purpose of the Official Plan .......................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Effect of the Official Plan .............................................................................................. 1 

1.3 How to Read this Official Plan ...................................................................................... 2 

1.4 Vision and Guiding Principles ....................................................................................... 3 

1.4.1 Our Vision ................................................................................................................ 3 

1.4.2 Our Guiding Principles .............................................................................................. 3 

1.5 Planning Context .......................................................................................................... 4 

1.5.1 Growth Management ................................................................................................ 5 

1.5.2 Land Use Pattern ..................................................................................................... 5 

  

2.1 Accessory Uses, Buildings, or Structures ..................................................................... 7 

2.2 Compatibility and Built Form ......................................................................................... 7 

2.2.1 Goals ........................................................................................................................ 7 

2.2.2 Policies ..................................................................................................................... 8 

2.3 Economic Development .............................................................................................. 13 

2.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................13 

2.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................13 

2.4 Energy Conservation, Air Quality and Climate Change............................................... 16 

2.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................16 

2.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................16 

2.5 Housing ...................................................................................................................... 18 

2.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................18 

2.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................19 

2.6 Source Water Protection ............................................................................................ 25 

2.6.1 Overview .................................................................................................................25 

2.6.2 Goals .......................................................................................................................25 

2.6.3 Vulnerable Areas .....................................................................................................26 

2.6.4 Prohibited Uses .......................................................................................................26 

Page 34 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

ii Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.6.5 Risk Management Official Exemption ......................................................................26 

2.6.6 Development Review...............................................................................................27 

2.7 Cross-jurisdictional Coordination ................................................................................ 27 

2.7.1 Goal ........................................................................................................................27 

2.7.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................28 

2.8 Urban Agriculture ....................................................................................................... 28 

2.8.1 Goal ........................................................................................................................29 

2.8.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................29 

2.9 Waterfront Development ............................................................................................. 29 

2.9.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................29 

2.9.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................29 

  

3.1.1 Land Use Schedules ...............................................................................................32 

3.2 Residential ................................................................................................................. 32 

3.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................33 

3.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................33 

3.2.3 R-1 Special Policy Area: Hyde and Wood Streets ...................................................35 

3.3 General Commercial and Highway Commercial ......................................................... 36 

3.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................36 

3.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................37 

3.4 Downtown Core .......................................................................................................... 40 

3.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................40 

3.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................41 

3.5 Employment Area ....................................................................................................... 43 

3.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................44 

3.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................44 

3.6 Institutional ................................................................................................................. 46 

3.6.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................46 

3.6.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................47 

3.7 Parks and Open Space .............................................................................................. 48 

3.7.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................48 

Page 35 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption iii 

 

3.7.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................48 

3.8 Highway 401 Corridor ................................................................................................. 50 

3.8.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................50 

3.8.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................50 

  

4.1 Environmental and Natural Heritage Management ..................................................... 52 

4.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................52 

4.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................53 

4.2 Cultural Heritage Resources ...................................................................................... 62 

4.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................62 

4.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................63 

4.3 Hazards ...................................................................................................................... 67 

4.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................68 

4.3.2 Natural Hazards Policies .........................................................................................68 

4.3.3 Slope and Soil Stability ............................................................................................70 

4.3.4 Human-Made Hazards Policies ...............................................................................71 

4.4 Mineral Aggregate Resources .................................................................................... 73 

4.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................73 

4.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................73 

  

5.1 Transportation and Circulation .................................................................................... 76 

5.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................76 

5.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................77 

5.2 Public Services and Utilities ....................................................................................... 82 

5.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................82 

5.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................82 

5.3 Stormwater Management ........................................................................................... 84 

5.4 Waste Management ................................................................................................... 85 

5.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................85 

5.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................85 

  

Page 36 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

iv Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.1 Community Improvement ........................................................................................... 86 

6.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................86 

6.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................86 

6.2 Implementation Tools ................................................................................................. 90 

6.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................90 

6.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................90 

6.3 Indigenous Engagement ............................................................................................. 91 

6.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................91 

6.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................91 

6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring ...................................................................................... 91 

6.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................92 

6.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................92 

6.5 Land Use Controls ...................................................................................................... 94 

6.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................94 

6.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................94 

6.6 Legal Non-Conforming Uses .................................................................................... 103 

6.6.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 103 

6.6.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 103 

6.7 Official Plan Amendments ........................................................................................ 104 

6.7.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 104 

6.7.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 104 

6.8 Planning Applications – Required Information and Materials .................................... 105 

6.8.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 105 

6.8.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 105 

6.9 Public Consultation and Notification ......................................................................... 106 

6.9.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 106 

6.9.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 106 

6.10 Public Works and Finance ........................................................................................ 108 

6.10.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 108 

6.10.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 109 

  

Page 37 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption v 

 

  

Schedules 
Schedule A – Land Use  

Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources and Human-made Hazards 

Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Areas 

 

Appendix 
Appendix A – Digital Elevation Model 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 38 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

vi Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page left intentionally blank

Page 39 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 1 

 

1.0 Introduction to the Official Plan  

1.1 Purpose of the Official Plan  

The Town of Prescott Official Plan is the cornerstone document essential for the management 

of future growth, development, and change in our municipality. The Official Plan establishes a 

vision, guiding principles, and policies which will guide growth and development, and related 

land use decisions within the Town’s boundaries for the next 20 years, to the year 2041. Since 

decisions which implement growth and development have long lasting impacts, it is important to 

ensure that planning decisions reflect community values as expressed in the Official Plan. This 

will help move Prescott towards becoming an even more livable community by achieving orderly 

physical and economic growth while protecting social, cultural, and natural heritage resources. 

 

The Official Plan is intended to be a living document and will be reviewed in accordance with the 

requirements of the Planning Act. The Plan may be amended to reflect changing circumstances 

or new priorities. The Plan is both general and long-range, building on past accomplishments 

while looking to the future as the Town continues to evolve and mature. It was prepared by the 

Town of Prescott in partnership with the residents of the Town, its community organizations, and 

the provincial government and its agencies. As such, the policies of the Official Plan represent a 

balance of interests and points of view. 

 

The Town of Prescott acknowledges that it is situated on aboriginal land that has been inhabited 

by Indigenous peoples. In particular, the Town acknowledges the traditional territory of the 

Huron-Wendat, Anishinaabeg, Haudenosaunee, Anishinabek, and the Oneida and 

Haudenosaunee Peoples. 

 

1.2 Effect of the Official Plan  

The Planning Act requires that the Town of Prescott prepare and adopt an Official Plan which 

covers the full extent of its municipal boundaries. The policies contained herein, together with 

the Schedules and any amendment(s) which are adopted and finalized pursuant to the Planning 

Act, constitute the Town of Prescott Official Plan (“the Plan”).  This Plan applies to all lands 

located within the boundaries of the Town of Prescott.  

 

The Official Plan is a policy document, it is not a by-law or a regulation. However, it is a legal 

document and the policies in this Plan have authority under the Planning Act. The Town’s 

Official Plan has regard for matters of provincial interest identified in the Planning Act and is 

consistent with the Ontario Provincial Policy Statement, 2020. Upon adoption of the Official Plan 

by Council and approved by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Plan shall guide 

all planning decisions in the Town. No public or private works shall be undertaken in the Town, 

and except as provided for under the Planning Act, no By-law shall be passed for any purpose, 

Page 40 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

2 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

that does not conform to the policies of this Plan. There is therefore a need for all decision-

making authorities to ensure that any by-laws, permits and authorizations they issue will 

conform to the intent and policies of this Official Plan.  

 

The Zoning By-law is the main implementation tool of the Official Plan and will be updated in 

accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act to ensure that it is in conformity with the 

policies of this Plan. 

 

1.3 How to Read this Official Plan 

The Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 includes definitions of numerous significant terms used in 

its policies. Those definitions will apply when reading this Plan where the same terms are used, 

for instance in reference to “development”, “adjacent lands”, or “sensitive land uses”, among 

others. Where this Plan employs a different meaning for a term defined in the Provincial Policy 

Statement, this will be specifically identified in the text of the Plan.  

 

The Official Plan and its Schedules must be read as a whole, as more than one section or 

Schedule may apply to a particular area or matter.  

 

The text of this Official Plan is set out in paragraphs of explanation and numbered and lettered 

policies. The paragraphs of explanation are to provide further information that establish context, 

assist in the interpretation of the policies, and help clarify the general intent of the Plan. The 

paragraphs of explanation are followed by the Town’s goals as they relate to a particular policy 

issue. Following the goals is a series of policies that represents commitments to specific 

actions. The policies also provide for protection of the Town’s resources by establishing 

planning requirements, programs, standards, and criteria for reviewing development proposals.  

 

The use of “shall” in the policies indicates that a statement is binding or that there is a 

mandatory requirement. The use of “may”, “should” or “would” in the policies indicates that a 

statement is advisory, not binding, and that details will need to be resolved through the 

development review process. The use of “should” in policies indicates a Council commitment 

that the Town is obligated to carry out. The policies are to be implemented through a variety of 

mechanisms, including the Comprehensive Zoning By-law. In certain circumstances, Special 

Policy Areas are also established in order to provide further policy direction to address site-

specific planning issues which affect the designated areas. 

 

Schedule A of this Plan illustrates the land use designations for the entire geographic boundary 

of the Town, which are subject to the policies in the Land Use Designations Section of this Plan. 

Schedules B, C, D, and E contain other land use designations that provide information with 

respect to the specific location of areas and features and their related policies in other Sections 

of this Plan.  

 

Page 41 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 3 

 

1.4 Vision and Guiding Principles  

The policies in this Official Plan were developed on the basis of achieving a stated long-term 

vision for the future of the municipality. The vision was inspired by the social, historical, and 

architectural heritage of the Town of Prescott. The vision statement is itself supported by a 

number of guiding principles which are at the heart of the policies found throughout this Official 

Plan and which will help guide future decisions.  

 

Future development in the Town of Prescott must proceed in a manner which is in full 

conformity with the policies of this Official Plan. It is recognized that from time to time there will 

be land use or development proposals which would not conform with one or more policies in this 

Official Plan. In these cases, an Official Plan Amendment may be supported, provided the 

proposal meets the long-term vision and guiding principles of the Plan, as well as all other 

applicable requirements. Conformity with these guiding principles will serve as a starting point 

for the review of land use in order to ensure good planning decisions.     

 

1.4.1 Our Vision 

The following statement is intended as an expression of Council’s vision for the future of the 

Town of Prescott: 

 

The Town of Prescott is dedicated to being a vibrant, progressive and active riverside 

community. Through the careful management of growth and development, the Town will strive 

to foster economic growth to ensure long-term prosperity, and to achieve a sense of place 

respectful of our unique historical, cultural and natural heritage where our citizens can enjoy a 

quality of life in a destination designed for generations.  

 

1.4.2 Our Guiding Principles 

1. We will value and conserve our built heritage as we provide for appropriate development 

to generate residential, recreational, environmental, and economic opportunities 

respectful of private and public property rights. 

 

2. We will ensure that growth and development occurs through sustainable and 

economically viable land use development patterns which will include a broad range of 

uses and a balanced mix of appropriate residential densities. 

 

3. We will encourage a wide variety of housing options and built form so residents can age 

in place, including opportunities for multi-generational housing. 

 

Page 42 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

4 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4. We will help maintain and increase the Town’s employment base through clear and 

transparent land use policies which support the development of commercial, institutional, 

and industrial opportunities, including through the redevelopment of brownfield sites. 

 

5. We recognize the importance of a healthy and vibrant downtown, and will strive to 

improve our Downtown Core while also protecting and enhancing its historical and 

cultural amenities. 

 

6. We will protect and enhance our natural environment in a manner which is respectful of 

land owner concerns and recognizes the need for long-term sustainability. 

 

7. We recognize that supporting active transportation connections within the Town is 

important to enhance pedestrian and cycling facilities mobility. 

 

8. We will ensure appropriate development will not pose a danger to public safety or health 

or result in negative impacts to quality of life or the environment.  

 

9. We will ensure that effective infrastructure services will be provided in a cost-efficient 

manner consistent with our asset management strategy, which recognizes development 

priorities and which has regard for private property, as well as our economic, cultural, 

and environmental heritage. 

 

The principles which guide land use decisions over the life of this Plan will be anchored in the 

Town’s Strategic Plan’s stated values:  

• Integrity, accountability, and transparency in decision-making and communication; 

• Service efficiency and excellence through the use of technology and new methods to 

achieve our goals; 

• Leadership and teamwork that is collaborative and respectful;  

• Commitment to growth and future development; and 

• Fiscal, social and environmental responsibility and resilience. 

 

1.5 Planning Context 

The Town of Prescott is a single-tier municipality located in Eastern Ontario along the St. 

Lawrence River. Strategically located along Highway 401, the Town is geographically situated 

within the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville. It is bound by the St. Lawrence River and the 

Canada-U.S. International Board to the south. The Township of Augusta is located to the west 

and north of the Town, and the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal is located to the east. 

 

Page 43 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 5 

 

The Town of Prescott occupies a land area of approximately 4.93 km2. The Statistics Canada 

2021 Census list the Town’s population as 4,078.  

 

Prescott is characterized by its eclectic mix of heritage buildings, established residential, 

commercial and industrial properties and an unparalleled range of recreational facilities as well 

as a burgeoning area of new residential and industrial development in the northern part of the 

Town, is well positioned to accommodate future growth.  

 

The preservation of the Town’s identity and heritage is a crucial element to the future of the 

municipality. As the Town of Prescott continues to develop, it is of significant importance to 

maximize its natural and cultural assets to progress economic vitality, community development 

and infrastructure longevity. Accordingly, community design is afforded significant importance in 

the development of the various policy sections of this Plan.   

 

1.5.1 Growth Management  

A Growth Management and Vacant Land Supply Analysis was completed by Hemson 

Consulting in February 2020, and included as an appendix to the July 2020 Background Report 

for the Town of Prescott Official Plan Review, prepared by WSP. The analysis considered 

current demographic and economic trends, and established population, housing, and 

employment forecasts for the Town from a 2016 base-year to a 2041 Census year planning 

horizon. By 2041, the Town is anticipated to reach a population of 4,890 persons, 2,340 

households, and an employment base of 2,470 jobs, which represent increases of 560 persons, 

320 households, and 220 jobs from 2016. 

 

The analysis assessed whether the supply of vacant residential and employment lands within 

the Town is sufficient to accommodate the forecasted projections. The capacity of the Town to 

accommodate growth was tested by applying density assumptions based on current Official 

Plan policies and on-the-ground verification by Town staff of the identified available vacant land 

supply. An estimated potential for growth of 1,200 housing units and 900 jobs was identified. As 

such, the results confirmed that the Town has a sufficient amount of urban designated lands to 

meet the growth forecast for residential and employment growth to the 2041 horizon.  

 

1.5.2 Land Use Pattern 

The land use pattern in Prescott is reflective of its small-town origins as a local commercial and 

industrial service center with surrounding residential neighbourhoods. The Town’s commercial 

focus remains in the Downtown area along the St. Lawrence River waterfront and along Edward 

Street which leads into Prescott from Highway 401. Some larger-scale commercial uses are 

beginning to locate along the Highway 401 corridor. Similarly, the Town has also seen 

increased interest in the development of lands north of Highway 401, including recent 

commercial and industrial initiatives on Development Drive. 

Page 44 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

6 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

Residential development in Prescott is primarily small-scale and compact and is based on a 

traditional grid network of streets, particularly south of the CN Railway line. North of the line, 

residential development is more recent and represents a more suburban form of curving streets 

and cul-de-sacs. Higher density residential development is generally located close to the 

commercial core of Downtown. 

 

While a significant portion of the lands immediately adjacent to the Town’s boundaries in 

neighbouring municipalities is currently rural, the following areas are designated for future 

development. In the Township of Augusta, lands abutting the southwest Town boundary, south 

of Highway 401, are designated as a rural settlement area (Riverview Heights), primarily for 

residential development. This Plan anticipates limited extension of the Town of Prescott’s water 

and wastewater piped services to facilitate limited development in Riverview Heights subject to 

a formal water and wastewater agreement approved by both Councils.  

 

In the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal to the east, the small hamlet of New Wexford and 

part of the Prescott Golf Club abut the Town limit south of the Canadian National (CN) Railway 

line. North of the railway line, the remaining Township lands immediately abutting the Town 

Limit are designated for rural activities. Importantly, however, the partially developed Johnstown 

Industrial Park is located immediately east of the Prescott Golf Club and New Wexford, between 

the St. Lawrence River and Highway 401. The industrial park is designated as a Regionally 

Significant Employment Area and benefits from the provision of Town of Prescott water and 

waste water services. 

Page 45 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 7 

 

2.0 General Land Use Policies 

This Section of the Official Plan addresses general land use policies applicable across Prescott, 

and must be read along with policies that apply to the specific land use designations in the Land 

Use Designations Section of this Plan, as well as the other policies of this Plan. 

 

2.1 Accessory Uses, Buildings, or Structures  

1. Wherever a use is permitted in a land use designation, it is intended that uses, buildings 

or structures that are normally incidental or accessory, and essential to that use shall 

also be permitted. 

 

2.2 Compatibility and Built Form  

Introducing new development in existing established areas, in particular through intensification, 

requires a sensitive approach and consideration of the area’s established uses and character. 

While land use designations and the implementing Zoning By-law help to ensure that 

compatible uses are co-located and incompatible uses (e.g. noxious industrial uses located in 

proximity to sensitive land use such as residential) are appropriately separated, it is also 

important that proposed development be compatible with existing surrounding uses and built 

form. 

 

Compatible development means development that, although not necessarily the same as 

existing development in the vicinity, is complementary or enhances an established community 

and coexists with existing development without causing undue adverse impacts (e.g. traffic, 

noise, vibration) on surrounding properties. Compatibility can be achieved in a variety of ways, 

such as through the provision of appropriate setbacks, buffering features, and transition in 

building height and massing. 

 

2.2.1 Goals 

1. Ensure compatible uses are co-located and incompatible uses are appropriately 

separated, or that undue adverse impacts between uses are mitigated. 

 

2. Recognize the importance of the Highway 401 and CN Railway corridors in providing 

locational and economic advantages for the Town. 

 

3. Recognize the real and perceived impacts of these transportation facilities on quality of 

life in abutting neighbourhoods. 

 

Page 46 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

8 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4. Minimize the adverse impacts of these transportation facilities on new development in 

the Town, and on existing development, where possible. 

 

5. Ensure these transportation facilities are protected to meet current and future needs as 

well as ensuring negative impacts are avoided, mitigated or minimized on and from 

these facilities. 

 

2.2.2 Policies 

2.2.2.1 Built Form  

The Town of Prescott is fortunate to have an eclectic mix of buildings and building styles which 

span many generations. While it is recognized that achieving perfect harmony between new 

development and existing neighborhoods which were born over more than a century, there is 

nevertheless value in trying to reflect physical neighborhood character, a sense of place and 

safe and attractive public places. Accordingly, the following general policies are intended to 

guide new development proposals:  

 

1. Proposed developments shall enhance the image of the Town of Prescott by wherever 

possible complementing and contributing to:  

a. The physical character of the area;  

b. Local landmarks;  

c. The consistency and continuity of the area with its surroundings;  

d. The edges of the area; and  

e. Linkages within, to and from the area. 

 

2. Significant views and vistas of landmarks and features, such as the St Lawrence River, 

shall generally not be obstructed, dominated or marred by a proposed development or 

infrastructure undertaking. 

 

3. The Town encourages the development or redevelopment of buildings and spaces that 

establish a pedestrian scale by promoting the:  

 

a. Placement of continuous horizontal features on the first two storeys adjacent to the 

road;  

b. Repetition of landscaping elements, such as trees, shrubs or paving modules; and  

c. Use of familiar sized architectural elements such as doorways and windows.  

 
4. The provision of furniture, stairs, walls and benches in public spaces that provide 

comfortable rest areas for pedestrians, provided such elements do not obstruct 

pedestrian movement, shall generally be supported.  

 

Page 47 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 9 

 

5. The retrofitting of buildings with barrier-free features shall not impede pedestrian 

movement. 

 

6. The design of new development shall:  

 

a. Be complementary to adjacent development in terms of its overall massing, 

orientation and setback;  

b. Where possible, shall provide links with pedestrian, cycling and road networks;  

c. Maintain and enhance valued cultural and heritage resources and natural features 

and functions.  

 

2.2.2.2 Development Review 

1. In reviewing all types of development and redevelopment applications, Council shall be 

satisfied that the proposed development is compatible with the surrounding uses, built 

form, and general physical character of the area. 

 

2. Compatibility of new development should be assessed based on the following criteria: 

 

a. Height and massing: Building height, massing, and scale should be assessed 

based on the planned or existing uses of adjacent properties, as well as the 

physical character established by the prevailing pattern of abutting development 

and development that is across the street; 

 

b. Landscaping: Landscaping may be required as a buffer between uses and shall 

be of a sufficient depth as determined through the Zoning By-law; 

 

c. Lighting: The potential for light spill over or glare onto adjacent light-sensitive 

areas or the sky must be minimized; 

 

d. Noise and air quality: The development should be located and designed to 

minimize the potential for adverse impacts on adjacent sensitive uses related to 

odour, noise, and other contaminants; 

 

e. Parking: Adequate on-site parking must be provided in accordance with the 

provisions of the Zoning By-law, with minimal impact on adjacent uses. For 

higher-density development, the Town may consider permitting reduced 

standards for on-site parking, or off-site parking, where accommodation of on-site 

parking is not possible; 

 

f. Safety: The development should be designed to ensure that opportunities for 

crime and threats to public safety are reduced or minimized; 

Page 48 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

10 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

g. Setbacks: Prevailing patterns of front, rear and side yard setbacks, building 

separation, landscaped open spaces, and outdoor amenity areas as established 

by existing zoning where the proposed pattern is different from the existing 

pattern of development; 

 

h. Shadowing: Shadowing on adjacent properties, particularly on public and private 

outdoor amenity areas, should be minimized to the extent feasible; 

 

i. Traffic impacts: The road network or waterbody in the vicinity of the proposed 

development can accommodate the vehicular or boat traffic generated; 

 

j. Transition: The need to provide a transition between areas of different 

development intensity and scale, including through the use of incremental 

changes in building height, massing, setbacks and stepbacks. Transition may 

also be achieved through the installation of noise walls, berms, landscaping and 

specific plant species, as deemed appropriate, to provide an adequate buffer 

between properties; and 

 

k. Vehicular access: The location and orientation of vehicle access must take into 

account impact on adjacent properties including noise, glare, and loss of privacy, 

as well as safety of pedestrians and pedestrian access. 

 

3. Council may undertake the preparation of a Neighbourhood Character Study to identify 

the prevalent character that distinguishes the various residential neighbourhoods in 

Prescott. The Neighbourhood Character Study would be undertaken in consultation with 

residents. Such a study may also include the development of design guidelines, which 

could be used by proponents and by the Town to evaluate development applications, 

particularly for proposed intensification, and to ensure that compatibility of new 

development with adjacent land uses and the prevailing character and built form of a 

specific neighbourhood is maintained or enhanced. 

 

2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and Residential Uses 

Commercial facilities may include a range of commercial uses such as retail stores, restaurants 

and offices, among other uses. While these facilities support the day-to-day needs of the 

community, they may have the potential to result in adverse impacts on adjacent residential land 

uses.  

 

1. Development of commercial facilities shall be evaluated using the compatibility criteria 

established in Section 2.2.2.2 Development Review. 

 

Page 49 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 11 

 

2. To ensure that any potential impacts on residential uses located adjacent to proposed 

commercial facilities, the commercial uses shall: 

 

a. Be compatible and integrated with surrounding development; 

 

b. Demonstrate a high standard of urban design; 

 

c. Minimize impacts on surrounding development through site design and scale 

limitations; 

 

d. Primarily serve the needs of area residents; and 

 

e. Where appropriate, be grouped together. 

 

3. Compatibility and design considerations for proposed commercial facilities shall be 

addressed through the Site Plan Control process.  

 

2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses 

1. Proponents of industrial development may be required to provide supporting technical 

studies, such as a Land Use Compatibility Study in accordance with the provincial 

guidelines, standards and procedures as supporting documentation for the planning 

approval. This Study shall assist in the evaluation of proposed developments, and where 

applicable, to determine influence areas, address potential impacts, and identify 

appropriate separation distances and other mitigation measures to minimize potential 

adverse effects such as noise, odour, vibration, particulate and other contaminants. 

Consideration may also be given to the extent to which increased site plan requirements 

can reduce the potential impacts. 

 

2. Separation distances between sensitive land uses and potentially conflicting land uses 

shall be measured in accordance with Provincial Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, as 

amended, which provide classification criteria and examples to categorize a specific 

industry. 

 

3. Industrial Uses shall respect the minimum separation distances required between 

industrial uses and residential or other sensitive land uses, as set by the Provincial Land 

Use Compatibility Guidelines and other future Province or Town documents. 

 

4. Proponents may be required to provide buffering measures such as landscaping, 

plantings, and fencing to minimize the impact of the industrial activity. 

 

Page 50 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

12 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.2.2.5 Transportation Corridors  

Major transportation facilities in the Town include the Highway 401 and Canadian National (CN) 

Railway corridors, which are identified on the Schedules to this Official Plan. While these 

facilities provide Prescott with important locational and, therefore, economic advantages, they 

do have the potential to generate adverse impacts on adjacent lands, regardless of land use. As 

such, it is important that development proposals in areas that abut transportation corridors 

carefully consider means of minimizing these impacts. 

 
1. Minimize land use conflicts between new development and the transportation corridors 

in the Town. 

 

2. Protect new development in neighbourhoods that abut transportation corridors and 

minimize the potential off-site impacts of such corridors by requiring buffering and 

screening of new development. Potential off-site impacts to be minimized include noise, 

vibration, light, and dust. 

 

3. The Town may require a detailed noise study for all new noise-sensitive development, 

including residential uses and institutional uses, including but not limited to hospitals, 

nursing/retirement homes, schools, and day care centres, within 500 metres of Highway 

401 or the CN Railway corridor. Such a study shall assess applicable sound level limits 

and the noise control measures necessary, in accordance with the Ministry of the 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) Environmental Noise Guideline (NPC-

300), as amended. For new noise-sensitive development within 100 metres of Highway 

401 or the CN Railway corridor, a noise feasibility study shall be required to determine 

whether it is possible to achieve the MECP noise criteria. Should the study find that such 

development is feasible, then a development application may be submitted to the Town. 

Any required noise feasibility study shall be prepared by a qualified professional at the 

expense of the applicant. 

 

4. Require that any noise control measures identified in a noise feasibility study, completed 

per Policy 3 above, be included as conditions of approval of any development 

application, as required. Such measures shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

 

5. Encourage the reduction of transportation corridor impacts on existing abutting 

neighbourhoods in areas where such impacts have been identified as problematic. 

Impacts include noise and vibration from passing vehicle and train traffic, including 

locomotive horns. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation, CN Railway, local 

businesses, and residents to address such impacts. 

 

6. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation to ensure that land use decisions on 

properties abutting the Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward Street maintain 

Page 51 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 13 

 

the operating viability of the facility and support the controls exercised by the Ministry. 

Such decisions may relate to the use of abutting properties, access in interchange 

areas, traffic, stormwater management, structures and signage, lighting, buffering, and 

screening. Such decisions require Ministry approvals and permits under the Public 

Transportation and Highway Improvement Act. 

 

7. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation and CN Railway on any plan to 

significantly alter the operation and maintenance of their facilities in Prescott, including 

expansion, reconstruction, closure, etc., to the degree that it may affect the quality of life 

of Town residents. 

 

8. Council may consider undertaking an Interchange Highway Access Management Plan (I-

HAMP) transportation planning / traffic study, in coordination with neighbouring 

municipalities and the Ontario Ministry of Transportation, to address future development 

and technical constraints north of Highway 401, including related to the interchange at 

Edward Street and proximity to access roads to the east and west.  

 

2.3 Economic Development  

Economic development has always been an important consideration in Prescott. With respect to 

planning, economic development is a recurring theme in this Official Plan.  

 

2.3.1 Goals 

1. Continue the commitment to local economic development in Prescott by supporting 

industry, commerce, and tourism in the Town, at locations that are appropriate and in 

keeping with the policies of this Plan. 

 

2. Focus Downtown economic development efforts in a manner which is consistent with the 

Plan’s Guiding Principles.  

 

3. Engage in initiatives that stimulate the generation of new employment. 

 

4. Collaborate with other levels of government, business and community groups in 

promoting and engaging in economic development initiatives. 

 

2.3.2 Policies 

1. Support the development of tourism in Prescott by encouraging a wide range of 

seasonal and year-round tourism-related services and activities, including: 

 

Page 52 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

14 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

a. Commercial lodging and accommodations, including, but not limited to, hotels, 

motels, boutique inns, and bed and breakfasts; 

 

b. Dining and food-related uses, including, but not limited to, restaurants and pubs, 

cafes, specialty food stores, and farmers’ markets. The provision of public and 

private outdoor patios should be encouraged; 

 

c. Entertainment uses, including but not limited to, theatres, arcades, multi-media 

shopping, and museums; 

 

d. Cultural heritage-related services and activities that leverage the Town’s heritage 

sites, including Fort Wellington and the Church of St. Mark the Evangelist; 

 

e. Adventure- and sport-related services and activities for divers, cyclists, golfers, 

swimmers, and boaters, among other similar uses; and 

 

f. Maximizing the potential of existing recreational facilities as tourist amenities. 

 

2. Continue to encourage tourism by supporting existing festivals and events, and by 

encouraging new festivals and events, including through public-private partnerships, that 

will attract visitors to the Town. 

 

3. Promote the Downtown and waterfront as the focal points for public gatherings, festive 

and civic occasions, cultural events, tourism, and social interaction. To facilitate the 

development of such focal points, the Downtown and waterfront the undertaking of 

infrastructure and beautification projects will be supported. 

 

4. Support the priority projects recommended for the Downtown Core in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report, including the Façade Improvement Program, Market 

Square, and Riverwalk Park. These projects will contribute significantly to local 

economic development efforts in the Town. 

 

5. Promote the development of institutional uses within the Town, including new 

educational facilities. 

 

6. Support the planning and delivery of projects such as improvements to municipal 

services, transportation, and hydro-electric power and communication networks projects, 

that support the development or redevelopment of commercial, industrial and other 

employment generating activities. 

 

Page 53 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 15 

 

7. Encourage the development and redevelopment of lands associated economic 

development by prioritizing the review of the required Town planning and development 

applications. 

 

8. Promote the development of existing buildings and lands within the Town to support 

commercial, industrial and other employment generating activities. The rehabilitation of 

heritage buildings, the retrofitting of existing building stock should be encouraged. New 

employment opportunities should be encouraged within existing business parks, 

employment, tourism and waterfront lands.  

 

9. Ensure that the location of tourism and business-related services and activities is clearly 

indicated by means of wayfinding measures through street signage, maps, and local 

tourism publications. 

 

10. Consider the future completion of a Tourism Asset and Activity Strategy to support 

existing tourism assets, and local and regional partnerships. 

 

11. Provide sufficient commercial and industrial land to meet the need for commercial and 

industrial space and services that can be supported by local and regional residents, 

businesses, workers, and visitors, and that serve the transportation industry and 

travelling public that use Highway 401. 

 

12. Continue to protect the social and environmental well-being of the community in the 

pursuit of economic development efforts. 

 

13. Support initiatives that facilitate food production as part of a sustainable local food 

system. 

 

14. Identify and promote opportunities for intensification and redevelopment of Brownfield 

and vacant sites through the Community Improvement Plan and other financial 

incentives. 

 

15. Encourage the development of home-based businesses. 

 

16. Provide ongoing support, enhancements and design guidance for community 

improvement programs. 

 

17. Council may establish an Economic Development and Tourism Committee to advise on 

matters related to attraction, development, retention and expansion of businesses and 

tourism in Prescott. 

 

Page 54 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

16 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

18. Engage in activities that facilitate business investment and resident attraction and 

retention, such as engaging in activities to develop the Town’s brand.  

 

19. Work with the South Grenville Chamber of Commerce, Prescott Business Improvement 

Area (BIA), Grenville Community Future Development Corporation, United Counties of 

Leeds and Grenville, St. Lawrence Corridor Economic Development Commission, 

Regional Tourism Organization 9, neighbouring municipalities, provincial agencies, and 

other local community organizations and businesses on local and regional economic 

development, and tourism initiatives that benefit the Town. 

 

20. Recognize the importance of the Town’s seasonal population to the local and regional 

economy, including the employment opportunities generated by the second home 

sector. 

 

 

2.4 Energy Conservation, Air Quality and Climate Change  

Municipalities have an important role to play in reducing greenhouse gasses that are resulting in 

climate change and, in turn, reducing or minimizing the adverse impacts associated with climate 

change. The Town of Prescott recognizes the importance of undertaking such measures, 

including as it relates to the impacts of a changing climate on the St. Lawrence River’s water 

levels, which have increased over time and led to significant damage due to high water levels in 

2017 and 2019. 

 

2.4.1 Goals 

1. Support and encourage alternative energy systems and renewable energy sources for 

both residential and non-residential developments. 

 

2. Promote energy efficient land use patterns. 

 

3. Engage with Indigenous communities to learn and consider Indigenous knowledge 

regarding cultural heritage and the physical environment. 

 

2.4.2 Policies 

1. Require that plans of subdivision be designed with a primarily east-west street 

orientation, wherever feasible, in order to create lots with a southern exposure. 

 

2. Implement the walking and cycling policies contained in the Transportation and 

Circulation Section of this Plan. 

 

Page 55 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 17 

 

3. Promote, and regulate as may be required, the domestic use of solar and wind 

generation for all types of development in the Town, including the retrofitting of existing 

buildings. 

 

4. Encourage the integration of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 

building and neighbourhood concepts or similar building design considerations, for all 

new municipal buildings and for major renovations/expansions to existing municipal 

buildings. 

 

5. In reviewing planning applications, promote energy conservation and energy efficiency in 

all new developments, including plans of subdivision, site plans, building design, and 

construction, through techniques such as: 

 

a. Green building design, LEED building and neighbourhood concepts or similar 

building design considerations; 

 

b. Building orientation to maximize passive solar energy gain; 

 

c. Tree planting, landscaping, naturalization; and  

 

d. The use of Low Impact Development (LID) approaches and technologies, such 

as green infrastructure to manage stormwater runoff, on-site natural features to 

protect water quality, and reducing hard surfaces to maximize site permeability.  

 

6. Consider the preparation of a Climate Change Adaptation and Management Plan that 

addresses: 

 

a. Mitigation strategies to reduce the Town’s contribution to climate change; 

 

b. Adaptation strategies to assist the Town in coping with the effect of climate 

change on the community; and 

 

c. Strategies to coordinate emergency management and other economic, 

environmental, and social planning considerations to support efficient and 

resilient communities. 

 

7. The Town supports development and management practices which address climate 

change mitigation and adaptation. Development considerations include but are not 

limited to the: 

a. Reduction of greenhouse emissions; 

b. Improvement of air quality; 

Page 56 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

18 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

c. Facilitation of a compact development form; 

d. Promotion of green infrastructure; and 

e. Advancement of design and orientation which maximizes: 
 

i. Energy efficiency and conservation, and considers the mitigating effects 

of vegetation; and 

 

ii. Opportunities for the use of renewable energy systems and alternative 

energy systems. 

 

8. Contribute to the evaluation and addressing of the potential impacts of climate change 

on water resource systems at the watershed level, in coordination with the Province, 

South Nation Conservation Authority (SNC), and neighbouring municipalities. 

 

9. The Town may undertake treeplanting, landscaping, and naturalization initiatives on 

municipal property, where appropriate, to contribute to improved air quality and help 

moderate summer and winter micro-climatic conditions. 

 

10. Promote alternative and renewable energy systems as accessory and standalone uses. 

 

11. Support the reduction of waste from construction debris as a result of the demolition of 

buildings, by promoting and encouraging the adaptive reuse of older and existing 

building stock and materials. 

 

2.5 Housing  

The availability of housing in a community is an important indicator of the local quality of life. 

The intent of this Official Plan is to encourage housing production through development and 

redevelopment, that provides new and existing residents with a full range and diversity of 

housing in terms of options, tenure, location, and affordability, as well as home occupations and 

residential care facilities. 

 

2.5.1 Goals 

1. Encourage the provision of a full range and diversity of housing in the Town through new 

development and redevelopment. 

 

2. Maintain a sufficient supply of lands designated for residential development in the Town. 

 

3. Recognize the importance of home occupations as a means of employment and 

contribution to local economic development. 

Page 57 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 19 

 

 

4. Recognize the importance of and the need for residential care facilities, as a means of 

valuable living arrangements in the community. 

 

2.5.2 Policies  

2.5.2.1 Housing Supply 

1. Endeavour to provide for the near- and longer-term supply of housing in the Town by: 

 

a. Maintaining the ability to accommodate residential growth for a minimum of 15 

years through residential intensification, redevelopment and, if necessary, lands 

designated for residential development, based on accepted measures of existing 

and projected housing production and absorption of residential land; and 

 

b. Ensuring a minimum five (5)-year supply of residential land with servicing 

capacity through lands zoned to facilitate residential intensification and 

redevelopment, and through lands in draft approved and registered plans of 

subdivision. Sufficient servicing capacity must exist to support such residential 

development;  

 

c. Providing for an appropriate range and mix of housing options and densities 

required to meet projected requirements of current and future residents; and 

 

d. Directing the development of new housing towards locations where appropriate 

levels of infrastructure and public services are available. 

 

2. Continue to monitor the supply of residentially-designated land within the Town and the 

range of housing produced by type, tenure, and affordability. 

 

2.5.2.2 Additional Residential Units 

Additional residential units, formerly known as “secondary dwelling units” or “second units”, are 

self-contained residential units that include kitchen and bathroom facilities, and which are 

located within a primary dwelling or within a structure that is ancillary to a primary dwelling. They 

are considered an affordable housing type, and can contribute to the availability of rental 

housing and alternative living arrangements. The following policies shall apply to additional 

residential units. 

 

1. A maximum of two (2) additional residential units shall be permitted on a lot containing a 

single-detached, semi-detached or townhouse dwelling, for a maximum of three (3) 

residential units on a lot, in accordance with the following: 

Page 58 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

20 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

a. One (1) additional residential unit is permitted within the primary dwelling unit 

(e.g. a basement apartment);  

 

b. One (1) additional residential unit is permitted within a detached structure (e.g. a 

detached garage) that is ancillary to the primary dwelling unit;  

 

c. The primary dwelling unit must be located in a designation that permits the 

residential use; and 

 

d. There must be adequate water and sewer capacity to accommodate the 

additional residential unit(s).  

 

2. Require any additional residential units constructed within the Town to comply with the 

requirements of Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, the Zoning By-law, and other 

municipal by-laws. 

 

3. The Zoning By-law shall establish standards related to additional residential units, such 

as setbacks for additional residential units contained in detached structures, parking 

requirements, and building and lot requirements.  

 

2.5.2.3 Administrative Support 

1. Work to ensure that the processing time for residential development approvals be kept to 

a minimum and streamlined where other approvals are required, as appropriate, and 

consider prioritizing proposed affordable housing development for residential 

development approval. 

 

2. Consider innovative measures to encourage the production of affordable housing, 

including: 

a. Reduced right-of-way widths on local streets; 

b. Alternative zoning requirements, as appropriate; 

c. Alternative housing designs; and 

d. Review of construction standards. 

 

2.5.2.4 Affordable Housing 

For the purposes of the policies in this Section, “affordable” is defined as housing, either 

ownership or rental, for which a low or moderate income household pays no more than 30% of 

its gross annual income. Income levels and target rents and prices shall be determined by the 

Town on an annual basis and shall be informed by available data from the Canada Mortgage 

and Housing Corporation (CMHC).  

 

Page 59 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 21 

 

1. Support the production of affordable housing in the Town by: 

 

a. Encouraging a portion of new residential development, including rental housing, 

to be affordable to low and moderate income households within the lowest 60 

percent of local income distribution, as determined by the Province from time to 

time.;  

 

b. Promoting the provision of non-profit housing by private and non-profit housing 

corporations;  

 

c. Supporting the development of housing forms and densities designed to be 

affordable, including higher-density multi-unit housing, additional residential units, 

garden suites, and tiny homes; 

 

d. Encouraging proponents to consider the provision of housing ownership models 

such as life lease housing and co-ownership housing;   

 

e. Working with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville to contribute to their 

Housing and Homelessness Plan implementation strategy which seeks to 

achieve an overall minimum affordable housing target of 25% for all new 

residential development, including infill, intensification, and redevelopment;  

 

f. When evaluating proposals for new residential development or redevelopment, 

the Town may require a proponent to provide a portion of the development as 

affordable housing units, in order to help meet Council’s minimum affordable 

housing target; and 

 

g. Identifying potential surplus properties which are owned by the Town or another 

level of government that may be made available and prioritized for the 

development of affordable housing.  

 

2. The Town may participate in the preparation and implementation of an Affordable 

Housing Strategy, in partnership with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville.  

 

3. Council may use incentives such as grants or loans through the Town’s Community 

Improvement Plan(s) or other tools permitted under the Planning Act or Municipal Act in 

order to achieve the affordable housing policies in this Plan, in accordance with the 

definition of “affordable housing” as established in this Section. 

 

Page 60 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

22 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.5.2.5 Bed and Breakfasts 

1. Support the establishment of bed and breakfast uses in single detached dwellings, 

provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The proprietor of the establishment resides on the premises; 

 

d. Guest rooms are provided as temporary accommodations on a daily basis; 

 

e. The Leeds, Grenville and Lanark District Health Unit is consulted, reviews, and 

permits the establishment; 

 

f. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, parking, or signage; and 

 

g. The use is permitted in the Zoning By-law. 

 

2.5.2.6 Short-term Rentals  

1. Permit the establishment of short-term rentals in residential dwellings, provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The proprietor of the short-term rental resides on the premises; 

 

d. Guest rooms are provided as temporary accommodations on a daily basis; 

 

e. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, or parking; and 

 

f. The use is permitted in the Zoning By-law. 

2. Council may consider requiring registration of short-term rental properties using a 

licensing system to ensure the Town’s public safety and property standards are met. 

 

Page 61 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 23 

 

3. The Town may specify the residential dwelling types in which short-term rentals are 

permitted through the Zoning By-law, a licensing system or other Town policy 

documents and regulations. 

 

2.5.2.7 Group Homes 

1. Permit group homes in all land use designations that permit residential use. Group 

homes are federally- or Provincially-licensed or funded and accommodate 3 to 10 

residents living as a single household. Such residents require a group living 

arrangement by reason of their emotional, mental, social, or physical condition or legal 

status.  

 

2. Require site plan approval for all group home development in the Town. 

 

2.5.2.8 Home Occupations 

1. Support the location of home occupations wherever residential uses are permitted, 

provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, parking, or signage; 

 

d. No goods, wares, or merchandise are displayed for sale outside of the dwelling 

and all activities occur inside the dwelling; 

 

e. The use is carried out by a resident of the dwelling and no more than 1 non-

resident employee; 

 

f. Adequate off-street parking is available; and 

 

g. The use does not exceed the maximum proportion of dwelling floor area 

specified in the Zoning By-law. 

 

2. Permit private home day care uses as a home occupation. A private home day care is 

defined as a small-scale day care facility which is operated in a dwelling where 

temporary care is provided for up to five (5) children, not including any children residing 

Page 62 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

24 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

permanently in the dwelling, and which is operated in accordance with Provincial 

regulations. 

 

2.5.2.9 Garden Suites 

Garden suites are one-unit detached residential structures containing bathroom and kitchen 

facilities. Garden suites are designed to be portable and are ancillary to a residential structure. 

Garden suites are an affordable housing type and are especially suitable for groups such as 

seniors because they enable older adults to live independently while receiving informal support 

from family members or a caregiver in an independent unit. The following policies shall apply to 

garden suites. 

 

1. Permit the establishment of garden suites, pursuant to Section 39.1 of the Planning Act, 

on the same lot as single detached or semi-detached dwellings, provided that the use: 

 

a. Is limited to a single dwelling unit, is portable and temporary in nature, is fully 

serviced, and is ancillary to the primary residence; 

 

b. Will be removed from the lot at such time that it is no longer required to house 

the occupant for whom it was originally intended; and 

 

c. Does not exceed the maximum floor area for garden suites specified in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

2. A garden suite shall only be permitted subject to a temporary use Zoning By-law 

Amendment. The use shall not exceed twenty (20) years from the date of passing of the 

by-law. However, Council may by by-law grant further periods of not more than three (3) 

years each during which the temporary use is authorized, in accordance with the 

Planning Act.   

 

3. As per the Planning Act, Council may require the owner of the suite or any other person 

to enter into an agreement with the Town dealing with such matters related to the 

temporary use of the garden suite as Council considers necessary or advisable, 

including: 

a. The installation, maintenance and removal of the garden suite; 

 

b. The period of occupancy of the garden suite by any of the persons named in the 

agreement; and 

 

c. The monetary or other form of security that the Council may require for actual or 

potential costs to the Town related to the garden suite.  

 

Page 63 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 25 

 

4. The Zoning By-law shall establish standards related to the building, lot, and parking 

requirements for garden suites. 

 

2.5.2.10 Tiny Homes  

Tiny homes are small, private, self-contained dwelling units that can be a primary home or a 

separate structure on the same lot as an existing principle residence (i.e. an additional 

residential unit). Tiny homes are dwelling units that are intended for year-round use and do not 

include campers, recreational vehicles, cottages and other seasonal use structures. They are a 

housing type that promotes affordability and increased homeownership opportunities, and may 

be desirable to a broad range of demographics, including young workers and families, aging 

residents, and residents seeking to down-size to a smaller housing type. The following policies 

shall apply to tiny homes. 

 

1. Permit tiny homes as primary dwellings units or as additional residential units ancillary to 

and on the same lot as single detached, semi-detached, and townhouse dwellings, 

provided that adequate infrastructure capacity exists. 

 

2. Require any tiny homes constructed within the Town to comply with the requirements of 

Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, the Zoning By-law, and other municipal by-laws. 

 

3. Ensure that the location and design of tiny homes is compatible with nearby land uses. 

 

2.6 Source Water Protection  

2.6.1 Overview 

The Town's water supply is from the St. Lawrence River, consisting of a water intake located in 

the river and a water treatment plant located at the foot of Sophia Street. It is essential that the 

Town's water supply be protected from risks that might cause contamination. 

The Clean Water Act requires local municipalities to look at the existing and potential threats to 

drinking water sources and to set out and implement the actions necessary to reduce or 

eliminate significant drinking water threat activities. To that end, a Source Water Protection Plan 

was approved by the province in April 2015. The plan, known as the Raisin-South Nation 

Source Protection Plan (RSSPP) must now be implemented through a number of avenues 

including land use planning policies and regulations.  

 

2.6.2 Goals  

1. Ensure the protection, improvement and restoration of the quality and quantity of water 

by maintaining linkages and related functions among ground water features, hydrologic 

Page 64 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

26 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

functions, natural heritage features and areas, and surface water features including 

shoreline areas. 

 

2. Identify water resource systems consisting of ground water features, hydrologic 

functions, natural heritage features and areas, and surface water features including 

shoreline areas, which are necessary for the ecological and hydrological integrity of the 

watershed. 

 

3. Recognize the need to set appropriate restrictions on development and site alteration to 

protect municipal drinking water supplies and designated vulnerable areas. 

 

4. Pursue mitigation and/or alternative development approaches where development or site 

alteration is proposed in or near sensitive surface water features or sensitive ground 

water features to protect and improved the hydrologic functions of these features. 

 

2.6.3 Vulnerable Areas 

Vulnerable areas identified in the RSSPP as Intake Protection Zone 1 (IPZ 1) and Intake 

Protection Zone 2 (IPZ 2) are shown on Schedule B of this Official Plan.  

 

2.6.4 Prohibited Uses 

1. Development that relies on the establishment of the following activities on lands 

identified as IPZ 1 on Schedule B is prohibited: 

a. Combined Sewer Discharge from a stormwater outlet to surface water; 

b. Storm water pond effluent; 

c. Industrial Effluent Discharges which discharge from surface water and have their 

primary function in the collection, transmission or treatment of industrial sewage; 

d. Sewage Treatment Plant By-pass discharges to surface water; 

e. Sewage Treatment Plant Effluent discharges; and  

f. Storage or sewage. 

 

2. The activities described in 2.6.3.1 Prohibited Uses may be exempt from the prohibition, 

in accordance with the RSSPP, if the new sewage treatment plant will replace an 

existing sewage treatment plant or the expansion will provide full services to a new or 

existing development which is partially serviced or a development where on-site septic 

systems are failing.  

 

2.6.5 Risk Management Official Exemption 

If the Risk Management Official or another person duly qualified under the Clean Water Act 

Page 65 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 27 

 

determines that there is no significant risk, then a use listed above may be permitted without the 

need for an amendment to this Plan, where such use would otherwise be permitted. All 

applications for development or building permits for lands in IPZ-1 must be reviewed by the Risk 

Management Official. 

 

1. Applications for building or development on lands within the IPZ 1, as identified on 

Schedule B, shall be circulated by the Town to the Risk Management Official, for review 

and comment prior to a decision in accordance with Section 59 of the Clean Water Act. 

Before an application under the Planning Act or a building permit can be determined to 

be complete, the applicant must first obtain written notice from the Risk Management 

Official. Certain activities related to the development may be prohibited or require a risk 

management plan. 

 

2. In addition to land use approvals under the Planning Act, activities associated with 

agricultural uses may also require approval under other legislation and regulations, such 

as the Clean Water Act and the Nutrient Management Act. 

 

3. In addition to land use approvals under the Planning Act, activities associated with 

wastewater may also require approval under other legislation and regulations, such as 

the Ontario Water Resources Act and the Environmental Protection Act. 

 

2.6.6 Development Review 

All development applications in a Source Water Protection Area shall be supported by studies, 

as determined in consultation with the Conservation Authority, which demonstrates to the 

satisfaction of the Risk Management Official that the proposed development does not pose a 

risk to the Town's drinking water supply and which includes any mitigation measures that may 

be required. In IPZ 1, certain types of development may be prohibited or require Risk 

Management Plans as per the RSSPP. 

 

2.7 Cross-jurisdictional Coordination  

Coordination with neighbouring municipalities has always been an important consideration in 

Prescott. As the largest residential, commercial, and employment centre between the cities of 

Brockville and Cornwall, Prescott must continue to coordinate its efforts with surrounding 

municipalities, various public agencies, and other service providers in an integrated, 

comprehensive and cost-effective manner. 

 

2.7.1 Goal 

1. Continue the commitment to work closely with neighbouring municipalities on a range of 

issues that cross municipal boundaries. 

Page 66 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

28 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

2.7.2 Policies 

1. Coordinate land use, facility, and service planning in the Town with the planning efforts 

of neighbouring municipalities, agencies, and service providers, as appropriate, to meet 

the existing and future needs of the community. 

 

2. Cooperate with neighbouring municipalities on land use decisions and planning projects 

along municipal boundaries and adopt a “good neighbour” policy of avoiding the 

designation and approval of high impact uses and developments to the detriment of 

neighbouring jurisdictions. 

 

3. Cooperate with neighbouring municipalities on planning matters that transcend municipal 

boundaries and jurisdictions, and require a coordinated, integrated, and comprehensive 

approach. Such matters may include: 

 

a. Local and regional economic development; 

 

b. Environmental management, including the identification and preservation of 

significant natural heritage features and areas; 

 

c. Cultural heritage conservation and preservation, including inventory, evaluation, 

and management of such cultural heritage resources; 

 

d. Housing supply and affordability, including near- and long-term supply, and the 

production of affordable units; 

 

e. Employment, including retaining existing jobs and creating new ones; and 

 

f. Community services, including public facilities (sewer, water, recreation, open 

space) and public services (firefighting, waste management, recreation, and 

culture).  

 

2.8 Urban Agriculture  

The Town recognizes the reality of rising food costs, and a growing culture for locally grown 

produce. The Town shall encourage community gardens / roof top gardens as important 

resources to the community and as an attractive alternative source of food for residents.  

 

Page 67 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 29 

 

2.8.1 Goal 

1. Support urban agriculture activities throughout the Town of Prescott. 

 

2.8.2 Policies 

1. The Town shall support urban agriculture throughout Prescott by: 

a. Permitting community gardens and roof top gardens in the following designations:  

Downtown Core; General Commercial; Residential; R-1 Special Policy Area; 

Institutional; and Parks and Open Space.  

 

b. Promoting community gardens in development / redevelopment initiatives, where 

appropriate; 

 

c. Identifying sites, including Town parks, for the establishment of community gardens; 

 

d. Identifying opportunities for partnerships with community organizations. 

 

2.9 Waterfront Development  

The Prescott waterfront is an incredible resource for the community. It provides the historical 

basis for the Town and is an important part of the Downtown Core. As such, it contributes to the 

economic prosperity of the Town, as well as its identity and image. Development along the 

waterfront is a priority for any community fortunate enough to have one. It is important then that 

development here is integrated with the Downtown Core, reflects the historical character of the 

area, and is open and accessible to those living, working, shopping, and visiting Prescott, while 

avoiding negative impacts to fish, wildlife, navigation, and the natural qualities of the shoreline. 

 

2.9.1 Goals 

1. Recognize the waterfront as an important part of the Downtown Core, a contributor to 

the economic success of the Town, and a significant natural resource. 

 

2. Maintain public access to the waterfront areas and strengthen the links between it and 

other parts of the Downtown Core. 

 

2.9.2 Policies 

1. Encourage enhancement of the waterfront through a combination of development and 

redevelopment opportunities. 

 

Page 68 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

30 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Support the priority projects recommended for the Waterfront District in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report.  

 

3. Apply the guidelines of the Downtown Design and Guidelines report when evaluating all 

applications for new waterfront development to ensure that it is sensitive to and supports 

the historic nature of Downtown, and that it adheres to the vision for the waterfront 

established by the community. These Guidelines relate to: 

a. Streetscape improvement; 

b. Commercial signage; and 

c. Parking facilities. 

 

4. The Town encourages the protection or enhancement of a naturalized buffer along 

waterfront lands, recognizing that some areas may be natural bare rock and do not 

require further enhancement. This measure will help to protect water quality as well as 

protecting environmentally sensitive riparian areas. It will also help to control erosion and 

assist in softening the visual intrusion of development in natural areas. In the event of 

construction damage in this buffer area, the natural vegetation should be re-instated to 

the extent possible. Native plantings should be implemented in naturalized buffers to 

improve and enhance ecological functions of the natural environment. 

 

5. Maintain and enhance public access to the waterfront, particularly in the Downtown 

Core, for any development and redevelopment projects, as appropriate. 

 

6. Ensure that any construction or filling below the high water mark is in accordance with 

the Navigable Waters Protection Act and the International Boundary Waters Treaty Act. 

Approval of such work by Transport Canada shall be a condition of approval of any 

development application. 

 

7. Require that all services, conduits, cables, and accessory buildings associated with any 

waterfront development and redevelopment project are hidden or effectively screened to 

minimize visual impact. Utility cables should be undergrounded, as appropriate. This 

policy also relates to any infrastructure installed by the Town, other public agency, or 

service provider, as appropriate. 

 

8. For existing lots of record established prior to this Plan’s date of approval, new 

development should be set back 30 metres from the high water mark of a waterbody if 

possible, otherwise as far back as the lot permits subject to topographical constraints 

and size of lot, with minimum disturbance of native soils and very limited removal of the 

shoreline vegetation beyond that required for development. This setback shall not apply 

to permitted docks, boathouses, or other marine facilities. 

 

Page 69 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 31 

 

9. New lots created through the severance/consent process shall be set back a minimum of 

30 m from the high water mark of the waterbody, with minimum disturbance of native 

soils and very limited removal of shoreline vegetation. This setback shall not apply to 

permitted docks, boathouses, or other marine facilities.  

 

10. Require site plan approval for all new waterfront development in the Town. 

 

11. Consider coordination with the City of Brockville, Township of Augusta, Township of 

Edwardsburgh Cardinal and Township of Elizabethtown-Kitley for the development of 

facilities along the waterfront, waterfront and walk-in dive site guidelines, and active 

transportation networks. 

 

 

Page 70 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

32 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

3.0 Land Use Designations 

This Section of the Official Plan contains the policies applicable to the following land use 

designations in the Town, as shown on Schedule A of this Plan: Residential; General 

Commercial; Highway Commercial; Downtown Core; Employment Area; Institutional; and Parks 

and Open Space. The remaining areas in the Town are not designated, as they are comprised 

of major transportation infrastructure and facilities that are not owned or maintained by the 

Town, including Highway 401 and the Canadian National (CN) Railway line. Uses on these 

lands include roads, rail lines, and related appurtenances such as sidings, bridges, weigh 

stations, signals, etc. The Town has no land use authority over these lands. 

 

The land use designations and policies provide the framework for land use planning in the Town 

of Prescott for the next 20 years, and are intended to achieve the community vision and primary 

plan principles outlined in the Vision and Guiding Principles Section of this Plan.  

 

The Official Plan land use designations are intended to be broad enough to give the Town 

flexibility in implementing its policies, but clear enough to provide sufficient direction to 

implement the Plan and guide future development.  

 

3.1.1 Land Use Schedules  

This Official Plan includes the following Schedules:  

 

a. Schedule A – Land Use 

b. Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

c. Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

d. Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources, and Human-made Hazards 

e. Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Area 

 

The Official Plan Schedules are to be used and interpreted in conjunction with the text and other 

figures contained in the Official Plan.  

 

3.2 Residential  

Lands designated Residential on Schedule A of this Plan provide for a variety of housing types 

and densities and other complementary land uses, such as small neighbourhood-serving 

commercial uses (e.g. convenience stores), places of worship, schools and park sites that 

contribute to creating complete neighbourhoods. More intensive institutional uses, such as the 

Town Hall/Library and arena, may also be permitted, provided that any new uses in established 

neighbourhoods are compatible, or can be made compatible, with existing development. Higher 

density housing, such as apartments, is typically focused in the Downtown Core designation 

and along the Canadian National (CN) Rail line. Residential development in Prescott should 

Page 71 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 33 

 

reflect a diverse range of housing types that is affordable, safe, accessible, and meets the 

needs of the entire community.  

 

Residential lot creation in the Town shall occur primarily through plan of subdivision, although 

limited lot creation by means of consent may be contemplated.  

 

The goals and policies for the Residential designation are outlined as follows. 

 

3.2.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of housing types that meets the existing and future needs of the 

community. 

 

2. Encourage a sufficient supply of housing that supports affordability and accessibility in 

the community. 

 

3. Provide opportunities for small neighbourhood-serving commercial uses (e.g. 

convenience stores), places of worship, schools, and parks. 

 

4. Ensure that new housing opportunities are compatible with surrounding land uses and 

protect the natural environment. 

 

5. Encourage housing opportunities that are in proximity to work, shopping, and recreation 

to reduce the need to drive and encourage walking and bicycle use. 

 

6. Encourage residential intensification in areas where existing land uses would not be 

adversely affected and where development can efficiently utilize existing municipal 

services and facilities. When taking into consideration the current built form and the 

scarcity of greenfield development sites, the Town is targeting a 20% increase in 

intensification.  

 

7. Ensure that new residential development expands into areas that are adjacent to the 

existing built-up areas and that such expansion areas are appropriate for development 

based on the availability of municipal services and environmental constraints. 

 

3.2.2 Policies 

1. Maintain existing residential neighbourhoods primarily for lower density residential 

development. Such development may include single-detached, semi-detached and 

duplex dwellings. 

 

Page 72 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

34 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Permit residential intensification in existing residential neighbourhoods in the form of 

medium density residential development, including townhouses and other types of 

ground-oriented multiple residential development, which maintains or enhances the 

surrounding area and which is compatible with respect to built form, scale, urban design, 

and streetscape.  

 

High density residential development and intensification, including apartment buildings, 

should locate in the Downtown Core and along the Canadian National (CN) Rail line.  

 

3. The foregoing density policies are not to be interpreted so as to limit additional 

residential units, garden suites, and tiny homes as permitted under the Housing Section 

of this Plan.  

 

4. Permit a range of low, medium and high-density residential uses in new residential areas 

to serve the various housing needs of residents, while maintaining an overall density and 

development pattern which is in keeping with the traditional residential neighbourhoods 

of the Town. 

 

5. Permit a variety of other residential uses in residential neighbourhoods, such as non-

profit housing, assisted and special needs housing, seniors housing, and nursing homes, 

in order to meet the full range of community housing needs. 

 

6. Permit small scale neighbourhood-serving commercial uses, such as convenience 

stores; small-scale institutional uses, such as places of worship, schools, parks, libraries, 

and municipal offices; home occupations; and other non-residential uses in residential 

neighbourhoods provided such uses are compatible with and complementary to the 

neighbourhood. 

 

7. Ensure that all new residential development, including residential intensification in 

existing neighbourhoods, provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the 

Zoning By-law. Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the 

potential conflict between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. 

 

8. Ensure that all new residential development connects to existing neighbourhoods, as 

appropriate, by means of streets, sidewalks, walkways or bicycle paths, or open space 

that provide access to schools, parks, shopping, and work places, as a means of 

integrating new development into the Town fabric and encouraging walking and bicycle 

use. Such connections should also facilitate the safe separation of pedestrian, cyclist, 

and vehicular traffic. The removal of any existing connection with surrounding 

neighbourhoods is strongly discouraged. 

 

Page 73 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 35 

 

9. Protect new residential development that abuts potentially incompatible land uses, such 

as large-scale commercial uses or industrial uses, including Highway 401 and the CN 

Railway, and minimize the potential off-site impacts of these uses by requiring buffering 

and screening for new development. Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could 

include noise, light, dust, and vibration. New residential development that abuts 

potentially incompatible land uses should comply with any Provincial policies, and 

guidelines governing separation distances and other mitigation measures, including the 

Provincial Policy Statement and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and 

Park’s Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, as amended. 

 

10. Provide public facilities, services, and other amenities within close proximity to residents 

that are of high quality so as to promote their use and enhance neighbourhoods. 

 

11. Residential uses shall be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.2.3 R-1 Special Policy Area: Hyde and Wood Streets 

The area along the north side of Hyde and Wood Streets, and backing onto the CN Railway line, 

is designated R-1 Special Policy Area on Schedule A of this Plan. This area includes scattered 

industrial buildings in what is otherwise a traditional low density residential neighbourhood. 

These buildings had originally been constructed because of proximity to the rail line, and many 

of them are now underutilized, vacant and/or obsolete. 

 

The following special policies apply to this area: 

 

1. Existing industrial buildings may be zoned as conforming uses in the implementing 

Zoning By-law. These buildings may be altered, expanded, replaced or occupied by new 

industrial uses, in conformity with the Zoning By-law. In such circumstances, careful 

attention shall be paid to minimizing potential adverse impacts on the adjacent 

residential uses through the development approval process. 

 

2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the R-1 Special Policy Area designation is intended to 

encourage the redevelopment of these properties with mixed use development, including 

the adaptive re-use of existing buildings, with residential, commercial and institutional 

uses which are more compatible with the adjacent residential uses. The permitted uses 

should be in accordance with the Downtown Core designation. 

 

3. Redevelopment to a permitted non-industrial use shall require a Zoning By-law 

Amendment as well as any other applicable studies as required under Provincial 

regulations. Where the proposed redevelopment is to a more sensitive land use, such as 

a residential or an institutional use, the Zoning By-law Amendment shall also be 

supported by a Record of Site Condition and a noise and vibration study. The Zoning By-

Page 74 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

36 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

law Amendment shall establish the appropriate uses and related performance standards 

for the proposed redevelopment. 

 

4. Redevelopment to a permitted non-industrial use shall be subject to site plan control in 

accordance with the Site Plan Control By-law.  

 

3.3 General Commercial and Highway Commercial  

Commercial development in the Town is important since it provides employment, the retail sale 

of goods and services to both residents and other businesses, and contributes to a diverse tax 

base. It also shapes the identity and image of the Town. Existing commercial development in 

Prescott occurs in three distinct areas, including in Downtown, along Edward Street, and in the 

area of the Highway 401/Edward Street interchange. Commercial development in these 

locations serve different purposes and represent different built forms. Commercial development 

in Prescott should continue to meet both local and regional needs while reducing the need for 

residents to travel outside the community for some goods and services.  

 

The goals and policies that generally apply to all commercial development in Prescott are 

outlined as follows, including specific policies for lands designated General Commercial and 

Highway Commercial in Schedule A of this Plan. In addition to the policies in the All Commercial 

Development Section of this Plan, commercial development in the Downtown Core is also 

subject to the Downtown Core Section of this Plan. 

 

3.3.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of commercial uses that meet the existing and future needs of 

the community and reduces the need for residents to shop elsewhere. 

 

2. Accommodate a range of commercial formats from smaller pedestrian-oriented stores in 

Downtown to large-format auto-oriented stores near Highway 401 for the purposes of 

economic development and remaining competitive with surrounding jurisdictions. 

 

3. Enhance the form and character of each commercial area in the Town and work to 

create a distinct community identity for each area. 

 

4. Encourage commercial uses that are appropriate for, or would benefit from, a Downtown 

location to locate there. 

 

Page 75 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 37 

 

3.3.2 Policies 

3.3.2.1 All Commercial Development 

1. Provide sufficient commercially-designated land to meet the need for retail space and 

commercial services that can be supported by local residents, businesses and workers. 

 

2. Permit a mix of land uses in commercial areas to encourage revitalization, create vital 

activity centers, strengthen neighbourhoods, expand local employment opportunities, 

and enhance the identity and image of the Town. 

 

3. Promote commercial development reflects the intensity, use, built form, and character of 

the commercial designation within which it is to be located. 

 

4. Ensure that all new commercial development, and commercial intensification in existing 

areas, provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the Zoning By-law. 

Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the potential conflict 

between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. Except in relation to small 

neighbourhood-serving commercial uses, access to commercial development from 

residential streets should be avoided. 

 

5. Maintain accessibility for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles and includes amenities for 

each, as appropriate. Pedestrian movement between commercial establishments shall 

be considered and encouraged. 

 

6. Evenly distribute neighbourhood-serving commercial uses which are limited in scale, 

such as convenience stores, across the Town to reduce the need to drive and 

encourage walking and cycling. 

 

7. Encourage local-serving professional and administrative offices to locate in areas 

designated General Commercial and Downtown Core. 

 

8. Support new commercial development in the Town’s commercial areas by: 

 

a. Designating key intersections on commercial streets in future zoning for more 

intense development that will establish distinct activity nodes; 

 

b. Encouraging new development to locate parking at the side or rear of a property 

so as to reduce negative visual impacts; 

 

Page 76 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

38 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

c. Encouraging new development to locate buildings at or near the street to create 

a sense of streetscape enclosure consistent with a pedestrian scale and compact 

urban form; 

 

d. Requiring pedestrian and bicycle access to and through development, including 

street orientation of new development; 

 

e. Ensuring new development minimizes driveways to improve pedestrian and 

cyclist safety and vehicular flow; 

 

f. Considering improvement of the aesthetic environment, a process which could 

include preparation of commercial design guidelines, underground utilities, 

preparation of a unified public/private lighting plan, landscaping, and other 

pedestrian amenities; 

 

g. Promoting compatible development on adjacent side streets; and 

 

h. Using public projects and/or public-private partnerships to stimulate private 

development. 

 

9. Consider the preparation of design guidelines for commercial development outside the 

Downtown Core, much like those included in the Downtown Design and Guidelines 

report. These guidelines could address: 

 

a. Building mass, roof treatment, and scale; 

b. District gateways and entry features; 

c. Facade treatment, including cladding, colour, fenestration, transparency, 

articulation, doorways and entries, overhangs and awnings, among other design 

considerations; 

d. Outdoor pedestrian space; 

e. Parking lots, including landscaping, screening, and lighting; 

f. Screening and fencing; 

g. Signage; and 

h. Streetscape design, including paving, landscaping, lighting, furniture, pedestrian 

amenities, among other elements. 

 

10. Minimize the potential off-site impacts of new commercial development on adjacent 

residential neighbourhoods by requiring buffering and screening of new development. 

Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could include noise and light. Proponents of 

new commercial development shall be required to demonstrate regard for the policies in 

the Compatibility and Built Form Section of this Plan.  

Page 77 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 39 

 

 

11. Require site plan approval for all new commercial development in the Town.  

 

12. Require that land uses in the Commercial designations be zoned appropriately in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

3.3.2.2 General Commercial 

1. Focus medium format retail and service commercial development intended to serve the 

community in the General Commercial designation.  

 

2. Permitted uses within the General Commercial designation shall include a diverse range 

of land uses, including: general retail stores; personal service establishments; 

professional offices; entertainment uses; restaurants; food retail stores; financial 

institutions; gas stations; automotive services; commercial lodging; and community 

services. Some limited outdoor storage may be permitted, in accordance with the Zoning 

By-law. 

 

3.3.2.3 Highway Commercial 

1. Focus land uses that serve the community, region, and traveling public in the Highway 

Commercial designation.  

 

2. Permitted uses within the Highway Commercial designation shall include a diverse range 

of land uses, including: shopping centres, large format and general retail stores; 

restaurants, entertainment uses; food retail stores; commercial lodging; automotive sales 

and services; and gas stations. Some outdoor storage may be permitted, in accordance 

with the Zoning By-law. Smaller-scale retail and service commercial uses which 

complement or are an integral part of a large Highway Commercial development shall 

also be permitted. 

 

3. Consider recognizing the Highway Commercial designation as an important tourist-

commercial and recreational gateway to Prescott by establishing a clear identity for the 

area by means of entry features, streetscape, signage, lighting, landscaping, and 

architecture. 

 

4. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO) to ensure that implementation of 

the Highway Commercial policies of this Plan maintain the operating viability of the 

Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward Street, and support the controls 

exercised by MTO. Planning decisions on Highway Commercial lands relating to land 

use, access in interchange areas, traffic, stormwater management, structures and 

signage, lighting, buffering, and screening require MTO approvals and permits under the 

Public Transportation and Highway Improvement Act. 

Page 78 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

40 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

3.4 Downtown Core  

As noted in the Vision and Guiding Principles Section of this Plan, one of the seven Guiding 

Principles is to recognize the importance of a healthy and vibrant downtown and strive for 

improvements, while also protecting and enhancing its historical and cultural amenities. This 

Plan designates the Downtown Core on Schedule A of this Plan as an important and desirable 

location for new commercial and residential activities and a significant economic generator in 

the community. The Downtown Core provides a place to work, live and shop in Prescott, and 

shall be the focus of retail and commercial services, as well as higher density residential 

development. It is one of the primary contributors to the identity and image of the Town. By 

encouraging mixed land uses and re-use of heritage buildings in the downtown, the area will 

continue to reflect Prescott’s high quality of life.  

 

Although single-use commercial and/or residential development shall be permitted, typical 

development in this designation will generally include a mix of uses with retail and commercial 

services located on the ground floor along mainstreets, and upper floors used for either 

commercial services (such as offices) or residential uses. Institutional and other public uses 

which primarily serve a community-wide or regional function are also permitted in order to 

attract employment and visitors to the Downtown Core. The role of the Downtown Core as a 

cultural hub will support new cultural and tourism assets, such as arts and entertainment uses. 

 

The goals and policies for the Downtown Core designation in Prescott are outlined as follows. 

 

3.4.1 Goals 

1. Focus appropriate new commercial and residential development in the Downtown Core. 

 

2. Foster a diverse mix of commercial, residential, and public uses, in separate or mixed 

use buildings, that meet the existing and future needs of the community and that 

encourage a healthy and vibrant Downtown. 

 

3. Support the preservation and adaptive re-use of existing heritage buildings in the 

downtown, while encouraging appropriate intensification. 

 

4. Encourage tourism, entertainment, and cultural uses in the downtown, based on the 

proximity of historic Fort Wellington and the waterfront. 

 

5. Maintain existing waterfront access and consider new opportunities to enhance public 

access to the waterfront area and strengthen the link between it and the Downtown 

Core. 

 

Page 79 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 41 

 

3.4.2 Policies 

3.4.2.1 General 

1. Conserve and integrate the cultural heritage resources of the Downtown Core as a 

means of maintaining and enhancing its historical context and established character. 

 

2. Focus small format retail and service commercial development intended to serve the 

community, the region, and the traveling public in the Downtown Core designation. 

 

3. Focus higher density multi-family residential development in the Downtown Core as a 

means of strengthening the live/work relationship, enhancing the local market for 

convenience and service goods, and ensuring that the Downtown Core is a vibrant 

district after business hours. 

 

4. Permit new buildings in the Downtown Core that are generally between 2 storeys and 4 

storeys. It is recognized that some flexibility in building height may be necessary to 

accommodate mixed use buildings with varying floor heights. 

 

5. Permit a diverse range of land uses, including: residential uses at a range of densities, 

general retail stores; specialty retail stores; personal service establishments; 

professional and public service offices; arts and entertainment uses; restaurants and 

sidewalk patios; food retail stores; financial institutions; commercial lodging; tourism-

related services; convention services; and civic and institutional services, such as 

libraries, parks, open space, schools, etc.  

 

6. Permit additions to existing buildings with heritage value as a means of encouraging 

their adaptive re-use, provided such additions are architecturally compatible with the 

existing building; are sensitive to, and support, the historic nature of the Downtown Core; 

and are in accordance with the policies in the Cultural Heritage Resources Section of 

this Plan. 

 

3.4.2.2 Mixed Uses 

1. Encourage the development of mixed use buildings in the Downtown Core, although 

single- use buildings are permitted. The use of upper floors for residential purposes in 

existing buildings is also encouraged. Reconfiguration and/or rehabilitation of upper 

floors in some existing buildings may be necessary. The use of ground floors for 

residential purposes may be considered primarily in areas outside the commercial 

sections of King Street, between East and West Street. 

 

Page 80 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

42 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Professional office and other non-retail uses are also encouraged to locate on upper 

floors so as to preserve the ground floor for pedestrian-oriented retail and personal 

service uses.  

 

3. Consider density incentives to encourage residential intensification in the Downtown 

Core, in accordance with the Density Incentive Section of this Plan. 

 

4. Encourage the integration of all uses in the Downtown Core, including residential, to 

ensure easy access for those living, working, shopping and visiting in order to promote 

the area as a vibrant “people place”. 

 

3.4.2.3 Downtown Design and Guidelines 

 

1. Require that new development in the Downtown Core be of high-quality design and 

supports the image of the area as an enjoyable, safe, and pedestrian-oriented place of 

historical significance. 

 

2. Support the priority projects in any Downtown Design Guidelines, as revised from time to 

time, including the development of a Façade Improvement Program, Market Square, and 

Waterfront Park.  

 

3. Apply design guidelines in the Downtown to evaluate all applications for new 

development in the Downtown Core to ensure that it is sensitive to, and supports, the 

historic nature of the Downtown Core and that it adheres to the vision for the Downtown 

Core established by the community as part of the Official Plan process. These guidelines 

relate to: 

 

a. Historic buildings on King Street; 

b. New commercial construction and remodeling of existing buildings on King 

Street; 

c. Streetscape improvement; 

d. Commercial signage; 

e. Parking facilities; and 

f. Waterfront park design. 

 

4. Integrate, as appropriate, any Downtown Design Guidelines as regulations in the Zoning 

By-law to implement this Official Plan. Some guidelines may easily be expressed in the 

zoning regulations as required standards, while others may remain as supportive 

direction for the purpose of providing additional flexibility. 

 

Page 81 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 43 

 

3.4.2.4 Tourism and Culture 

1. Continue to recognize the Downtown Core as the Town's focal point for public 

gatherings, festive and civic occasions, cultural events, tourism, and social interaction. 

 

2. Support the development of tourism-related uses and activities in the Downtown Core to 

support local business, and create a healthy and vibrant area. 

 

3. Continue to encourage tourism and culture in the Town by supporting existing festivals 

and events, and by encouraging new festivals and events including through public-

private partnerships, that will attract visitors to the Downtown Core. 

 

3.4.2.5 Waterfront 

1. Promote the waterfront as an important part of the Downtown Core and as a contributor 

to the economic success of downtown businesses. Waterfront development shall be 

considered in accordance with the Waterfront Development Section of this Plan. 

 

2. Maintain existing and consider new opportunities to enhance public access to the 

waterfront area and strengthen the link between it and Downtown Core by means of 

visual and physical connections, signage, etc. 

 

3.4.2.6 Other 

1. Review the status of Town-owned properties in the Downtown Core periodically to 

determine if there is potential for development to enhance the function of the area. 

 

2. Consider alternative means of ensuring that all new development in the Downtown Core 

provides adequate off-street parking, such as shared parking, public parking in private 

facilities, off-site parking, etc. It is important that vehicle access and parking in the 

Downtown Core be carefully balanced with the provision of good pedestrian-oriented 

access and amenity. 

 

3. Require that land uses in the Downtown Core designation be zoned appropriately in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

3.5 Employment Area  

As with commercial activity, industrial development in the Town provides employment and 

contributes to a diverse tax base. Prescott was founded as an industrial town with the 

manufacture and shipping of various commodities. The Town’s location near the interchange of 

Highways 401 and 416 and the bridge to the United States make it an ideal strategic location for 

industrial uses. 

Page 82 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

44 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

Existing industrial development in Prescott is primarily located north of the CN Railway line, 

west of Edward Street. This area, including adjacent vacant land, is designated Employment 

Area in Schedule A of this Plan to protect the traditional industrial base of the Town and to allow 

it to grow. The Employment Area designation is intended to function in concert with the Highway 

401 Corridor lands, as well as the Johnstown Industrial Park (Regionally Significant 

Employment Area) in the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal, as a significant contributor to 

long-term economic development in Prescott. Since industrial uses have the potential to 

generate significant impacts on adjacent land uses, such development must be carefully located 

and designed.  

 

The goals and policies for the Employment Area lands are outlined as follows: 

 

3.5.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of employment uses that meet local and regional service needs, 

create employment, maximize the use of the land, encourage revitalization of existing 

industrial areas, and allow the Town to remain competitive with surrounding jurisdictions. 

 

2. Provide for a range of Employment Area uses at locations that are suitable to the nature 

and scale of the use and their proximity to adjacent sensitive land uses. 

 

3. Encourage Employment Area uses that are located with like uses, are carefully designed 

to minimize off-site impacts, and are adequately serviced by infrastructure. 

 

4. Ensure the compatibility of Employment Area uses with adjacent neighbourhoods and 

sensitive land uses, while permitting such development the opportunity to expand as 

needed. 

 

5. Prevent Employment Area uses from detracting from the image and character of the 

Town. 

 

3.5.2 Policies 

1. Provide sufficient Employment Area land to accommodate an appropriate range of 

employment and economic development opportunities that can be supported by local 

residents, businesses and workers. 

 

2. Permit a diverse range of uses in the Employment Area designation, including: 

warehousing and storage; wholesale; freight forwarding; manufacturing, including green 

manufacturing, assembly, and processing; research and development; communications; 

utilities; transportation; printing and publishing; construction and building supply; and 

Page 83 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 45 

 

business offices. Such uses are not typically expected to have any significant negative 

off-site impacts, such as noise, odour, dust, vibration, or other nuisance. 

 

3. Associated retail and ancillary uses such as offices, factory outlets, food retail /takeout 

establishments, recreation establishments, health and fitness centres, and businesses 

that support the employment base are also permitted; however, these uses are 

encouraged to locate in the General Commercial area on Edward Street where they are 

not an integral part of the principal Employment Area use. An accessory dwelling for the 

owner or operator of such uses (caretaker residence) may also be permitted, where 

compatible. 

 

4. Require heavy industrial uses to locate where land use compatibility can be achieved 

through minimum separation distances and implementation of appropriate mitigation 

measures in accordance with Section 2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and Residential 

Uses and Section 2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses of this Plan. 

 

5. Consider the preparation of design guidelines for industrial development. These 

guidelines could address: 

 

a. Building mass and scale; 

b. District gateways, entry features;  

c. Facade treatment, including cladding, articulation, doorways and entries, among 

other design considerations; 

d. Landscaping, screening, and fencing; 

e. Outdoor eating areas; 

f. Parking and loading, including landscaping, screening, and lighting; 

g. Signage; and 

h. Streetscape design. 

 

6. Require site plan approval for all new development in the Employment Area designation.  

 

7. Maintain an adequate supply of lands designated Employment Area, and only permit the 

conversion of lands to other uses at the time of a comprehensive review where it has 

been demonstrated that the lands are not required over the long term and that there is a 

need for the conversion. 

 

8. Outside of a comprehensive review, lands designated Employment Area may be 

converted to a designation that permits non-employment uses provided the area has not 

been identified as provincially significant through a provincial plan exercise or as 

regionally significant by a regional economic development corporation working together 

with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville, and subject to the following: 

Page 84 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

46 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

a. There is an identified need for the conversion and the land is not required for 

employment purposes over the long term; 

 

b. The proposed uses would not adversely affect the overall viability of the 

employment area; and 

 

c. Existing or planned infrastructure and public service facilities are available to 

accommodate the proposed uses. 

 

9. Require that land uses in the Employment Area designation be zoned appropriately in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.6 Institutional  

Typical institutional uses include schools, libraries, government offices, hospitals, and 

cemeteries. In Prescott, significant institutional uses include the Canadian Coast Guard, Fort 

Wellington, South Grenville District High School, the Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) 

detachment, and the cemeteries. These uses are designated as Institutional on Schedule A of 

this Plan. In the case of the Coast Guard and the high school, these uses are also significant 

employers. In the case of Fort Wellington, this use represents a significant tourist attraction and 

economic generator.  

 

Smaller institutional uses in the community, such as the municipal offices, library, places of 

worship and elementary schools, are not designated Institutional, as they are better 

incorporated with the predominant land use that surrounds them, such as in the Residential 

designation. 

 

The open nature of most uses designated Institutional, particularly Fort Wellington and the 

cemeteries, also means that they contribute significantly to the network of green space in the 

community.  Institutional uses typically make a positive contribution to the community; however, 

it is important recognize the need to carefully integrate such uses with the surrounding 

neighbourhood while minimizing any potential adverse impacts on residential development.  

 

The goals and policies for Institutional development in Prescott are outlined as follows. 

 

3.6.1 Goals 

1. Support institutional development that meets local and regional service needs, 

complements the aesthetic of the surrounding neighbourhood, and contributes to the 

Town’s image and role as a regional administrative centre. 

 

Page 85 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 47 

 

2. Ensure the compatibility of institutional development with surrounding neighbourhoods 

and encourage its integration, as appropriate, with the existing street and open space 

network. 

 

3.6.2 Policies 

1. Permit a diverse range of land uses in the Institutional designation, including: 

highschools; government offices; civic facilities, such as libraries and auditoriums; 

museums and other cultural facilities; hospitals; long-term care facilities; day cares; and 

cemeteries. Buildings will typically be single-use. 

 

2. Outside of the Institutional designation, smaller institutional uses are also permitted in all 

land use designations, without an amendment to this Plan. In such circumstances, the 

applicable foregoing policies shall apply. 

 

3. Ensure that all new institutional development connects to existing neighbourhoods. 

Appropriate connections may be provided by streets, sidewalks, walkways and/or bicycle 

paths, or open space, and shall serve as a means of integrating new development into 

the Town fabric, and encouraging walking and bicycle use. Such connections should 

also facilitate the safe separation of pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. The removal 

of any existing connection with surrounding neighbourhoods is strongly discouraged. 

 

4. Encourage new institutional development to contribute to the network of green space in 

the community, as appropriate, by providing accessible open space and/or public realm 

space on-site, or linkages to nearby open space. 

 

5. Minimize the potential of off-site impacts of new institutional development on adjacent 

residential neighbourhoods by requiring buffering and screening of new development. 

Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could include noise and light. Proponents of 

new institutional development shall be required to demonstrate regard for the policies in 

the Compatibility and Built Form Section of this Plan.  

 

6. Ensure that all new institutional development, and institutional intensification, provides 

adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the requirements of the Zoning By-law. 

Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the potential conflict 

between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. Access to institutional development 

from residential streets should be avoided, to the extent possible. 

 

7. Work closely with the Upper Canada District School Board and the Catholic District 

School Board of Eastern Ontario in determining the need and location of future 

educational facilities. Where residential development applications could significantly 

affect current or future educational needs, these School Boards shall be consulted. 

Page 86 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

48 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

8. Require site plan approval for all new institutional development in the Town. 

 

 

9. Require that Institutional uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.7 Parks and Open Space  

Lands designated Parks and Open Space on Schedule A of this Plan have a significant impact 

on defining Prescott’s urban form by providing a sense of openness, particularly on the east 

side, with the integration of Fort Wellington, Prescott Golf Club, and the open land on the 

waterfront across King Street East (County Road 2). Such lands include public and private 

recreation areas and facilities, as well as land held in its natural vegetated state or protected 

from development due to the presence of significant natural heritage features or environmental 

constraints, and are an important component in the Town's urban natural heritage system.  

 

The goals and policies for Parks and Open Space development in Prescott are outlined as 

follows. 

 

3.7.1 Goals 

1. Recognize lands designated as Parks and Open Space as valuable resources that 

define the identity and image of Prescott and contribute to the quality of life for Town 

residents. 

 

2. Ensure that the existing parks and open space lands within the built-up areas contribute 

to the Town's urban natural heritage system, and work toward the creation of an 

interconnected network of green spaces comprised of park and open space features. 

 

3. Enhance access to park and open space features, including shoreline and waterfront 

areas, for residents and visitors. 

 

3.7.2 Policies 

1. Permit a range of recreational and community-oriented land uses in park and open 

space areas, including: community centres; recreational facilities, such as indoor/outdoor 

sports fields, courts, pools, and arenas; playgrounds; golf courses; marinas and docks; 

environmental education/interpretive centers; nature preserves; trails; and necessary 

utilities. 

 

Page 87 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 49 

 

2. Recognize that waterfront parks and greenspace are a community priority and that the 

Town should seek to continuously improve and enhance these spaces as funding 

permits. 

 

3. Ensure that development within existing parks and recreational areas are consistent with 

the Town’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  

 

4. Provide an adequate supply and equitable distribution of lands designated Parks and 

Open Space, and support a wide range of recreation and leisure opportunities 

throughout the Town. 

 

5. Identify and secure connections between new and existing parkland and new residential 

neighbourhoods during the development approval process.  The provision for these 

connections will be included in the design of new parkland. Such connections may be 

made by means of sidewalks, walkways or bicycle paths, or open space. 

 

6. Encourage the joint use of lands designated Parks and Open Space with other agencies, 

such as the Upper Canada District School Board, Eastern Ontario Catholic School 

Board, Parks Canada, Canada Coast Guard, and the United Counties of Leeds and 

Grenville. 

 

7. Support the co-location of future school and park sites, particularly for active recreational 

uses, as a means of maximizing the use of land and reducing the potential for 

duplication of services. 

 

8. Consider acquisition, or alternative means of maintaining existing parkland levels, if a 

school property is declared surplus for educational purposes. 

 

9. Council may consider disposal of surplus parkland, provided that an overall sufficient 

amount of parkland within the Town is maintained, in accordance with the minimum 

hectares required identified in the Town’s Recreation Master Plan, as amended from 

time to time.  

 

10. Consider acquisition, or integration by means of access easements, of utility corridors 

such as railway rights-of-ways and hydro rights-of-ways for the purposes of expanding 

the Town’s pedestrian and bicycle network. In cases where such corridors are 

abandoned, reuse them for park and open space purposes that are compatible with and 

preserve the linear characteristics of such corridors. 

 

11. Work with other levels of government, agencies and neighbouring municipalities to 

coordinate strategies and funding opportunities to acquire and preserve parks, open 

Page 88 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

50 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

space areas, and significant natural heritage features and areas, as part of the efforts in 

establishing a network of trails and an urban natural heritage system. 

 

12. Require site plan approval for all new park and open space development in the Town. 

 

13. Parks and Open Space uses are permitted in all land use designations, except the 

Employment Area designation, without an amendment to this Plan. In such 

circumstances, the applicable foregoing policies shall apply. 

 

14. Permit a new recreational facility proposed at the northeast corner of Churchill Street 

and Sophia Street, which is intended to be the location of a new Town Recreation 

Complex. 

 

15. Require that Parks and Open Space uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.8 Highway 401 Corridor  

The Highway 401 Corridor designation on Schedule A of this Plan applies to predominantly 

vacant lands along Highway 401. This area is strategically located and has the potential to 

accommodate uses that not only serve the transportation industry and travelling public, but also 

the broader regional market area. It also provides an important opportunity to support the 

establishment of a broad range of uses, with a high standard of building and site design.  

 

The goals and policies for development in the Highway 401 Corridor are outlined as follows. 

 

3.8.1 Goals 

1. Further diversify the Town's economic base and provide employment opportunities for 

the Town's residents. 

 

2. Enhance the image of the Town as a successful, prosperous community by ensuring 

that future development exhibits a high standard of building and site design. 

 

3.8.2 Policies 

1. Permit a diverse mix of uses that are focused on serving the transportation industry and 

travelling public, and also the broader regional market area. Permitted uses shall be 

those uses which are permitted in the Employment Area and Highway Commercial 

designations of this Plan.  

 

2. Enable the Town to establish a clear identity for the area by means of entry features, 

streetscape, signage, lighting, landscaping, and architecture. 

Page 89 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 51 

 

 

3. Consider treating Highway 401 as the lot frontage in terms of site planning 

considerations, including: building orientation and facade treatment, loading and storage; 

and parking. 

 

4. Ensure that all new development provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance 

with the requirements of the Zoning By-law. Access points to such parking should be 

designed to minimize the potential conflict between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular 

traffic. 

 

5. Maintain compatibility between permitted uses in the Highway 401 Corridor designation, 

and with adjacent residential neighbourhoods by establishing setbacks in accordance 

with Provincial Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, landscape and screening, 

performance requirements, and other means of reducing or eliminating the potential for 

adverse offsite effects, in accordance with Section 2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and 

Residential Uses and Section 2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses of this 

Plan. 

 

6. Consult early with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation on all development proposals to 

maintain the operating viability of the Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward 

Street by supporting the controls required by MTO. Planning decisions on lands 

designated as Highway 401 Corridor within the MTO permit control areas must be 

consistent with MTO requirements in order for the development to obtain necessary 

permits. The MTO requires all necessary studies to be completed as a condition of 

permits and can include, but are not limited to: traffic impact studies, stormwater 

management studies, photometric plans, geotechnical studies and environmental 

assessments. All developments that have frontage on MTO controlled roads must also 

conform to the MTO’s setback requirements. 

 

7. Require site plan approval for all new development in the Highway 401 Corridor 

designation. 

 

8. Require that new uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

9. Council may consider the preparation of a Servicing Study for the properties north of 

Highway 401 to address the feasibility of extending municipal water and services to 

facilitate future industrial and commercial development, and assist in addressing 

potential barriers to investment. 

 

Page 90 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

52 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage, and 

Development Constraints  

This Section of the Official Plan contains policies related to the natural environment, including 

natural heritage features and areas, as well as cultural heritage resources, and development 

constraints resulting from the presence of natural and human-made hazards, as well as 

potential mineral aggregate resources in the Town.  

 

These policies are intended to be used in conjunction with the other policies of this Plan. 

 

4.1 Environmental and Natural Heritage Management  

The quality of life in any community is directly related to the quality of the natural environment, 

public safety and well-being. It is recognized in this Official Plan that the natural environment is 

a resource that must be carefully managed to preserve its quality and contribution to the health 

and identity of the community.  

 

The Town provides direct access to the St. Lawrence River, which was instrumental in the 

Town’s development, and remains important for employment, resident enjoyment, and tourism. 

The natural environment is celebrated for how it contributes to a high quality of life for residents, 

as well as the significant economic development opportunities generated by being a premier 

tourist destination. In recognition of these benefits, the Town values the importance of 

stewardship to preserve and enhance the natural environment now and for future generations of 

both residents and tourists. 

 

Natural heritage is composed of an interconnected system of natural heritage features and 

areas, which are linked by natural corridors and support the natural processes necessary to 

maintain biological and geological diversity, natural functions, viable populations of indigenous 

species, and ecosystems. The location of the Natural Heritage System components discussed 

in this Section of the Official Plan are illustrated on Schedule C unless noted otherwise in the 

policies. Where development and site alteration are contemplated by the policies of this Section, 

they would also be subject to the underlying land use designation policies in the Land Use 

Designation Policies Section of this Plan.  

 

4.1.1 Goals 

1. Maintain and enhance the ecological integrity of the natural heritage system. 

 

2. Recognize the natural environment as a community resource that must be preserved 

and considered in all land use planning decisions. 

 

Page 91 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 53 

 

3. Promote development patterns that minimize adverse impacts on the natural 

environment. 

 

4. Shall make decisions that reflect responsible use of scarce resources and respect for the 

environment in recognition of the challenges associated with addressing climate change. 

 

5. Provide tools to properly assess development applications located in close proximity to 

environmentally sensitive features and areas. 

 

4.1.2 Policies 

4.1.2.1 Environmental Impact 

1. Ensure that potential environmental impacts resulting from proposed development are 

appropriately evaluated and considered during the development application process. 

Environmental impacts include potential direct or indirect impacts of a proposed 

development on components of the Town’s natural heritage system, such as wetlands, 

woodlands, and wildlife habitat. Any potential negative impacts on natural heritage 

features and areas or their ecological functions shall be addressed by the applicant prior 

to any approval by the Town, in accordance with the policies in this Section. An 

Environmental Impact Study may be required in support of a development application, 

as identified in the policies in this Section. 

  

4.1.2.2 Natural Heritage System  

1. Recognize that, while the Town does not contain significant natural heritage features 

and areas such as Provincially Significant Wetlands or significant coastal wetlands, 

significant woodlands, areas of natural and scientific interest (ANSIs), or significant 

valleylands, there are natural areas where an appropriate level of environmental review 

is required prior to the approval of new development. These areas include, but are not 

limited, the St. Lawrence River and shoreline, and woodlands and unevaluated wetlands 

on the undeveloped lands along the eastern Town boundary, and the undeveloped lands 

along the Highway 401 corridor. In the event that any significant natural heritage 

features and areas, including Provincially Significant Wetlands, significant coastal 

wetlands, ANSIs, significant valleylands, or significant woodlands are identified in the 

future, such features shall be added to Schedule C through an amendment to this Plan.  

 

2. Council will seek opportunities to create natural linkages and corridors between natural 

heritage features areas at the time of development review, as well as promote the 

maintenance, restoration or improvement of existing connectivity and linkages. 

 

Page 92 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

54 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

3. Encourage property owners and other public agencies to enter into voluntary 

agreements regarding the protection of natural heritage features and areas, and other 

natural features. 

 

4. Require that development applications in natural heritage features and areas on 

Schedule C, including adjacent lands, be supported by an Ecological Site Assessment 

and/or an Environmental Impact Study to determine the environmental value associated 

with the lands, as well as appropriate mitigation measures to protect any valued 

features. Such review shall be completed in accordance with the Environmental Impact 

Study policies of this Plan.  

 

4.1.2.3 Adjacent Lands  

The Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 defines adjacent lands as those lands contiguous to a 

specific natural heritage feature or area where it is likely that development or site alteration 

would have a negative impact on the feature or area. The extent of adjacent lands may be 

recommended by the Province or based on municipal approached which achieve the same 

objectives. For the purposes of this Plan, adjacent lands are determined to include all lands 

within the specific distance of the boundary of natural heritage features and areas as set out in 

the following table: 

 

Natural Heritage Feature or Area Extent of Adjacent Lands 

Provincially Significant Wetlands and Significant Coastal 
Wetlands 

120 metres 

Coastal Wetlands 120 metres 

Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest – Life Science 120 metres 

Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest – Earth Science   50 metres 

Significant Valleylands 120 metres 

Significant Woodlands 120 metres 

Significant Habitat of Endangered and Threatened Species 120 metres 

Significant Wildlife Habitat 120 metres 

Fish Habitat 120 metres 

 

1. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands unless the 

ecological function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been 

demonstrated, through an Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with the 

Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impact on 

the natural features or their ecological functions. 

 

4.1.2.4 Endangered and Threatened Species  

The Endangered Species Act, 2007 (ESA) prohibits the killing, harming, harassment, capture, or 

taking of a species at risk, and the damaging or destroying of their habitat. The habitat of 

endangered species and threatened species is not illustrated on the Schedules of this Plan, as 

Page 93 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 55 

 

habitat is dynamic and species and habitat information is limited or not published for its 

protection. The species that occupy the habitat of endangered species and threatened species 

are listed or categorized on the Province’s official Species at Risk in Ontario list, as updated and 

amended from time to time. The Province administers the ESA to protect and conserve Species 

at Risk and their habitat. Under the ESA, the Province is responsible for identifying and 

approving general and regulated habitat, as well as giving technical advice on Species at Risk 

and their habitat. The Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) is the lead 

agency responsible for approving the delineation of habitat of endangered species and 

threatened species and administering the provisions for the ESA. 

 

A list of Species at Risk (SAR) known to have observations and occurrences in the area is 

available through the MECP. If at any time, a SAR as listed under the ESA is encountered, work 

must stop immediately and the MECP must be contacted. 

 

1. The presence of, or high potential for, Species at Risk (extirpated, endangered, 

threatened or special concern species) on a site shall be identified through the use of the 

Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC) provincial database, and through 

consultation with MECP district staff.  

 

2. It is the responsibility of the proponent to ensure that any development or activity does 

not contravene the ESA. All development and site alteration must be planned and 

considered in accordance with the provisions of the ESA. A preliminary Ecological Site 

Assessment may be required to be carried out during the planning of proposed 

development and site alterations to determine whether a listed species or its habitat may 

be present before carrying out an activity that may contravene the ESA. In accordance 

with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference 

Manual, as amended, an Ecological Site Assessment can include a review of one or 

more of the following:  

 

a. Information about known occurrences within the recommended screening 

distance of at least 1 km;  

 

b. Information provided by the MECP to municipalities (e.g. screening information, 

species lists, range maps);  

 

c. In the absence of or in addition to such MECP information, guidance from the 

local MECP district office;  

 

d. Official Plan mapping;  

 

e. Existing local knowledge (e.g. that of municipal staff) of the area and the species 

likely to occur, given their ranges and habitat needs; and  

Page 94 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

56 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

f. Preliminary field investigations (if needed to confirm the presence of species). 

 

If the results of the preliminary Ecological Site Assessment determine that the significant 

habitat of an endangered or threatened species is not present on the proposed 

development site, no action is required. Proponents should submit the information to the 

Town.  

 

If the results of the preliminary Ecological Site Assessment determine that the significant 

habitat of an endangered or threatened species may be present on the proposed 

development site, the proponent shall provide the Town with an Environmental Impact 

Study, prepared in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, 

to demonstrate that there will be no negative impacts on the habitat of endangered and 

threated species or its ecological function. The EIS must be completed by a qualified 

professional to address potential impacts on the habitat of endangered and threatened 

species. Some activities may need to be modified to accommodate endangered and 

threatened species and their habitats, and to minimize any adverse effects on these 

species. While current best management practices may help to mitigate the impacts 

resulting from an activity on the land, additional actions may be required to address 

specific impacts on a species at a particular site or location and will be determined on a 

case-by-case basis. 

3. If impacts to an endangered species or threatened species cannot be avoided, then the 

activity cannot proceed unless a permit or agreement under the ESA is granted. The 

proponent must work directly with MECP district staff to develop agreements or permits 

when required. 

 

4.1.2.5 Fish Habitat  

The Town of Prescott supports the management of fisheries, with important economic, social 

and environmental benefits. Under the Fisheries Act, fish habitat is defined as spawning 

grounds and nursery, rearing, food supply, and migration areas on which fish depend directly or 

indirectly in order to carry out their life processes. The Department of Fisheries and Oceans 

Canada (DFO) has a mandate to protect and preserve fish habitat on Crown and private lands 

under the Fisheries Act, and the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry has a lead role in 

supporting planning authorities in carrying out their responsibilities.  

 

1. Where detailed habitat mapping is not available, all watercourses and waterbodies shall 

be considered fish habitat, unless is can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Town 

that the features do not constitute fish habitat as defined in the Fisheries Act. 

Evaluations of watercourses and waterbodies must be performed by a qualified biologist.  

 

2. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted on or within 120 m of fish 

spawning or nursery habitat, unless it is demonstrated through the preparation of an 

Page 95 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 57 

 

Environmental Impact Study (EIS), in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study 

Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on natural features or 

ecological functions. This EIS shall be completed by a qualified professional and shall 

identify the features of the fish habitat, the nature of the proposed development, the 

potential impacts that the development may have on the fish habitat, and mitigation 

measures required to prevent adverse impacts on fish habitat. 

 

3. Where development or site alteration will result in serious harm to fish, prior 

authorization is required from DFO under the Fisheries Act. 

 

4.1.2.6 Wetlands  

Wetlands are essential components of ecosystems that contribute to the high quality of the 

environment. Wetlands assist in flood control by controlling and storing surface water, trap 

sediment to improve water quality, provide habitat for a variety of plant and animal species, and 

function as recharge areas for groundwater resources. The Town recognizes the importance of 

protecting wetlands and their critical ecological and hydrological functions. 

 

The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry evaluates the biological, social, hydrological 

and special features of wetlands to determine their relative significance in Ontario and 

designates certain areas as Provincially Significant Wetlands and significant coastal wetlands.  

 

1. Wetlands within the Town are illustrated in Schedule C. To date, no wetlands in the 

Town have been identified as Provincially Significant Wetlands or significant coastal 

wetlands.  

 

2. All wetlands are important natural heritage features and areas and will generally be 

protected from incompatible development and site alteration.  

 

3. A wetland evaluation must be performed before any planning approvals are processed 

for wetlands that have characteristics or components of a significant wetland, including 

significant species or functions. Guidance for wetland evaluations can be found in the 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Ontario Wetland Evaluation System – 

Southern Manual (2013). 

 

4. Any evaluated wetland that is deemed to be significant shall be granted the protections 

afforded in this Plan, without the need for an amendment to this Plan.  

 

4.1.2.7 Significant Coastal Wetlands  

The Town of Prescott recognizes that coastal wetlands represent any wetlands that are located 

on one of the Great Lakes or their contributing channels, including the St. Lawrence River, or 

any other wetland that is on a tributary to any of the aforementioned waterbodies and lie, either 

Page 96 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

58 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

wholly or in part, downstream of a line located 2 km upstream of the 1:100 year floodline (plus 

wave run-up) of the large waterbody to which the tributary is connected. 

 

1. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within significant coastal 

wetlands. 

 

2. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands which are within 

120 m of the boundaries of a significant coastal wetland unless the ecological function of 

the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been demonstrated, through an 

Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with the Environmental Impact 

Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural feature 

or its ecological function. 

 

4.1.2.8 Provincially Significant Wetlands  

The Town of Prescott recognizes that Provincially Significant Wetlands (PSWs) must be 

protected and conserved. While no PSWs have been identified in the Town, the Town 

recognizes the potential for unevaluated wetlands to be identified as PSWs in the future. 

 

1. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within a Provincially Significant 

Wetland. 

 

2. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands which are within 

120 m of the boundaries of a Provincially Significant Wetland unless the ecological 

function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been demonstrated, 

through the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with 

the Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative 

impacts on the natural feature or its ecological function. 

 

4.1.2.9 Wildlife Habitat  

The Town recognizes that all the undeveloped land in the Town may be suitable habitat for a 

variety of wildlife species, including natural areas identified on Schedule C. The 2020 Provincial 

Policy Statement defines a wildlife habitat area as an area of land where plants, animals and 

other organisms live, and find adequate amounts of food, water, shelter and space needed to 

sustain their populations. Significant wildlife habitat areas are not illustrated on the Schedules of 

this Plan, as the exact locations of these areas must be determined on a site-specific basis, in 

accordance with the criteria for determining significance provided in the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry’s’ Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as amended, Ecoregion criteria, 

and the Significant Wildlife Habitat Technical Guide.  

 

No significant wildlife habitat areas have been identified by the Province. 

 

Page 97 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 59 

 

1. Wildlife habitats may include one or more of the following characteristics: 

 

a. Seasonal concentrations of animals, such as deer wintering habitat; 

 

b. Rare vegetation communities and specialized habitats for wildlife; 

 

c. Habitats of species of ‘special concern’ and other wildlife habitats, such as 

provincially rare plants, reptiles, amphibians, and birds, as well as nests of 

raptors such as osprey; and 

 

d. Animal movement corridors. 

 

2. Lands identified as wildlife habitat are important components of the Natural Heritage 

System within the Town and must be protected from incompatible development and site 

alteration. 

 

3. A wildlife habitat evaluation must be performed by a qualified environmental professional 

before any planning approvals are processed for areas that have characteristics or 

components of a wildlife habitat. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted 

within or adjacent to significant wildlife habitat, unless it has been demonstrated through 

the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study in accordance with the Environmental 

Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural 

features or their ecological functions. 

 

4. Any evaluated wildlife habitat that is deemed to be significant will be granted the 

protections afforded in this Section without the need for an amendment to this Plan. 

 

4.1.2.10 Woodlands  

Woodlands are treed areas that provide environmental and economic benefits to both the 

private landowner and the general public, such as: preventing erosion; hydrological and nutrient 

cycling; provision of clean air; long-term carbon storage; provision of essential habitat for flora 

and fauna, including Species at Risk; outdoor recreation opportunities; the sustainable harvest 

of a wide range of woodland products; and scenic values. Woodlands include treed areas, 

woodlots, or forested areas, and vary in their significance at the local, regional, and provincial 

levels. 

 

The intent of this Plan is to conserve significant woodlands and vegetation, and prohibit 

incompatible land uses that deter their long-term benefits. For the purposes of this Plan, 

significant woodlands include those that meet the criteria established in the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as amended. 

 

Page 98 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

60 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

Woodlands are identified on Schedule C of this Plan, based on available provincial mapping 

which has not been groundtruthed. There may be areas identified as woodlands where they 

may not exist, as well as areas which may be woodlands but have not been mapped, or their 

boundaries have changed over time.  

 

1. At the time of a development application where woodlands have been identified on 

Schedule C, site assessment by a qualified environmental professional shall be required 

to verify the presence of significant woodlands, and the determination of significance 

shall be based on the criteria provided in the Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as 

amended.  

 

2. Existing development shall be permitted within woodlands and significant woodlands. 

Development on existing lots of record shall be permitted, subject to all other relevant 

policies of this Plan. 

 

3. New development should be directed away from woodlands, to the extent feasible.  

 

4. Permitted development within woodlands should seek to minimize its footprint.  

 

5. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within or adjacent to significant 

woodlands, unless it has been demonstrated, through the preparation of an 

Environmental Impact Study in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study Section 

of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 

ecological functions. 

 

4.1.2.11 Environmental Impact Study 

The purpose of an Environmental Impact Study (EIS) is to provide the Town and other 

regulatory agencies with a professional opinion on the potential impact of development and site 

alteration on natural heritage features, areas, and adjacent lands, and their ecological functions. 

The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as 

amended, shall be used to guide the preparation of an EIS and evaluation of potential impacts.   

 

1. Ensure that the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study (EIS), where required by 

the policies of this Plan or where the development approval process identifies the need 

for one, be completed by a qualified professional at the expense of the applicant. The 

nature and scale of the proposed development, its physical location relative to the 

natural heritage features and areas and the contextual environment (i.e. built versus 

natural) in which it is to occur are important considerations in the context of establishing 

the appropriate level of study to be undertaken. Accordingly, any required Environmental 

Impact Study shall generally be scoped, in consultation with the Ministry of Northern 

Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry (MNDNRF) and/or South Nation 

Page 99 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 61 

 

Conservation Authority (SNC), to suit the particular circumstances prior to being 

undertaken. 

 

2. Require a full Environmental Impact Study, in consultation with the Ministry of Northern 

Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry (MNDMNRF) and/or South Nation 

Conservation Authority (SNC), where dictated by the type and size of the proposed 

development and the potential significance of the natural heritage features and areas 

that may be impacted. Such a study shall also be completed by a qualified professional 

at the expense of the applicant and include: 

 

a. Defining the nature and the boundaries of any significant features, including the 

presence of endangered and threatened species and their habitats, ecological 

functions, and values on, or adjacent to, the site; 

 

b. Describing and mapping proposed development activities, including building 

location, excavation, site grading, landscaping, drainage works, roadway 

construction, paving, sewer and water servicing in relation to various 

environmental considerations; 

 

c. Predicting the effects of proposed development on the various components of the 

environment on and adjacent to the site, such as wildlife, fish, vegetation, soil, 

surface water, groundwater, air and any other relevant factors, taking into 

consideration effects during and after site alteration; 

 

d. Evaluating the significance of all predicted and adverse and positive effects on 

the various environmental considerations; 

 

e. Itemizing and recommending all measures that can be taken to avoid, reduce, or 

mitigate the predicted negative impacts; 

 

f. Evaluating the cumulative effect that the project (and any other known projects or 

activities) may have following implementation of any mitigation measures on the 

natural features, areas, and adjacent lands, and ecological functions identified for 

protection; 

 

g. Concluding with a professional opinion on whether negative effects on the natural 

features and ecological functions will occur, the significance of such impacts, and 

whether ongoing monitoring is required. 

 

Page 100 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

62 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.1.2.12 Trees and Landscaping 

The Town recognizes the importance of incorporating and providing healthy growing conditions 

for trees and landscaping to improve air quality, mitigate urban heat island effects, enhance 

ecosystem health, and contribute to community character. Trees can frame and define streets, 

calm traffic by visually narrowing the roadway, and add texture, shade, and visual interest.  

 

1. To promote trees and landscaping the Town, the following will be required:  

 

a. Submission of a landscape and/or tree planting plan as part of any development 

application that requires site plan approval. 

 

b. A tree preservation and/or tree planting plan to be submitted as a condition of 

approval for a plan of subdivision. 

 

c. Inclusion of native planting species in landscape and/or tree planting plans, as 

part of development review.  

 

2. Consider the adoption of a tree cutting by-law to prohibit or regulate the injuring or 

destruction of trees that contribute to the urban forest. 

 

3. Consider the preparation of guidelines for landscaping and/or tree planting in the Town, 

including for roadway allowances, parklands, and other civic properties. Such guidelines 

should address the functionality of landscaped areas vis a vis existing infrastructure and 

their contribution to the urban forest. 

 

4.2 Cultural Heritage Resources 

The historical context of Prescott is expressed in its many historic buildings and sites, which 

contribute significantly to the identity and image of the Town as a tourist attraction and as a 

preferred place to live, work, and shop. It is important then, to protect and conserve cultural 

heritage resources, including built heritage resources, cultural heritage landscapes, and 

archaeological resources. Conservation and preservation of historic features in the Town is 

strongly encouraged. 

 

4.2.1 Goals 

1. Encourage the conservation and preservation of historic features and cultural resources 

in the Town to enhance quality of life and support local economic development. 

 

2. Recognize the importance of the conservation and preservation of historic features and 

cultural resources to local economic development, including tourism. 

 

Page 101 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 63 

 

3. Support the adaptive re-use of existing heritage buildings in the Town. 

 

4.2.2 Policies 

4.2.2.1 Built Heritage Resources and Cultural Heritage Landscapes 

“Built heritage resources” and “cultural heritage landscapes” are defined in the 2020 Provincial 

Policy Statement and in this Plan as follows: 

 

Built heritage resources: means a building, structure, monument, installation or any 

manufactured remnant that contributes to a property’s cultural heritage value or interest as 

identified by a community, including an Indigenous community. Built heritage resources are 

generally located on property that has been designated under Parts IV or V of the Ontario 

Heritage Act, or that may be included on local, provincial, federal, and/or international registers. 

 

Cultural heritage landscape: means a defined geographical area that may have been modified 

by human activity and is identified as having cultural heritage value or interest by a community, 

including an Indigenous community. The area may include features such as buildings, 

structures, spaces, views, archaeological sites or natural elements that are valued together for 

their interrelationship, meaning or association. Cultural heritage landscapes may be properties 

that have been determined to have cultural heritage value or interest under the Ontario Heritage 

Act, or have been included on federal and/or international registers, and/or protected through 

official plan, zoning by-law, or other land use planning mechanisms.  

 

1. Significant built heritage resources and cultural heritage landscapes shall be identified 

and conserved.  

 

2. The Ontario Heritage Act may be utilized to conserve, protect, and enhance resources of 

cultural heritage interest or value in the Town through the designation, by by-law, of 

individual buildings, structures, sites, and landscapes, or heritage conservation districts 

in the Town, as appropriate. The establishment of a Heritage Conservation District may 

be implemented in the Zoning By-law through an overlay zone, as appropriate. 

 

3. The Town shall maintain a municipal register of properties, districts, and landscapes, 

and other resources of cultural heritage interest or value, including any properties 

designated under Parts IV and V of the Ontario Heritage Act. Non-designated properties 

that Council believes to be of cultural heritage value or interest may also be included on 

the municipal heritage register.  

 

4. Where development or site alteration is proposed that may impact a significant cultural 

heritage resource, or on a property adjacent to or fronting a protected heritage property, 

the Town shall require an application to undertake a Heritage Impact Assessment as 

part of the development review process. The Heritage Impact Assessment shall be 

Page 102 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

64 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

conducted by a qualified professional with expertise in the conservation of cultural 

heritage resources to:  

 

a. Identify the positive and adverse impacts on the cultural heritage resource that 

may be expected to occur as a result of the proposed development; and 

b. Describe alternative development approaches, mitigation measures, and 

conservation methods that may be required to prevent, minimize or mitigate the 

adverse impacts.  

 

5. Where a property has not previously been evaluated, a Cultural Heritage Evaluation 

Report may need to be completed prior to a Heritage Impact Assessment.  

 

6. The Town shall engage with Indigenous communities and consider their interests when 

identifying, protecting, and managing cultural heritage resources.  

 

7. Consider the preparation of a Heritage Master Plan for the Town as a means of 

identifying various cultural heritage resources and historic elements, and establishing 

policies and/or guidelines for long term conservation and preservation. The Heritage 

Master Plan could include: 

 

a. Inventory, evaluation, and mapping of registered and unregistered historic sites 

and places, Provincially-registered archaeological sites, locally-known 

archaeological sites, areas of archaeological potential, and other locally 

significant cultural heritage resources; 

 

b. Identification and evaluation of cultural facilities and organizations; 

 

c. Strategies for the conservation and enhancement of identified resources; and 

 

d. Programs to educate and inform the public of identified resources and encourage 

community participation in resource conservation and enhancement. 

 

8. Recognize the importance of a Heritage Committee and support their role in examining 

the desirability and suitability of restoring, conserving, and preserving cultural heritage 

resources in the Town. 

 

9. Consider establishing or participating in an existing heritage grant program to encourage 

the conservation and preservation of cultural heritage resources. 

 

Page 103 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 65 

 

10. Consider the restoration of built heritage resources deemed to be in non-compliance 

with Town building by-laws by permitting specific amendments, as appropriate and 

allowed under the Ontario Building Code Act and the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

11. Support the priority projects recommended for the King Street District in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report, including the Façade Improvement Program.  

 

12. Apply the guidelines in the Downtown Design and Guidelines report (as amended) to 

evaluate all applications for new development in the Downtown Core to ensure that 

development is sensitive to and supports the historical nature of the downtown, and 

adheres to the vision for the downtown established by the community as part of the 

Official Plan process. These guidelines relate to: 

 

a. Historic buildings on King Street; and 

 

b. New commercial construction and remodeling buildings on King Street. 

 

13. In attaining its goal for establishing a barrier-free environment with the objective of 

providing the highest degree of access with the lowest level of impact on the heritage 

attributes of the property, Council shall encourage access solutions in a manner that 

respects the cultural heritage value or interest of a protected property. Appropriate 

solutions will be determined by consulting qualified persons as well as affected users. 

Council recognizes that standardized designs may not always suffice and that each 

heritage property will require unique accessibility plans to ensure that alterations do not 

adversely affect the heritage attributes. 

 

14. Utilize site plan control to protect cultural heritage resources and to implement specific 

conditions as part of the site plan agreement. 

 

4.2.2.2 Archaeological Resources 

“Archaeological resources” and “areas of archaeological potential” are defined in the 2020 

Provincial Policy Statement as follows:  

 

Archaeological resources: includes artifacts, archaeological sites, marine archaeological sites, 

as defined under the Ontario Heritage Act. The identification and evaluation of such resources 

are based upon archaeological fieldwork undertaken in accordance with the Ontario Heritage 

Act.  

 

Areas of archaeological potential: means areas with the likelihood to contain archaeological 

resources. Criteria to identify archaeological potential are established by the Province. The 

Page 104 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

66 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

Ontario Heritage Act requires archaeological potential to be confirmed through archaeological 

fieldwork by a licensed archaeologist. 

 

Areas of archaeological potential are determined through the use of provincial screening criteria, 

or potential mapping. Provincial screening criteria include the consideration of factors such as 

proximity to known archaeological sites, burial sites or cemeteries, present or past water 

sources, well-drained sandy soil, elevated topography, distinctive landforms, resource extraction 

areas and historic transportation routes or other places of past human settlement. 

 

Records of known archaeological sites are maintained by the Ministry of Heritage, Sport, 

Tourism and Culture Industries (MHSTCI).  

 

The Town recognizes that, by virtue of its location on the St. Lawrence River, there is significant 

potential to contain archaeological resources within its boundaries. 

 

1. The Town shall work with the MHSTCI to obtain available site data from the Provincial 

archaeological database to assist in local heritage conservation and preservation efforts 

and in the review of development applications. Ensure that the database is updated as 

new sites are identified by the Province or during local land development. 

 

2. Where a development proposal or site alteration is proposed on lands containing known 

and potential archaeological resources or is within an area considered to have 

archaeological potential, the Town shall require an applicant to undertake an 

Archaeological Assessment of the lands to determine the nature and extent of any 

archaeological resources on the site. The Archaeological Assessment shall be 

conducted by an archaeologist licensed under the Ontario Heritage Act, and will be in 

compliance with guidelines set out by the MHSTCI, as well as licensing requirements 

development under the Ontario Heritage Act. The Archaeological Assessment shall be 

submitted to the Town and the MHSTCI for approval and registration.  

 

3. Where archaeological resources are found on lands to be developed, further 

Archaeological Assessment and/or a Conservation Plan may be required. Significant 

archaeological resources shall be conserved through avoidance and long-term 

protection, or through documentation and removal.  

 

4. Development on known archaeological sites shall be prohibited, and any alterations on 

such sites shall only be performed by a licensed archaeologist under Section 48 of the 

Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

5. The Town may require a Marine Archaeological Assessment to be conducted by a 

licensed marine archaeologist pursuant to the Ontario Heritage Act if partially or fully 

Page 105 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 67 

 

submerged marine features such as ships, boats, vessels, artifacts from the contents of 

boats, old piers, docks, wharfs, fords, fishing traps, dwellings, aircraft and other items of 

cultural heritage value may be impacted by shoreline and waterfront developments. The 

assessment must be consistent with the guidelines set out by the MHSTCI, as well as 

licensing requirements developed under the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

6. The Town recognizes the importance of areas of archaeological potential, such as along 

the current and ancient shoreline of the St. Lawrence River, and shall require applicants 

to work with the Town and the MHSTCI should any archaeological resources be 

discovered during development. Such a discovery may warrant on-site archaeological 

preservation to maintain the integrity of the resource, or rescue excavation to remove the 

resource. 

 

7. The Town recognizes that during development, there may be a need for archaeological 

preservation on site or rescue excavation of significant archaeological resources as a 

result of development proposals, and to ensure the preservation of such resources. 

 

8. The Town shall engage with Indigenous communities and consider their interests when 

identifying, protecting, and managing archaeological resources. Consultation with 

Indigenous communities shall be required on any Stage 2 Archaeological Assessment 

report that identifies areas of historical interest or potential for Indigenous artifacts. 

 

9. If human remains are encountered, all activities must cease immediately and the local 

police as well as the Cemeteries Regulation Unit of the Ministry of Government and 

Consumer Services must be contacted. In situations where human remains are 

associated with archaeological resources, MHSTCI should also be notified to ensure that 

the site is not subject to unlicensed alterations which would be a contravention of the 

Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

10. When development has the potential to impact a known or suspected cemetery or burial 

site, an Archaeological Assessment by a licensed consultant archaeologist shall be 

required. Provisions under both the Ontario Heritage Act and the Funeral, Burial and 

Cremation Services Act shall apply. Development shall be guided by this legislation and 

corresponding direction from the Ministry of Government and Consumer Services. 

 

4.3 Hazards  

Environmental conditions, whether naturally occurring or human-made, can result in hazards to 

human life or health, and damage or loss of value to property. Hazards in the natural 

environment include flooding and wildland fires. Human-made hazards include contaminated 

sites, abandoned mine hazards, and petroleum wells.  

Page 106 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

68 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

4.3.1  Goals 

1. Recognize the existence and potential for natural and human-made hazards in the Town 

of Prescott. 

 

2. Protect residents from potential natural and human-made hazards. 

 

3. Identify hazards that may be exacerbated by the impacts of climate change, such as 

flooding and wildfires.  

 

4.3.2 Natural Hazards Policies  

4.3.2.1 Floodplain - St. Lawrence River Hazards  

Floodplains are lands which may be prone to flooding and erosion. In the Town of Prescott, 

lands along the shoreline of the St. Lawrence River designated as Floodplain are shown in 

Schedule C, based on up-to-date mapping received from the South Nation Conservation 

Authority (SNC) in August 2020.  Where lands are subject to the Floodplain designation, the 

policies of this Section, as well as the underlying land use designation, must be considered.  

 

Appendix A to this Official Plan contains Light Detection and Ranging (LIDAR) mapping for 

information purposes, including digital elevation models.  

 

1. Uses permitted on lands designated Floodplain in Schedule C shall include 

conservation, forestry, public or private parks, golf courses, tourism or other outdoor 

recreation uses, and other uses compatible with flooding.  

 

2. For development that is proposed along the waterfront south of King Street, and is 

located within the Floodplain designation, the Town shall require a Flooding Hazard 

Analysis to determine whether the associated hazards of flooding, wave uprush and 

dynamic beach are present and to ensure that no development will be undertaken within 

the floodplain and that potential impacts on development adjacent to the floodplain are 

appropriately mitigated. 

 

3. No new buildings or structures shall be permitted on lands within the Floodplain 

designation, except where such buildings or structures are: 

 

a. Intended for flood or erosion control or are normally associated with watercourse 

protection or bank stabilization; 

 

b. For essential public services, except: 

 

Page 107 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 69 

 

i. Where there is a threat to the safe evacuation of residents during an 

emergency as a result of flooding, failure of flood proofing measures or 

protection works, or erosion; and 

 

ii. Those essential emergency services which would be impaired during an 

emergency as a result of flooding, failure of flood proofing measures or 

protection works, or erosion.  

 

c. For other uses normally associated with shorelines such as docks, boathouses 

non-habitable pedestrian amenities and temporary seasonal structures. 

 

4. All buildings and structures existing legally at the date of adoption of this Plan shall be 

recognized.  

 

5. The Town shall discourage expansion of any non-conforming building, structure, or use 

within the Floodplain designation; however, reconstruction and/or minor alterations to 

existing buildings and structures, and additions or extensions which are not likely to incur 

significant flood damage, and will not result in impediments to flow or floodwater storage, 

may be considered by the Town.  

 

6. The Floodplain designation shown on Schedule C is considered approximate, the actual 

floodplain area based on existing elevations will prevail where there is a discrepancy 

between the mapped floodplain and the actual floodplain. No amendment to this Plan is 

required with respect to minor discrepancies between the mapped Floodplain 

designation and the actual floodplain.”  

 

7. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within areas that would be 

rendered inaccessible to people and vehicles during times of flooding and/or erosion 

hazards, unless it has been demonstrated that the site has safe access appropriate for 

the nature of the development and the natural hazard. 

 

8. Development shall not be permitted to locate with lands designated floodplain where the 

use is: 

 

a. an institutional use including hospitals, long-term care homes, retirement homes, 

pre-schools, school nurseries, day cares and schools; 

b. an essential emergency service such as that provided by fire, police and 

ambulance stations and electrical substations; or 

c. uses associated with the disposal, manufacture, treatment or storage of 

hazardous substances. 

 

Page 108 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

70 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.3.2.2 Wildland Fire Hazard Areas  

Hazardous forest types for wildland fire are forest types that have been assessed by the 

Province as being associated with risk of wildland fire. These areas are generally composed of 

forest fuel types including natural conifer forests and unmanaged conifer plantations.  

 

Potential areas identified by the Province as having risk for wildland fire are illustrated in 

Schedule E of this Plan. Schedule E is provided for information purposes and is intended to 

provide a screening tool for identifying areas at potential risk for wildland fire. Where updated 

and/or more detail assessments are undertaken, Schedule E may be revised without requiring 

an amendment to this Plan. The following policies shall apply to areas near wildland fire 

hazards: 

 

1. Development shall generally be directed to areas outside of lands that are unsafe for 

development due to the presence of hazardous forest types for wildland fire.  

 

2. Development may be permitted in lands with hazardous forest types for wildland fire 

where the risk is mitigated in accordance with wildland fire assessment and mitigation 

standards, as identified by the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural 

Resources and Forestry (MNDMNRF).  

 

3. In the absence of detailed municipal assessments, proponents submitting a planning 

application shall undertake a site review to assess for the presence of areas of high to 

extreme risk for wildland fire on the subject lands and adjacent lands, to the extent 

possible. If development is proceeding where high to extreme risk for wildland fire is 

present, measures should be identified by proponents to outline how the risk will be 

mitigated.  

 

4. Wildland fire mitigation measures which would result in development or site alteration 

shall not be permitted in lands designated as Provincially Significant Wetlands. Wildland 

fire mitigation measures may occur in areas of significant wildlife habitat and significant 

woodlands, provided that it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative 

impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through an Environmental 

Impact Study, prepared in accordance with the policies in the Environmental Impact 

Study Section of this Plan. 

 

4.3.3 Slope and Soil Stability  

1. Where there is a slope adjacent to a watercourse the stable top of the slope will be 

determined by a qualified Professional Engineer, in consultation with the Town. The 

required setback from the top of slope will reflect the degree, severity and extent of the 

slope hazard, if any. 

 

Page 109 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 71 

 

2. A geotechnical study may be required in order to determine the feasibility of proposed 

development adjacent to unstable or potentially unstable slope. Development will 

generally be directed to areas outside of areas of unstable slope identified on Schedule 

C or that are identified on a site-specific basis. A minimum setback may be included in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

4.3.4 Human-Made Hazards Policies 

4.3.4.1 Abandoned Mine Hazards  

As defined in the 2020 Provincial Policy Statement, mine hazards include any feature of a mine 

as defined under the Mining Act, or any related disturbance of the ground that has not been 

rehabilitated. Mine hazards may pose a threat of injury and potential loss of life if they are not 

mitigated or rehabilitated. The Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and 

Forestry (MNDMNRF) maintains the Abandoned Mines Inventory System (AMIS) which 

contains information relating to known and recorded mine sites. 

 

To date, no known or recorded AMIS sites have been identified within the Town. If AMIS sites 

are identified in the future, these sites will be considered to be hazardous areas. 

 

1. The Town shall require that applicants for any proposed development on or within 1 km 

of an abandoned mine hazard to consult with the MENDM regarding the nature of the 

hazard, and to undertake any remediation measures as legislated under the Mining Act. 

 

2. Where an abandoned mine hazard exists, the Township shall require applicants with 

proposed development on, abutting or adjacent to the lands affected by mine hazards to 

be supported by a study that: 

 

a. Identifies potential safety threats; 

 

b. Demonstrates that the site can be rehabilitated to mitigate the known or 

suspected hazard; and 

 

c. Establishes measures to address and mitigate known or suspected hazards. 

 

3. Development on, abutting or adjacent to lands affected by mine hazards or former 

mineral mining operations shall be permitted only if measures to address and mitigate 

known or suspected hazards are underway or have been completed, to the satisfaction 

of the Town and the Province. 

 

4. Where rehabilitation requirements are known and are feasible, known mine hazards and 

adjacent lands may be zoned with a Holding Zone. In these instances, rehabilitation of 

the site in accordance with the requirements of the Mining Act shall be required prior to 

Page 110 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

72 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

the removal of the holding symbol. In the interim, uses permitted on such properties shall 

be restricted to existing land uses. 

 

4.3.4.2 Contaminated Sites  

1. Encourage the rehabilitation and redevelopment, as appropriate, of any potentially 

contaminated site having the potential for adverse effects on humans and/or the natural 

environment. 

 

2. Where planning approvals are required prior to the development of any property which is 

known or suspected of being contaminated by previous uses, for example a gas station 

or an industrial site, or where a change in use to a more sensitive land use has been 

proposed, an environmental site assessment shall be required, prepared by a qualified 

professional in accordance with O. Reg. 153/04: Records of Site Condition under Part 

XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act, as amended, and with the Ministry of 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) guidelines, as amended. 

 

3. Where an environmental site assessment completed per Policy 2 of this Section finds 

reasonable evidence to suggest the presence of contamination, further technical studies 

may be necessary to: 

 

a. Identify the nature and extent of contamination; 

 

b. Determine potential human health and safety concerns as well as effects on 

ecological health and the natural environment; 

 

c. Demonstrate that the site can be rehabilitated to meet Provincial standards; and 

 

d. Establish procedures for site rehabilitation and mitigation of the contamination in 

accordance with O. Reg 153/04, and with the MECP guidelines, as amended.  

 
4. As a condition of approval, the municipality will require that remediation, where required, 

is undertaken to appropriate standards of the MECP, as specified in O. Reg 153/04 and 

in the MECP guidelines, as amended, or other regulatory requirements of the MECP. A 

Record of Site Condition shall also be required. The Record of Site Condition shall be 

submitted to the Town and to the MECP, and filed on the Environmental Site Registry, 

as required by the MECP guidelines.  

 

5. In some cases, where site remediation requirements are known and feasible, planning 

approvals using a Holding Zone may be considered. In these instances, the remediation 

of the site and the submission of a Record of Site Condition, acknowledged by the 

Page 111 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 73 

 

MECP, shall be required prior to the removal of a holding symbol. In the interim, uses 

permitted on such properties shall be restricted to existing land uses. 

 

4.3.4.3 Petroleum Wells  

Development within proximity to petroleum resource operations must be carefully regulated to 

minimize land use conflicts and the potential for any adverse effects. There are no known 

petroleum wells within the Town; however, should any petroleum wells be identified in the 

future, the following policies shall apply.  

 

1. New development shall be set back 75 m from existing petroleum wells and associated 

works, with this setback being equivalent to the required setback under the Oil, Gas and 

Salt Resources Act, as amended, for new wells from existing development. 

 

4.4 Mineral Aggregate Resources  

The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement directs that mineral aggregate resources shall be 

protected for long-term use. Mineral aggregate resources means gravel, sand, clay, earth, 

shale, stone, limestone, dolostone, sandstone, marble, granite, rock or other material prescribed 

under the Aggregate Resources Act suitable for construction, industrial, manufacturing and 

maintenance purposes but does not include metallic ores, asbestos, graphite, kyanite, mica, 

nepheline syenite, salt, talc, wollastonite, mine tailings or other material prescribed under the 

Mining Act. 

 

It is recognized that the Town of Prescott does not currently contain any licenced mineral 

aggregate sites or operations. Areas with the potential for mineral aggregate resources are 

identified on Schedule D as Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource Area. 

The identification of mineral aggregate resources on Schedule D does not presume that all 

lands located within these areas are suitable for the establishment of new or expansions to 

existing mineral aggregate operations, especially where these potential mineral aggregate 

resources are constrained by other existing land use and urban built up areas, or natural 

heritage features and areas.  

 

4.4.1 Goals 

1. To protect areas having the potential for mineral aggregate resources for long-term use, 

where appropriate.  

 

4.4.2 Policies 

1. In any areas identified as Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource 

Area on Schedule D, or on adjacent lands, development which would preclude or hinder 

Page 112 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

74 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

the establishment of new operations or access to the resources shall only be permitted 

if:  

 

a. resource use would not be feasible or; 

 

b. the proposed land uses or development serves a greater long term public 

interest; and  

 

c. issues of public health, public safety and environmental impact are addressed. 

 

The concept of an influence area is recognized as a means of protecting against 

incompatible land uses in the vicinity of mineral aggregate operations and mineral 

aggregate resource areas. The impact from existing pits/quarries is considered within an 

influence area of 500 metres for a quarry and 300 metres for a pit. This area is 

considered to have the most impact on sensitive lands uses from the aggregate 

operations. Noise and Hydrogeological studies may be required to assess the impact if 

development occurs within this influence area. This influence area must be applied 

reciprocally to sensitive land uses encroaching on an existing extraction operation or 

designated mineral aggregate reserve. In the absence of site-specific studies, the 

minimum separation distance shall be 500 m for a quarry and 300 m for a pit. 

 

Incompatible land uses in or adjacent to mineral aggregate reserve areas shall be 

discouraged and only permitted in accordance with the policies of Section 4.4.2.1 (a) to 

(c). For the purposes of this policy, adjacent lands shall generally include lands within 

300 m of sand and gravel resources areas and within 500 m of bedrock resource areas.  

 

2. Notwithstanding Policy 1, development in areas identified as Tertiary Sand and Gravel 

Resources and Bedrock Resource Area on Schedule D, or on adjacent lands, which are 

part of the urban built up area of the Town of Prescott shall be permitted. Proposals for 

development within the Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource 

Area as a result of constraints resulting from existing development will be evaluated on a 

site-specific basis by the Town. 

 

3. It is recognized that there is potential for deposits of mineral aggregate resources to 

exist outside of the areas identified on Schedule D. The extraction of mineral aggregate 

resources may be permitted outside of the areas identified on Schedule D where there is 

sufficient quantity and quality of mineral aggregate resources to warrant extraction, as 

determined on a case-by-case basis. 

 

4. The Town shall work with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville in their preparation 

of an Aggregate Resources Master Plan to refine the deposits of mineral aggregate 

resources identified by the Province, and more accurately identify and examine the 

Page 113 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 75 

 

extent and viability of the potential mineral aggregate resources in the United Counties 

and in the Town of Prescott.  

 

5. Extractions of any size shall be undertaken in a manner which minimizes social and 

environmental impacts. 

 

6. Mineral aggregate resource conservation shall be undertaken, including through the use 

of accessory aggregate recycling facilities within operations, wherever feasible. 

 

7. Development in or adjacent to an area of known mineral or aggregate resources, shall 

be located and buffered sufficiently to ensure that the extraction is not limited and that 

the development is not affected by the noise, dust or other health and public safety 

issues that are related to the extractive activity. 

 

8. New mineral aggregate extraction operations shall be permitted in the areas identified as 

Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource Area on Schedule D, 

provided that separation distances are established in accordance with Ministry of the 

Environment, Conservation and Park’s D-Series Guidelines to ensure that they are not 

offensive and do not create a nuisance as a result of noise, hours of operations, odour, 

traffic generation, air emissions or other means. New mineral aggregate operations 

should be screened from view to the greatest extent possible. New or expanded mineral 

aggregate operations should also not negatively affect existing and future adjacent land 

uses, social values, and the environment. 

 

9. Council shall conserve cultural heritage resources when considering the establishment 

of new areas for mineral aggregate extraction or new operations. When necessary, 

Council shall require the mitigation of any negative impacts on cultural heritage interest 

or value through the use of Cultural Heritage Evaluation Reports, Heritage Impact 

Assessments and/or Archaeological Assessments. 

 

10. Progressive and final rehabilitation to accommodate subsequent land uses shall be 

required after extraction and other related activities have ceased in order to 

accommodate new land uses, to promote land use compatibility, to recognize the interim 

nature of extraction, and to mitigate negative impacts to the extent possible. Final 

rehabilitation shall take surrounding land use and approved land use designations into 

consideration. An Official Plan Amendment to the new land use designation may be 

required to implement the subsequent land use. Progressive rehabilitation should be 

undertaken wherever feasible. 

 

 

 

Page 114 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

76 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.0 Community Services and Transportation  

This Section of the Official Plan addresses a number of policy issues that relate to the provision 

of community services and related facilities in Prescott. Such services include traffic and 

circulation, public services and utilities (sewer, water, energy, etc.), and waste management. 

Parks and recreation services and facilities are also provided by the Town; however, since 

Parks and Open Space is a land use designation in this Official Plan, the policies related to this 

community service are contained in Parks and Open Space Section of this Plan. 

 

These policies are intended to be used in conjunction with the other policies of this Plan. 

 

5.1 Transportation and Circulation 

The Town’s transportation and circulation system is an essential part of achieving the vision, 

goals, and policies expressed in this Official Plan, and influences both land use and the quality 

of life in the Town. The circulation system is comprised of streets for use by vehicles and 

bicycles; while sidewalks and trails for use by pedestrians. Its primary purpose is to provide for 

the movement of people and goods safely and efficiently within the Town and to adjoining 

areas. While the motor vehicle will likely continue to be the primary means of transportation in 

Prescott for the foreseeable future, its use will be balanced by other modes of transportation, 

particularly in the Downtown Core. 

 

The Town’s transportation and circulation system is identified in Schedule B of this Plan.  

 

5.1.1 Goals 

1. Design an integrated transportation and circulation system for all residents and 

businesses that is safe, convenient, affordable, and efficient while minimizing 

environmental impacts. 

 

2. Provide a balanced transportation and circulation system consisting of vehicular, 

pedestrian, and cycling modes along with necessary supporting infrastructure. 

 

3. Recognize the link between transportation and land use and integrate planning for each. 

 

4. Reduce the need to drive and encourage walking and active transportation uses, 

including mobility devices, by providing for a mix of land uses in the Town. 

 

Page 115 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 77 

 

5.1.2 Policies 

5.1.2.1 General 

1. Maintain a transportation and circulation system that supports and complements the 

vision, goals, and policies expressed in this Official Plan. 

 

2. Provide a transportation and circulation system that accommodates the existing and 

future transportation needs of drivers, pedestrians, cyclists, and mobility devices. 

 

3. Encourage alternative modes of transportation by supporting development that 

encourages active transportation, such as walking, cycling, and mobility devices, and 

increases opportunities to live close to work and satisfy day-to-day needs locally without 

relying on a vehicle. 

 

4. Require that any transportation and circulation system construction and reconstruction 

project maximize mobility and accessibility for persons with disabilities. 

 

5.1.2.2 Road Classification 

1. Continue to utilize a functional classification system for roads to aid in the planning, 

development, and maintenance of the Town’s transportation and circulation system. 

Road classifications include Provincial Highways, Arterial Roads, Collector Roads, Local 

Roads, and Pedestrian and Cycling Routes, as follows (refer to Schedule B): 

 

a. Provincial Highways are roadways under the jurisdiction of the Ontario Ministry of 

Transportation (MTO) that are designed to facilitate through traffic movement of 

medium-to-high volumes.  Development within the MTO’s permit control area is 

subject to the requirements of the Public Transportation and Highway 

Improvement Act R.S.O. 1990.  Developers and property owners within the 

MTO’s permit control area are required to obtain approval and acceptance of 

their development plans, and Ministry permits prior to the issuance of municipal 

approval.  As a condition of access permits and building and land use permits, 

the MTO may require the completion of studies which may include, but are not 

limited to traffic impact studies, stormwater management studies, photometric 

plans, geotechnical studies, and environmental assessments. 

 

b. Arterial Roads are roadways comprised of two (2) and four (4) lanes that are 

designed to carry relatively high traffic volumes and provide for the movement 

between principal traffic generators and the interconnection of Provincial 

Highways. Undivided arterial roads have a design right-of-way width of 30 metres 

and divided arterial roads have a design right-of-way width of 36 metres. All 

Page 116 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

78 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

arterial roads have normal traffic speeds of 60 km/hr or less. Direct access to 

abutting properties is discouraged. 

 

c. Collector Roads are roadways comprised of two (2) lanes that are designed to 

collect and distribute traffic at relatively low operating speeds to and from local 

roads and arterial roads. Collector Roads have a design right-of-way width of 25 

metres. Direct access to abutting properties is generally permitted.  

 

d. Local Roads provide direct access to abutting properties at low operating speeds 

with a design right-of-way width of 20 metres, unless otherwise approved by the 

Town.  

 

e. Pedestrian and Cycling Routes provide the ability to access various 

neighbourhoods, parks and open space, and civic facilities via active 

transportation modes. Such routes may either be shared with streets by means 

of a bicycle lane and sidewalk, or may be comprised of dedicated lane, path, or 

trail rights-of-way. 

 

5.1.2.3 System Planning 

1. Protect adequate road rights-of-way to meet future needs. 

 

2. Maximize the use of existing roads and rights-of-way rather than acquiring new rights-of-

way and/or building new roads. The joint use of road rights-of-way with other utilities is 

encouraged. 

 

3. Recognize that the Future Roads and Future Cycling and Pedestrian Routes identified 

on Schedule B are intended to be illustrative only and may not occur as indicated. 

Detailed studies will be completed in conjunction with any proposed widening of an 

existing right-of-way or the establishment of a new right-of-way. 

 

4. Recognize that the Town may require land to be conveyed at no cost for the purpose of 

widening of an existing right-of-way as a condition of consent, subdivision, or site plan 

approval. Widening shall generally be equal on both sides of the right-of-way, except 

where site-specific conditions necessitate an unequal widening. 

 

5. Provide adequate road capacity to meet the needs of local traffic, but not necessarily 

through-traffic demands which should be met by regional and provincial transportation 

facilities and services. 

 

6. Consider potential environmental impacts when evaluating transportation improvements, 

including public safety, quality of life, and protection of environmental resources. 

Page 117 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 79 

 

 

7. Maximize the effectiveness of Town transportation plans and programs by coordinating 

local plans with neighbouring municipal and provincial initiatives. 

 

8. Provide active input in the planning of regional and provincial transportation facilities and 

services. 

 

9. Encourage the co-location of linear infrastructure, such as roads, pipelines and 

powerlines, where appropriate, and evaluate opportunities for co-location of linear 

infrastructure with neighbouring municipalities where developments span municipal 

borders, such as for the areas north of Highway 401. 

 

10. Consider the future completion of an Active Transportation Master Plan for the Town, 

which may identify: 

 

a. The type and location of active transportation facilities; 

 

b. Required infrastructure improvements to support a healthy and age-friendly 

community; and 

 

c. Connectivity between recreational and tourism assets. 

 

11. Encourage opportunities to partner with neighbouring municipalities on the potential 

development of a future regional bus service, or other transportation modes such as 

water-based connections, to connect neighbouring tourism assets. 

 

5.1.2.4 Development 

1. Encourage a grid-oriented street network in the planning of new development as a 

means of distributing vehicular traffic efficiently and providing more direct and accessible 

routes for pedestrians and cyclists. 

 

2. Encourage new development or redevelopment to consider street connectivity and 

connectivity of active transportation infrastructure, in coordination with the Town. 

 

3. The Town may consider requiring the dedication of lands for active transportation, such 

as pedestrian and bicycle pathways, as a condition of subdivision and site plan 

approvals, in accordance with the Planning Act.  

  

4. Review and evaluate existing street standards to determine if reduced roadway and 

right-of-way width standards are appropriate. 

 

Page 118 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

80 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5. Permit turning circles, roundabouts, or other similar roadway features subject to an 

evaluation by the Town of the functional, operational, servicing and financial issues 

associated with their use. The Town shall consider undertaking a public education 

campaign where significant new roadway features are planned or implemented that will 

have impacts on traffic behaviour and patterns. 

 

6. Consider the implementation of traffic calming measures, such as vehicle speed 

reductions, to improve road safety in the Town. 

 

5.1.2.5 Parking 

1. Require adequate off-street parking for all development in the Town per the standards in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

2. Permit reduced off-street parking standards, particularly in the Downtown Core, where 

municipal off-/on-street parking is provided nearby, subject to an evaluation by the Town. 

 

3. Consider permitting reduced off-street parking requirements for developments containing 

affordable rental housing. 

 

4. Encourage opportunities for shared parking in mixed use areas, such as in the 

Downtown Core, where the peak parking demand characteristics for the land uses are 

complementary, subject to an evaluation by the Town. Parking areas should generally 

be located within 100 metres of buildings they are intended to serve. 

 

5. Require a parking study for any request for shared parking arrangements that 

demonstrates the complementary nature of parking demands for the existing and 

proposed uses, and the ability to provide safe movement of pedestrians between uses. 

 

6. Require barrier-free parking to be located nearest to building entrances, and establish 

barrier-free parking standards in the Zoning By-law in accordance with the Accessibility 

for Ontarians with Disabilities Act. 

 

7. Encourage the location of parking at the side or rear of buildings along commercial and 

residential streets, and require the screening of parking areas by means of landscaping 

consisting of low planting areas. 

 

5.1.2.6 Walking 

1. Include safe, convenient, and attractive pedestrian facilities such as sidewalks, corner 

ramps, and pedestrian signals in the construction and reconstruction of transportation 

and circulation system facilities. Pedestrian facilities may not be required on local 

residential streets. 

Page 119 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 81 

 

 

2. Support and enhance more pedestrian-oriented streetscapes in the Town, particularly on 

Edward Street and in the Downtown Core, with consideration for accessible sidewalks, 

building designs that provide shelter, pedestrian-scaled lighting, street furniture, bicycle 

racks, and landscaping. 

 

3. Review and evaluate existing street standards to determine if more pedestrian-oriented 

standards are appropriate, with consideration for traffic safety. 

 

4. Encourage safe and efficient pedestrian access to a full range of land uses including 

parks and recreation facilities, open space, and the waterfront. 

 

5. Consider pedestrian orientation and amenities in the review of all development 

applications. 

 

5.1.2.7 Active Transportation 

1. Encourage safe and efficient active transportation access to a full range of land uses 

including parks and recreation facilities, open space, and the waterfront through the use 

of bicycles and mobility devices. 

 

2. Provide adequate and secure bicycle parking at civic facilities, in the Downtown Core, 

and the waterfront to encourage bicycle use. 

 

3. The Town shall consider coordination with neighbouring municipalities for the provision 

of trails for non-motorized uses to facilitate safe cycling between communities and 

promote opportunities for cycling-based tourism.  

 

4. When undertaking public works, the Town may consider the provision of bicycle lanes 

and bicycle racks, where appropriate. 

 

5. Recognize the importance of wayfinding measures to supporting Prescott’s tourism and 

recreational assets. 

 

6. Promote opportunities for wayfinding and directional signage, including the provision of 

simple, clear and legible signage throughout the Town. 

 

7. The Town may undertake the completion of a Wayfinding Strategy to identify 

improvements to wayfinding in the Town and provide guidance for the location and 

design of directional signage. 

 

Page 120 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

82 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.1.2.8 Trucks 

1. Consider designating a truck route in the Town and restricting heavy truck traffic to such 

a route to minimize the adverse impacts of such traffic on residential neighbourhoods. 

Truck parking should also be addressed. 

 

2. Contemplate establishing a by-law as provided for under Section 129 of the Municipal 

Act that includes performance requirements for noise, odour, dust, vibration, and other 

factors associated with truck traffic as a means of implementing and enforcing the 

designated truck route. 

 

3. Direct land uses that generate significant truck and commercial traffic primarily to areas 

designated Employment Area, Highway 401 Corridor, and Highway Commercial, and 

secondarily to properties which front on Arterial Roads. 

 

4. Consider reducing the impact of heavy truck traffic on the pedestrian environment by 

providing wider sidewalks and landscaping that reduce the noise and visual impacts on 

pedestrians from traffic. Traffic safety and maintenance will be considered. 

 

5.2 Public Services and Utilities 

Development in the Town requires various public and private services and utilities such as 

water, sewer, hydro, gas, and telecommunications.  Such services must be provided 

concurrently with new development for the health, safety, and welfare of Prescott residents. 

Such services must also be provided and paid for in an equitable manner without an undue 

financial burden on the Town. 

 

5.2.1 Goals 

1. Ensure the provision of adequate public utilities and services for existing and future 

residents and businesses in the Town. 

 

5.2.2 Policies 

5.2.2.1 General 

1. Require that all new development in the Town proceed on full urban services (piped 

water, sanitary sewers, and stormwater systems). Lands north of Highway 401 shall be 

permitted to develop on the basis of private services on an interim basis until such time 

that municipal services are extended north of Highway 401. 

 

Page 121 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 83 

 

2. Require developers to concurrently provide, either directly or through fees, all new 

infrastructure, facilities, and services that must be created, expanded, or modified to 

serve any new development. 

 

3. Ensure that the existence of a public utility or service does not entitle, justify, or 

otherwise permit the creation of a new use or the expansion of an existing use that 

otherwise does not conform with this Official Plan. 

 

4. Work with utility and service providers in the Town to ensure that any future expansion of 

local facilities is designed and planned with minimal impact on existing and future 

residents. 

 

5. Require that all utilities serving new development be located underground, as 

appropriate. 

 

6. Continue to monitor regularly the capacity of Town-owned utilities and services to ensure 

that sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the five (5)- and 15-year housing supply 

targets specified in the Housing Supply Section of this Plan. Monitoring will inform the 

five (5)-year capital budget for such utilities and services. 

 

7. Maintain the five (5)-year capital budget that identifies priorities for the operation and 

maintenance of Town-owned utilities and services, including drinking water treatment 

and distribution, sanitary sewage collection and treatment, stormwater management 

facilities. 

 

8. Ensure that any agreement between the Town and neighbouring jurisdictions to service 

these jurisdictions does not reduce the existing level of service to the Town, result in 

insufficient capacity to accommodate the Town’s housing supply targets, as required by 

Policy 6 above, or result in any additional financial burden on the Town. 

 

9. Development on the basis of private on-site water and sewer services shall only be 

permitted where it is clearly demonstrated that: 

 

a. The proposed development is considered infilling and minor rounding out of 

existing development; and 

 

b. It can be demonstrated that the aquifer can provide a long term sustainable 

ground water supply of acceptable quality and quantity in accordance with MECP 

guidelines and regulations, and that there is no negative environmental impact 

(or cumulative negative impact) resulting from the use of on-site private water 

and sewage services.” 

 

Page 122 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

84 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.3 Stormwater Management  

The following policies shall apply for managing stormwater runoff: 

 

1. All new development shall be provided with adequate storm drainage facilities or 

connected to storm sewers or watercourses, as appropriate. The design and 

construction of all storm sewers and improvements to watercourses shall have sufficient 

depth and capacity to serve all areas, which may be ultimately connected to the system. 

 

2. Stormwater facilities shall be integrated with planning for sewage and water services and 

ensure that systems are optimized, feasible and financially viable over the long term in 

accordance with the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Park’s (MECP) 

Stormwater Management Planning and Design Manual. 

 

3. A Stormwater Management Plan may be required for new plans of subdivision and major 

or large-scale development proposals. A Stormwater Management Plan shall include:  

 

a. preparing for the impacts of a changing climate through the effective 

management of stormwater, including the use of green infrastructure;  

 

b. minimizing changes in water balance and erosion;  

 

c. mitigating risks to human health, safety, property and the environment; 

 

d. maximizing the extent and function of vegetative and pervious surfaces; and  

 

e. promotion of stormwater best practices, including stormwater attenuation and re-

use, water conservation and efficiency, and Low Impact Development (LID) 

techniques. 

 

Stormwater Management Plans shall outline means to lessen nutrient input into 

surrounding water bodies and municipal storm sewers after construction. A construction-

mitigation plan shall outline means to lesson nutrient inputs during construction. The 

Stormwater Management Plan shall be submitted to the Town for approval. Approved 

recommendations from Stormwater Management Plans shall be implemented through 

the development approval process. 

 

4. For development located adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, a provincial highway whose 

drainage would impact the highway, a Stormwater Management Plan shall be prepared 

by the proponent, and reviewed by Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO) for 

approval.  

 

Page 123 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 85 

 

5.  Where required under the Ontario Water Resources Act, permits, approvals, and 

registrations may be required for proposed stormwater management facilities. 

 

5.4 Waste Management  

As with most municipalities, solid waste management continues to be an important municipal 

issue. Since there is no sanitary landfill site within the Town, the Town must continue to work 

with their collection service provider and the community to reduce the amount of waste 

generated, reuse materials to the greatest extent possible, and recycle materials instead of 

disposing of them at the landfill site. 

 

5.4.1 Goals 

1. Manage solid waste in the Town for the purposes of reducing, reusing, and recycling and 

contribute further to Provincial efforts to divert waste from landfill. 

 

5.4.2 Policies 

1. Provide the best possible service for the collection of garbage, recyclables, and green 

waste at the lowest possible cost. 

 

2. Promote opportunities to reduce waste at home and in businesses, and make possible 

the safe disposal of hazardous materials. 

 

3. Require builders to incorporate interior and exterior storage areas for recyclables in new 

commercial and residential buildings, and encourage re-modeled buildings to make 

recycling activities more convenient. 

 

4. Comply with various Provincial requirements under the Waste Management Act, Waste 

Diversion Act, and the Environmental Protection Act for proper handling and storage of 

solid waste, recyclables, and hazardous materials, diversion of solid waste from landfills, 

and provision of programs to make these activities feasible. 

 

5. Continue to obtain input from residents and employers in the Town to ensure that solid 

waste programs effectively address community needs and issues. 

Page 124 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

86 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.0 Implementation 

This Part of the plan provides for the efficient and effective regulatory and decision-making 

procedures that will be used to guide the development and management of the Town’s physical 

environment and to achieve the community vision outlined in the Vision and Guiding Principles 

Section of the Plan. The policies in this Part are intended to be used in conjunction with the 

other policies of this Plan. 

 

6.1 Community Improvement  

Community improvement involves a range of public and private activities that maintain, 

rehabilitate, and revitalize the existing physical condition of the urban environment. Such 

improvements are often used to address various social and economic priorities of the 

community. As municipal governments continue to try and do more with less, it becomes 

increasingly important to establish priorities and pursue opportunities for partnership with the 

private sector and senior levels of government. 

 

The entire Town is designated as a Community Improvement Policy Area, with the intent to 

make possible the designation of a community improvement project area(s) and the preparation 

of a community improvement plan(s) for the designated area(s), as provided for under Section 

28 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.1.1 Goals 

1. Maintain, rehabilitate, and revitalize the physical environment in the Town as a means of 

improving the quality of life for residents, workers, and visitors in the Town. 

 

2. Consider community improvement as an important part of the Town’s commitment to 

local economic development and support for tourism, commerce, and industry in 

Prescott. 

 

3. Recognize community improvement as the primary means by which the Town can 

facilitate brownfield redevelopment. 

 

6.1.2 Policies 

6.1.2.1 Community Improvement Objectives 

1. Continue to improve the quality of life for residents, workers, and visitors in the Town by 

means of the following: 

a. Maintaining and improving municipal services, public utilities and social and 

recreational facilities; 

Page 125 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 87 

 

b. Encouraging improvement activities that contribute to local economic 

development and support tourism, commerce, and industry; 

 

c. Supporting the redevelopment of brownfield sites and their reintegration into the 

urban fabric; 

 

d. Encouraging the maintenance of the existing housing stock, and promoting the 

rehabilitation, renovation, and repair of older buildings; 

 

e. Promoting Downtown revitalization; 

 

f. Encouraging property maintenance and occupancy standards; 

 

g. Preserving historically and/or architecturally significant buildings or areas; 

 

h. Improving traffic and parking patterns making them more compatible with 

surrounding uses and needs; 

 

i. Enhancing conditions in older predominantly residential areas; 

 

j. Improving the overall streetscape and/or aesthetics of commercial and industrial 

areas of the Town; 

 

k. Encouraging and incentivizing the construction of affordable housing through 

intensification, and housing forms that allow residents to age in place, and other 

housing needs of local residents, and of potential investors; 

 

l. Ensuring improvements made are carried out in such a way as to be compatible 

with other goals and policies of this Official Plan; 

 

m. Promoting, where feasible, energy efficient conservation through energy efficient 

land uses; 

 

n. Providing advice and guidance on maintenance and rehabilitation of buildings 

and structures and on energy conservation; 

 

o. Encouraging public participation in the community improvement planning 

process; 

 

p. Undertaking a monitoring program to review budgeting and program direction in 

respect to the attainment of specific policies; and 

Page 126 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

88 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

q. Working with business leaders in the community to identify and facilitate 

improvements. 

 

6.1.2.2 Designation of Community Improvement Project Area(s) 

1. Identify and establish potential community improvement project areas in the Town using 

designation criteria; the importance of each will be determined by the funds available, 

the severity of the problem, the relationship of community improvement to other policies 

in this Plan and capital expenditure priorities of the Town. 

 

2. The following designation criteria shall be used to identify Community Improvement 

Project Areas: 

a. Deficiencies in hard services including roads, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, water 

distribution system, sanitary collection system, and storm sewers; 

 

b. Presence of sub-standard building conditions and housing in need of 

improvement and revitalization; 

 

c. Opportunity to expand the housing stock through the redevelopment or 

conversion of under-utilized lands and/or buildings; 

 

d. Need to provide or improve affordable single and multiple unit residential 

dwellings for low to middle income residents; 

 

e. Presence of vacant lands/buildings that could be developed, redeveloped or 

converted to another use; 

 

f. Presence of brownfield sites that are underutilized, derelict, or vacant and may 

be contaminated; 

 

g. Need to upgrade the streetscape or aesthetics of an area; 

 

h. Need to upgrade elements of the transportation system, including but not limited 

to, sub-standard road conditions and road widths, and poorly designed 

intersections; 

 

i. Need to provide or improve recreational and cultural facilities and public open 

space, including parkland acquisition, facilities improvement, and trails 

enhancement; 

 

j. Presence of incompatible land use activity; 

 

Page 127 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 89 

 

k. Presence of hazard lands that have an impact on the Town's pattern of 

development, including contaminated sites, or areas requiring improvements 

because of poor drainage conditions, including ditching and flood proofing; 

 

l. Presence of buildings or lands of architectural and/or historical merit and sites of 

archaeological significance or interest, in need of improvement or revitalization; 

 

m. Areas requiring shoreline improvements to enhance public usability while 

furthering public efforts at shoreline management along waterbodies; and 

 

n. Presence of points of interest and/or special visual amenities, such as the 

downtown and the waterfront, that provide an opportunity for tourism, and which 

could benefit from protection and enhancement. 

 

6.1.2.3 Community Improvement Implementation Measures 

1. Implement the goals and policies of this section by means of the powers conferred upon 

Town Council under the Planning Act, Building Code Act, Heritage Act, Municipal Act, 

and Drainage Act. Implementation measures could include the following: 

a. Designation by by-law of a Community Improvement Project Area(s) and 

adoption of Community Improvement Plan(s) for the area(s); 

 

b. Acquisition of land within a Community Improvement Project Area(s), and 

clearing, grading, or otherwise preparing the land for community improvement; 

 

c. Undertake the construction, repair, rehabilitation or improvement of buildings on 

land acquired or held by the Town in the Community Improvement Project 

Area(s), and sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any such buildings and lands 

owned by the Town; 

 

d. Seeking funds from other levels of government (county, provincial, and federal) 

where their programs facilitate the implementation of community improvement; 

 

e. Enactment and enforcement of a property maintenance and occupancy 

standards by-law with respect to residential, commercial, and industrial building 

stock and lands (refer to the Land Use Control Section and the policies regarding 

property conditions); 

 

f. Providing grants or loans to owners and tenants of lands and buildings within the 

Community Improvement Project Area(s); 

 

Page 128 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

90 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

g. Accessing financial incentive programs such as the Brownfields Financial Tax 

Incentive Program to redevelop brownfield sites; 

 

h. Providing municipal tax relief as an incentive for building improvements; 

 

i. Encouragement of public participation in the preparation of Community 

Improvement Plan(s); 

 

j. Encouragement of private sector use of government programs where they 

complement community improvement efforts; 

 

k. Encouragement of infill development of vacant and/or under-utilized properties in 

Community Improvement Project Areas; and 

 

l. Upgrading of municipal services. 

 

6.2 Implementation Tools 

The Town has a multitude of tools available to it to implement the principles, goals, and policies 

of this Official Plan. These tools are conferred upon the Town primarily by means of the 

Municipal Act and the Planning Act. These tools provide the regulatory framework and decision-

making procedures necessary to manage physical development in the Town of Prescott. 

 

6.2.1 Goals 

1. Provide a full range of regulatory mechanisms for implementing the goals and policies 

associated with the principles of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Coordinate implementation with the Town’s capital works to maximize benefits to the 

Town’s physical, economic, and social development. 

 

6.2.2 Policies 

1. Recognize the importance of both public and private sector development, in conjunction 

with applicable municipal by-laws and capital works, in implementing the goals and 

policies of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Ensure that all development and agreements regarding subdivisions, condominiums, site 

plans, and buildings conform to the Official Plan. 

 

3. Acquire land, as necessary, for the purposes of implementing any part of the Official 

Plan. 

Page 129 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 91 

 

 

4. Undertake secondary planning studies, as necessary, for specific areas or to address a 

specific planning issue. Secondary planning studies shall be approved by resolution of 

Town Council and shall be incorporated by way of amendment to the Official Plan. 

 

6.3 Indigenous Engagement  

The Town recognizes and respects the cultural values and heritage of local Indigenous 

communities.  

 

6.3.1 Goals 

1. Engage with Indigenous communities that may have an interest in planning matters in 

the Town.  

 

6.3.2 Policies 

1. The Town shall pursue the preparation of a Community Engagement Strategy in 

consultation with local Indigenous communities. The Community Engagement Strategy 

shall outline when and how the Town, and/or development proponents, shall engage 

with Indigenous communities on development applications and land use projects. 

 

2. At a minimum, the following consultation with Indigenous communities shall be required: 

 

a. Consultation on cultural heritage or archaeological studies related to proposed 

developments where areas of Indigenous interest or values and/or the potential 

for encountering Indigenous artifacts have been identified; 

 

b. Consultation prior to the approval by Council of future Official Plan amendments 

or site plan approval, where an Archaeological Assessment has identified the 

potential for encountering Indigenous artifacts; and 

 

c. Input and possible participation in Stage 2 Archaeological Assessments required 

for land use planning or development purposes, where a Stage 1 Archaeological 

Assessment indicates areas of historical interest and/or the potential for 

encountering Indigenous artifacts. 

 

6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring  

To ensure the continued use, relevance, and effectiveness of this Official Plan, it is important 

that the principles, goals, policies, and Schedules of the document are clear, concise, and easily 

Page 130 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

92 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

understood by all who use them. It is also important that the principles, goals, and policies of the 

document are updated, as needed. The following policies regarding interpretation and 

monitoring of the Official Plan will ensure that the Official Plan remains a “living document” well 

into the future. 

 

6.4.1 Goals 

1. Provide guidance in the interpretation of the principles, goals, policies, and Schedules of 

the Official Plan. 

 

2. Evaluate the effectiveness of the Official Plan over time by monitoring the principles, 

goals, policies, and Schedules of the Plan to ensure that it remains relevant, effective, 

and can accommodate future circumstances. 

 

6.4.2 Policies 

6.4.2.1 Agency Names and Responsibility  

1. Recognize that the names of various government ministries and agencies may change 

from time to time and responsibilities may shift from one ministry to another. The names 

of government ministries and agencies responsible for various programs, regulations, 

and approvals related to the Official Plan are accurate as of the adoption date of this 

Plan. It is not intended to amend this Plan each time a change of name or responsibility 

occurs, and this Plan shall be interpreted so as to refer to those agencies named, or to 

their successors, as conditions dictate. 

 

6.4.2.2 Interpretation 

1. Apply the principles, goals, and policies presented in this Plan to all of the lands in the 

Town of Prescott regardless of the land use designation shown on Schedule A, unless 

otherwise specified. 

 

2. Recognize that the land use designations identified on Schedule A, are intended to show 

general use areas.  The boundaries of the land use designations shall be approximate, 

except in cases where such boundaries are defined by fixed physical features such as 

railways, highways, and streets, and are subject to interpretation at the time of 

implementation of the Plan provided the intent of the Plan is maintained. 

 

3. Recognize that where a policy includes a list of requirements, land uses, considerations, 

issues, or other references, such lists are intended to indicate the possible range of 

requirements, land uses, considerations, issues, or other references. Specific items not 

listed may be considered and included by Town Council, as appropriate and in 

conformity with the Official Plan. 

Page 131 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 93 

 

 

4. Permit minor variations from numerical requirements in the Official Plan without an 

Official Plan amendment, provided the general intent of the Plan is maintained. 

 

5. Recognize that site specific policies shall prevail in cases where there is a conflict 

between site specific and general policies. 

 

6. Recognize that, although the land use designations of this Plan are intended to be 

conceptual in nature, in cases where a parcel of land contains two separate land use 

designations, the policies of each designation shall apply only to the portion of the 

property so designated. 

 

6.4.2.3 Legislation  

1. Recognize that various Provincial and Federal Statutes are amended from time to time 

and legislation section numbers may change. It is not intended that this Plan be 

amended each time such a change is made. This Plan shall be interpreted so as to refer 

to subsequent legislation as amended. 

 

6.4.2.4 Monitoring 

1. Review the Official Plan within 10 years of a new plan prepared as a result of a 

comprehensive review and every 5 years thereafter in order to evaluate the need to 

update the Plan as necessary, pursuant to Section 26 of the Planning Act. This review 

shall determine if: 

 

a. The principles, goals, and policies of the Plan remain valid and realistic in view of 

changing circumstances; and 

 

b. The policies of the Plan are adequate to achieve the principles and goals. 

 

2. Monitor the number of amendments to the Official Plan that have been processed and 

any challenges faced in dealing with proposals to change the Plan, as a means of 

determining its effectiveness and evaluating the need to update the Plan as necessary. 

 

3. Maintain an inventory of existing vacant lands and lands with the potential for 

redevelopment. 

 

4. Monitor the supply of residentially-designated land within the Town to ensure that the 

Official Plan targets for housing supply are maintained, in accordance with the Housing 

Supply Section of this Plan. 

 

Page 132 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

94 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.5 Land Use Controls  

Through the Zoning By-law and other means, the Town has the ability to control development in 

Prescott. These controls provide the regulatory framework necessary to implement the Official 

Plan. 

 

6.5.1 Goals  

1. Define the uses permitted in specific locations within the Town and the regulations 

relating to how those uses are to be developed and maintained. 

 

6.5.2 Policies 

6.5.2.1 Community Benefits Charges 

Section 37 of the Planning Act provides that Council may by by-law impose community benefits 

charges against land to pay for the capital costs of facilities, services and matters required 

because of development or redevelopment.  

 

1. Council may pass a by-law in accordance with Section 37 of the Planning Act, 

authorizing community benefits charges.  

 

2. Before passing a community benefits charges by-law, the Town shall prepare a 

community benefits charge strategy, in accordance with Section 37 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.5.2.2 Density Incentives  

1. Consider the use of density incentive provisions in the updated Zoning By-law to permit 

increases in height and density of development beyond those permitted by the Zoning 

By-law in exchange for facilities, services, or matters of public benefit. The Town may 

encourage the use of such provisions with regard to the following matters: 

 

a. Provision of a wide range of housing types including special needs, assisted, or 

other low-income housing; 

 

b. Provision of parkland dedication beyond the requirements of the Plan; 

 

c. Protection of natural features, such as wetlands, beyond the parkland dedication 

requirements of the Plan; 

 

d. Provision of public areas and walkways and connections to external public 

walkways/trail systems; 

 

Page 133 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 95 

 

e. Provision of public parking; 

 

f. Provision of community and open space facilities such as small parks, waterfront 

improvements, day care centres, schools, community centres and recreational 

facilities, and other municipal facilities; 

 

g. Conservation of cultural heritage resources; 

 

h. Rehabilitation and redevelopment of any potentially contaminated site; 

 

i. Protection or enhancement of significant views; and 

 

j. Provision of affordable housing beyond any Provincial requirement. 

 

2. Ensure that any density incentive provisions in the updated Zoning By-law establish a 

nexus; i.e., that the facilities, services, or matters of public benefit provided are 

commensurate with the increased height and density permitted. 

 

3. Permit density incentives only in cases where the increased height and density complies 

with all other applicable Zoning By-law regulations, conforms with the intent of the 

Official Plan, and is compatible with adjacent existing or proposed development. 

 

4. Ensure that the facilities, services, or matters of public benefit provided in exchange for 

increased height and density are directly linked or associated with the development 

proposed and are located onsite. 

 

5. Prohibit the transfer of bonus height and density from one site to another or from one 

project to another. 

 

6. Require an agreement between the Town and the landowner as a condition of the 

application to be registered on title. Such an agreement would address, among other 

items, the facilities and services of public benefit to be provided, the timing of their 

provision, the operation and maintenance of such facilities and services, and the 

increased height and density permitted in exchange for the public benefit provided. 

 

6.5.2.3 Holding Zones 

1. Consider including provisions for holding zones in the Zoning By-law, pursuant to 

Section 36 of the Planning Act that would allow Council to specify the future uses of 

lands that, at the present time, are considered premature or inappropriate for 

Page 134 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

96 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

development. Council may only designate a holding zone with the “h” prefix for any one 

or more of the following reasons: 

 

a. Community services and facilities such as sanitary sewers, stormwater 

management facilities, water supply, and parks are insufficient to serve the 

proposed development; 

 

b. Transportation facilities are inadequate or inappropriate based on anticipated 

traffic; 

 

c. The number and location of access points to the site are inadequate and 

incapable of functioning safely and efficiently; 

 

d. Where development relies upon other matters occurring first, such as the 

consolidation of land ownership, to ensure the orderly development of the project 

and to secure funding for infrastructure, services, or outstanding application 

processing costs; and 

 

e. Supporting studies are required on matters related to traffic, soils, protection of 

any site features, environmental constraints, design features or market impact 

analysis prior to development approval. 

 

2. Remove a holding zone only at such time that Council is satisfied that the reasons for 

establishing the holding zone have been addressed. 

 

3. Recognize that not all land use areas designated in the Official Plan will be immediately 

zoned and available for such uses, and no provision of this Plan shall be interpreted to 

require Council to zone any land within the municipality so as to permit the immediate 

development of such lands for a designated use. 

 

4. Prohibit the construction of any building or structure on a site within a holding zone, 

unless permitted by Council or until the holding zone designation is removed. The 

following uses may be permitted: 

 

a. All existing uses, buildings or structures; 

 

b. A home occupation in an existing single-detached dwelling; and 

 

c. A public or private park, provided no permanent buildings or structures are built. 

 

Page 135 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 97 

 

6.5.2.4 Interim Control 

1. Consider the use of interim control by-laws under Section 38 of the Planning Act to 

prohibit for a period of 1 year the use of land, buildings, or structures within defined 

areas of the Town where, in the opinion of Council, circumstances dictate the need to 

review or study land use policies relating to the defined areas. Council may amend the 

by-law to extend the period of interim control by 1 year. 

 

2. Establish the planning justification and demonstrate the need to review or study land use 

policies relating to a specific area when considering the adoption of an interim control 

by- law. Council shall ensure that such a review or study may be completed 

expeditiously. 

 

6.5.2.5 Land Division 

1. Consider plan of subdivision as the primary means of land division in the Town. 

 

2. Recommend plan of subdivision for the division of land creating three or more lots. 

 

3. Recommend consent to sever land only if Council is satisfied that a plan of subdivision is 

clearly unnecessary and only if: 

 

a. No more than two new lots will be created, except where the severed lots would 

constitute the full development of the property and would not jeopardize the 

efficient development of neighbouring undeveloped lands, including interior 

lands; 

 

b. Municipal water and sewer services abut the lot to be severed; 

 

c. Safe access to and from both the severed and retained lots is possible and would 

not adversely affect traffic and parking conditions in the area; 

 

d. The proposed use of both the severed and retained lots is compatible with the 

scale and intensity of development on the adjacent lots; and 

 

e. The consent meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

4. No land within the Town will be divided unless Council is satisfied that: 

 

a. The size of the lots created is appropriate for the proposed use; 

 

Page 136 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

98 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

b. No landlocked parcels are created; 

 

c. No lot will have an unusually limited road frontage; 

 

d. All lots have direct access to a publicly-maintained road; 

 

e. The application does not result in adverse environmental impacts that cannot be 

mitigated; and 

 

f. The application meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

5. Council may adopt a by-law under Section 50 of the Planning Act to deem part or all of a 

plan of subdivision not to be registered, where appropriate. 

 

6.5.2.6 Master Servicing Agreement 

1. Consider the use of master servicing agreements between Council and development 

applicants as a condition of zoning and or subdivision approval. Such an agreement 

would be based on the findings of a servicing master plan or any other study deemed 

necessary by the Town. The agreement would ensure that necessary approvals and 

required contributions of funds and lands and commitments for services would be in 

place and operative prior to or, coincident with, occupancy and use of land. Services 

included in the agreement could include: 

a. Open space; 

b. Water supply; 

c. Sanitary sewer; 

d. Stormwater management; 

e. Road infrastructure and widening; and 

f. Other utilities. 

 

6.5.2.7 Minor Variances  

1. A Committee of Adjustment has been and shall continue to be established by Council, in 

accordance with the enabling provisions of the Planning Act. The Committee of 

Adjustment may authorize variances to: 

 

a. Vary from provisions of the Zoning By-law or an Interim Control By-law, where 

the existing or proposed use complies with the use provisions of the Zoning By-

law which implements this Plan; 

 

b. Allow the extension or enlargement of a legal non-complying use; 

Page 137 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 99 

 

 

c. Allow a change in the use of land or buildings from one legal non-complying use 

to another use that, in the opinion of the Committee, is similar to the existing 

legal non-complying use or that is more compatible with the uses permitted in the 

Zoning By-law; and 

 

d. Allow a use where the uses of land, buildings, or structures permitted in the 

Zoning By-law are defined in general terms.  

 

2. Minor variances are discretionary and are to be considered from a land use planning and 

public interest perspective. In granting any minor variance from the Zoning By-Law, the 

Committee of Adjustment shall be satisfied that the variance: 

 

a. Is minor in nature; 

 

b. Is desirable for the appropriate development or use of land; 

 

c. Maintains the general intent and purpose of the Official Plan; and 

 

d. Maintains the general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law. 

 

3. The Committee of Adjustment may attach such conditions as it deems appropriate to the 

approval of the application for a minor variance, including site plan approvals where 

encouraged in this Plan, any reasonable requirements, recommendations of Town 

departments or the submission of studies.  

 

6.5.2.8 Property Conditions 

1. Consider establishing a program of standards for maintenance and occupancy of 

property in all or any part of the Town, pursuant to the Ontario Building Code Act. The 

program shall contain requirements for the maintenance of both residential and non-

residential properties and shall conform with the Official Plan. Although the quality of 

property and its maintenance in the Town is generally high, there is an ongoing need to 

ensure that adequate standards of maintenance will be pursued in the future to 

safeguard the values built into the physical community. 

 

2. Implement the standards for maintenance and occupancy of property by means of a 

Property Maintenance and Occupancy Standards By-law. Town Council shall ensure 

that all properties affected by the by-law comply with its provisions. Such provisions may 

include or relate to: 

 

a. Garbage disposal; 

Page 138 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

100 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

b. Pest prevention; 

 

c. Structural maintenance of buildings; 

 

d. Building safety; 

 

e. Building cleanliness; 

 

f. Building services, such as plumbing, heating and electricity; 

 

g. Keeping land and waterfront properties free from rubbish; debris; and wrecked, 

discarded, or dismantled objects and materials such as vehicles, boats, trailers, 

and mechanical equipment; 

 

h. Maintenance of lands, yards, parking, and storage areas; 

 

i. Maintenance of fences, swimming pools, accessory buildings, and signs; 

 

j. Occupancy standards; and 

 

k. Administration and enforcement of the by-law. 

 

3. Administer and enforce the standards for maintenance and occupancy in the by-law by 

creating the position of Property Standards Officer. Such a position may be full or part- 

time and such responsibilities may be assumed by current Town staff, as necessary. 

 

4. Continue to use the Property Standards Appeals Committee to consider appeals and 

reviews of orders issued under the by-law respecting standards for the maintenance and 

occupancy of property. 

 

6.5.2.9 Site Plan Control 

1. Pursuant to Section 41 of the Planning Act, the entire Town of Prescott is designated as 

a site plan control area and site plan approval shall be required for all new non-

residential development and residential development of three (3) or more units. A site 

plan control by-law may be enacted by Town Council with reference to specific Zones in 

the implementing Zoning By-law, and may affect all or part of the site plan control area. 

 

Page 139 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 101 

 

2. Exempt the following types of development from the site plan control requirements, 

unless approval conditions as part of the creation of a new lot by plan of subdivision or 

consent to land severance require that they be subject to site plan approval: 

 

a. A single detached dwelling; 

b. A semi-detached dwelling;  

c. A duplex dwelling; and 

d. Additional residential units, accessory buildings, minor renovations, and 

extensions to the above uses. 

 

3. Require that an application for site plan control approval include plans and drawings that 

show the location of all buildings and structures to be built and all facilities to be provided 

as part of the proposed development. Criteria for review of the application should 

include: 

 

a. Compatibility with adjacent uses; 

b. Urban design standards; 

c. Function and efficiency; 

d. Safety and access; 

e. Adequacy of servicing; 

f. Grading and drainage; and 

g. Landscaping and lighting. 

 

4. Require the fulfillment of conditions and an agreement for site plan approval based on 

the provisions for site plan control as specified in the Planning Act. 

 

6.5.2.10 Temporary Uses 

1. Council may adopt by-laws under Section 39 of the Planning Act to authorize the 

temporary use of land, buildings, or structures for any purpose for a period of three (3) 

years. Such by-laws may be extended for additional three (3)-year periods. Council shall 

consider the following when evaluating any application for temporary use: 

 

a. The proposed use must be temporary in nature, compatible with surrounding 

uses, and consistent with the intent of the Official Plan; 

 

b. Special circumstances which may apply to the subject property or the proposed 

temporary use; 

 

c. Appropriateness of the proposed use to the subject property; 

 

Page 140 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

102 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

d. Difficulty involved in terminating the proposed use when the authorizing by-law 

expires in three (3) years; 

 

e. Difficulty in restoring the subject lands, buildings, and structures to either their 

initial state or an improved state; 

 

f. Availability of services for the subject property and the impact of the proposed 

use on adjoining roads and other municipal services available; 

 

g. Appropriate means of minimizing any potential adverse effects of the proposed 

use on adjoining properties; 

 

h. Need for a site plan agreement prior to the approval of the temporary use; and 

 

i. Need to enter into a temporary use agreement with the Town for the duration of 

the temporary use period, which may be extended in accordance with Section 39 

of the Planning Act. 

 

2. In the case of a Garden Suite, the foregoing policies apply, except that the time period 

for the temporary use by-law may be twenty (20) years. 

 

6.5.2.11 Zoning By-law 

1. Complete a comprehensive review of the Town’s Zoning By-law within three (3) years of 

the approval of the Official Plan, in accordance with the Planning Act. During the review 

period, the existing Zoning By-law shall remain in effect and any amendments to the by-

law during the review period shall be required to conform to the approved Official Plan. 

 

2. Amend and update the Zoning By-law, as necessary, to bring it into conformity with the 

adopted Official Plan. Such amendments and updates may relate to any land use 

regulations, development standards, and administrative provisions. 

 

3. Amendments to the Zoning By-law shall only be made after public notice and 

consultation as required by the Planning Act, and consultation with affected authorities 

or agencies, have been undertaken to the satisfaction of Council.  

 

4. Council may by-law, delegate authority to pass by-laws under Section 34 of the Planning 

Act that are of a minor nature to a committee of Council or an individual who is an 

officer, employee or agent of the Town. Council may delegate authority to pass 

temporary use by-laws, lifting of holding symbols and minor zoning by-law amendments. 

 

Page 141 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 103 

 

6.6 Legal Non-Conforming Uses 

Legal non-conforming uses, buildings or structures throughout the Town should eventually 

cease so that the land affected can revert to a use, building, or structure that conforms with the 

intent of the Official Plan and the Zoning By-law. However, in certain circumstances, it may be 

appropriate to consider the extension or enlargement of a non-conforming use, building or 

structure. 

 

6.6.1 Goals  

1. Provide guidance in the management of legal non-conforming uses in the Town, 

consistent with the principles, goals, policies, and schedules of the Official Plan. 

 

6.6.2 Policies 

1. Grant an application for the extension or enlargement of non-conforming uses, buildings, 

or structures if the Committee of Adjustment is satisfied that the extension or 

enlargement: 

 

a. Does not represent an unreasonable increase to the size and intensity of the 

legal non-conforming use; 

 

b. Provides adequate measures to protect other uses through landscaping, 

buffering or screening; appropriate setbacks for buildings and structures; and/or 

devices, and measures for reducing nuisance(s) caused by matters such as 

outside storage, lighting, and advertising; 

 

c. Substantially improves the conditions of the property and/or building; 

 

d. Is compatible, along with the existing non-conforming use, with adjacent uses; 

 

e. Will be adequately served by municipal services that meet the additional needs 

resulting from the expansion or extension of use; 

 

f. Provides adequate off-street parking areas, loading facilities, and screening; 

 

g. Does not adversely affect traffic and parking conditions in the area; and 

 

h. Meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in the Zoning By-

law. 

Page 142 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

104 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

6.7 Official Plan Amendments 

From time to time, it may be necessary to amend the Official Plan in order to ensure its 

continued use, relevance, and effectiveness in the longer term. An amendment may be 

needed to address a particular development that meets the intent of the Plan and the 

standards established in the Zoning By-law or to address a future circumstance 

unknown at the time of preparation of the Plan. The need to amend the Plan may also 

result from ongoing monitoring consistent with the policies of Section 6.3 Indigenous 

Engagement  and Section 6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring   

 

6.7.1 Goals 

1. Provide guidance in the amendment of the principles, goals, policies, and schedules of 

the Official Plan. 

 

6.7.2 Policies 

1. Recognize the need to amend this Plan from time to time in order to reflect changing 

conditions and trends, whether originating within the Town or beyond the Town 

boundaries, or in response to a specific request. 

 

2. In accordance with the Planning Act, privately-initiated amendments to a new Official 

Plan (i.e. where the Official Plan was repealed and a new Official Plan was adopted) 

shall not be considered within two (2) years of the date any part of the Official Plan 

comes into effect, unless otherwise permitted by a Council resolution to allow the 

application. 

 

3. Consider the following evidence when evaluating any proposed amendment to the 

Official Plan: 

 

a. The need for the use; 

b. Alternative locations for the proposed use; 

c. Compatibility of the use with surrounding uses; 

d. Impact on natural heritage features and areas, cultural heritage resources, and 

other resources; 

e. Adequacy of water supply and sewage disposal services required by the 

proposed use; 

f. Vehicular and pedestrian access; and 

g. Financial impact on the municipality. 

 

Page 143 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 105 

 

4. When amendments are made to the Official Plan, appropriate amendments shall also be 

made to implementing By-laws so that any such By-law is in conformity with the Official 

Plan.  

 

6.8 Planning Applications – Required Information and Materials 

6.8.1 Goals 

1. Ensure that applications for an Official Plan amendment, Zoning By-law amendment, 

minor variance, site plan control, consent, subdivision and condominium are 

accompanied by the required information and materials needed to comprise a complete 

application pursuant to the Planning Act. 

 

6.8.2 Policies 

1. Require development proponents to consult with the Town prior to submitting 

development applications. The Town may adopt a by-law pursuant to Section 22(3.1)(b) 

of the Planning Act, as amended, to require such consultation. 

 

2. Development applications for an Official Plan amendment, Zoning By-law amendment, 

minor variance, site plan control, consent, subdivision and condominium shall be 

accompanied by the information and materials required under the Planning Act and any 

other legislation or regulation, as amended. Such information and materials shall be 

required at the time of submission of the development application in order for the 

application to be deemed complete.  

 

3. The number and scope of studies and assessments to be required for the submission of 

complete application shall be appropriate and in keeping with the scope and complexity 

of the application, and may include, but is not limited to the following: 

a. Archaeological Assessments and Conservation Plans, including a Marine 

Archaeological Assessment 

b. Concept Plan 

c. Contaminated Site Assessment / Environmental Site Assessment 

d. Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 

e. Heritage Impact Assessment 

f. Ecological Site Assessment 

g. Environmental Impact Study 

h. Erosion and/or Sediment Control Plan 

i. Flooding Hazard Analysis 

j. Geotechnical Report 

k. Grading and Drainage Plan 

l. Groundwater Impact Assessment 

Page 144 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

106 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

m. Hydrogeological Assessment 

n. Landscaping Plan 

o. Land Use Compatibility Study 

p. Mine Hazard Study 

q. Noise / Vibration / Blast Study 

r. Parking Study 

s. Planning Rationale 

t. Public Consultation Strategy 

u. Record of Site Condition 

v. Serviceability Study 

w. Servicing Options Report 

x. Slope Stability Assessment 

y. Source Water Protection 

z. Stormwater Management Plan  

aa. Sun/Shadow Study 

bb. Terrain Analysis 

cc. Traffic Impact Study or Brief 

dd. Tree Conservation and Protection Plan 

ee. Wildland Fire Assessment 

ff. Wildlife Habitat Evaluation 

 

4. The Town may require any of the studies or assessments noted in Policy 3 of this 

Section to be peer reviewed on behalf of the Town in relation to a planning application, 

and at the sole expense of the proponent. 

 

6.9 Public Consultation and Notification 

Public consultation and notification is an essential component of the municipal planning 

process. 

 

6.9.1 Goals 

1. Undertake public consultation and notification in accordance with the requirements of the 

Planning Act.  

 

2. Encourage development proponents to undertake public consultation as part of the 

development approvals process. 

 

6.9.2 Policies 

1. Public consultation and notification shall be undertaken for all Planning Act applications 

in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act, as amended, and its most up to 

Page 145 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 107 

 

date regulations. Council may establish additional requirements for notification which will 

be set out in the procedural guidelines. On a case-by-case basis, additional notification 

over and above the statutory requirements and the Council procedural requirements 

may be implemented.  

 

2. Council may, by resolution, forego public notification in connection with Official Plan, 

Community Improvement Plan, and Zoning By-law Amendments if such amendments 

relate to matters which will not affect the policies and intent of the Official Plan or 

Community Improvement Plan, or the provisions of the Zoning By-law in any material 

way, and may include the following matters: 

 

a. Altering punctuation or language to obtain a uniform mode of expression; 

 

b. Correcting clerical, grammatical, dimensioning or typographical errors; 

 

c. Altering and/or correcting the number and arrangement of any provision; 

 

d. Inserting historical footnotes or similar annotations to indicate the origin and 

approval of each provision; 

 

e. Changing the format of a document; 

 

f. Consolidating amendments; and 

 

g. Transferring Official Plan, Community Improvement Plan, and Zoning By-law 

designations to new base maps. 

 

3. As part of the Town’s complete application requirements, proponents seeking an Official 

Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendments, and/or Plan of Subdivision approval, 

shall be required to identify a Public Consultation Strategy at the time that the application 

is submitted. A Public Consultation Strategy could include any or all of the following:  

 

a. Speak to adjacent landowners directly about proposed development; 

 

b. Post signs within a common area (for multi‐residential buildings and 

developments); 

 

c. Provide additional advertisement of the proposal and public meeting in a local 

newspaper (to be discussed with Planning staff prior to initiating); 

Page 146 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

108 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

d. Host an open house regarding the proposal; 

 

e. Other measures.  

 

4. Public meetings must be held before proposals for Official Plan and Zoning By-law 

Amendments and draft Plans of Subdivision are dealt with by Council, in accordance 

with the Planning Act.  

 

5. For special issues, including but not limited to, new Official Plans and comprehensive 

Zoning By-laws, the Town may consider additional means of public consultation and 

participation includes open houses, public surveys, public displays, area meetings, 

newspaper coverage, cable TV programming, internet postings, and other similar 

means.  

 

6. Written and oral submissions from the public relating to applications for Official Plan 

Amendments, Zoning By-law Amendments, plans of subdivision, plans of condominium, 

consent, and minor variance will be summarized within a staff report to facilitate decision 

making. Where appropriate, the submissions will be consolidated into common or 

overlapping land use planning issues, in addition to an acknowledgement of other issues 

presented through the public consultation process. The notices of decision associated 

with planning applications will recognize written and oral submissions and the effect they 

have had, if any, on planning decisions. 

 

6.10 Public Works and Finance 

Implementation of the principles, goals, and policies of the Official Plan will involve the Town 

directly in the financing of certain projects. The Official Plan outlines the nature and scope of 

these projects, such as the provision of piped water and sanitary sewers, the development of 

parks and playgrounds, the upgrading of roads and the improvement of intersections. No public 

work shall be undertaken unless it conforms with the Official Plan and meets the requirements 

of Section 24 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.10.1 Goals 

1. Ensure that public works conform to the Official Plan and assist in implementing the 

principles, goals, and policies for the future physical development of the Town. 

 

2. Ensure that the implementation of the Official Plan is conducted in a fiscally efficient and 

prudent manner. 

 

3. Ensure adherence to the Town’s Asset Management Plan. 

Page 147 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 109 

 

 

6.10.2 Policies 

6.10.2.1 Public Works 

1. Establish a priority list of projects and estimated costs, where possible, associated with 

implementation of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Continue to utilize the 5-year capital works program as a key means of implementing the 

Official Plan. 

 

3. Planning for infrastructure systems and public service facilities shall be coordinated and 

integrated with land use planning so that they are financially viable over their life cycle, 

which may be demonstrated through asset management planning; and available to meet 

current and projected needs.  

 

6.10.2.2 Finance 

1. Strive to maintain a balanced taxable assessment ratio between residential and non- 

residential consistent with long term municipal financial planning. 

 

2. Ensure that the cost of providing the additional facilities and services, or the extension of 

existing facilities and services, associated with growth are appropriately and equitably 

covered by development proponents and in conformity and compliance with the Official 

Plan and Zoning By-law. 

 

3. Ensure that the cost of providing additional facilities and services not associated with 

growth are funded from taxation, user fees, or other appropriate methods. 

 

4. Require that all necessary agreements be executed prior to any development 

proceeding. Such agreements may include front-end, financial, and development 

agreements to provide the infrastructure necessary to serve the new development. 

 

5. Continue to investigate financial mechanisms and initiatives to ease the burden on the 

general tax levy, including user fees, development charges, public/private partnership, 

government grants and subsidies, and other funding sources. 

  

6. Continue to monitor the fiscal impact of growth and development and ensure that current 

objectives and policies reflect changing fiscal circumstances. 

 

7. Require the analysis of economic impacts associated with a significant development 

proposal, as determined by Council. The analysis will determine the likely short- and 

long-term impacts of the proposal on municipal operating and capital. 

Page 148 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

110 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

8. Ensure that the Town’s Asset Management Plan is regularly updated and based on best 

practices.  

 

 

 

Page 149 of 300



 

Section 7.0 Schedules and Appendix 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 111 

 

7.0 Schedules and Appendix 

The Schedules to this Official Plan include: 

 

1. Schedule A – Land Use  

2. Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

3. Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

4. Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources and Human-made Hazards 

5. Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Areas 

 

The Appendix to this Official Plan includes: 

1. Appendix A – Digital Elevation Model 

 

Page 150 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Land Use Designation:

Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Highway 401 Corridor

Downtown Core

Employment Area

Institutional

Parks & Open Space

R-1 Special Policy Area

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

School

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule A

Land Use

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Page 151 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l
o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

H
ig

hw
ay N

o. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I

r

v

i
n

e

 

S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l
 
C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St E

Wood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Arterial Road

Collector Road

     Existing Road

     Future Road

Local Road

Pedestrian and Cycling Route

     Existing Route

     Future Route

Services:

Water Treatment Plant

Waste Water Treatment Plant

Source Water Protection:

Intake Protection Zone 1 (IPZ 1)

Intake Protection Zone 2 (IPZ 2)

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule B

Transportation, Servicing

and

Source Water Protection

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

(2km East)

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 152 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Natural Heritage System:

Wetlands - Coastal

Wetlands - Other

Significant Woodland

Natural Hazards:

Floodplain

Unstable Soil

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule C

Natural Heritage System

and Natural Hazards

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 153 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resource

Bedrock Resource Area

(Covers Entire Town)

Abandoned Mine Site

Abandoned Mine Site

 1km Buffer

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule D

Mineral Aggregate

Resources and

Human-Made Hazards

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 154 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Wildland Fire Hazard Areas:

Moderate

Low

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule E

Wildland Fire

Hazard Areas

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 155 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St E
Wood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Appendix A

Digital Elevation

Model

300m200m 500m400m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL 

Digital Elevation (72m - 102m)

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 156 of 300



Page 157 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

  

STAFF REPORT TO COUNCIL         Report No. 80-2022 
     
Date: August 22, 2022  
 
From: Samantha Joudoin-Miller, Manager of Community Services 
 
Re: Museum Update and Fall Opening Hours  
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That Council approve the request for the Museum and Visitor Centre to remain open 
from September through to December 17, 2022, Thursdays to Saturdays from 11 a.m. -
5 p.m. 
 
 
Background / Analysis:  
 
The new Town of Prescott Museum and Visitor Centre located at 202 King Street West 
is nearing the end of a successful first peak season. The current opening hours of the 
Museum and Visitor Centre are 7 days a week from 11 a.m.- 5 p.m. During peak tourism 
season, we have had two “Culture & Heritage Ambassadors” who are seasonal staff 
members contracted from May 16 2022 until September 5, 2022. The Ambassadors are 
responsible for providing tours, cataloguing, and digitizing artifacts, assist in preparing 
exhibit displays, assist in community events/programming, and promote local tourism 
attractions in the Town of Prescott.  
 
Staff is requesting that the Museum and Visitor Centre remain open during the off-peak 
season and be staffed from September 5 to December 17, 2022 at reduced hours from 
Thursdays to Saturdays from 11 a.m. – 5 p.m. 
 
Accomplishments: 

- Opened the new Museum & Visitor Centre to the public for peak tourism season 
- Developed a positive working relationship with the Grenville County Historical 

Society 
- Having the museum open to the public allows for historical donations to be brought 

forward now that there is a physical space for these items to be displayed again.  
The new donations/loan items that have been received since opening include: 

o Susannah Jessup Deed 
o Ticket Validator & Grand Truck Railway Invoices 
o Mechanical Tools and canon ball 

Page 158 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

  

o The Raney Collection (Chemist and Drugist) 
o Leo Boivin Official Replica Jersey and a puck  
o Prescott Majorette Uniform 
o Prescott Taylorettes photo (Women’s 1945 Baseball Team) 

- Additional research on several of the current 7 exhibits 
- New summer window display “Arts and Entertainment” featuring the Prescott 

Majorettes uniform (donation that was received after opening the museum), the 
Citizen’s Band Uniform and Instruments, Photography Artifacts 

- Organized back storage room so that it is now usable/strategic space 
- Had a record high of 40 visitors in one day on July 30, 2022, this aligned with the 

RiverWalk Promenade weekend 
- Successfully started an electronic catalogue and are beginning to digitize artifacts. 

 
A visitor logbook is on-site and visitors are encourage to sign but it is not necessary to do 
so. Staff keep a daily tally of the number of people who came into the Museum & Visitor 
Centre.  Weekends proved to regularly bring in the most people and the Farmers’ & 
Crafters’ Market as well as the RiverWalk Promenade weekends encouraged more traffic 
flow to the Museum & Visitor Centre.  By reviewing our daily tally, visitor logbook and 
through conversations with visitors, we have been able to determine the approximate 
figures: 
 
Approximate Number of Visitors: 553 
 
Monthly breakdown: 
 

May 30 & 31, 2022 June 2022 July 2022 August 2022 

4 186 276 87 (as of Aug 9, 2022) 

 
- Approximately 90% of visitors were adults (over 18 years of age), approximately 

10% were youth (under 18 years of age) 
- Approximately 51% of visitors have been local and surrounding area, 

approximately 49% have been tourists to Town 
 
Museum Goals for September to December: 

1. Digitize the current artifacts that are on display in the 7 current exhibits to be able 
to feature them on our website 

2. Create a new Fall themed window display which will feature Agriculture and 
Distilleries 

3. Complete written display content to have printed and put up in each of the current 
7 exhibits to provide more background knowledge to visitors 

Page 159 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

  

4. Create a marketing plan to better promote the Museum as a destination for local 
residents and visitors 

5. Partner with local schools to bring classes in for programming that relates to their 
curriculum 

 
Alternatives:  
 
Council could decide to choose alternative hours for the Museum & Visitor Centre to be 
open, or Council could choose not to approve the request to keep the Museum & Visitor 
Centre open during the off-peak season. 
 
 
Financial Implications:  
 
The financial investment to staff the Museum and Visitor Centre from September 5th to 
December 17th 2022, would be approximately $5,000 which would be supported through 
the budget of the Community Services Department without requiring any further 
allocation.  
 
 
Environmental Implications: 

None. 
 

Attachments: 

- None 
 
 
Submitted by:     
         
Samantha Joudoin-Miller 
Manager of Community Services 
 

Page 160 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

STAFF REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
Date:   August 22, 2022     Report No. 81-2022 
 
From: Nathan Richard, Director of Operations 
 Matthew Armstrong, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer 
 
RE:  Pedestrian Crossings Evaluation and Options update 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Council direct Staff to proceed with the following intersection recommendations: 
 

1. Installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and Centre Street at a 
cost of $16,000. 
 

2. Installation of a PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and George Street at 
a cost of $21,600. 
 

3. Relocate the PXO Type B pedestrian crosswalk at King and St. Lawrence Street 
to the west side of the intersection with rapid flashing lights as previously 
approved. 

 
 
Background:  
 
The Town of Prescott retained Parsons, a transportation and traffic engineering firm, to 
undertake a review of seven (7) pedestrian crossing intersections to perform a high-
level site review and assessment.  The Memorandum from Parsons was provided to 
Council on June 6, and a presentation to Council was made on June 20.  This was 
further discussed at the Council meeting on July 18. 
 
Sightline improvements at two intersections for both vehicular and pedestrian 
movement were identified as an action that was highly recommended and was a low 
cost.   On July 11, changes were made to the on-street parking spaces at the 
intersection of King Street and Centre Street, and similar changes were made at the 
intersection of King Street and George Street in early August. 
 
Direction from the July 18 Council meeting was to obtain more detailed quotes for Irvine 
at Edward, King at Centre, and King at George.  The quote for Irvine at Edward will be 

Page 161 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

brought forward to a Council meeting in September as this location is significantly more 
complicated due to requirements for power hookups. 
 
 
Analysis: 
 
King at Centre 
 
As noted above a traffic count was conducted for King and Centre Street on June 27. 
 
The 8-hour traffic count for 2-way traffic was 3,600 vehicles.  There were 34 cyclists and 
453 pedestrian crossings recorded.  The majority of the cycling activity was on King 
Street traveling east and west.  119 pedestrians crossing King Street used the 
signalized east leg, while 32 pedestrians crossed using the un-signalized west leg. 
 
Based on the above information Parsons concluded the following in terms of what the 
correct treatment should be for pedestrians crossing at King and Centre. 
 
“Type “B” crossover is appropriate for King Street/Centre Street based on two-way 8-hr 
volumes of 3,600 vehicles, posted speed of 40 km/hr, assume 3 travel lanes due to 
presence of parking.” 
 
Figure 1:  PXO Type B Pedestrian Crossing in Perth Ontario 
 

 
 
 
Parsons was also asked to evaluate the intersection to determine if a four-way stop 
would be an appropriate treatment.  Parsons provided the following. 
 

Page 162 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

Ontario Traffic Manual (OTM) Book 5: Regulatory Signs provides a series of warrant 
checks for all-way STOP controlled (AWSC) intersections. AWSC are typically  
 
considered for intersections with two relatively equal approach roadways that have 
similar traffic volume demand and characteristics. They can also be considered in 
locations where sight lines from the minor leg are limited and where a traffic signal is not 
warranted. However, they are inappropriate for higher speed roadways, on truck or bus 
routes and as a primary control for pedestrians. 
 
An AWSC intersection could be appropriate along King Street. 
 
The following warrants for major roads consider: 
 

1. Total vehicle volume on all intersection approaches exceeds 500 vehicles/hour 
for each of the eight hours; 

 
2. Combined vehicle and pedestrian vehicle on the minor street exceeds 200 
units per hour for the same eight hours; and 

 
3. Volume split does not exceed 70/30 in favour of the major street, including 
pedestrians. 

 
In review of the two King Street intersections: 
 

• Neither intersection meets the volume warrants of Justification 1 on all 
approaches; 

 
• Neither meets the warrants of Justification 2 on the minor leg; and 

 
• The major/minor split ranges from 84/16 to 94/6. 

 
Therefore, in the absence of the need to provide for improved sight lines, all-way STOP 
controlled intersections are not suitable for King Street. They would likely cause undue 
delays for main street traffic which could cause an increase in traffic and pedestrian 
safety concerns.” 
 
Parsons conducted an analysis to determine if a full set of traffic lights was warranted at 
King and Centre and concluded the following. 
 
“King Street/Centre Street does not warrant a signal for either pedestrians or vehicles. 
In terms of vehicle traffic, a signal is only 70% warranted.” 
 

Page 163 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

Given the conclusions outlined in the Parsons report the following table provides options 
for consideration. 
 
 

Recommendation Resource 2022 Future 
Year 

Remove Parking Spaces to improve sightlines – 
Completed 

Internal -  

Traffic Study - Completed Traffic 
Consultant 

1,000  

Installation of PXO B crosswalk replacing what is 
currently there.  Includes audible push button 
indicators. 

Electrical 
Contractor 

13,500  

Revised Pavement markings Civil 
Contractor 

1,500  

Install tactile plates in sidewalk Civil 
Contractor 

 Yes 

Total  $16,000  

 
The cost to install a four-way flashing stop at this intersection is estimated to cost 
approximately $25,000 based on the need to replace the current poles with much taller 
ones to get the required span and clearance off of the roadway.  This option is not 
recommended by the traffic consultant or the contractor. 
 
King at George 
 
As noted above a traffic count was conducted for King and George Street on June 27. 
 
The 8-hour traffic count for 2-way traffic was 3,100 vehicles.  There were 26 cyclists and 
380 pedestrian crossings recorded.  The majority of the cycling activity was on King 
Street traveling east and west.  86 pedestrians crossing King Street used the signalized 
west leg while 32 crossed using the un-signalized east leg. 
 
Based on the above information Parsons concluded the following in terms of what the 
correct treatment should be for pedestrians crossing at King and George. 
 
“A Type “B” crossover is appropriate for King Street/George Street based on two-way 8-
hr volumes of 3,100 vehicles, posted speed of 40 km/hr, assume 3 travel lanes due to 
presence of parking.” 
 
 
 
 

Page 164 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 
 
 
Figure 1:  PXO Type B Pedestrian Crossing in Perth Ontario 
 

 
 
 
Parsons was also asked to evaluate the intersection to determine if a four-way stop 
would be an appropriate treatment.  Parsons provided the following. 
 
Ontario Traffic Manual (OTM) Book 5: Regulatory Signs provides a series of warrant 
checks for all-way STOP controlled (AWSC) intersections. AWSC are typically 
considered for intersections with two relatively equal approach roadways that have 
similar traffic volume demand and characteristics. They can also be considered in 
locations where sight lines from the minor leg are limited and where a traffic signal is not 
warranted. However, they are inappropriate for higher speed roadways, on truck or bus 
routes and as a primary control for pedestrians. 
 
An AWSC intersection could be appropriate along King Street. 
 
The following warrants for major roads consider: 
 

1. Total vehicle volume on all intersection approaches exceeds 500 vehicles/hour 
for each of the eight hours; 

 
2. Combined vehicle and pedestrian vehicle on the minor street exceeds 200 
units per hour for the same eight hours; and 

 

Page 165 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 
3. Volume split does not exceed 70/30 in favour of the major street, including 
pedestrians. 

 
In review of the two King Street intersections: 
 

• Neither intersection meets the volume warrants of Justification 1 on all 
approaches; 

 
• Neither meets the warrants of Justification 2 on the minor leg; and 

 
• The major/minor split ranges from 84/16 to 94/6. 

 
Therefore, in the absence of the need to provide for improved sight lines, all-way STOP 
controlled intersections are not suitable for King Street. They would likely cause undue 
delays for main street traffic which could cause an increase in traffic and pedestrian 
safety concerns.” 
 
Parsons also conducted an analysis to determine if a full set of traffic lights was 
warranted at King and George and concluded the following. 
 
King Street/George Street does not warrant a signal for either pedestrians or vehicles, A 
signal is 61% warranted based on vehicle traffic. 
 
Given the conclusions outlined in the Parsons report the following table provides options 
for consideration. 
 

Recommendation Resource 2022 Future 
Year 

Remove Parking Spaces to improve sightlines – 
To be completed by end of July 

Internal -  

Traffic Study – Completed Traffic 
Consultant 

1,000  

Installation of PXO B crosswalk replacing what is 
currently there (includes relocating poles from St. 
Lawrence Street) Includes audible push button 
indicators. 

Electrical 
Contractor 

19,100  

Revised Pavement markings Civil 
Contractor 

1,500  

Install tactile plates in sidewalk Civil 
Contractor 

 Yes 

Total  $21,600  

 

Page 166 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

The cost for four-way flashing stop at this intersection is estimated to cost approximately 
$30,000 based on the need to replace the current poles with much taller ones to get the 
required span and clearance off of the roadway.  This option is not recommended by the 
traffic consultant or the contractor. 
 
King Street at St. Lawrence 
 
The recommendations for the Crosswalk at King and St. Lawrence are based on 
improving the setup that is already there by changing signage, correcting the pavement 
markings, and changing the lights to rapid strobe lights.   
 
Upon further investigation, relocating the crossing to the west side of St. Lawrence 
Street will improve the safety of the intersection, as it provides improved visibility for 
pedestrians versus drivers due to the parking spaces located east of the intersection 
and follows the sidewalk configuration better to provide continuous walking up St. 
Lawrence Street. The existing arm can continue to be used on the westbound lane pole 
and an unused pole located on the northeast corner can be relocated to the southwest 
corner.  
 
The westbound secondary signal head at Edward and King was repaired for less than 
estimated and therefore the additional cost to relocate the crosswalk to the west side of 
the intersection could be paid from the previously approved amounts without further 
allocation being required.  
 
 
Alternatives 
 
Council could decide to modify the recommendations outlined in this report. 
 
 
Financial Implications:  
 
The estimated cost to address the crosswalks at King and Centre and King at George is 
$37,600.  This amount can be supported by the fiscal policy reserve. 
 
The $37,600 noted above is in addition to the previously approved amount to address 
the crosswalks at Edward and Victor, Edward at Park, Edward at King, and King at St. 
Lawrence Street which was $25,000. 
 
If approved, a total of $62,600 will have been allocated to address the crosswalks in 
2022 from the fiscal policy reserve. 
 
 

Page 167 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X August 22’ 22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

 
Environmental Implications: 
 
Increasing the ability of pedestrians to safely cross at intersections has the benefit of 
encouraging active transportation which is not only good for maintaining health but also 
good for the environment by reducing emissions caused by burning fossil fuels. 
 
 
Attachments: 

- None 

 
 
Submitted by: 
        
Nathan Richard 
Director of Operations  
 
 
Submitted by: 
        
Matthew Armstrong 
Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer       

Page 168 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
Date:   August 22, 2022     Report No. 82-2022 
 
From: Matthew Armstrong, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer 
 
RE:  Supportive Services Available to Vulnerable Individuals 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: 
 
For information. 
 
 
Background/Analysis:  
 
This report is designed to provide insight into the various supportive programs and 
services available to vulnerable individuals who find themselves homeless. 
 
There is a team of organizations and individuals that stand at the ready to offer and 
provide support to vulnerable individuals.  Homelessness is often a way that vulnerable 
individuals are identified when they are in need of support and services. 
 
The Town of Prescott works with the Mobile Crisis Response Team, Social Services of 
the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville, and Mental Health and Addictions 
professionals, to establish a relationship with the individual and offer them supportive 
services. The goal is to help vulnerable individuals access a safe and supportive 
environment.   
 
The United Counties of Leeds and Grenville provides emergency housing.  Interval 
House provides emergency shelter for abused women and their children.  Youth 
Shelters are offered by Connect Youth.  When a vulnerable individual is identified, these 
supporting organizations are contacted.  Staff from these organizations make contact 
with the individual, to explain and offer the programs available.  Several attempts are 
made to discuss these options with vulnerable individuals in the hopes of establishing a 
relationship of trust with them and that the services available are taken advantage of. 
 
Lanark, Leeds and Grenville Addictions and Mental Health (LLGAMH) are engaged to 
interact with the individual to establish a connection and explain the supportive 
programs available.  LLGAMH has formed a partnership with the United Counties of 
Leeds and Grenville to address homelessness in communities. 
 

Page 169 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

The Mobile Crisis Response Team is a partnership between the Ontario Provincial 
Police and mental health and addictions professionals that often first become aware that 
a vulnerable individual is in need.  They work to assess the situation, establish a 
relationship with the individual by using de-escalation methods and working with them in 
a non-threatening and non-confrontational manner.  The Mobile Crisis Response Team 
has built strong partnerships with the agencies that provide programs and services and 
make direct referrals to the organizations.  The Team members continue to work with 
the individual encouraging them to take advantage of the programs and services that 
are available.  The Town of Prescott meets with the members of the Mobile Crisis 
Response Team to provide support where appropriate. 
 
All of the organizations noted above are ready to help vulnerable individuals who find 
themselves in a homeless situation.  Participation in the programs available is 
completely voluntary and can only be provided when a vulnerable individual wishes to 
accept the support.   
 
Resource Contact Information 
 
Emergency housing 
Ontario Works 
Community and Social Services Division 
25 Central Avenue West, Suite 200 
Brockville, ON K6V 4N6 
613-342-3840 or 1-800-267-8146 ext. 2119 
 
Emergency shelter for abused women and their children 
Leeds & Grenville Interval House 
Crisis Line - 613-342-8815 
Toll Free - 1-800-267-4409 
Business - 613-342-4724 
Fax - 613-342-4013 
 
Youth Shelters 
Connect Youth 
Phone: 613-918-0173 Phone or text 
Fax: 613-918-0176 
Email: connectyouth@cogeco.net 
 
Lanark, Leeds and Grenville Addictions and Mental Health 
24/7 Crisis Line 
1-866-281-2911 
 
 

Page 170 of 300



 
 
 

  Date Req’d 

Information Purposes   

Policy / Action Req’d X Aug. 22 ‘22 

Strategic Plan   

 
 

Mobile Crisis Response Team – Grenville County 
Phone Number:  613-925-4221 
 
 
Alternatives 
 
None 
 
 
Financial Implications:  
 
None 
 
 
Environmental Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments: 

None 

 
 
Submitted by: 
        
Matthew Armstrong 
Chief Administrative Officer & Treasurer       

Page 171 of 300



THE CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWN OF PRESCOTT 

 

BY-LAW NO. 37-2022 
 

BEING A BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE COUNCIL TO ADOPT AN 
OFFICIAL PLAN AND SUBMIT IT TO 

THE MINISTER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS AND HOUSING FOR APPROVAL 
 

 
Being a by-law to authorize Council to adopt an Official Plan and submit it 
to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing for approval. 
 
 
WHEREAS Section 17(22) of the Planning Act R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13 as 
amended, authorizes councils to adopt by by-law an Official Plan and submit it to 
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing for final approval; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Prescott has complied 
with the requirements of sufficient information, public meetings, notices, and 
agency comments; and 
 
WHEREAS Council has submitted the draft plan, to the Province for review and 
has responded to the various ministries’ comments; and 
 
WHEREAS the Council deems it expedient to adopt the Official Plan and submit 
it to the Minister for approval. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Prescott 
enacts as follows: 
 

1. The Council of the Corporation of the Town of Prescott does hereby 
adopt the Official Plan attached hereto as Schedule “A”; 

 
2. That Schedule “A”, attached, constitutes part of this by-law; 
 
3. That the existing Official Plan of the Town of Prescott, as adopted by 

By-law 12-2006, and any amendments approved thereto, is hereby 
repealed and shall be of no force or effect upon the approval of the 
attached Official Plan of the Town of Prescott; 

 
4. The Clerk is hereby authorized to give notice to persons or agencies 

pursuant the Planning Act and forward copies of this by-law, the 
Official Plan and all other necessary documents to the Minister of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing for approval. 

Page 172 of 300



5. This by-law shall come into force and take effect on the date of its final 
passage; 
 

6. That should any other existing by-laws, resolutions, or actions of the 
Corporation of the Town of Prescott be deemed to be inconsistent with 
the provisions of this by-law, the provisions of this by-law shall prevail.  

 
 
 

READ AND PASSED, SIGNED AND SEALED THIS 22nd DAY OF AUGUST, 
2022. 
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________ 
                   Mayor         Clerk 

Page 173 of 300



Page 174 of 300



Page 175 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption i 

 

Table of Contents 

 

  

1.1 Purpose of the Official Plan .......................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Effect of the Official Plan .............................................................................................. 1 

1.3 How to Read this Official Plan ...................................................................................... 2 

1.4 Vision and Guiding Principles ....................................................................................... 3 

1.4.1 Our Vision ................................................................................................................ 3 

1.4.2 Our Guiding Principles .............................................................................................. 3 

1.5 Planning Context .......................................................................................................... 4 

1.5.1 Growth Management ................................................................................................ 5 

1.5.2 Land Use Pattern ..................................................................................................... 5 

  

2.1 Accessory Uses, Buildings, or Structures ..................................................................... 7 

2.2 Compatibility and Built Form ......................................................................................... 7 

2.2.1 Goals ........................................................................................................................ 7 

2.2.2 Policies ..................................................................................................................... 8 

2.3 Economic Development .............................................................................................. 13 

2.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................13 

2.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................13 

2.4 Energy Conservation, Air Quality and Climate Change............................................... 16 

2.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................16 

2.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................16 

2.5 Housing ...................................................................................................................... 18 

2.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................18 

2.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................19 

2.6 Source Water Protection ............................................................................................ 25 

2.6.1 Overview .................................................................................................................25 

2.6.2 Goals .......................................................................................................................25 

2.6.3 Vulnerable Areas .....................................................................................................26 

2.6.4 Prohibited Uses .......................................................................................................26 

Page 176 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

ii Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.6.5 Risk Management Official Exemption ......................................................................26 

2.6.6 Development Review...............................................................................................27 

2.7 Cross-jurisdictional Coordination ................................................................................ 27 

2.7.1 Goal ........................................................................................................................27 

2.7.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................28 

2.8 Urban Agriculture ....................................................................................................... 28 

2.8.1 Goal ........................................................................................................................29 

2.8.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................29 

2.9 Waterfront Development ............................................................................................. 29 

2.9.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................29 

2.9.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................29 

  

3.1.1 Land Use Schedules ...............................................................................................32 

3.2 Residential ................................................................................................................. 32 

3.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................33 

3.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................33 

3.2.3 R-1 Special Policy Area: Hyde and Wood Streets ...................................................35 

3.3 General Commercial and Highway Commercial ......................................................... 36 

3.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................36 

3.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................37 

3.4 Downtown Core .......................................................................................................... 40 

3.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................40 

3.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................41 

3.5 Employment Area ....................................................................................................... 43 

3.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................44 

3.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................44 

3.6 Institutional ................................................................................................................. 46 

3.6.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................46 

3.6.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................47 

3.7 Parks and Open Space .............................................................................................. 48 

3.7.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................48 

Page 177 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption iii 

 

3.7.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................48 

3.8 Highway 401 Corridor ................................................................................................. 50 

3.8.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................50 

3.8.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................50 

  

4.1 Environmental and Natural Heritage Management ..................................................... 52 

4.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................52 

4.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................53 

4.2 Cultural Heritage Resources ...................................................................................... 62 

4.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................62 

4.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................63 

4.3 Hazards ...................................................................................................................... 67 

4.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................68 

4.3.2 Natural Hazards Policies .........................................................................................68 

4.3.3 Slope and Soil Stability ............................................................................................70 

4.3.4 Human-Made Hazards Policies ...............................................................................71 

4.4 Mineral Aggregate Resources .................................................................................... 73 

4.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................73 

4.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................73 

  

5.1 Transportation and Circulation .................................................................................... 76 

5.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................76 

5.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................77 

5.2 Public Services and Utilities ....................................................................................... 82 

5.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................82 

5.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................82 

5.3 Stormwater Management ........................................................................................... 84 

5.4 Waste Management ................................................................................................... 85 

5.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................85 

5.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................85 

  

Page 178 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

iv Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.1 Community Improvement ........................................................................................... 86 

6.1.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................86 

6.1.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................86 

6.2 Implementation Tools ................................................................................................. 90 

6.2.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................90 

6.2.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................90 

6.3 Indigenous Engagement ............................................................................................. 91 

6.3.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................91 

6.3.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................91 

6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring ...................................................................................... 91 

6.4.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................92 

6.4.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................92 

6.5 Land Use Controls ...................................................................................................... 94 

6.5.1 Goals .......................................................................................................................94 

6.5.2 Policies ....................................................................................................................94 

6.6 Legal Non-Conforming Uses .................................................................................... 103 

6.6.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 103 

6.6.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 103 

6.7 Official Plan Amendments ........................................................................................ 104 

6.7.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 104 

6.7.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 104 

6.8 Planning Applications – Required Information and Materials .................................... 105 

6.8.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 105 

6.8.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 105 

6.9 Public Consultation and Notification ......................................................................... 106 

6.9.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 106 

6.9.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 106 

6.10 Public Works and Finance ........................................................................................ 108 

6.10.1 Goals ..................................................................................................................... 108 

6.10.2 Policies .................................................................................................................. 109 

  

Page 179 of 300



 

 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption v 

 

  

Schedules 
Schedule A – Land Use  

Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources and Human-made Hazards 

Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Areas 

 

Appendix 
Appendix A – Digital Elevation Model 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 180 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

vi Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page left intentionally blank

Page 181 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 1 

 

1.0 Introduction to the Official Plan  

1.1 Purpose of the Official Plan  

The Town of Prescott Official Plan is the cornerstone document essential for the management 

of future growth, development, and change in our municipality. The Official Plan establishes a 

vision, guiding principles, and policies which will guide growth and development, and related 

land use decisions within the Town’s boundaries for the next 20 years, to the year 2041. Since 

decisions which implement growth and development have long lasting impacts, it is important to 

ensure that planning decisions reflect community values as expressed in the Official Plan. This 

will help move Prescott towards becoming an even more livable community by achieving orderly 

physical and economic growth while protecting social, cultural, and natural heritage resources. 

 

The Official Plan is intended to be a living document and will be reviewed in accordance with the 

requirements of the Planning Act. The Plan may be amended to reflect changing circumstances 

or new priorities. The Plan is both general and long-range, building on past accomplishments 

while looking to the future as the Town continues to evolve and mature. It was prepared by the 

Town of Prescott in partnership with the residents of the Town, its community organizations, and 

the provincial government and its agencies. As such, the policies of the Official Plan represent a 

balance of interests and points of view. 

 

The Town of Prescott acknowledges that it is situated on aboriginal land that has been inhabited 

by Indigenous peoples. In particular, the Town acknowledges the traditional territory of the 

Huron-Wendat, Anishinaabeg, Haudenosaunee, Anishinabek, and the Oneida and 

Haudenosaunee Peoples. 

 

1.2 Effect of the Official Plan  

The Planning Act requires that the Town of Prescott prepare and adopt an Official Plan which 

covers the full extent of its municipal boundaries. The policies contained herein, together with 

the Schedules and any amendment(s) which are adopted and finalized pursuant to the Planning 

Act, constitute the Town of Prescott Official Plan (“the Plan”).  This Plan applies to all lands 

located within the boundaries of the Town of Prescott.  

 

The Official Plan is a policy document, it is not a by-law or a regulation. However, it is a legal 

document and the policies in this Plan have authority under the Planning Act. The Town’s 

Official Plan has regard for matters of provincial interest identified in the Planning Act and is 

consistent with the Ontario Provincial Policy Statement, 2020. Upon adoption of the Official Plan 

by Council and approved by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Plan shall guide 

all planning decisions in the Town. No public or private works shall be undertaken in the Town, 

and except as provided for under the Planning Act, no By-law shall be passed for any purpose, 

Page 182 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

2 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

that does not conform to the policies of this Plan. There is therefore a need for all decision-

making authorities to ensure that any by-laws, permits and authorizations they issue will 

conform to the intent and policies of this Official Plan.  

 

The Zoning By-law is the main implementation tool of the Official Plan and will be updated in 

accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act to ensure that it is in conformity with the 

policies of this Plan. 

 

1.3 How to Read this Official Plan 

The Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 includes definitions of numerous significant terms used in 

its policies. Those definitions will apply when reading this Plan where the same terms are used, 

for instance in reference to “development”, “adjacent lands”, or “sensitive land uses”, among 

others. Where this Plan employs a different meaning for a term defined in the Provincial Policy 

Statement, this will be specifically identified in the text of the Plan.  

 

The Official Plan and its Schedules must be read as a whole, as more than one section or 

Schedule may apply to a particular area or matter.  

 

The text of this Official Plan is set out in paragraphs of explanation and numbered and lettered 

policies. The paragraphs of explanation are to provide further information that establish context, 

assist in the interpretation of the policies, and help clarify the general intent of the Plan. The 

paragraphs of explanation are followed by the Town’s goals as they relate to a particular policy 

issue. Following the goals is a series of policies that represents commitments to specific 

actions. The policies also provide for protection of the Town’s resources by establishing 

planning requirements, programs, standards, and criteria for reviewing development proposals.  

 

The use of “shall” in the policies indicates that a statement is binding or that there is a 

mandatory requirement. The use of “may”, “should” or “would” in the policies indicates that a 

statement is advisory, not binding, and that details will need to be resolved through the 

development review process. The use of “should” in policies indicates a Council commitment 

that the Town is obligated to carry out. The policies are to be implemented through a variety of 

mechanisms, including the Comprehensive Zoning By-law. In certain circumstances, Special 

Policy Areas are also established in order to provide further policy direction to address site-

specific planning issues which affect the designated areas. 

 

Schedule A of this Plan illustrates the land use designations for the entire geographic boundary 

of the Town, which are subject to the policies in the Land Use Designations Section of this Plan. 

Schedules B, C, D, and E contain other land use designations that provide information with 

respect to the specific location of areas and features and their related policies in other Sections 

of this Plan.  

 

Page 183 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 3 

 

1.4 Vision and Guiding Principles  

The policies in this Official Plan were developed on the basis of achieving a stated long-term 

vision for the future of the municipality. The vision was inspired by the social, historical, and 

architectural heritage of the Town of Prescott. The vision statement is itself supported by a 

number of guiding principles which are at the heart of the policies found throughout this Official 

Plan and which will help guide future decisions.  

 

Future development in the Town of Prescott must proceed in a manner which is in full 

conformity with the policies of this Official Plan. It is recognized that from time to time there will 

be land use or development proposals which would not conform with one or more policies in this 

Official Plan. In these cases, an Official Plan Amendment may be supported, provided the 

proposal meets the long-term vision and guiding principles of the Plan, as well as all other 

applicable requirements. Conformity with these guiding principles will serve as a starting point 

for the review of land use in order to ensure good planning decisions.     

 

1.4.1 Our Vision 

The following statement is intended as an expression of Council’s vision for the future of the 

Town of Prescott: 

 

The Town of Prescott is dedicated to being a vibrant, progressive and active riverside 

community. Through the careful management of growth and development, the Town will strive 

to foster economic growth to ensure long-term prosperity, and to achieve a sense of place 

respectful of our unique historical, cultural and natural heritage where our citizens can enjoy a 

quality of life in a destination designed for generations.  

 

1.4.2 Our Guiding Principles 

1. We will value and conserve our built heritage as we provide for appropriate development 

to generate residential, recreational, environmental, and economic opportunities 

respectful of private and public property rights. 

 

2. We will ensure that growth and development occurs through sustainable and 

economically viable land use development patterns which will include a broad range of 

uses and a balanced mix of appropriate residential densities. 

 

3. We will encourage a wide variety of housing options and built form so residents can age 

in place, including opportunities for multi-generational housing. 

 

Page 184 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

4 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4. We will help maintain and increase the Town’s employment base through clear and 

transparent land use policies which support the development of commercial, institutional, 

and industrial opportunities, including through the redevelopment of brownfield sites. 

 

5. We recognize the importance of a healthy and vibrant downtown, and will strive to 

improve our Downtown Core while also protecting and enhancing its historical and 

cultural amenities. 

 

6. We will protect and enhance our natural environment in a manner which is respectful of 

land owner concerns and recognizes the need for long-term sustainability. 

 

7. We recognize that supporting active transportation connections within the Town is 

important to enhance pedestrian and cycling facilities mobility. 

 

8. We will ensure appropriate development will not pose a danger to public safety or health 

or result in negative impacts to quality of life or the environment.  

 

9. We will ensure that effective infrastructure services will be provided in a cost-efficient 

manner consistent with our asset management strategy, which recognizes development 

priorities and which has regard for private property, as well as our economic, cultural, 

and environmental heritage. 

 

The principles which guide land use decisions over the life of this Plan will be anchored in the 

Town’s Strategic Plan’s stated values:  

• Integrity, accountability, and transparency in decision-making and communication; 

• Service efficiency and excellence through the use of technology and new methods to 

achieve our goals; 

• Leadership and teamwork that is collaborative and respectful;  

• Commitment to growth and future development; and 

• Fiscal, social and environmental responsibility and resilience. 

 

1.5 Planning Context 

The Town of Prescott is a single-tier municipality located in Eastern Ontario along the St. 

Lawrence River. Strategically located along Highway 401, the Town is geographically situated 

within the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville. It is bound by the St. Lawrence River and the 

Canada-U.S. International Board to the south. The Township of Augusta is located to the west 

and north of the Town, and the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal is located to the east. 

 

Page 185 of 300



 

Section 1.0 Introduction 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 5 

 

The Town of Prescott occupies a land area of approximately 4.93 km2. The Statistics Canada 

2021 Census list the Town’s population as 4,078.  

 

Prescott is characterized by its eclectic mix of heritage buildings, established residential, 

commercial and industrial properties and an unparalleled range of recreational facilities as well 

as a burgeoning area of new residential and industrial development in the northern part of the 

Town, is well positioned to accommodate future growth.  

 

The preservation of the Town’s identity and heritage is a crucial element to the future of the 

municipality. As the Town of Prescott continues to develop, it is of significant importance to 

maximize its natural and cultural assets to progress economic vitality, community development 

and infrastructure longevity. Accordingly, community design is afforded significant importance in 

the development of the various policy sections of this Plan.   

 

1.5.1 Growth Management  

A Growth Management and Vacant Land Supply Analysis was completed by Hemson 

Consulting in February 2020, and included as an appendix to the July 2020 Background Report 

for the Town of Prescott Official Plan Review, prepared by WSP. The analysis considered 

current demographic and economic trends, and established population, housing, and 

employment forecasts for the Town from a 2016 base-year to a 2041 Census year planning 

horizon. By 2041, the Town is anticipated to reach a population of 4,890 persons, 2,340 

households, and an employment base of 2,470 jobs, which represent increases of 560 persons, 

320 households, and 220 jobs from 2016. 

 

The analysis assessed whether the supply of vacant residential and employment lands within 

the Town is sufficient to accommodate the forecasted projections. The capacity of the Town to 

accommodate growth was tested by applying density assumptions based on current Official 

Plan policies and on-the-ground verification by Town staff of the identified available vacant land 

supply. An estimated potential for growth of 1,200 housing units and 900 jobs was identified. As 

such, the results confirmed that the Town has a sufficient amount of urban designated lands to 

meet the growth forecast for residential and employment growth to the 2041 horizon.  

 

1.5.2 Land Use Pattern 

The land use pattern in Prescott is reflective of its small-town origins as a local commercial and 

industrial service center with surrounding residential neighbourhoods. The Town’s commercial 

focus remains in the Downtown area along the St. Lawrence River waterfront and along Edward 

Street which leads into Prescott from Highway 401. Some larger-scale commercial uses are 

beginning to locate along the Highway 401 corridor. Similarly, the Town has also seen 

increased interest in the development of lands north of Highway 401, including recent 

commercial and industrial initiatives on Development Drive. 

Page 186 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

6 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

Residential development in Prescott is primarily small-scale and compact and is based on a 

traditional grid network of streets, particularly south of the CN Railway line. North of the line, 

residential development is more recent and represents a more suburban form of curving streets 

and cul-de-sacs. Higher density residential development is generally located close to the 

commercial core of Downtown. 

 

While a significant portion of the lands immediately adjacent to the Town’s boundaries in 

neighbouring municipalities is currently rural, the following areas are designated for future 

development. In the Township of Augusta, lands abutting the southwest Town boundary, south 

of Highway 401, are designated as a rural settlement area (Riverview Heights), primarily for 

residential development. This Plan anticipates limited extension of the Town of Prescott’s water 

and wastewater piped services to facilitate limited development in Riverview Heights subject to 

a formal water and wastewater agreement approved by both Councils.  

 

In the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal to the east, the small hamlet of New Wexford and 

part of the Prescott Golf Club abut the Town limit south of the Canadian National (CN) Railway 

line. North of the railway line, the remaining Township lands immediately abutting the Town 

Limit are designated for rural activities. Importantly, however, the partially developed Johnstown 

Industrial Park is located immediately east of the Prescott Golf Club and New Wexford, between 

the St. Lawrence River and Highway 401. The industrial park is designated as a Regionally 

Significant Employment Area and benefits from the provision of Town of Prescott water and 

waste water services. 

Page 187 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 7 

 

2.0 General Land Use Policies 

This Section of the Official Plan addresses general land use policies applicable across Prescott, 

and must be read along with policies that apply to the specific land use designations in the Land 

Use Designations Section of this Plan, as well as the other policies of this Plan. 

 

2.1 Accessory Uses, Buildings, or Structures  

1. Wherever a use is permitted in a land use designation, it is intended that uses, buildings 

or structures that are normally incidental or accessory, and essential to that use shall 

also be permitted. 

 

2.2 Compatibility and Built Form  

Introducing new development in existing established areas, in particular through intensification, 

requires a sensitive approach and consideration of the area’s established uses and character. 

While land use designations and the implementing Zoning By-law help to ensure that 

compatible uses are co-located and incompatible uses (e.g. noxious industrial uses located in 

proximity to sensitive land use such as residential) are appropriately separated, it is also 

important that proposed development be compatible with existing surrounding uses and built 

form. 

 

Compatible development means development that, although not necessarily the same as 

existing development in the vicinity, is complementary or enhances an established community 

and coexists with existing development without causing undue adverse impacts (e.g. traffic, 

noise, vibration) on surrounding properties. Compatibility can be achieved in a variety of ways, 

such as through the provision of appropriate setbacks, buffering features, and transition in 

building height and massing. 

 

2.2.1 Goals 

1. Ensure compatible uses are co-located and incompatible uses are appropriately 

separated, or that undue adverse impacts between uses are mitigated. 

 

2. Recognize the importance of the Highway 401 and CN Railway corridors in providing 

locational and economic advantages for the Town. 

 

3. Recognize the real and perceived impacts of these transportation facilities on quality of 

life in abutting neighbourhoods. 

 

Page 188 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

8 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4. Minimize the adverse impacts of these transportation facilities on new development in 

the Town, and on existing development, where possible. 

 

5. Ensure these transportation facilities are protected to meet current and future needs as 

well as ensuring negative impacts are avoided, mitigated or minimized on and from 

these facilities. 

 

2.2.2 Policies 

2.2.2.1 Built Form  

The Town of Prescott is fortunate to have an eclectic mix of buildings and building styles which 

span many generations. While it is recognized that achieving perfect harmony between new 

development and existing neighborhoods which were born over more than a century, there is 

nevertheless value in trying to reflect physical neighborhood character, a sense of place and 

safe and attractive public places. Accordingly, the following general policies are intended to 

guide new development proposals:  

 

1. Proposed developments shall enhance the image of the Town of Prescott by wherever 

possible complementing and contributing to:  

a. The physical character of the area;  

b. Local landmarks;  

c. The consistency and continuity of the area with its surroundings;  

d. The edges of the area; and  

e. Linkages within, to and from the area. 

 

2. Significant views and vistas of landmarks and features, such as the St Lawrence River, 

shall generally not be obstructed, dominated or marred by a proposed development or 

infrastructure undertaking. 

 

3. The Town encourages the development or redevelopment of buildings and spaces that 

establish a pedestrian scale by promoting the:  

 

a. Placement of continuous horizontal features on the first two storeys adjacent to the 

road;  

b. Repetition of landscaping elements, such as trees, shrubs or paving modules; and  

c. Use of familiar sized architectural elements such as doorways and windows.  

 
4. The provision of furniture, stairs, walls and benches in public spaces that provide 

comfortable rest areas for pedestrians, provided such elements do not obstruct 

pedestrian movement, shall generally be supported.  

 

Page 189 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 9 

 

5. The retrofitting of buildings with barrier-free features shall not impede pedestrian 

movement. 

 

6. The design of new development shall:  

 

a. Be complementary to adjacent development in terms of its overall massing, 

orientation and setback;  

b. Where possible, shall provide links with pedestrian, cycling and road networks;  

c. Maintain and enhance valued cultural and heritage resources and natural features 

and functions.  

 

2.2.2.2 Development Review 

1. In reviewing all types of development and redevelopment applications, Council shall be 

satisfied that the proposed development is compatible with the surrounding uses, built 

form, and general physical character of the area. 

 

2. Compatibility of new development should be assessed based on the following criteria: 

 

a. Height and massing: Building height, massing, and scale should be assessed 

based on the planned or existing uses of adjacent properties, as well as the 

physical character established by the prevailing pattern of abutting development 

and development that is across the street; 

 

b. Landscaping: Landscaping may be required as a buffer between uses and shall 

be of a sufficient depth as determined through the Zoning By-law; 

 

c. Lighting: The potential for light spill over or glare onto adjacent light-sensitive 

areas or the sky must be minimized; 

 

d. Noise and air quality: The development should be located and designed to 

minimize the potential for adverse impacts on adjacent sensitive uses related to 

odour, noise, and other contaminants; 

 

e. Parking: Adequate on-site parking must be provided in accordance with the 

provisions of the Zoning By-law, with minimal impact on adjacent uses. For 

higher-density development, the Town may consider permitting reduced 

standards for on-site parking, or off-site parking, where accommodation of on-site 

parking is not possible; 

 

f. Safety: The development should be designed to ensure that opportunities for 

crime and threats to public safety are reduced or minimized; 

Page 190 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

10 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

g. Setbacks: Prevailing patterns of front, rear and side yard setbacks, building 

separation, landscaped open spaces, and outdoor amenity areas as established 

by existing zoning where the proposed pattern is different from the existing 

pattern of development; 

 

h. Shadowing: Shadowing on adjacent properties, particularly on public and private 

outdoor amenity areas, should be minimized to the extent feasible; 

 

i. Traffic impacts: The road network or waterbody in the vicinity of the proposed 

development can accommodate the vehicular or boat traffic generated; 

 

j. Transition: The need to provide a transition between areas of different 

development intensity and scale, including through the use of incremental 

changes in building height, massing, setbacks and stepbacks. Transition may 

also be achieved through the installation of noise walls, berms, landscaping and 

specific plant species, as deemed appropriate, to provide an adequate buffer 

between properties; and 

 

k. Vehicular access: The location and orientation of vehicle access must take into 

account impact on adjacent properties including noise, glare, and loss of privacy, 

as well as safety of pedestrians and pedestrian access. 

 

3. Council may undertake the preparation of a Neighbourhood Character Study to identify 

the prevalent character that distinguishes the various residential neighbourhoods in 

Prescott. The Neighbourhood Character Study would be undertaken in consultation with 

residents. Such a study may also include the development of design guidelines, which 

could be used by proponents and by the Town to evaluate development applications, 

particularly for proposed intensification, and to ensure that compatibility of new 

development with adjacent land uses and the prevailing character and built form of a 

specific neighbourhood is maintained or enhanced. 

 

2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and Residential Uses 

Commercial facilities may include a range of commercial uses such as retail stores, restaurants 

and offices, among other uses. While these facilities support the day-to-day needs of the 

community, they may have the potential to result in adverse impacts on adjacent residential land 

uses.  

 

1. Development of commercial facilities shall be evaluated using the compatibility criteria 

established in Section 2.2.2.2 Development Review. 

 

Page 191 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 11 

 

2. To ensure that any potential impacts on residential uses located adjacent to proposed 

commercial facilities, the commercial uses shall: 

 

a. Be compatible and integrated with surrounding development; 

 

b. Demonstrate a high standard of urban design; 

 

c. Minimize impacts on surrounding development through site design and scale 

limitations; 

 

d. Primarily serve the needs of area residents; and 

 

e. Where appropriate, be grouped together. 

 

3. Compatibility and design considerations for proposed commercial facilities shall be 

addressed through the Site Plan Control process.  

 

2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses 

1. Proponents of industrial development may be required to provide supporting technical 

studies, such as a Land Use Compatibility Study in accordance with the provincial 

guidelines, standards and procedures as supporting documentation for the planning 

approval. This Study shall assist in the evaluation of proposed developments, and where 

applicable, to determine influence areas, address potential impacts, and identify 

appropriate separation distances and other mitigation measures to minimize potential 

adverse effects such as noise, odour, vibration, particulate and other contaminants. 

Consideration may also be given to the extent to which increased site plan requirements 

can reduce the potential impacts. 

 

2. Separation distances between sensitive land uses and potentially conflicting land uses 

shall be measured in accordance with Provincial Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, as 

amended, which provide classification criteria and examples to categorize a specific 

industry. 

 

3. Industrial Uses shall respect the minimum separation distances required between 

industrial uses and residential or other sensitive land uses, as set by the Provincial Land 

Use Compatibility Guidelines and other future Province or Town documents. 

 

4. Proponents may be required to provide buffering measures such as landscaping, 

plantings, and fencing to minimize the impact of the industrial activity. 

 

Page 192 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

12 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.2.2.5 Transportation Corridors  

Major transportation facilities in the Town include the Highway 401 and Canadian National (CN) 

Railway corridors, which are identified on the Schedules to this Official Plan. While these 

facilities provide Prescott with important locational and, therefore, economic advantages, they 

do have the potential to generate adverse impacts on adjacent lands, regardless of land use. As 

such, it is important that development proposals in areas that abut transportation corridors 

carefully consider means of minimizing these impacts. 

 
1. Minimize land use conflicts between new development and the transportation corridors 

in the Town. 

 

2. Protect new development in neighbourhoods that abut transportation corridors and 

minimize the potential off-site impacts of such corridors by requiring buffering and 

screening of new development. Potential off-site impacts to be minimized include noise, 

vibration, light, and dust. 

 

3. The Town may require a detailed noise study for all new noise-sensitive development, 

including residential uses and institutional uses, including but not limited to hospitals, 

nursing/retirement homes, schools, and day care centres, within 500 metres of Highway 

401 or the CN Railway corridor. Such a study shall assess applicable sound level limits 

and the noise control measures necessary, in accordance with the Ministry of the 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) Environmental Noise Guideline (NPC-

300), as amended. For new noise-sensitive development within 100 metres of Highway 

401 or the CN Railway corridor, a noise feasibility study shall be required to determine 

whether it is possible to achieve the MECP noise criteria. Should the study find that such 

development is feasible, then a development application may be submitted to the Town. 

Any required noise feasibility study shall be prepared by a qualified professional at the 

expense of the applicant. 

 

4. Require that any noise control measures identified in a noise feasibility study, completed 

per Policy 3 above, be included as conditions of approval of any development 

application, as required. Such measures shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

 

5. Encourage the reduction of transportation corridor impacts on existing abutting 

neighbourhoods in areas where such impacts have been identified as problematic. 

Impacts include noise and vibration from passing vehicle and train traffic, including 

locomotive horns. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation, CN Railway, local 

businesses, and residents to address such impacts. 

 

6. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation to ensure that land use decisions on 

properties abutting the Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward Street maintain 

Page 193 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 13 

 

the operating viability of the facility and support the controls exercised by the Ministry. 

Such decisions may relate to the use of abutting properties, access in interchange 

areas, traffic, stormwater management, structures and signage, lighting, buffering, and 

screening. Such decisions require Ministry approvals and permits under the Public 

Transportation and Highway Improvement Act. 

 

7. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation and CN Railway on any plan to 

significantly alter the operation and maintenance of their facilities in Prescott, including 

expansion, reconstruction, closure, etc., to the degree that it may affect the quality of life 

of Town residents. 

 

8. Council may consider undertaking an Interchange Highway Access Management Plan (I-

HAMP) transportation planning / traffic study, in coordination with neighbouring 

municipalities and the Ontario Ministry of Transportation, to address future development 

and technical constraints north of Highway 401, including related to the interchange at 

Edward Street and proximity to access roads to the east and west.  

 

2.3 Economic Development  

Economic development has always been an important consideration in Prescott. With respect to 

planning, economic development is a recurring theme in this Official Plan.  

 

2.3.1 Goals 

1. Continue the commitment to local economic development in Prescott by supporting 

industry, commerce, and tourism in the Town, at locations that are appropriate and in 

keeping with the policies of this Plan. 

 

2. Focus Downtown economic development efforts in a manner which is consistent with the 

Plan’s Guiding Principles.  

 

3. Engage in initiatives that stimulate the generation of new employment. 

 

4. Collaborate with other levels of government, business and community groups in 

promoting and engaging in economic development initiatives. 

 

2.3.2 Policies 

1. Support the development of tourism in Prescott by encouraging a wide range of 

seasonal and year-round tourism-related services and activities, including: 

 

Page 194 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

14 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

a. Commercial lodging and accommodations, including, but not limited to, hotels, 

motels, boutique inns, and bed and breakfasts; 

 

b. Dining and food-related uses, including, but not limited to, restaurants and pubs, 

cafes, specialty food stores, and farmers’ markets. The provision of public and 

private outdoor patios should be encouraged; 

 

c. Entertainment uses, including but not limited to, theatres, arcades, multi-media 

shopping, and museums; 

 

d. Cultural heritage-related services and activities that leverage the Town’s heritage 

sites, including Fort Wellington and the Church of St. Mark the Evangelist; 

 

e. Adventure- and sport-related services and activities for divers, cyclists, golfers, 

swimmers, and boaters, among other similar uses; and 

 

f. Maximizing the potential of existing recreational facilities as tourist amenities. 

 

2. Continue to encourage tourism by supporting existing festivals and events, and by 

encouraging new festivals and events, including through public-private partnerships, that 

will attract visitors to the Town. 

 

3. Promote the Downtown and waterfront as the focal points for public gatherings, festive 

and civic occasions, cultural events, tourism, and social interaction. To facilitate the 

development of such focal points, the Downtown and waterfront the undertaking of 

infrastructure and beautification projects will be supported. 

 

4. Support the priority projects recommended for the Downtown Core in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report, including the Façade Improvement Program, Market 

Square, and Riverwalk Park. These projects will contribute significantly to local 

economic development efforts in the Town. 

 

5. Promote the development of institutional uses within the Town, including new 

educational facilities. 

 

6. Support the planning and delivery of projects such as improvements to municipal 

services, transportation, and hydro-electric power and communication networks projects, 

that support the development or redevelopment of commercial, industrial and other 

employment generating activities. 

 

Page 195 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 15 

 

7. Encourage the development and redevelopment of lands associated economic 

development by prioritizing the review of the required Town planning and development 

applications. 

 

8. Promote the development of existing buildings and lands within the Town to support 

commercial, industrial and other employment generating activities. The rehabilitation of 

heritage buildings, the retrofitting of existing building stock should be encouraged. New 

employment opportunities should be encouraged within existing business parks, 

employment, tourism and waterfront lands.  

 

9. Ensure that the location of tourism and business-related services and activities is clearly 

indicated by means of wayfinding measures through street signage, maps, and local 

tourism publications. 

 

10. Consider the future completion of a Tourism Asset and Activity Strategy to support 

existing tourism assets, and local and regional partnerships. 

 

11. Provide sufficient commercial and industrial land to meet the need for commercial and 

industrial space and services that can be supported by local and regional residents, 

businesses, workers, and visitors, and that serve the transportation industry and 

travelling public that use Highway 401. 

 

12. Continue to protect the social and environmental well-being of the community in the 

pursuit of economic development efforts. 

 

13. Support initiatives that facilitate food production as part of a sustainable local food 

system. 

 

14. Identify and promote opportunities for intensification and redevelopment of Brownfield 

and vacant sites through the Community Improvement Plan and other financial 

incentives. 

 

15. Encourage the development of home-based businesses. 

 

16. Provide ongoing support, enhancements and design guidance for community 

improvement programs. 

 

17. Council may establish an Economic Development and Tourism Committee to advise on 

matters related to attraction, development, retention and expansion of businesses and 

tourism in Prescott. 

 

Page 196 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

16 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

18. Engage in activities that facilitate business investment and resident attraction and 

retention, such as engaging in activities to develop the Town’s brand.  

 

19. Work with the South Grenville Chamber of Commerce, Prescott Business Improvement 

Area (BIA), Grenville Community Future Development Corporation, United Counties of 

Leeds and Grenville, St. Lawrence Corridor Economic Development Commission, 

Regional Tourism Organization 9, neighbouring municipalities, provincial agencies, and 

other local community organizations and businesses on local and regional economic 

development, and tourism initiatives that benefit the Town. 

 

20. Recognize the importance of the Town’s seasonal population to the local and regional 

economy, including the employment opportunities generated by the second home 

sector. 

 

 

2.4 Energy Conservation, Air Quality and Climate Change  

Municipalities have an important role to play in reducing greenhouse gasses that are resulting in 

climate change and, in turn, reducing or minimizing the adverse impacts associated with climate 

change. The Town of Prescott recognizes the importance of undertaking such measures, 

including as it relates to the impacts of a changing climate on the St. Lawrence River’s water 

levels, which have increased over time and led to significant damage due to high water levels in 

2017 and 2019. 

 

2.4.1 Goals 

1. Support and encourage alternative energy systems and renewable energy sources for 

both residential and non-residential developments. 

 

2. Promote energy efficient land use patterns. 

 

3. Engage with Indigenous communities to learn and consider Indigenous knowledge 

regarding cultural heritage and the physical environment. 

 

2.4.2 Policies 

1. Require that plans of subdivision be designed with a primarily east-west street 

orientation, wherever feasible, in order to create lots with a southern exposure. 

 

2. Implement the walking and cycling policies contained in the Transportation and 

Circulation Section of this Plan. 

 

Page 197 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 17 

 

3. Promote, and regulate as may be required, the domestic use of solar and wind 

generation for all types of development in the Town, including the retrofitting of existing 

buildings. 

 

4. Encourage the integration of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 

building and neighbourhood concepts or similar building design considerations, for all 

new municipal buildings and for major renovations/expansions to existing municipal 

buildings. 

 

5. In reviewing planning applications, promote energy conservation and energy efficiency in 

all new developments, including plans of subdivision, site plans, building design, and 

construction, through techniques such as: 

 

a. Green building design, LEED building and neighbourhood concepts or similar 

building design considerations; 

 

b. Building orientation to maximize passive solar energy gain; 

 

c. Tree planting, landscaping, naturalization; and  

 

d. The use of Low Impact Development (LID) approaches and technologies, such 

as green infrastructure to manage stormwater runoff, on-site natural features to 

protect water quality, and reducing hard surfaces to maximize site permeability.  

 

6. Consider the preparation of a Climate Change Adaptation and Management Plan that 

addresses: 

 

a. Mitigation strategies to reduce the Town’s contribution to climate change; 

 

b. Adaptation strategies to assist the Town in coping with the effect of climate 

change on the community; and 

 

c. Strategies to coordinate emergency management and other economic, 

environmental, and social planning considerations to support efficient and 

resilient communities. 

 

7. The Town supports development and management practices which address climate 

change mitigation and adaptation. Development considerations include but are not 

limited to the: 

a. Reduction of greenhouse emissions; 

b. Improvement of air quality; 

Page 198 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

18 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

c. Facilitation of a compact development form; 

d. Promotion of green infrastructure; and 

e. Advancement of design and orientation which maximizes: 
 

i. Energy efficiency and conservation, and considers the mitigating effects 

of vegetation; and 

 

ii. Opportunities for the use of renewable energy systems and alternative 

energy systems. 

 

8. Contribute to the evaluation and addressing of the potential impacts of climate change 

on water resource systems at the watershed level, in coordination with the Province, 

South Nation Conservation Authority (SNC), and neighbouring municipalities. 

 

9. The Town may undertake treeplanting, landscaping, and naturalization initiatives on 

municipal property, where appropriate, to contribute to improved air quality and help 

moderate summer and winter micro-climatic conditions. 

 

10. Promote alternative and renewable energy systems as accessory and standalone uses. 

 

11. Support the reduction of waste from construction debris as a result of the demolition of 

buildings, by promoting and encouraging the adaptive reuse of older and existing 

building stock and materials. 

 

2.5 Housing  

The availability of housing in a community is an important indicator of the local quality of life. 

The intent of this Official Plan is to encourage housing production through development and 

redevelopment, that provides new and existing residents with a full range and diversity of 

housing in terms of options, tenure, location, and affordability, as well as home occupations and 

residential care facilities. 

 

2.5.1 Goals 

1. Encourage the provision of a full range and diversity of housing in the Town through new 

development and redevelopment. 

 

2. Maintain a sufficient supply of lands designated for residential development in the Town. 

 

3. Recognize the importance of home occupations as a means of employment and 

contribution to local economic development. 

Page 199 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 19 

 

 

4. Recognize the importance of and the need for residential care facilities, as a means of 

valuable living arrangements in the community. 

 

2.5.2 Policies  

2.5.2.1 Housing Supply 

1. Endeavour to provide for the near- and longer-term supply of housing in the Town by: 

 

a. Maintaining the ability to accommodate residential growth for a minimum of 15 

years through residential intensification, redevelopment and, if necessary, lands 

designated for residential development, based on accepted measures of existing 

and projected housing production and absorption of residential land; and 

 

b. Ensuring a minimum five (5)-year supply of residential land with servicing 

capacity through lands zoned to facilitate residential intensification and 

redevelopment, and through lands in draft approved and registered plans of 

subdivision. Sufficient servicing capacity must exist to support such residential 

development;  

 

c. Providing for an appropriate range and mix of housing options and densities 

required to meet projected requirements of current and future residents; and 

 

d. Directing the development of new housing towards locations where appropriate 

levels of infrastructure and public services are available. 

 

2. Continue to monitor the supply of residentially-designated land within the Town and the 

range of housing produced by type, tenure, and affordability. 

 

2.5.2.2 Additional Residential Units 

Additional residential units, formerly known as “secondary dwelling units” or “second units”, are 

self-contained residential units that include kitchen and bathroom facilities, and which are 

located within a primary dwelling or within a structure that is ancillary to a primary dwelling. They 

are considered an affordable housing type, and can contribute to the availability of rental 

housing and alternative living arrangements. The following policies shall apply to additional 

residential units. 

 

1. A maximum of two (2) additional residential units shall be permitted on a lot containing a 

single-detached, semi-detached or townhouse dwelling, for a maximum of three (3) 

residential units on a lot, in accordance with the following: 

Page 200 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

20 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

a. One (1) additional residential unit is permitted within the primary dwelling unit 

(e.g. a basement apartment);  

 

b. One (1) additional residential unit is permitted within a detached structure (e.g. a 

detached garage) that is ancillary to the primary dwelling unit;  

 

c. The primary dwelling unit must be located in a designation that permits the 

residential use; and 

 

d. There must be adequate water and sewer capacity to accommodate the 

additional residential unit(s).  

 

2. Require any additional residential units constructed within the Town to comply with the 

requirements of Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, the Zoning By-law, and other 

municipal by-laws. 

 

3. The Zoning By-law shall establish standards related to additional residential units, such 

as setbacks for additional residential units contained in detached structures, parking 

requirements, and building and lot requirements.  

 

2.5.2.3 Administrative Support 

1. Work to ensure that the processing time for residential development approvals be kept to 

a minimum and streamlined where other approvals are required, as appropriate, and 

consider prioritizing proposed affordable housing development for residential 

development approval. 

 

2. Consider innovative measures to encourage the production of affordable housing, 

including: 

a. Reduced right-of-way widths on local streets; 

b. Alternative zoning requirements, as appropriate; 

c. Alternative housing designs; and 

d. Review of construction standards. 

 

2.5.2.4 Affordable Housing 

For the purposes of the policies in this Section, “affordable” is defined as housing, either 

ownership or rental, for which a low or moderate income household pays no more than 30% of 

its gross annual income. Income levels and target rents and prices shall be determined by the 

Town on an annual basis and shall be informed by available data from the Canada Mortgage 

and Housing Corporation (CMHC).  

 

Page 201 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 21 

 

1. Support the production of affordable housing in the Town by: 

 

a. Encouraging a portion of new residential development, including rental housing, 

to be affordable to low and moderate income households within the lowest 60 

percent of local income distribution, as determined by the Province from time to 

time.;  

 

b. Promoting the provision of non-profit housing by private and non-profit housing 

corporations;  

 

c. Supporting the development of housing forms and densities designed to be 

affordable, including higher-density multi-unit housing, additional residential units, 

garden suites, and tiny homes; 

 

d. Encouraging proponents to consider the provision of housing ownership models 

such as life lease housing and co-ownership housing;   

 

e. Working with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville to contribute to their 

Housing and Homelessness Plan implementation strategy which seeks to 

achieve an overall minimum affordable housing target of 25% for all new 

residential development, including infill, intensification, and redevelopment;  

 

f. When evaluating proposals for new residential development or redevelopment, 

the Town may require a proponent to provide a portion of the development as 

affordable housing units, in order to help meet Council’s minimum affordable 

housing target; and 

 

g. Identifying potential surplus properties which are owned by the Town or another 

level of government that may be made available and prioritized for the 

development of affordable housing.  

 

2. The Town may participate in the preparation and implementation of an Affordable 

Housing Strategy, in partnership with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville.  

 

3. Council may use incentives such as grants or loans through the Town’s Community 

Improvement Plan(s) or other tools permitted under the Planning Act or Municipal Act in 

order to achieve the affordable housing policies in this Plan, in accordance with the 

definition of “affordable housing” as established in this Section. 

 

Page 202 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

22 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2.5.2.5 Bed and Breakfasts 

1. Support the establishment of bed and breakfast uses in single detached dwellings, 

provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The proprietor of the establishment resides on the premises; 

 

d. Guest rooms are provided as temporary accommodations on a daily basis; 

 

e. The Leeds, Grenville and Lanark District Health Unit is consulted, reviews, and 

permits the establishment; 

 

f. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, parking, or signage; and 

 

g. The use is permitted in the Zoning By-law. 

 

2.5.2.6 Short-term Rentals  

1. Permit the establishment of short-term rentals in residential dwellings, provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The proprietor of the short-term rental resides on the premises; 

 

d. Guest rooms are provided as temporary accommodations on a daily basis; 

 

e. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, or parking; and 

 

f. The use is permitted in the Zoning By-law. 

2. Council may consider requiring registration of short-term rental properties using a 

licensing system to ensure the Town’s public safety and property standards are met. 

 

Page 203 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 23 

 

3. The Town may specify the residential dwelling types in which short-term rentals are 

permitted through the Zoning By-law, a licensing system or other Town policy 

documents and regulations. 

 

2.5.2.7 Group Homes 

1. Permit group homes in all land use designations that permit residential use. Group 

homes are federally- or Provincially-licensed or funded and accommodate 3 to 10 

residents living as a single household. Such residents require a group living 

arrangement by reason of their emotional, mental, social, or physical condition or legal 

status.  

 

2. Require site plan approval for all group home development in the Town. 

 

2.5.2.8 Home Occupations 

1. Support the location of home occupations wherever residential uses are permitted, 

provided that: 

 

a. The use is accessory and secondary to the residential use of a dwelling; 

 

b. The use does not change the residential character of the dwelling; 

 

c. The use does not create or become a public nuisance with regard to noise, 

odour, traffic, parking, or signage; 

 

d. No goods, wares, or merchandise are displayed for sale outside of the dwelling 

and all activities occur inside the dwelling; 

 

e. The use is carried out by a resident of the dwelling and no more than 1 non-

resident employee; 

 

f. Adequate off-street parking is available; and 

 

g. The use does not exceed the maximum proportion of dwelling floor area 

specified in the Zoning By-law. 

 

2. Permit private home day care uses as a home occupation. A private home day care is 

defined as a small-scale day care facility which is operated in a dwelling where 

temporary care is provided for up to five (5) children, not including any children residing 

Page 204 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

24 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

permanently in the dwelling, and which is operated in accordance with Provincial 

regulations. 

 

2.5.2.9 Garden Suites 

Garden suites are one-unit detached residential structures containing bathroom and kitchen 

facilities. Garden suites are designed to be portable and are ancillary to a residential structure. 

Garden suites are an affordable housing type and are especially suitable for groups such as 

seniors because they enable older adults to live independently while receiving informal support 

from family members or a caregiver in an independent unit. The following policies shall apply to 

garden suites. 

 

1. Permit the establishment of garden suites, pursuant to Section 39.1 of the Planning Act, 

on the same lot as single detached or semi-detached dwellings, provided that the use: 

 

a. Is limited to a single dwelling unit, is portable and temporary in nature, is fully 

serviced, and is ancillary to the primary residence; 

 

b. Will be removed from the lot at such time that it is no longer required to house 

the occupant for whom it was originally intended; and 

 

c. Does not exceed the maximum floor area for garden suites specified in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

2. A garden suite shall only be permitted subject to a temporary use Zoning By-law 

Amendment. The use shall not exceed twenty (20) years from the date of passing of the 

by-law. However, Council may by by-law grant further periods of not more than three (3) 

years each during which the temporary use is authorized, in accordance with the 

Planning Act.   

 

3. As per the Planning Act, Council may require the owner of the suite or any other person 

to enter into an agreement with the Town dealing with such matters related to the 

temporary use of the garden suite as Council considers necessary or advisable, 

including: 

a. The installation, maintenance and removal of the garden suite; 

 

b. The period of occupancy of the garden suite by any of the persons named in the 

agreement; and 

 

c. The monetary or other form of security that the Council may require for actual or 

potential costs to the Town related to the garden suite.  

 

Page 205 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 25 

 

4. The Zoning By-law shall establish standards related to the building, lot, and parking 

requirements for garden suites. 

 

2.5.2.10 Tiny Homes  

Tiny homes are small, private, self-contained dwelling units that can be a primary home or a 

separate structure on the same lot as an existing principle residence (i.e. an additional 

residential unit). Tiny homes are dwelling units that are intended for year-round use and do not 

include campers, recreational vehicles, cottages and other seasonal use structures. They are a 

housing type that promotes affordability and increased homeownership opportunities, and may 

be desirable to a broad range of demographics, including young workers and families, aging 

residents, and residents seeking to down-size to a smaller housing type. The following policies 

shall apply to tiny homes. 

 

1. Permit tiny homes as primary dwellings units or as additional residential units ancillary to 

and on the same lot as single detached, semi-detached, and townhouse dwellings, 

provided that adequate infrastructure capacity exists. 

 

2. Require any tiny homes constructed within the Town to comply with the requirements of 

Ontario Building Code and Fire Code, the Zoning By-law, and other municipal by-laws. 

 

3. Ensure that the location and design of tiny homes is compatible with nearby land uses. 

 

2.6 Source Water Protection  

2.6.1 Overview 

The Town's water supply is from the St. Lawrence River, consisting of a water intake located in 

the river and a water treatment plant located at the foot of Sophia Street. It is essential that the 

Town's water supply be protected from risks that might cause contamination. 

The Clean Water Act requires local municipalities to look at the existing and potential threats to 

drinking water sources and to set out and implement the actions necessary to reduce or 

eliminate significant drinking water threat activities. To that end, a Source Water Protection Plan 

was approved by the province in April 2015. The plan, known as the Raisin-South Nation 

Source Protection Plan (RSSPP) must now be implemented through a number of avenues 

including land use planning policies and regulations.  

 

2.6.2 Goals  

1. Ensure the protection, improvement and restoration of the quality and quantity of water 

by maintaining linkages and related functions among ground water features, hydrologic 

Page 206 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

26 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

functions, natural heritage features and areas, and surface water features including 

shoreline areas. 

 

2. Identify water resource systems consisting of ground water features, hydrologic 

functions, natural heritage features and areas, and surface water features including 

shoreline areas, which are necessary for the ecological and hydrological integrity of the 

watershed. 

 

3. Recognize the need to set appropriate restrictions on development and site alteration to 

protect municipal drinking water supplies and designated vulnerable areas. 

 

4. Pursue mitigation and/or alternative development approaches where development or site 

alteration is proposed in or near sensitive surface water features or sensitive ground 

water features to protect and improved the hydrologic functions of these features. 

 

2.6.3 Vulnerable Areas 

Vulnerable areas identified in the RSSPP as Intake Protection Zone 1 (IPZ 1) and Intake 

Protection Zone 2 (IPZ 2) are shown on Schedule B of this Official Plan.  

 

2.6.4 Prohibited Uses 

1. Development that relies on the establishment of the following activities on lands 

identified as IPZ 1 on Schedule B is prohibited: 

a. Combined Sewer Discharge from a stormwater outlet to surface water; 

b. Storm water pond effluent; 

c. Industrial Effluent Discharges which discharge from surface water and have their 

primary function in the collection, transmission or treatment of industrial sewage; 

d. Sewage Treatment Plant By-pass discharges to surface water; 

e. Sewage Treatment Plant Effluent discharges; and  

f. Storage or sewage. 

 

2. The activities described in 2.6.3.1 Prohibited Uses may be exempt from the prohibition, 

in accordance with the RSSPP, if the new sewage treatment plant will replace an 

existing sewage treatment plant or the expansion will provide full services to a new or 

existing development which is partially serviced or a development where on-site septic 

systems are failing.  

 

2.6.5 Risk Management Official Exemption 

If the Risk Management Official or another person duly qualified under the Clean Water Act 

Page 207 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 27 

 

determines that there is no significant risk, then a use listed above may be permitted without the 

need for an amendment to this Plan, where such use would otherwise be permitted. All 

applications for development or building permits for lands in IPZ-1 must be reviewed by the Risk 

Management Official. 

 

1. Applications for building or development on lands within the IPZ 1, as identified on 

Schedule B, shall be circulated by the Town to the Risk Management Official, for review 

and comment prior to a decision in accordance with Section 59 of the Clean Water Act. 

Before an application under the Planning Act or a building permit can be determined to 

be complete, the applicant must first obtain written notice from the Risk Management 

Official. Certain activities related to the development may be prohibited or require a risk 

management plan. 

 

2. In addition to land use approvals under the Planning Act, activities associated with 

agricultural uses may also require approval under other legislation and regulations, such 

as the Clean Water Act and the Nutrient Management Act. 

 

3. In addition to land use approvals under the Planning Act, activities associated with 

wastewater may also require approval under other legislation and regulations, such as 

the Ontario Water Resources Act and the Environmental Protection Act. 

 

2.6.6 Development Review 

All development applications in a Source Water Protection Area shall be supported by studies, 

as determined in consultation with the Conservation Authority, which demonstrates to the 

satisfaction of the Risk Management Official that the proposed development does not pose a 

risk to the Town's drinking water supply and which includes any mitigation measures that may 

be required. In IPZ 1, certain types of development may be prohibited or require Risk 

Management Plans as per the RSSPP. 

 

2.7 Cross-jurisdictional Coordination  

Coordination with neighbouring municipalities has always been an important consideration in 

Prescott. As the largest residential, commercial, and employment centre between the cities of 

Brockville and Cornwall, Prescott must continue to coordinate its efforts with surrounding 

municipalities, various public agencies, and other service providers in an integrated, 

comprehensive and cost-effective manner. 

 

2.7.1 Goal 

1. Continue the commitment to work closely with neighbouring municipalities on a range of 

issues that cross municipal boundaries. 

Page 208 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

28 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

2.7.2 Policies 

1. Coordinate land use, facility, and service planning in the Town with the planning efforts 

of neighbouring municipalities, agencies, and service providers, as appropriate, to meet 

the existing and future needs of the community. 

 

2. Cooperate with neighbouring municipalities on land use decisions and planning projects 

along municipal boundaries and adopt a “good neighbour” policy of avoiding the 

designation and approval of high impact uses and developments to the detriment of 

neighbouring jurisdictions. 

 

3. Cooperate with neighbouring municipalities on planning matters that transcend municipal 

boundaries and jurisdictions, and require a coordinated, integrated, and comprehensive 

approach. Such matters may include: 

 

a. Local and regional economic development; 

 

b. Environmental management, including the identification and preservation of 

significant natural heritage features and areas; 

 

c. Cultural heritage conservation and preservation, including inventory, evaluation, 

and management of such cultural heritage resources; 

 

d. Housing supply and affordability, including near- and long-term supply, and the 

production of affordable units; 

 

e. Employment, including retaining existing jobs and creating new ones; and 

 

f. Community services, including public facilities (sewer, water, recreation, open 

space) and public services (firefighting, waste management, recreation, and 

culture).  

 

2.8 Urban Agriculture  

The Town recognizes the reality of rising food costs, and a growing culture for locally grown 

produce. The Town shall encourage community gardens / roof top gardens as important 

resources to the community and as an attractive alternative source of food for residents.  

 

Page 209 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 29 

 

2.8.1 Goal 

1. Support urban agriculture activities throughout the Town of Prescott. 

 

2.8.2 Policies 

1. The Town shall support urban agriculture throughout Prescott by: 

a. Permitting community gardens and roof top gardens in the following designations:  

Downtown Core; General Commercial; Residential; R-1 Special Policy Area; 

Institutional; and Parks and Open Space.  

 

b. Promoting community gardens in development / redevelopment initiatives, where 

appropriate; 

 

c. Identifying sites, including Town parks, for the establishment of community gardens; 

 

d. Identifying opportunities for partnerships with community organizations. 

 

2.9 Waterfront Development  

The Prescott waterfront is an incredible resource for the community. It provides the historical 

basis for the Town and is an important part of the Downtown Core. As such, it contributes to the 

economic prosperity of the Town, as well as its identity and image. Development along the 

waterfront is a priority for any community fortunate enough to have one. It is important then that 

development here is integrated with the Downtown Core, reflects the historical character of the 

area, and is open and accessible to those living, working, shopping, and visiting Prescott, while 

avoiding negative impacts to fish, wildlife, navigation, and the natural qualities of the shoreline. 

 

2.9.1 Goals 

1. Recognize the waterfront as an important part of the Downtown Core, a contributor to 

the economic success of the Town, and a significant natural resource. 

 

2. Maintain public access to the waterfront areas and strengthen the links between it and 

other parts of the Downtown Core. 

 

2.9.2 Policies 

1. Encourage enhancement of the waterfront through a combination of development and 

redevelopment opportunities. 

 

Page 210 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

30 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Support the priority projects recommended for the Waterfront District in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report.  

 

3. Apply the guidelines of the Downtown Design and Guidelines report when evaluating all 

applications for new waterfront development to ensure that it is sensitive to and supports 

the historic nature of Downtown, and that it adheres to the vision for the waterfront 

established by the community. These Guidelines relate to: 

a. Streetscape improvement; 

b. Commercial signage; and 

c. Parking facilities. 

 

4. The Town encourages the protection or enhancement of a naturalized buffer along 

waterfront lands, recognizing that some areas may be natural bare rock and do not 

require further enhancement. This measure will help to protect water quality as well as 

protecting environmentally sensitive riparian areas. It will also help to control erosion and 

assist in softening the visual intrusion of development in natural areas. In the event of 

construction damage in this buffer area, the natural vegetation should be re-instated to 

the extent possible. Native plantings should be implemented in naturalized buffers to 

improve and enhance ecological functions of the natural environment. 

 

5. Maintain and enhance public access to the waterfront, particularly in the Downtown 

Core, for any development and redevelopment projects, as appropriate. 

 

6. Ensure that any construction or filling below the high water mark is in accordance with 

the Navigable Waters Protection Act and the International Boundary Waters Treaty Act. 

Approval of such work by Transport Canada shall be a condition of approval of any 

development application. 

 

7. Require that all services, conduits, cables, and accessory buildings associated with any 

waterfront development and redevelopment project are hidden or effectively screened to 

minimize visual impact. Utility cables should be undergrounded, as appropriate. This 

policy also relates to any infrastructure installed by the Town, other public agency, or 

service provider, as appropriate. 

 

8. For existing lots of record established prior to this Plan’s date of approval, new 

development should be set back 30 metres from the high water mark of a waterbody if 

possible, otherwise as far back as the lot permits subject to topographical constraints 

and size of lot, with minimum disturbance of native soils and very limited removal of the 

shoreline vegetation beyond that required for development. This setback shall not apply 

to permitted docks, boathouses, or other marine facilities. 

 

Page 211 of 300



 

Section 2.0 General Land Use Policies 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 31 

 

9. New lots created through the severance/consent process shall be set back a minimum of 

30 m from the high water mark of the waterbody, with minimum disturbance of native 

soils and very limited removal of shoreline vegetation. This setback shall not apply to 

permitted docks, boathouses, or other marine facilities.  

 

10. Require site plan approval for all new waterfront development in the Town. 

 

11. Consider coordination with the City of Brockville, Township of Augusta, Township of 

Edwardsburgh Cardinal and Township of Elizabethtown-Kitley for the development of 

facilities along the waterfront, waterfront and walk-in dive site guidelines, and active 

transportation networks. 

 

 

Page 212 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

32 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

3.0 Land Use Designations 

This Section of the Official Plan contains the policies applicable to the following land use 

designations in the Town, as shown on Schedule A of this Plan: Residential; General 

Commercial; Highway Commercial; Downtown Core; Employment Area; Institutional; and Parks 

and Open Space. The remaining areas in the Town are not designated, as they are comprised 

of major transportation infrastructure and facilities that are not owned or maintained by the 

Town, including Highway 401 and the Canadian National (CN) Railway line. Uses on these 

lands include roads, rail lines, and related appurtenances such as sidings, bridges, weigh 

stations, signals, etc. The Town has no land use authority over these lands. 

 

The land use designations and policies provide the framework for land use planning in the Town 

of Prescott for the next 20 years, and are intended to achieve the community vision and primary 

plan principles outlined in the Vision and Guiding Principles Section of this Plan.  

 

The Official Plan land use designations are intended to be broad enough to give the Town 

flexibility in implementing its policies, but clear enough to provide sufficient direction to 

implement the Plan and guide future development.  

 

3.1.1 Land Use Schedules  

This Official Plan includes the following Schedules:  

 

a. Schedule A – Land Use 

b. Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

c. Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

d. Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources, and Human-made Hazards 

e. Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Area 

 

The Official Plan Schedules are to be used and interpreted in conjunction with the text and other 

figures contained in the Official Plan.  

 

3.2 Residential  

Lands designated Residential on Schedule A of this Plan provide for a variety of housing types 

and densities and other complementary land uses, such as small neighbourhood-serving 

commercial uses (e.g. convenience stores), places of worship, schools and park sites that 

contribute to creating complete neighbourhoods. More intensive institutional uses, such as the 

Town Hall/Library and arena, may also be permitted, provided that any new uses in established 

neighbourhoods are compatible, or can be made compatible, with existing development. Higher 

density housing, such as apartments, is typically focused in the Downtown Core designation 

and along the Canadian National (CN) Rail line. Residential development in Prescott should 

Page 213 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 33 

 

reflect a diverse range of housing types that is affordable, safe, accessible, and meets the 

needs of the entire community.  

 

Residential lot creation in the Town shall occur primarily through plan of subdivision, although 

limited lot creation by means of consent may be contemplated.  

 

The goals and policies for the Residential designation are outlined as follows. 

 

3.2.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of housing types that meets the existing and future needs of the 

community. 

 

2. Encourage a sufficient supply of housing that supports affordability and accessibility in 

the community. 

 

3. Provide opportunities for small neighbourhood-serving commercial uses (e.g. 

convenience stores), places of worship, schools, and parks. 

 

4. Ensure that new housing opportunities are compatible with surrounding land uses and 

protect the natural environment. 

 

5. Encourage housing opportunities that are in proximity to work, shopping, and recreation 

to reduce the need to drive and encourage walking and bicycle use. 

 

6. Encourage residential intensification in areas where existing land uses would not be 

adversely affected and where development can efficiently utilize existing municipal 

services and facilities. When taking into consideration the current built form and the 

scarcity of greenfield development sites, the Town is targeting a 20% increase in 

intensification.  

 

7. Ensure that new residential development expands into areas that are adjacent to the 

existing built-up areas and that such expansion areas are appropriate for development 

based on the availability of municipal services and environmental constraints. 

 

3.2.2 Policies 

1. Maintain existing residential neighbourhoods primarily for lower density residential 

development. Such development may include single-detached, semi-detached and 

duplex dwellings. 

 

Page 214 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

34 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Permit residential intensification in existing residential neighbourhoods in the form of 

medium density residential development, including townhouses and other types of 

ground-oriented multiple residential development, which maintains or enhances the 

surrounding area and which is compatible with respect to built form, scale, urban design, 

and streetscape.  

 

High density residential development and intensification, including apartment buildings, 

should locate in the Downtown Core and along the Canadian National (CN) Rail line.  

 

3. The foregoing density policies are not to be interpreted so as to limit additional 

residential units, garden suites, and tiny homes as permitted under the Housing Section 

of this Plan.  

 

4. Permit a range of low, medium and high-density residential uses in new residential areas 

to serve the various housing needs of residents, while maintaining an overall density and 

development pattern which is in keeping with the traditional residential neighbourhoods 

of the Town. 

 

5. Permit a variety of other residential uses in residential neighbourhoods, such as non-

profit housing, assisted and special needs housing, seniors housing, and nursing homes, 

in order to meet the full range of community housing needs. 

 

6. Permit small scale neighbourhood-serving commercial uses, such as convenience 

stores; small-scale institutional uses, such as places of worship, schools, parks, libraries, 

and municipal offices; home occupations; and other non-residential uses in residential 

neighbourhoods provided such uses are compatible with and complementary to the 

neighbourhood. 

 

7. Ensure that all new residential development, including residential intensification in 

existing neighbourhoods, provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the 

Zoning By-law. Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the 

potential conflict between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. 

 

8. Ensure that all new residential development connects to existing neighbourhoods, as 

appropriate, by means of streets, sidewalks, walkways or bicycle paths, or open space 

that provide access to schools, parks, shopping, and work places, as a means of 

integrating new development into the Town fabric and encouraging walking and bicycle 

use. Such connections should also facilitate the safe separation of pedestrian, cyclist, 

and vehicular traffic. The removal of any existing connection with surrounding 

neighbourhoods is strongly discouraged. 

 

Page 215 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 35 

 

9. Protect new residential development that abuts potentially incompatible land uses, such 

as large-scale commercial uses or industrial uses, including Highway 401 and the CN 

Railway, and minimize the potential off-site impacts of these uses by requiring buffering 

and screening for new development. Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could 

include noise, light, dust, and vibration. New residential development that abuts 

potentially incompatible land uses should comply with any Provincial policies, and 

guidelines governing separation distances and other mitigation measures, including the 

Provincial Policy Statement and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and 

Park’s Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, as amended. 

 

10. Provide public facilities, services, and other amenities within close proximity to residents 

that are of high quality so as to promote their use and enhance neighbourhoods. 

 

11. Residential uses shall be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.2.3 R-1 Special Policy Area: Hyde and Wood Streets 

The area along the north side of Hyde and Wood Streets, and backing onto the CN Railway line, 

is designated R-1 Special Policy Area on Schedule A of this Plan. This area includes scattered 

industrial buildings in what is otherwise a traditional low density residential neighbourhood. 

These buildings had originally been constructed because of proximity to the rail line, and many 

of them are now underutilized, vacant and/or obsolete. 

 

The following special policies apply to this area: 

 

1. Existing industrial buildings may be zoned as conforming uses in the implementing 

Zoning By-law. These buildings may be altered, expanded, replaced or occupied by new 

industrial uses, in conformity with the Zoning By-law. In such circumstances, careful 

attention shall be paid to minimizing potential adverse impacts on the adjacent 

residential uses through the development approval process. 

 

2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the R-1 Special Policy Area designation is intended to 

encourage the redevelopment of these properties with mixed use development, including 

the adaptive re-use of existing buildings, with residential, commercial and institutional 

uses which are more compatible with the adjacent residential uses. The permitted uses 

should be in accordance with the Downtown Core designation. 

 

3. Redevelopment to a permitted non-industrial use shall require a Zoning By-law 

Amendment as well as any other applicable studies as required under Provincial 

regulations. Where the proposed redevelopment is to a more sensitive land use, such as 

a residential or an institutional use, the Zoning By-law Amendment shall also be 

supported by a Record of Site Condition and a noise and vibration study. The Zoning By-

Page 216 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

36 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

law Amendment shall establish the appropriate uses and related performance standards 

for the proposed redevelopment. 

 

4. Redevelopment to a permitted non-industrial use shall be subject to site plan control in 

accordance with the Site Plan Control By-law.  

 

3.3 General Commercial and Highway Commercial  

Commercial development in the Town is important since it provides employment, the retail sale 

of goods and services to both residents and other businesses, and contributes to a diverse tax 

base. It also shapes the identity and image of the Town. Existing commercial development in 

Prescott occurs in three distinct areas, including in Downtown, along Edward Street, and in the 

area of the Highway 401/Edward Street interchange. Commercial development in these 

locations serve different purposes and represent different built forms. Commercial development 

in Prescott should continue to meet both local and regional needs while reducing the need for 

residents to travel outside the community for some goods and services.  

 

The goals and policies that generally apply to all commercial development in Prescott are 

outlined as follows, including specific policies for lands designated General Commercial and 

Highway Commercial in Schedule A of this Plan. In addition to the policies in the All Commercial 

Development Section of this Plan, commercial development in the Downtown Core is also 

subject to the Downtown Core Section of this Plan. 

 

3.3.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of commercial uses that meet the existing and future needs of 

the community and reduces the need for residents to shop elsewhere. 

 

2. Accommodate a range of commercial formats from smaller pedestrian-oriented stores in 

Downtown to large-format auto-oriented stores near Highway 401 for the purposes of 

economic development and remaining competitive with surrounding jurisdictions. 

 

3. Enhance the form and character of each commercial area in the Town and work to 

create a distinct community identity for each area. 

 

4. Encourage commercial uses that are appropriate for, or would benefit from, a Downtown 

location to locate there. 

 

Page 217 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 37 

 

3.3.2 Policies 

3.3.2.1 All Commercial Development 

1. Provide sufficient commercially-designated land to meet the need for retail space and 

commercial services that can be supported by local residents, businesses and workers. 

 

2. Permit a mix of land uses in commercial areas to encourage revitalization, create vital 

activity centers, strengthen neighbourhoods, expand local employment opportunities, 

and enhance the identity and image of the Town. 

 

3. Promote commercial development reflects the intensity, use, built form, and character of 

the commercial designation within which it is to be located. 

 

4. Ensure that all new commercial development, and commercial intensification in existing 

areas, provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the Zoning By-law. 

Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the potential conflict 

between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. Except in relation to small 

neighbourhood-serving commercial uses, access to commercial development from 

residential streets should be avoided. 

 

5. Maintain accessibility for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles and includes amenities for 

each, as appropriate. Pedestrian movement between commercial establishments shall 

be considered and encouraged. 

 

6. Evenly distribute neighbourhood-serving commercial uses which are limited in scale, 

such as convenience stores, across the Town to reduce the need to drive and 

encourage walking and cycling. 

 

7. Encourage local-serving professional and administrative offices to locate in areas 

designated General Commercial and Downtown Core. 

 

8. Support new commercial development in the Town’s commercial areas by: 

 

a. Designating key intersections on commercial streets in future zoning for more 

intense development that will establish distinct activity nodes; 

 

b. Encouraging new development to locate parking at the side or rear of a property 

so as to reduce negative visual impacts; 

 

Page 218 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

38 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

c. Encouraging new development to locate buildings at or near the street to create 

a sense of streetscape enclosure consistent with a pedestrian scale and compact 

urban form; 

 

d. Requiring pedestrian and bicycle access to and through development, including 

street orientation of new development; 

 

e. Ensuring new development minimizes driveways to improve pedestrian and 

cyclist safety and vehicular flow; 

 

f. Considering improvement of the aesthetic environment, a process which could 

include preparation of commercial design guidelines, underground utilities, 

preparation of a unified public/private lighting plan, landscaping, and other 

pedestrian amenities; 

 

g. Promoting compatible development on adjacent side streets; and 

 

h. Using public projects and/or public-private partnerships to stimulate private 

development. 

 

9. Consider the preparation of design guidelines for commercial development outside the 

Downtown Core, much like those included in the Downtown Design and Guidelines 

report. These guidelines could address: 

 

a. Building mass, roof treatment, and scale; 

b. District gateways and entry features; 

c. Facade treatment, including cladding, colour, fenestration, transparency, 

articulation, doorways and entries, overhangs and awnings, among other design 

considerations; 

d. Outdoor pedestrian space; 

e. Parking lots, including landscaping, screening, and lighting; 

f. Screening and fencing; 

g. Signage; and 

h. Streetscape design, including paving, landscaping, lighting, furniture, pedestrian 

amenities, among other elements. 

 

10. Minimize the potential off-site impacts of new commercial development on adjacent 

residential neighbourhoods by requiring buffering and screening of new development. 

Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could include noise and light. Proponents of 

new commercial development shall be required to demonstrate regard for the policies in 

the Compatibility and Built Form Section of this Plan.  

Page 219 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 39 

 

 

11. Require site plan approval for all new commercial development in the Town.  

 

12. Require that land uses in the Commercial designations be zoned appropriately in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

3.3.2.2 General Commercial 

1. Focus medium format retail and service commercial development intended to serve the 

community in the General Commercial designation.  

 

2. Permitted uses within the General Commercial designation shall include a diverse range 

of land uses, including: general retail stores; personal service establishments; 

professional offices; entertainment uses; restaurants; food retail stores; financial 

institutions; gas stations; automotive services; commercial lodging; and community 

services. Some limited outdoor storage may be permitted, in accordance with the Zoning 

By-law. 

 

3.3.2.3 Highway Commercial 

1. Focus land uses that serve the community, region, and traveling public in the Highway 

Commercial designation.  

 

2. Permitted uses within the Highway Commercial designation shall include a diverse range 

of land uses, including: shopping centres, large format and general retail stores; 

restaurants, entertainment uses; food retail stores; commercial lodging; automotive sales 

and services; and gas stations. Some outdoor storage may be permitted, in accordance 

with the Zoning By-law. Smaller-scale retail and service commercial uses which 

complement or are an integral part of a large Highway Commercial development shall 

also be permitted. 

 

3. Consider recognizing the Highway Commercial designation as an important tourist-

commercial and recreational gateway to Prescott by establishing a clear identity for the 

area by means of entry features, streetscape, signage, lighting, landscaping, and 

architecture. 

 

4. Work with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO) to ensure that implementation of 

the Highway Commercial policies of this Plan maintain the operating viability of the 

Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward Street, and support the controls 

exercised by MTO. Planning decisions on Highway Commercial lands relating to land 

use, access in interchange areas, traffic, stormwater management, structures and 

signage, lighting, buffering, and screening require MTO approvals and permits under the 

Public Transportation and Highway Improvement Act. 

Page 220 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

40 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

3.4 Downtown Core  

As noted in the Vision and Guiding Principles Section of this Plan, one of the seven Guiding 

Principles is to recognize the importance of a healthy and vibrant downtown and strive for 

improvements, while also protecting and enhancing its historical and cultural amenities. This 

Plan designates the Downtown Core on Schedule A of this Plan as an important and desirable 

location for new commercial and residential activities and a significant economic generator in 

the community. The Downtown Core provides a place to work, live and shop in Prescott, and 

shall be the focus of retail and commercial services, as well as higher density residential 

development. It is one of the primary contributors to the identity and image of the Town. By 

encouraging mixed land uses and re-use of heritage buildings in the downtown, the area will 

continue to reflect Prescott’s high quality of life.  

 

Although single-use commercial and/or residential development shall be permitted, typical 

development in this designation will generally include a mix of uses with retail and commercial 

services located on the ground floor along mainstreets, and upper floors used for either 

commercial services (such as offices) or residential uses. Institutional and other public uses 

which primarily serve a community-wide or regional function are also permitted in order to 

attract employment and visitors to the Downtown Core. The role of the Downtown Core as a 

cultural hub will support new cultural and tourism assets, such as arts and entertainment uses. 

 

The goals and policies for the Downtown Core designation in Prescott are outlined as follows. 

 

3.4.1 Goals 

1. Focus appropriate new commercial and residential development in the Downtown Core. 

 

2. Foster a diverse mix of commercial, residential, and public uses, in separate or mixed 

use buildings, that meet the existing and future needs of the community and that 

encourage a healthy and vibrant Downtown. 

 

3. Support the preservation and adaptive re-use of existing heritage buildings in the 

downtown, while encouraging appropriate intensification. 

 

4. Encourage tourism, entertainment, and cultural uses in the downtown, based on the 

proximity of historic Fort Wellington and the waterfront. 

 

5. Maintain existing waterfront access and consider new opportunities to enhance public 

access to the waterfront area and strengthen the link between it and the Downtown 

Core. 

 

Page 221 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 41 

 

3.4.2 Policies 

3.4.2.1 General 

1. Conserve and integrate the cultural heritage resources of the Downtown Core as a 

means of maintaining and enhancing its historical context and established character. 

 

2. Focus small format retail and service commercial development intended to serve the 

community, the region, and the traveling public in the Downtown Core designation. 

 

3. Focus higher density multi-family residential development in the Downtown Core as a 

means of strengthening the live/work relationship, enhancing the local market for 

convenience and service goods, and ensuring that the Downtown Core is a vibrant 

district after business hours. 

 

4. Permit new buildings in the Downtown Core that are generally between 2 storeys and 4 

storeys. It is recognized that some flexibility in building height may be necessary to 

accommodate mixed use buildings with varying floor heights. 

 

5. Permit a diverse range of land uses, including: residential uses at a range of densities, 

general retail stores; specialty retail stores; personal service establishments; 

professional and public service offices; arts and entertainment uses; restaurants and 

sidewalk patios; food retail stores; financial institutions; commercial lodging; tourism-

related services; convention services; and civic and institutional services, such as 

libraries, parks, open space, schools, etc.  

 

6. Permit additions to existing buildings with heritage value as a means of encouraging 

their adaptive re-use, provided such additions are architecturally compatible with the 

existing building; are sensitive to, and support, the historic nature of the Downtown Core; 

and are in accordance with the policies in the Cultural Heritage Resources Section of 

this Plan. 

 

3.4.2.2 Mixed Uses 

1. Encourage the development of mixed use buildings in the Downtown Core, although 

single- use buildings are permitted. The use of upper floors for residential purposes in 

existing buildings is also encouraged. Reconfiguration and/or rehabilitation of upper 

floors in some existing buildings may be necessary. The use of ground floors for 

residential purposes may be considered primarily in areas outside the commercial 

sections of King Street, between East and West Street. 

 

Page 222 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

42 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

2. Professional office and other non-retail uses are also encouraged to locate on upper 

floors so as to preserve the ground floor for pedestrian-oriented retail and personal 

service uses.  

 

3. Consider density incentives to encourage residential intensification in the Downtown 

Core, in accordance with the Density Incentive Section of this Plan. 

 

4. Encourage the integration of all uses in the Downtown Core, including residential, to 

ensure easy access for those living, working, shopping and visiting in order to promote 

the area as a vibrant “people place”. 

 

3.4.2.3 Downtown Design and Guidelines 

 

1. Require that new development in the Downtown Core be of high-quality design and 

supports the image of the area as an enjoyable, safe, and pedestrian-oriented place of 

historical significance. 

 

2. Support the priority projects in any Downtown Design Guidelines, as revised from time to 

time, including the development of a Façade Improvement Program, Market Square, and 

Waterfront Park.  

 

3. Apply design guidelines in the Downtown to evaluate all applications for new 

development in the Downtown Core to ensure that it is sensitive to, and supports, the 

historic nature of the Downtown Core and that it adheres to the vision for the Downtown 

Core established by the community as part of the Official Plan process. These guidelines 

relate to: 

 

a. Historic buildings on King Street; 

b. New commercial construction and remodeling of existing buildings on King 

Street; 

c. Streetscape improvement; 

d. Commercial signage; 

e. Parking facilities; and 

f. Waterfront park design. 

 

4. Integrate, as appropriate, any Downtown Design Guidelines as regulations in the Zoning 

By-law to implement this Official Plan. Some guidelines may easily be expressed in the 

zoning regulations as required standards, while others may remain as supportive 

direction for the purpose of providing additional flexibility. 

 

Page 223 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 43 

 

3.4.2.4 Tourism and Culture 

1. Continue to recognize the Downtown Core as the Town's focal point for public 

gatherings, festive and civic occasions, cultural events, tourism, and social interaction. 

 

2. Support the development of tourism-related uses and activities in the Downtown Core to 

support local business, and create a healthy and vibrant area. 

 

3. Continue to encourage tourism and culture in the Town by supporting existing festivals 

and events, and by encouraging new festivals and events including through public-

private partnerships, that will attract visitors to the Downtown Core. 

 

3.4.2.5 Waterfront 

1. Promote the waterfront as an important part of the Downtown Core and as a contributor 

to the economic success of downtown businesses. Waterfront development shall be 

considered in accordance with the Waterfront Development Section of this Plan. 

 

2. Maintain existing and consider new opportunities to enhance public access to the 

waterfront area and strengthen the link between it and Downtown Core by means of 

visual and physical connections, signage, etc. 

 

3.4.2.6 Other 

1. Review the status of Town-owned properties in the Downtown Core periodically to 

determine if there is potential for development to enhance the function of the area. 

 

2. Consider alternative means of ensuring that all new development in the Downtown Core 

provides adequate off-street parking, such as shared parking, public parking in private 

facilities, off-site parking, etc. It is important that vehicle access and parking in the 

Downtown Core be carefully balanced with the provision of good pedestrian-oriented 

access and amenity. 

 

3. Require that land uses in the Downtown Core designation be zoned appropriately in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

3.5 Employment Area  

As with commercial activity, industrial development in the Town provides employment and 

contributes to a diverse tax base. Prescott was founded as an industrial town with the 

manufacture and shipping of various commodities. The Town’s location near the interchange of 

Highways 401 and 416 and the bridge to the United States make it an ideal strategic location for 

industrial uses. 

Page 224 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

44 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

Existing industrial development in Prescott is primarily located north of the CN Railway line, 

west of Edward Street. This area, including adjacent vacant land, is designated Employment 

Area in Schedule A of this Plan to protect the traditional industrial base of the Town and to allow 

it to grow. The Employment Area designation is intended to function in concert with the Highway 

401 Corridor lands, as well as the Johnstown Industrial Park (Regionally Significant 

Employment Area) in the Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal, as a significant contributor to 

long-term economic development in Prescott. Since industrial uses have the potential to 

generate significant impacts on adjacent land uses, such development must be carefully located 

and designed.  

 

The goals and policies for the Employment Area lands are outlined as follows: 

 

3.5.1 Goals 

1. Support a diverse range of employment uses that meet local and regional service needs, 

create employment, maximize the use of the land, encourage revitalization of existing 

industrial areas, and allow the Town to remain competitive with surrounding jurisdictions. 

 

2. Provide for a range of Employment Area uses at locations that are suitable to the nature 

and scale of the use and their proximity to adjacent sensitive land uses. 

 

3. Encourage Employment Area uses that are located with like uses, are carefully designed 

to minimize off-site impacts, and are adequately serviced by infrastructure. 

 

4. Ensure the compatibility of Employment Area uses with adjacent neighbourhoods and 

sensitive land uses, while permitting such development the opportunity to expand as 

needed. 

 

5. Prevent Employment Area uses from detracting from the image and character of the 

Town. 

 

3.5.2 Policies 

1. Provide sufficient Employment Area land to accommodate an appropriate range of 

employment and economic development opportunities that can be supported by local 

residents, businesses and workers. 

 

2. Permit a diverse range of uses in the Employment Area designation, including: 

warehousing and storage; wholesale; freight forwarding; manufacturing, including green 

manufacturing, assembly, and processing; research and development; communications; 

utilities; transportation; printing and publishing; construction and building supply; and 

Page 225 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 45 

 

business offices. Such uses are not typically expected to have any significant negative 

off-site impacts, such as noise, odour, dust, vibration, or other nuisance. 

 

3. Associated retail and ancillary uses such as offices, factory outlets, food retail /takeout 

establishments, recreation establishments, health and fitness centres, and businesses 

that support the employment base are also permitted; however, these uses are 

encouraged to locate in the General Commercial area on Edward Street where they are 

not an integral part of the principal Employment Area use. An accessory dwelling for the 

owner or operator of such uses (caretaker residence) may also be permitted, where 

compatible. 

 

4. Require heavy industrial uses to locate where land use compatibility can be achieved 

through minimum separation distances and implementation of appropriate mitigation 

measures in accordance with Section 2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and Residential 

Uses and Section 2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses of this Plan. 

 

5. Consider the preparation of design guidelines for industrial development. These 

guidelines could address: 

 

a. Building mass and scale; 

b. District gateways, entry features;  

c. Facade treatment, including cladding, articulation, doorways and entries, among 

other design considerations; 

d. Landscaping, screening, and fencing; 

e. Outdoor eating areas; 

f. Parking and loading, including landscaping, screening, and lighting; 

g. Signage; and 

h. Streetscape design. 

 

6. Require site plan approval for all new development in the Employment Area designation.  

 

7. Maintain an adequate supply of lands designated Employment Area, and only permit the 

conversion of lands to other uses at the time of a comprehensive review where it has 

been demonstrated that the lands are not required over the long term and that there is a 

need for the conversion. 

 

8. Outside of a comprehensive review, lands designated Employment Area may be 

converted to a designation that permits non-employment uses provided the area has not 

been identified as provincially significant through a provincial plan exercise or as 

regionally significant by a regional economic development corporation working together 

with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville, and subject to the following: 

Page 226 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

46 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

a. There is an identified need for the conversion and the land is not required for 

employment purposes over the long term; 

 

b. The proposed uses would not adversely affect the overall viability of the 

employment area; and 

 

c. Existing or planned infrastructure and public service facilities are available to 

accommodate the proposed uses. 

 

9. Require that land uses in the Employment Area designation be zoned appropriately in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.6 Institutional  

Typical institutional uses include schools, libraries, government offices, hospitals, and 

cemeteries. In Prescott, significant institutional uses include the Canadian Coast Guard, Fort 

Wellington, South Grenville District High School, the Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) 

detachment, and the cemeteries. These uses are designated as Institutional on Schedule A of 

this Plan. In the case of the Coast Guard and the high school, these uses are also significant 

employers. In the case of Fort Wellington, this use represents a significant tourist attraction and 

economic generator.  

 

Smaller institutional uses in the community, such as the municipal offices, library, places of 

worship and elementary schools, are not designated Institutional, as they are better 

incorporated with the predominant land use that surrounds them, such as in the Residential 

designation. 

 

The open nature of most uses designated Institutional, particularly Fort Wellington and the 

cemeteries, also means that they contribute significantly to the network of green space in the 

community.  Institutional uses typically make a positive contribution to the community; however, 

it is important recognize the need to carefully integrate such uses with the surrounding 

neighbourhood while minimizing any potential adverse impacts on residential development.  

 

The goals and policies for Institutional development in Prescott are outlined as follows. 

 

3.6.1 Goals 

1. Support institutional development that meets local and regional service needs, 

complements the aesthetic of the surrounding neighbourhood, and contributes to the 

Town’s image and role as a regional administrative centre. 

 

Page 227 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 47 

 

2. Ensure the compatibility of institutional development with surrounding neighbourhoods 

and encourage its integration, as appropriate, with the existing street and open space 

network. 

 

3.6.2 Policies 

1. Permit a diverse range of land uses in the Institutional designation, including: 

highschools; government offices; civic facilities, such as libraries and auditoriums; 

museums and other cultural facilities; hospitals; long-term care facilities; day cares; and 

cemeteries. Buildings will typically be single-use. 

 

2. Outside of the Institutional designation, smaller institutional uses are also permitted in all 

land use designations, without an amendment to this Plan. In such circumstances, the 

applicable foregoing policies shall apply. 

 

3. Ensure that all new institutional development connects to existing neighbourhoods. 

Appropriate connections may be provided by streets, sidewalks, walkways and/or bicycle 

paths, or open space, and shall serve as a means of integrating new development into 

the Town fabric, and encouraging walking and bicycle use. Such connections should 

also facilitate the safe separation of pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. The removal 

of any existing connection with surrounding neighbourhoods is strongly discouraged. 

 

4. Encourage new institutional development to contribute to the network of green space in 

the community, as appropriate, by providing accessible open space and/or public realm 

space on-site, or linkages to nearby open space. 

 

5. Minimize the potential of off-site impacts of new institutional development on adjacent 

residential neighbourhoods by requiring buffering and screening of new development. 

Potential off-site impacts to be minimized could include noise and light. Proponents of 

new institutional development shall be required to demonstrate regard for the policies in 

the Compatibility and Built Form Section of this Plan.  

 

6. Ensure that all new institutional development, and institutional intensification, provides 

adequate off-street parking, in accordance with the requirements of the Zoning By-law. 

Access points to such parking should be designed to minimize the potential conflict 

between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular traffic. Access to institutional development 

from residential streets should be avoided, to the extent possible. 

 

7. Work closely with the Upper Canada District School Board and the Catholic District 

School Board of Eastern Ontario in determining the need and location of future 

educational facilities. Where residential development applications could significantly 

affect current or future educational needs, these School Boards shall be consulted. 

Page 228 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

48 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

8. Require site plan approval for all new institutional development in the Town. 

 

 

9. Require that Institutional uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.7 Parks and Open Space  

Lands designated Parks and Open Space on Schedule A of this Plan have a significant impact 

on defining Prescott’s urban form by providing a sense of openness, particularly on the east 

side, with the integration of Fort Wellington, Prescott Golf Club, and the open land on the 

waterfront across King Street East (County Road 2). Such lands include public and private 

recreation areas and facilities, as well as land held in its natural vegetated state or protected 

from development due to the presence of significant natural heritage features or environmental 

constraints, and are an important component in the Town's urban natural heritage system.  

 

The goals and policies for Parks and Open Space development in Prescott are outlined as 

follows. 

 

3.7.1 Goals 

1. Recognize lands designated as Parks and Open Space as valuable resources that 

define the identity and image of Prescott and contribute to the quality of life for Town 

residents. 

 

2. Ensure that the existing parks and open space lands within the built-up areas contribute 

to the Town's urban natural heritage system, and work toward the creation of an 

interconnected network of green spaces comprised of park and open space features. 

 

3. Enhance access to park and open space features, including shoreline and waterfront 

areas, for residents and visitors. 

 

3.7.2 Policies 

1. Permit a range of recreational and community-oriented land uses in park and open 

space areas, including: community centres; recreational facilities, such as indoor/outdoor 

sports fields, courts, pools, and arenas; playgrounds; golf courses; marinas and docks; 

environmental education/interpretive centers; nature preserves; trails; and necessary 

utilities. 

 

Page 229 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 49 

 

2. Recognize that waterfront parks and greenspace are a community priority and that the 

Town should seek to continuously improve and enhance these spaces as funding 

permits. 

 

3. Ensure that development within existing parks and recreational areas are consistent with 

the Town’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  

 

4. Provide an adequate supply and equitable distribution of lands designated Parks and 

Open Space, and support a wide range of recreation and leisure opportunities 

throughout the Town. 

 

5. Identify and secure connections between new and existing parkland and new residential 

neighbourhoods during the development approval process.  The provision for these 

connections will be included in the design of new parkland. Such connections may be 

made by means of sidewalks, walkways or bicycle paths, or open space. 

 

6. Encourage the joint use of lands designated Parks and Open Space with other agencies, 

such as the Upper Canada District School Board, Eastern Ontario Catholic School 

Board, Parks Canada, Canada Coast Guard, and the United Counties of Leeds and 

Grenville. 

 

7. Support the co-location of future school and park sites, particularly for active recreational 

uses, as a means of maximizing the use of land and reducing the potential for 

duplication of services. 

 

8. Consider acquisition, or alternative means of maintaining existing parkland levels, if a 

school property is declared surplus for educational purposes. 

 

9. Council may consider disposal of surplus parkland, provided that an overall sufficient 

amount of parkland within the Town is maintained, in accordance with the minimum 

hectares required identified in the Town’s Recreation Master Plan, as amended from 

time to time.  

 

10. Consider acquisition, or integration by means of access easements, of utility corridors 

such as railway rights-of-ways and hydro rights-of-ways for the purposes of expanding 

the Town’s pedestrian and bicycle network. In cases where such corridors are 

abandoned, reuse them for park and open space purposes that are compatible with and 

preserve the linear characteristics of such corridors. 

 

11. Work with other levels of government, agencies and neighbouring municipalities to 

coordinate strategies and funding opportunities to acquire and preserve parks, open 

Page 230 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

50 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

space areas, and significant natural heritage features and areas, as part of the efforts in 

establishing a network of trails and an urban natural heritage system. 

 

12. Require site plan approval for all new park and open space development in the Town. 

 

13. Parks and Open Space uses are permitted in all land use designations, except the 

Employment Area designation, without an amendment to this Plan. In such 

circumstances, the applicable foregoing policies shall apply. 

 

14. Permit a new recreational facility proposed at the northeast corner of Churchill Street 

and Sophia Street, which is intended to be the location of a new Town Recreation 

Complex. 

 

15. Require that Parks and Open Space uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

3.8 Highway 401 Corridor  

The Highway 401 Corridor designation on Schedule A of this Plan applies to predominantly 

vacant lands along Highway 401. This area is strategically located and has the potential to 

accommodate uses that not only serve the transportation industry and travelling public, but also 

the broader regional market area. It also provides an important opportunity to support the 

establishment of a broad range of uses, with a high standard of building and site design.  

 

The goals and policies for development in the Highway 401 Corridor are outlined as follows. 

 

3.8.1 Goals 

1. Further diversify the Town's economic base and provide employment opportunities for 

the Town's residents. 

 

2. Enhance the image of the Town as a successful, prosperous community by ensuring 

that future development exhibits a high standard of building and site design. 

 

3.8.2 Policies 

1. Permit a diverse mix of uses that are focused on serving the transportation industry and 

travelling public, and also the broader regional market area. Permitted uses shall be 

those uses which are permitted in the Employment Area and Highway Commercial 

designations of this Plan.  

 

2. Enable the Town to establish a clear identity for the area by means of entry features, 

streetscape, signage, lighting, landscaping, and architecture. 

Page 231 of 300



 

Section 3.0 Land Use Designations 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 51 

 

 

3. Consider treating Highway 401 as the lot frontage in terms of site planning 

considerations, including: building orientation and facade treatment, loading and storage; 

and parking. 

 

4. Ensure that all new development provides adequate off-street parking, in accordance 

with the requirements of the Zoning By-law. Access points to such parking should be 

designed to minimize the potential conflict between pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular 

traffic. 

 

5. Maintain compatibility between permitted uses in the Highway 401 Corridor designation, 

and with adjacent residential neighbourhoods by establishing setbacks in accordance 

with Provincial Land Use Compatibility Guidelines, landscape and screening, 

performance requirements, and other means of reducing or eliminating the potential for 

adverse offsite effects, in accordance with Section 2.2.2.3 Commercial Facilities and 

Residential Uses and Section 2.2.2.4 Industrial Facilities and Sensitive Land Uses of this 

Plan. 

 

6. Consult early with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation on all development proposals to 

maintain the operating viability of the Highway 401 corridor and interchange at Edward 

Street by supporting the controls required by MTO. Planning decisions on lands 

designated as Highway 401 Corridor within the MTO permit control areas must be 

consistent with MTO requirements in order for the development to obtain necessary 

permits. The MTO requires all necessary studies to be completed as a condition of 

permits and can include, but are not limited to: traffic impact studies, stormwater 

management studies, photometric plans, geotechnical studies and environmental 

assessments. All developments that have frontage on MTO controlled roads must also 

conform to the MTO’s setback requirements. 

 

7. Require site plan approval for all new development in the Highway 401 Corridor 

designation. 

 

8. Require that new uses be zoned appropriately in the Zoning By-law. 

 

9. Council may consider the preparation of a Servicing Study for the properties north of 

Highway 401 to address the feasibility of extending municipal water and services to 

facilitate future industrial and commercial development, and assist in addressing 

potential barriers to investment. 

 

Page 232 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

52 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage, and 

Development Constraints  

This Section of the Official Plan contains policies related to the natural environment, including 

natural heritage features and areas, as well as cultural heritage resources, and development 

constraints resulting from the presence of natural and human-made hazards, as well as 

potential mineral aggregate resources in the Town.  

 

These policies are intended to be used in conjunction with the other policies of this Plan. 

 

4.1 Environmental and Natural Heritage Management  

The quality of life in any community is directly related to the quality of the natural environment, 

public safety and well-being. It is recognized in this Official Plan that the natural environment is 

a resource that must be carefully managed to preserve its quality and contribution to the health 

and identity of the community.  

 

The Town provides direct access to the St. Lawrence River, which was instrumental in the 

Town’s development, and remains important for employment, resident enjoyment, and tourism. 

The natural environment is celebrated for how it contributes to a high quality of life for residents, 

as well as the significant economic development opportunities generated by being a premier 

tourist destination. In recognition of these benefits, the Town values the importance of 

stewardship to preserve and enhance the natural environment now and for future generations of 

both residents and tourists. 

 

Natural heritage is composed of an interconnected system of natural heritage features and 

areas, which are linked by natural corridors and support the natural processes necessary to 

maintain biological and geological diversity, natural functions, viable populations of indigenous 

species, and ecosystems. The location of the Natural Heritage System components discussed 

in this Section of the Official Plan are illustrated on Schedule C unless noted otherwise in the 

policies. Where development and site alteration are contemplated by the policies of this Section, 

they would also be subject to the underlying land use designation policies in the Land Use 

Designation Policies Section of this Plan.  

 

4.1.1 Goals 

1. Maintain and enhance the ecological integrity of the natural heritage system. 

 

2. Recognize the natural environment as a community resource that must be preserved 

and considered in all land use planning decisions. 

 

Page 233 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 53 

 

3. Promote development patterns that minimize adverse impacts on the natural 

environment. 

 

4. Shall make decisions that reflect responsible use of scarce resources and respect for the 

environment in recognition of the challenges associated with addressing climate change. 

 

5. Provide tools to properly assess development applications located in close proximity to 

environmentally sensitive features and areas. 

 

4.1.2 Policies 

4.1.2.1 Environmental Impact 

1. Ensure that potential environmental impacts resulting from proposed development are 

appropriately evaluated and considered during the development application process. 

Environmental impacts include potential direct or indirect impacts of a proposed 

development on components of the Town’s natural heritage system, such as wetlands, 

woodlands, and wildlife habitat. Any potential negative impacts on natural heritage 

features and areas or their ecological functions shall be addressed by the applicant prior 

to any approval by the Town, in accordance with the policies in this Section. An 

Environmental Impact Study may be required in support of a development application, 

as identified in the policies in this Section. 

  

4.1.2.2 Natural Heritage System  

1. Recognize that, while the Town does not contain significant natural heritage features 

and areas such as Provincially Significant Wetlands or significant coastal wetlands, 

significant woodlands, areas of natural and scientific interest (ANSIs), or significant 

valleylands, there are natural areas where an appropriate level of environmental review 

is required prior to the approval of new development. These areas include, but are not 

limited, the St. Lawrence River and shoreline, and woodlands and unevaluated wetlands 

on the undeveloped lands along the eastern Town boundary, and the undeveloped lands 

along the Highway 401 corridor. In the event that any significant natural heritage 

features and areas, including Provincially Significant Wetlands, significant coastal 

wetlands, ANSIs, significant valleylands, or significant woodlands are identified in the 

future, such features shall be added to Schedule C through an amendment to this Plan.  

 

2. Council will seek opportunities to create natural linkages and corridors between natural 

heritage features areas at the time of development review, as well as promote the 

maintenance, restoration or improvement of existing connectivity and linkages. 

 

Page 234 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

54 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

3. Encourage property owners and other public agencies to enter into voluntary 

agreements regarding the protection of natural heritage features and areas, and other 

natural features. 

 

4. Require that development applications in natural heritage features and areas on 

Schedule C, including adjacent lands, be supported by an Ecological Site Assessment 

and/or an Environmental Impact Study to determine the environmental value associated 

with the lands, as well as appropriate mitigation measures to protect any valued 

features. Such review shall be completed in accordance with the Environmental Impact 

Study policies of this Plan.  

 

4.1.2.3 Adjacent Lands  

The Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 defines adjacent lands as those lands contiguous to a 

specific natural heritage feature or area where it is likely that development or site alteration 

would have a negative impact on the feature or area. The extent of adjacent lands may be 

recommended by the Province or based on municipal approached which achieve the same 

objectives. For the purposes of this Plan, adjacent lands are determined to include all lands 

within the specific distance of the boundary of natural heritage features and areas as set out in 

the following table: 

 

Natural Heritage Feature or Area Extent of Adjacent Lands 

Provincially Significant Wetlands and Significant Coastal 
Wetlands 

120 metres 

Coastal Wetlands 120 metres 

Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest – Life Science 120 metres 

Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest – Earth Science   50 metres 

Significant Valleylands 120 metres 

Significant Woodlands 120 metres 

Significant Habitat of Endangered and Threatened Species 120 metres 

Significant Wildlife Habitat 120 metres 

Fish Habitat 120 metres 

 

1. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands unless the 

ecological function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been 

demonstrated, through an Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with the 

Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impact on 

the natural features or their ecological functions. 

 

4.1.2.4 Endangered and Threatened Species  

The Endangered Species Act, 2007 (ESA) prohibits the killing, harming, harassment, capture, or 

taking of a species at risk, and the damaging or destroying of their habitat. The habitat of 

endangered species and threatened species is not illustrated on the Schedules of this Plan, as 

Page 235 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 55 

 

habitat is dynamic and species and habitat information is limited or not published for its 

protection. The species that occupy the habitat of endangered species and threatened species 

are listed or categorized on the Province’s official Species at Risk in Ontario list, as updated and 

amended from time to time. The Province administers the ESA to protect and conserve Species 

at Risk and their habitat. Under the ESA, the Province is responsible for identifying and 

approving general and regulated habitat, as well as giving technical advice on Species at Risk 

and their habitat. The Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) is the lead 

agency responsible for approving the delineation of habitat of endangered species and 

threatened species and administering the provisions for the ESA. 

 

A list of Species at Risk (SAR) known to have observations and occurrences in the area is 

available through the MECP. If at any time, a SAR as listed under the ESA is encountered, work 

must stop immediately and the MECP must be contacted. 

 

1. The presence of, or high potential for, Species at Risk (extirpated, endangered, 

threatened or special concern species) on a site shall be identified through the use of the 

Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC) provincial database, and through 

consultation with MECP district staff.  

 

2. It is the responsibility of the proponent to ensure that any development or activity does 

not contravene the ESA. All development and site alteration must be planned and 

considered in accordance with the provisions of the ESA. A preliminary Ecological Site 

Assessment may be required to be carried out during the planning of proposed 

development and site alterations to determine whether a listed species or its habitat may 

be present before carrying out an activity that may contravene the ESA. In accordance 

with the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference 

Manual, as amended, an Ecological Site Assessment can include a review of one or 

more of the following:  

 

a. Information about known occurrences within the recommended screening 

distance of at least 1 km;  

 

b. Information provided by the MECP to municipalities (e.g. screening information, 

species lists, range maps);  

 

c. In the absence of or in addition to such MECP information, guidance from the 

local MECP district office;  

 

d. Official Plan mapping;  

 

e. Existing local knowledge (e.g. that of municipal staff) of the area and the species 

likely to occur, given their ranges and habitat needs; and  

Page 236 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

56 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

f. Preliminary field investigations (if needed to confirm the presence of species). 

 

If the results of the preliminary Ecological Site Assessment determine that the significant 

habitat of an endangered or threatened species is not present on the proposed 

development site, no action is required. Proponents should submit the information to the 

Town.  

 

If the results of the preliminary Ecological Site Assessment determine that the significant 

habitat of an endangered or threatened species may be present on the proposed 

development site, the proponent shall provide the Town with an Environmental Impact 

Study, prepared in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, 

to demonstrate that there will be no negative impacts on the habitat of endangered and 

threated species or its ecological function. The EIS must be completed by a qualified 

professional to address potential impacts on the habitat of endangered and threatened 

species. Some activities may need to be modified to accommodate endangered and 

threatened species and their habitats, and to minimize any adverse effects on these 

species. While current best management practices may help to mitigate the impacts 

resulting from an activity on the land, additional actions may be required to address 

specific impacts on a species at a particular site or location and will be determined on a 

case-by-case basis. 

3. If impacts to an endangered species or threatened species cannot be avoided, then the 

activity cannot proceed unless a permit or agreement under the ESA is granted. The 

proponent must work directly with MECP district staff to develop agreements or permits 

when required. 

 

4.1.2.5 Fish Habitat  

The Town of Prescott supports the management of fisheries, with important economic, social 

and environmental benefits. Under the Fisheries Act, fish habitat is defined as spawning 

grounds and nursery, rearing, food supply, and migration areas on which fish depend directly or 

indirectly in order to carry out their life processes. The Department of Fisheries and Oceans 

Canada (DFO) has a mandate to protect and preserve fish habitat on Crown and private lands 

under the Fisheries Act, and the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry has a lead role in 

supporting planning authorities in carrying out their responsibilities.  

 

1. Where detailed habitat mapping is not available, all watercourses and waterbodies shall 

be considered fish habitat, unless is can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Town 

that the features do not constitute fish habitat as defined in the Fisheries Act. 

Evaluations of watercourses and waterbodies must be performed by a qualified biologist.  

 

2. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted on or within 120 m of fish 

spawning or nursery habitat, unless it is demonstrated through the preparation of an 

Page 237 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 57 

 

Environmental Impact Study (EIS), in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study 

Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on natural features or 

ecological functions. This EIS shall be completed by a qualified professional and shall 

identify the features of the fish habitat, the nature of the proposed development, the 

potential impacts that the development may have on the fish habitat, and mitigation 

measures required to prevent adverse impacts on fish habitat. 

 

3. Where development or site alteration will result in serious harm to fish, prior 

authorization is required from DFO under the Fisheries Act. 

 

4.1.2.6 Wetlands  

Wetlands are essential components of ecosystems that contribute to the high quality of the 

environment. Wetlands assist in flood control by controlling and storing surface water, trap 

sediment to improve water quality, provide habitat for a variety of plant and animal species, and 

function as recharge areas for groundwater resources. The Town recognizes the importance of 

protecting wetlands and their critical ecological and hydrological functions. 

 

The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry evaluates the biological, social, hydrological 

and special features of wetlands to determine their relative significance in Ontario and 

designates certain areas as Provincially Significant Wetlands and significant coastal wetlands.  

 

1. Wetlands within the Town are illustrated in Schedule C. To date, no wetlands in the 

Town have been identified as Provincially Significant Wetlands or significant coastal 

wetlands.  

 

2. All wetlands are important natural heritage features and areas and will generally be 

protected from incompatible development and site alteration.  

 

3. A wetland evaluation must be performed before any planning approvals are processed 

for wetlands that have characteristics or components of a significant wetland, including 

significant species or functions. Guidance for wetland evaluations can be found in the 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Ontario Wetland Evaluation System – 

Southern Manual (2013). 

 

4. Any evaluated wetland that is deemed to be significant shall be granted the protections 

afforded in this Plan, without the need for an amendment to this Plan.  

 

4.1.2.7 Significant Coastal Wetlands  

The Town of Prescott recognizes that coastal wetlands represent any wetlands that are located 

on one of the Great Lakes or their contributing channels, including the St. Lawrence River, or 

any other wetland that is on a tributary to any of the aforementioned waterbodies and lie, either 

Page 238 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

58 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

wholly or in part, downstream of a line located 2 km upstream of the 1:100 year floodline (plus 

wave run-up) of the large waterbody to which the tributary is connected. 

 

1. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within significant coastal 

wetlands. 

 

2. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands which are within 

120 m of the boundaries of a significant coastal wetland unless the ecological function of 

the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been demonstrated, through an 

Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with the Environmental Impact 

Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural feature 

or its ecological function. 

 

4.1.2.8 Provincially Significant Wetlands  

The Town of Prescott recognizes that Provincially Significant Wetlands (PSWs) must be 

protected and conserved. While no PSWs have been identified in the Town, the Town 

recognizes the potential for unevaluated wetlands to be identified as PSWs in the future. 

 

1. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within a Provincially Significant 

Wetland. 

 

2. No development or site alteration shall be permitted on adjacent lands which are within 

120 m of the boundaries of a Provincially Significant Wetland unless the ecological 

function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been demonstrated, 

through the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study prepared in accordance with 

the Environmental Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative 

impacts on the natural feature or its ecological function. 

 

4.1.2.9 Wildlife Habitat  

The Town recognizes that all the undeveloped land in the Town may be suitable habitat for a 

variety of wildlife species, including natural areas identified on Schedule C. The 2020 Provincial 

Policy Statement defines a wildlife habitat area as an area of land where plants, animals and 

other organisms live, and find adequate amounts of food, water, shelter and space needed to 

sustain their populations. Significant wildlife habitat areas are not illustrated on the Schedules of 

this Plan, as the exact locations of these areas must be determined on a site-specific basis, in 

accordance with the criteria for determining significance provided in the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry’s’ Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as amended, Ecoregion criteria, 

and the Significant Wildlife Habitat Technical Guide.  

 

No significant wildlife habitat areas have been identified by the Province. 

 

Page 239 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 59 

 

1. Wildlife habitats may include one or more of the following characteristics: 

 

a. Seasonal concentrations of animals, such as deer wintering habitat; 

 

b. Rare vegetation communities and specialized habitats for wildlife; 

 

c. Habitats of species of ‘special concern’ and other wildlife habitats, such as 

provincially rare plants, reptiles, amphibians, and birds, as well as nests of 

raptors such as osprey; and 

 

d. Animal movement corridors. 

 

2. Lands identified as wildlife habitat are important components of the Natural Heritage 

System within the Town and must be protected from incompatible development and site 

alteration. 

 

3. A wildlife habitat evaluation must be performed by a qualified environmental professional 

before any planning approvals are processed for areas that have characteristics or 

components of a wildlife habitat. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted 

within or adjacent to significant wildlife habitat, unless it has been demonstrated through 

the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study in accordance with the Environmental 

Impact Study Section of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural 

features or their ecological functions. 

 

4. Any evaluated wildlife habitat that is deemed to be significant will be granted the 

protections afforded in this Section without the need for an amendment to this Plan. 

 

4.1.2.10 Woodlands  

Woodlands are treed areas that provide environmental and economic benefits to both the 

private landowner and the general public, such as: preventing erosion; hydrological and nutrient 

cycling; provision of clean air; long-term carbon storage; provision of essential habitat for flora 

and fauna, including Species at Risk; outdoor recreation opportunities; the sustainable harvest 

of a wide range of woodland products; and scenic values. Woodlands include treed areas, 

woodlots, or forested areas, and vary in their significance at the local, regional, and provincial 

levels. 

 

The intent of this Plan is to conserve significant woodlands and vegetation, and prohibit 

incompatible land uses that deter their long-term benefits. For the purposes of this Plan, 

significant woodlands include those that meet the criteria established in the Ministry of Natural 

Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as amended. 

 

Page 240 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

60 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

Woodlands are identified on Schedule C of this Plan, based on available provincial mapping 

which has not been groundtruthed. There may be areas identified as woodlands where they 

may not exist, as well as areas which may be woodlands but have not been mapped, or their 

boundaries have changed over time.  

 

1. At the time of a development application where woodlands have been identified on 

Schedule C, site assessment by a qualified environmental professional shall be required 

to verify the presence of significant woodlands, and the determination of significance 

shall be based on the criteria provided in the Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as 

amended.  

 

2. Existing development shall be permitted within woodlands and significant woodlands. 

Development on existing lots of record shall be permitted, subject to all other relevant 

policies of this Plan. 

 

3. New development should be directed away from woodlands, to the extent feasible.  

 

4. Permitted development within woodlands should seek to minimize its footprint.  

 

5. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within or adjacent to significant 

woodlands, unless it has been demonstrated, through the preparation of an 

Environmental Impact Study in accordance with the Environmental Impact Study Section 

of this Plan, that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 

ecological functions. 

 

4.1.2.11 Environmental Impact Study 

The purpose of an Environmental Impact Study (EIS) is to provide the Town and other 

regulatory agencies with a professional opinion on the potential impact of development and site 

alteration on natural heritage features, areas, and adjacent lands, and their ecological functions. 

The Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s Natural Heritage Reference Manual, as 

amended, shall be used to guide the preparation of an EIS and evaluation of potential impacts.   

 

1. Ensure that the preparation of an Environmental Impact Study (EIS), where required by 

the policies of this Plan or where the development approval process identifies the need 

for one, be completed by a qualified professional at the expense of the applicant. The 

nature and scale of the proposed development, its physical location relative to the 

natural heritage features and areas and the contextual environment (i.e. built versus 

natural) in which it is to occur are important considerations in the context of establishing 

the appropriate level of study to be undertaken. Accordingly, any required Environmental 

Impact Study shall generally be scoped, in consultation with the Ministry of Northern 

Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry (MNDNRF) and/or South Nation 

Page 241 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 61 

 

Conservation Authority (SNC), to suit the particular circumstances prior to being 

undertaken. 

 

2. Require a full Environmental Impact Study, in consultation with the Ministry of Northern 

Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry (MNDMNRF) and/or South Nation 

Conservation Authority (SNC), where dictated by the type and size of the proposed 

development and the potential significance of the natural heritage features and areas 

that may be impacted. Such a study shall also be completed by a qualified professional 

at the expense of the applicant and include: 

 

a. Defining the nature and the boundaries of any significant features, including the 

presence of endangered and threatened species and their habitats, ecological 

functions, and values on, or adjacent to, the site; 

 

b. Describing and mapping proposed development activities, including building 

location, excavation, site grading, landscaping, drainage works, roadway 

construction, paving, sewer and water servicing in relation to various 

environmental considerations; 

 

c. Predicting the effects of proposed development on the various components of the 

environment on and adjacent to the site, such as wildlife, fish, vegetation, soil, 

surface water, groundwater, air and any other relevant factors, taking into 

consideration effects during and after site alteration; 

 

d. Evaluating the significance of all predicted and adverse and positive effects on 

the various environmental considerations; 

 

e. Itemizing and recommending all measures that can be taken to avoid, reduce, or 

mitigate the predicted negative impacts; 

 

f. Evaluating the cumulative effect that the project (and any other known projects or 

activities) may have following implementation of any mitigation measures on the 

natural features, areas, and adjacent lands, and ecological functions identified for 

protection; 

 

g. Concluding with a professional opinion on whether negative effects on the natural 

features and ecological functions will occur, the significance of such impacts, and 

whether ongoing monitoring is required. 

 

Page 242 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

62 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.1.2.12 Trees and Landscaping 

The Town recognizes the importance of incorporating and providing healthy growing conditions 

for trees and landscaping to improve air quality, mitigate urban heat island effects, enhance 

ecosystem health, and contribute to community character. Trees can frame and define streets, 

calm traffic by visually narrowing the roadway, and add texture, shade, and visual interest.  

 

1. To promote trees and landscaping the Town, the following will be required:  

 

a. Submission of a landscape and/or tree planting plan as part of any development 

application that requires site plan approval. 

 

b. A tree preservation and/or tree planting plan to be submitted as a condition of 

approval for a plan of subdivision. 

 

c. Inclusion of native planting species in landscape and/or tree planting plans, as 

part of development review.  

 

2. Consider the adoption of a tree cutting by-law to prohibit or regulate the injuring or 

destruction of trees that contribute to the urban forest. 

 

3. Consider the preparation of guidelines for landscaping and/or tree planting in the Town, 

including for roadway allowances, parklands, and other civic properties. Such guidelines 

should address the functionality of landscaped areas vis a vis existing infrastructure and 

their contribution to the urban forest. 

 

4.2 Cultural Heritage Resources 

The historical context of Prescott is expressed in its many historic buildings and sites, which 

contribute significantly to the identity and image of the Town as a tourist attraction and as a 

preferred place to live, work, and shop. It is important then, to protect and conserve cultural 

heritage resources, including built heritage resources, cultural heritage landscapes, and 

archaeological resources. Conservation and preservation of historic features in the Town is 

strongly encouraged. 

 

4.2.1 Goals 

1. Encourage the conservation and preservation of historic features and cultural resources 

in the Town to enhance quality of life and support local economic development. 

 

2. Recognize the importance of the conservation and preservation of historic features and 

cultural resources to local economic development, including tourism. 

 

Page 243 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 63 

 

3. Support the adaptive re-use of existing heritage buildings in the Town. 

 

4.2.2 Policies 

4.2.2.1 Built Heritage Resources and Cultural Heritage Landscapes 

“Built heritage resources” and “cultural heritage landscapes” are defined in the 2020 Provincial 

Policy Statement and in this Plan as follows: 

 

Built heritage resources: means a building, structure, monument, installation or any 

manufactured remnant that contributes to a property’s cultural heritage value or interest as 

identified by a community, including an Indigenous community. Built heritage resources are 

generally located on property that has been designated under Parts IV or V of the Ontario 

Heritage Act, or that may be included on local, provincial, federal, and/or international registers. 

 

Cultural heritage landscape: means a defined geographical area that may have been modified 

by human activity and is identified as having cultural heritage value or interest by a community, 

including an Indigenous community. The area may include features such as buildings, 

structures, spaces, views, archaeological sites or natural elements that are valued together for 

their interrelationship, meaning or association. Cultural heritage landscapes may be properties 

that have been determined to have cultural heritage value or interest under the Ontario Heritage 

Act, or have been included on federal and/or international registers, and/or protected through 

official plan, zoning by-law, or other land use planning mechanisms.  

 

1. Significant built heritage resources and cultural heritage landscapes shall be identified 

and conserved.  

 

2. The Ontario Heritage Act may be utilized to conserve, protect, and enhance resources of 

cultural heritage interest or value in the Town through the designation, by by-law, of 

individual buildings, structures, sites, and landscapes, or heritage conservation districts 

in the Town, as appropriate. The establishment of a Heritage Conservation District may 

be implemented in the Zoning By-law through an overlay zone, as appropriate. 

 

3. The Town shall maintain a municipal register of properties, districts, and landscapes, 

and other resources of cultural heritage interest or value, including any properties 

designated under Parts IV and V of the Ontario Heritage Act. Non-designated properties 

that Council believes to be of cultural heritage value or interest may also be included on 

the municipal heritage register.  

 

4. Where development or site alteration is proposed that may impact a significant cultural 

heritage resource, or on a property adjacent to or fronting a protected heritage property, 

the Town shall require an application to undertake a Heritage Impact Assessment as 

part of the development review process. The Heritage Impact Assessment shall be 

Page 244 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

64 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

conducted by a qualified professional with expertise in the conservation of cultural 

heritage resources to:  

 

a. Identify the positive and adverse impacts on the cultural heritage resource that 

may be expected to occur as a result of the proposed development; and 

b. Describe alternative development approaches, mitigation measures, and 

conservation methods that may be required to prevent, minimize or mitigate the 

adverse impacts.  

 

5. Where a property has not previously been evaluated, a Cultural Heritage Evaluation 

Report may need to be completed prior to a Heritage Impact Assessment.  

 

6. The Town shall engage with Indigenous communities and consider their interests when 

identifying, protecting, and managing cultural heritage resources.  

 

7. Consider the preparation of a Heritage Master Plan for the Town as a means of 

identifying various cultural heritage resources and historic elements, and establishing 

policies and/or guidelines for long term conservation and preservation. The Heritage 

Master Plan could include: 

 

a. Inventory, evaluation, and mapping of registered and unregistered historic sites 

and places, Provincially-registered archaeological sites, locally-known 

archaeological sites, areas of archaeological potential, and other locally 

significant cultural heritage resources; 

 

b. Identification and evaluation of cultural facilities and organizations; 

 

c. Strategies for the conservation and enhancement of identified resources; and 

 

d. Programs to educate and inform the public of identified resources and encourage 

community participation in resource conservation and enhancement. 

 

8. Recognize the importance of a Heritage Committee and support their role in examining 

the desirability and suitability of restoring, conserving, and preserving cultural heritage 

resources in the Town. 

 

9. Consider establishing or participating in an existing heritage grant program to encourage 

the conservation and preservation of cultural heritage resources. 

 

Page 245 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 65 

 

10. Consider the restoration of built heritage resources deemed to be in non-compliance 

with Town building by-laws by permitting specific amendments, as appropriate and 

allowed under the Ontario Building Code Act and the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

11. Support the priority projects recommended for the King Street District in the Downtown 

Design and Guidelines report, including the Façade Improvement Program.  

 

12. Apply the guidelines in the Downtown Design and Guidelines report (as amended) to 

evaluate all applications for new development in the Downtown Core to ensure that 

development is sensitive to and supports the historical nature of the downtown, and 

adheres to the vision for the downtown established by the community as part of the 

Official Plan process. These guidelines relate to: 

 

a. Historic buildings on King Street; and 

 

b. New commercial construction and remodeling buildings on King Street. 

 

13. In attaining its goal for establishing a barrier-free environment with the objective of 

providing the highest degree of access with the lowest level of impact on the heritage 

attributes of the property, Council shall encourage access solutions in a manner that 

respects the cultural heritage value or interest of a protected property. Appropriate 

solutions will be determined by consulting qualified persons as well as affected users. 

Council recognizes that standardized designs may not always suffice and that each 

heritage property will require unique accessibility plans to ensure that alterations do not 

adversely affect the heritage attributes. 

 

14. Utilize site plan control to protect cultural heritage resources and to implement specific 

conditions as part of the site plan agreement. 

 

4.2.2.2 Archaeological Resources 

“Archaeological resources” and “areas of archaeological potential” are defined in the 2020 

Provincial Policy Statement as follows:  

 

Archaeological resources: includes artifacts, archaeological sites, marine archaeological sites, 

as defined under the Ontario Heritage Act. The identification and evaluation of such resources 

are based upon archaeological fieldwork undertaken in accordance with the Ontario Heritage 

Act.  

 

Areas of archaeological potential: means areas with the likelihood to contain archaeological 

resources. Criteria to identify archaeological potential are established by the Province. The 

Page 246 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

66 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

Ontario Heritage Act requires archaeological potential to be confirmed through archaeological 

fieldwork by a licensed archaeologist. 

 

Areas of archaeological potential are determined through the use of provincial screening criteria, 

or potential mapping. Provincial screening criteria include the consideration of factors such as 

proximity to known archaeological sites, burial sites or cemeteries, present or past water 

sources, well-drained sandy soil, elevated topography, distinctive landforms, resource extraction 

areas and historic transportation routes or other places of past human settlement. 

 

Records of known archaeological sites are maintained by the Ministry of Heritage, Sport, 

Tourism and Culture Industries (MHSTCI).  

 

The Town recognizes that, by virtue of its location on the St. Lawrence River, there is significant 

potential to contain archaeological resources within its boundaries. 

 

1. The Town shall work with the MHSTCI to obtain available site data from the Provincial 

archaeological database to assist in local heritage conservation and preservation efforts 

and in the review of development applications. Ensure that the database is updated as 

new sites are identified by the Province or during local land development. 

 

2. Where a development proposal or site alteration is proposed on lands containing known 

and potential archaeological resources or is within an area considered to have 

archaeological potential, the Town shall require an applicant to undertake an 

Archaeological Assessment of the lands to determine the nature and extent of any 

archaeological resources on the site. The Archaeological Assessment shall be 

conducted by an archaeologist licensed under the Ontario Heritage Act, and will be in 

compliance with guidelines set out by the MHSTCI, as well as licensing requirements 

development under the Ontario Heritage Act. The Archaeological Assessment shall be 

submitted to the Town and the MHSTCI for approval and registration.  

 

3. Where archaeological resources are found on lands to be developed, further 

Archaeological Assessment and/or a Conservation Plan may be required. Significant 

archaeological resources shall be conserved through avoidance and long-term 

protection, or through documentation and removal.  

 

4. Development on known archaeological sites shall be prohibited, and any alterations on 

such sites shall only be performed by a licensed archaeologist under Section 48 of the 

Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

5. The Town may require a Marine Archaeological Assessment to be conducted by a 

licensed marine archaeologist pursuant to the Ontario Heritage Act if partially or fully 

Page 247 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 67 

 

submerged marine features such as ships, boats, vessels, artifacts from the contents of 

boats, old piers, docks, wharfs, fords, fishing traps, dwellings, aircraft and other items of 

cultural heritage value may be impacted by shoreline and waterfront developments. The 

assessment must be consistent with the guidelines set out by the MHSTCI, as well as 

licensing requirements developed under the Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

6. The Town recognizes the importance of areas of archaeological potential, such as along 

the current and ancient shoreline of the St. Lawrence River, and shall require applicants 

to work with the Town and the MHSTCI should any archaeological resources be 

discovered during development. Such a discovery may warrant on-site archaeological 

preservation to maintain the integrity of the resource, or rescue excavation to remove the 

resource. 

 

7. The Town recognizes that during development, there may be a need for archaeological 

preservation on site or rescue excavation of significant archaeological resources as a 

result of development proposals, and to ensure the preservation of such resources. 

 

8. The Town shall engage with Indigenous communities and consider their interests when 

identifying, protecting, and managing archaeological resources. Consultation with 

Indigenous communities shall be required on any Stage 2 Archaeological Assessment 

report that identifies areas of historical interest or potential for Indigenous artifacts. 

 

9. If human remains are encountered, all activities must cease immediately and the local 

police as well as the Cemeteries Regulation Unit of the Ministry of Government and 

Consumer Services must be contacted. In situations where human remains are 

associated with archaeological resources, MHSTCI should also be notified to ensure that 

the site is not subject to unlicensed alterations which would be a contravention of the 

Ontario Heritage Act. 

 

10. When development has the potential to impact a known or suspected cemetery or burial 

site, an Archaeological Assessment by a licensed consultant archaeologist shall be 

required. Provisions under both the Ontario Heritage Act and the Funeral, Burial and 

Cremation Services Act shall apply. Development shall be guided by this legislation and 

corresponding direction from the Ministry of Government and Consumer Services. 

 

4.3 Hazards  

Environmental conditions, whether naturally occurring or human-made, can result in hazards to 

human life or health, and damage or loss of value to property. Hazards in the natural 

environment include flooding and wildland fires. Human-made hazards include contaminated 

sites, abandoned mine hazards, and petroleum wells.  

Page 248 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

68 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

4.3.1  Goals 

1. Recognize the existence and potential for natural and human-made hazards in the Town 

of Prescott. 

 

2. Protect residents from potential natural and human-made hazards. 

 

3. Identify hazards that may be exacerbated by the impacts of climate change, such as 

flooding and wildfires.  

 

4.3.2 Natural Hazards Policies  

4.3.2.1 Floodplain - St. Lawrence River Hazards  

Floodplains are lands which may be prone to flooding and erosion. In the Town of Prescott, 

lands along the shoreline of the St. Lawrence River designated as Floodplain are shown in 

Schedule C, based on up-to-date mapping received from the South Nation Conservation 

Authority (SNC) in August 2020.  Where lands are subject to the Floodplain designation, the 

policies of this Section, as well as the underlying land use designation, must be considered.  

 

Appendix A to this Official Plan contains Light Detection and Ranging (LIDAR) mapping for 

information purposes, including digital elevation models.  

 

1. Uses permitted on lands designated Floodplain in Schedule C shall include 

conservation, forestry, public or private parks, golf courses, tourism or other outdoor 

recreation uses, and other uses compatible with flooding.  

 

2. For development that is proposed along the waterfront south of King Street, and is 

located within the Floodplain designation, the Town shall require a Flooding Hazard 

Analysis to determine whether the associated hazards of flooding, wave uprush and 

dynamic beach are present and to ensure that no development will be undertaken within 

the floodplain and that potential impacts on development adjacent to the floodplain are 

appropriately mitigated. 

 

3. No new buildings or structures shall be permitted on lands within the Floodplain 

designation, except where such buildings or structures are: 

 

a. Intended for flood or erosion control or are normally associated with watercourse 

protection or bank stabilization; 

 

b. For essential public services, except: 

 

Page 249 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 69 

 

i. Where there is a threat to the safe evacuation of residents during an 

emergency as a result of flooding, failure of flood proofing measures or 

protection works, or erosion; and 

 

ii. Those essential emergency services which would be impaired during an 

emergency as a result of flooding, failure of flood proofing measures or 

protection works, or erosion.  

 

c. For other uses normally associated with shorelines such as docks, boathouses 

non-habitable pedestrian amenities and temporary seasonal structures. 

 

4. All buildings and structures existing legally at the date of adoption of this Plan shall be 

recognized.  

 

5. The Town shall discourage expansion of any non-conforming building, structure, or use 

within the Floodplain designation; however, reconstruction and/or minor alterations to 

existing buildings and structures, and additions or extensions which are not likely to incur 

significant flood damage, and will not result in impediments to flow or floodwater storage, 

may be considered by the Town.  

 

6. The Floodplain designation shown on Schedule C is considered approximate, the actual 

floodplain area based on existing elevations will prevail where there is a discrepancy 

between the mapped floodplain and the actual floodplain. No amendment to this Plan is 

required with respect to minor discrepancies between the mapped Floodplain 

designation and the actual floodplain.”  

 

7. Development and site alteration shall not be permitted within areas that would be 

rendered inaccessible to people and vehicles during times of flooding and/or erosion 

hazards, unless it has been demonstrated that the site has safe access appropriate for 

the nature of the development and the natural hazard. 

 

8. Development shall not be permitted to locate with lands designated floodplain where the 

use is: 

 

a. an institutional use including hospitals, long-term care homes, retirement homes, 

pre-schools, school nurseries, day cares and schools; 

b. an essential emergency service such as that provided by fire, police and 

ambulance stations and electrical substations; or 

c. uses associated with the disposal, manufacture, treatment or storage of 

hazardous substances. 

 

Page 250 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

70 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

4.3.2.2 Wildland Fire Hazard Areas  

Hazardous forest types for wildland fire are forest types that have been assessed by the 

Province as being associated with risk of wildland fire. These areas are generally composed of 

forest fuel types including natural conifer forests and unmanaged conifer plantations.  

 

Potential areas identified by the Province as having risk for wildland fire are illustrated in 

Schedule E of this Plan. Schedule E is provided for information purposes and is intended to 

provide a screening tool for identifying areas at potential risk for wildland fire. Where updated 

and/or more detail assessments are undertaken, Schedule E may be revised without requiring 

an amendment to this Plan. The following policies shall apply to areas near wildland fire 

hazards: 

 

1. Development shall generally be directed to areas outside of lands that are unsafe for 

development due to the presence of hazardous forest types for wildland fire.  

 

2. Development may be permitted in lands with hazardous forest types for wildland fire 

where the risk is mitigated in accordance with wildland fire assessment and mitigation 

standards, as identified by the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural 

Resources and Forestry (MNDMNRF).  

 

3. In the absence of detailed municipal assessments, proponents submitting a planning 

application shall undertake a site review to assess for the presence of areas of high to 

extreme risk for wildland fire on the subject lands and adjacent lands, to the extent 

possible. If development is proceeding where high to extreme risk for wildland fire is 

present, measures should be identified by proponents to outline how the risk will be 

mitigated.  

 

4. Wildland fire mitigation measures which would result in development or site alteration 

shall not be permitted in lands designated as Provincially Significant Wetlands. Wildland 

fire mitigation measures may occur in areas of significant wildlife habitat and significant 

woodlands, provided that it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative 

impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through an Environmental 

Impact Study, prepared in accordance with the policies in the Environmental Impact 

Study Section of this Plan. 

 

4.3.3 Slope and Soil Stability  

1. Where there is a slope adjacent to a watercourse the stable top of the slope will be 

determined by a qualified Professional Engineer, in consultation with the Town. The 

required setback from the top of slope will reflect the degree, severity and extent of the 

slope hazard, if any. 

 

Page 251 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 71 

 

2. A geotechnical study may be required in order to determine the feasibility of proposed 

development adjacent to unstable or potentially unstable slope. Development will 

generally be directed to areas outside of areas of unstable slope identified on Schedule 

C or that are identified on a site-specific basis. A minimum setback may be included in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

4.3.4 Human-Made Hazards Policies 

4.3.4.1 Abandoned Mine Hazards  

As defined in the 2020 Provincial Policy Statement, mine hazards include any feature of a mine 

as defined under the Mining Act, or any related disturbance of the ground that has not been 

rehabilitated. Mine hazards may pose a threat of injury and potential loss of life if they are not 

mitigated or rehabilitated. The Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and 

Forestry (MNDMNRF) maintains the Abandoned Mines Inventory System (AMIS) which 

contains information relating to known and recorded mine sites. 

 

To date, no known or recorded AMIS sites have been identified within the Town. If AMIS sites 

are identified in the future, these sites will be considered to be hazardous areas. 

 

1. The Town shall require that applicants for any proposed development on or within 1 km 

of an abandoned mine hazard to consult with the MENDM regarding the nature of the 

hazard, and to undertake any remediation measures as legislated under the Mining Act. 

 

2. Where an abandoned mine hazard exists, the Township shall require applicants with 

proposed development on, abutting or adjacent to the lands affected by mine hazards to 

be supported by a study that: 

 

a. Identifies potential safety threats; 

 

b. Demonstrates that the site can be rehabilitated to mitigate the known or 

suspected hazard; and 

 

c. Establishes measures to address and mitigate known or suspected hazards. 

 

3. Development on, abutting or adjacent to lands affected by mine hazards or former 

mineral mining operations shall be permitted only if measures to address and mitigate 

known or suspected hazards are underway or have been completed, to the satisfaction 

of the Town and the Province. 

 

4. Where rehabilitation requirements are known and are feasible, known mine hazards and 

adjacent lands may be zoned with a Holding Zone. In these instances, rehabilitation of 

the site in accordance with the requirements of the Mining Act shall be required prior to 

Page 252 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

72 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

the removal of the holding symbol. In the interim, uses permitted on such properties shall 

be restricted to existing land uses. 

 

4.3.4.2 Contaminated Sites  

1. Encourage the rehabilitation and redevelopment, as appropriate, of any potentially 

contaminated site having the potential for adverse effects on humans and/or the natural 

environment. 

 

2. Where planning approvals are required prior to the development of any property which is 

known or suspected of being contaminated by previous uses, for example a gas station 

or an industrial site, or where a change in use to a more sensitive land use has been 

proposed, an environmental site assessment shall be required, prepared by a qualified 

professional in accordance with O. Reg. 153/04: Records of Site Condition under Part 

XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act, as amended, and with the Ministry of 

Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) guidelines, as amended. 

 

3. Where an environmental site assessment completed per Policy 2 of this Section finds 

reasonable evidence to suggest the presence of contamination, further technical studies 

may be necessary to: 

 

a. Identify the nature and extent of contamination; 

 

b. Determine potential human health and safety concerns as well as effects on 

ecological health and the natural environment; 

 

c. Demonstrate that the site can be rehabilitated to meet Provincial standards; and 

 

d. Establish procedures for site rehabilitation and mitigation of the contamination in 

accordance with O. Reg 153/04, and with the MECP guidelines, as amended.  

 
4. As a condition of approval, the municipality will require that remediation, where required, 

is undertaken to appropriate standards of the MECP, as specified in O. Reg 153/04 and 

in the MECP guidelines, as amended, or other regulatory requirements of the MECP. A 

Record of Site Condition shall also be required. The Record of Site Condition shall be 

submitted to the Town and to the MECP, and filed on the Environmental Site Registry, 

as required by the MECP guidelines.  

 

5. In some cases, where site remediation requirements are known and feasible, planning 

approvals using a Holding Zone may be considered. In these instances, the remediation 

of the site and the submission of a Record of Site Condition, acknowledged by the 

Page 253 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 73 

 

MECP, shall be required prior to the removal of a holding symbol. In the interim, uses 

permitted on such properties shall be restricted to existing land uses. 

 

4.3.4.3 Petroleum Wells  

Development within proximity to petroleum resource operations must be carefully regulated to 

minimize land use conflicts and the potential for any adverse effects. There are no known 

petroleum wells within the Town; however, should any petroleum wells be identified in the 

future, the following policies shall apply.  

 

1. New development shall be set back 75 m from existing petroleum wells and associated 

works, with this setback being equivalent to the required setback under the Oil, Gas and 

Salt Resources Act, as amended, for new wells from existing development. 

 

4.4 Mineral Aggregate Resources  

The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement directs that mineral aggregate resources shall be 

protected for long-term use. Mineral aggregate resources means gravel, sand, clay, earth, 

shale, stone, limestone, dolostone, sandstone, marble, granite, rock or other material prescribed 

under the Aggregate Resources Act suitable for construction, industrial, manufacturing and 

maintenance purposes but does not include metallic ores, asbestos, graphite, kyanite, mica, 

nepheline syenite, salt, talc, wollastonite, mine tailings or other material prescribed under the 

Mining Act. 

 

It is recognized that the Town of Prescott does not currently contain any licenced mineral 

aggregate sites or operations. Areas with the potential for mineral aggregate resources are 

identified on Schedule D as Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource Area. 

The identification of mineral aggregate resources on Schedule D does not presume that all 

lands located within these areas are suitable for the establishment of new or expansions to 

existing mineral aggregate operations, especially where these potential mineral aggregate 

resources are constrained by other existing land use and urban built up areas, or natural 

heritage features and areas.  

 

4.4.1 Goals 

1. To protect areas having the potential for mineral aggregate resources for long-term use, 

where appropriate.  

 

4.4.2 Policies 

1. In any areas identified as Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource 

Area on Schedule D, or on adjacent lands, development which would preclude or hinder 

Page 254 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

74 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

the establishment of new operations or access to the resources shall only be permitted 

if:  

 

a. resource use would not be feasible or; 

 

b. the proposed land uses or development serves a greater long term public 

interest; and  

 

c. issues of public health, public safety and environmental impact are addressed. 

 

The concept of an influence area is recognized as a means of protecting against 

incompatible land uses in the vicinity of mineral aggregate operations and mineral 

aggregate resource areas. The impact from existing pits/quarries is considered within an 

influence area of 500 metres for a quarry and 300 metres for a pit. This area is 

considered to have the most impact on sensitive lands uses from the aggregate 

operations. Noise and Hydrogeological studies may be required to assess the impact if 

development occurs within this influence area. This influence area must be applied 

reciprocally to sensitive land uses encroaching on an existing extraction operation or 

designated mineral aggregate reserve. In the absence of site-specific studies, the 

minimum separation distance shall be 500 m for a quarry and 300 m for a pit. 

 

Incompatible land uses in or adjacent to mineral aggregate reserve areas shall be 

discouraged and only permitted in accordance with the policies of Section 4.4.2.1 (a) to 

(c). For the purposes of this policy, adjacent lands shall generally include lands within 

300 m of sand and gravel resources areas and within 500 m of bedrock resource areas.  

 

2. Notwithstanding Policy 1, development in areas identified as Tertiary Sand and Gravel 

Resources and Bedrock Resource Area on Schedule D, or on adjacent lands, which are 

part of the urban built up area of the Town of Prescott shall be permitted. Proposals for 

development within the Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource 

Area as a result of constraints resulting from existing development will be evaluated on a 

site-specific basis by the Town. 

 

3. It is recognized that there is potential for deposits of mineral aggregate resources to 

exist outside of the areas identified on Schedule D. The extraction of mineral aggregate 

resources may be permitted outside of the areas identified on Schedule D where there is 

sufficient quantity and quality of mineral aggregate resources to warrant extraction, as 

determined on a case-by-case basis. 

 

4. The Town shall work with the United Counties of Leeds and Grenville in their preparation 

of an Aggregate Resources Master Plan to refine the deposits of mineral aggregate 

resources identified by the Province, and more accurately identify and examine the 

Page 255 of 300



Section 4.0 Natural Heritage, Cultural Heritage,  
and Development Constraints 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 75 

 

extent and viability of the potential mineral aggregate resources in the United Counties 

and in the Town of Prescott.  

 

5. Extractions of any size shall be undertaken in a manner which minimizes social and 

environmental impacts. 

 

6. Mineral aggregate resource conservation shall be undertaken, including through the use 

of accessory aggregate recycling facilities within operations, wherever feasible. 

 

7. Development in or adjacent to an area of known mineral or aggregate resources, shall 

be located and buffered sufficiently to ensure that the extraction is not limited and that 

the development is not affected by the noise, dust or other health and public safety 

issues that are related to the extractive activity. 

 

8. New mineral aggregate extraction operations shall be permitted in the areas identified as 

Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resources and Bedrock Resource Area on Schedule D, 

provided that separation distances are established in accordance with Ministry of the 

Environment, Conservation and Park’s D-Series Guidelines to ensure that they are not 

offensive and do not create a nuisance as a result of noise, hours of operations, odour, 

traffic generation, air emissions or other means. New mineral aggregate operations 

should be screened from view to the greatest extent possible. New or expanded mineral 

aggregate operations should also not negatively affect existing and future adjacent land 

uses, social values, and the environment. 

 

9. Council shall conserve cultural heritage resources when considering the establishment 

of new areas for mineral aggregate extraction or new operations. When necessary, 

Council shall require the mitigation of any negative impacts on cultural heritage interest 

or value through the use of Cultural Heritage Evaluation Reports, Heritage Impact 

Assessments and/or Archaeological Assessments. 

 

10. Progressive and final rehabilitation to accommodate subsequent land uses shall be 

required after extraction and other related activities have ceased in order to 

accommodate new land uses, to promote land use compatibility, to recognize the interim 

nature of extraction, and to mitigate negative impacts to the extent possible. Final 

rehabilitation shall take surrounding land use and approved land use designations into 

consideration. An Official Plan Amendment to the new land use designation may be 

required to implement the subsequent land use. Progressive rehabilitation should be 

undertaken wherever feasible. 

 

 

 

Page 256 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

76 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.0 Community Services and Transportation  

This Section of the Official Plan addresses a number of policy issues that relate to the provision 

of community services and related facilities in Prescott. Such services include traffic and 

circulation, public services and utilities (sewer, water, energy, etc.), and waste management. 

Parks and recreation services and facilities are also provided by the Town; however, since 

Parks and Open Space is a land use designation in this Official Plan, the policies related to this 

community service are contained in Parks and Open Space Section of this Plan. 

 

These policies are intended to be used in conjunction with the other policies of this Plan. 

 

5.1 Transportation and Circulation 

The Town’s transportation and circulation system is an essential part of achieving the vision, 

goals, and policies expressed in this Official Plan, and influences both land use and the quality 

of life in the Town. The circulation system is comprised of streets for use by vehicles and 

bicycles; while sidewalks and trails for use by pedestrians. Its primary purpose is to provide for 

the movement of people and goods safely and efficiently within the Town and to adjoining 

areas. While the motor vehicle will likely continue to be the primary means of transportation in 

Prescott for the foreseeable future, its use will be balanced by other modes of transportation, 

particularly in the Downtown Core. 

 

The Town’s transportation and circulation system is identified in Schedule B of this Plan.  

 

5.1.1 Goals 

1. Design an integrated transportation and circulation system for all residents and 

businesses that is safe, convenient, affordable, and efficient while minimizing 

environmental impacts. 

 

2. Provide a balanced transportation and circulation system consisting of vehicular, 

pedestrian, and cycling modes along with necessary supporting infrastructure. 

 

3. Recognize the link between transportation and land use and integrate planning for each. 

 

4. Reduce the need to drive and encourage walking and active transportation uses, 

including mobility devices, by providing for a mix of land uses in the Town. 

 

Page 257 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 77 

 

5.1.2 Policies 

5.1.2.1 General 

1. Maintain a transportation and circulation system that supports and complements the 

vision, goals, and policies expressed in this Official Plan. 

 

2. Provide a transportation and circulation system that accommodates the existing and 

future transportation needs of drivers, pedestrians, cyclists, and mobility devices. 

 

3. Encourage alternative modes of transportation by supporting development that 

encourages active transportation, such as walking, cycling, and mobility devices, and 

increases opportunities to live close to work and satisfy day-to-day needs locally without 

relying on a vehicle. 

 

4. Require that any transportation and circulation system construction and reconstruction 

project maximize mobility and accessibility for persons with disabilities. 

 

5.1.2.2 Road Classification 

1. Continue to utilize a functional classification system for roads to aid in the planning, 

development, and maintenance of the Town’s transportation and circulation system. 

Road classifications include Provincial Highways, Arterial Roads, Collector Roads, Local 

Roads, and Pedestrian and Cycling Routes, as follows (refer to Schedule B): 

 

a. Provincial Highways are roadways under the jurisdiction of the Ontario Ministry of 

Transportation (MTO) that are designed to facilitate through traffic movement of 

medium-to-high volumes.  Development within the MTO’s permit control area is 

subject to the requirements of the Public Transportation and Highway 

Improvement Act R.S.O. 1990.  Developers and property owners within the 

MTO’s permit control area are required to obtain approval and acceptance of 

their development plans, and Ministry permits prior to the issuance of municipal 

approval.  As a condition of access permits and building and land use permits, 

the MTO may require the completion of studies which may include, but are not 

limited to traffic impact studies, stormwater management studies, photometric 

plans, geotechnical studies, and environmental assessments. 

 

b. Arterial Roads are roadways comprised of two (2) and four (4) lanes that are 

designed to carry relatively high traffic volumes and provide for the movement 

between principal traffic generators and the interconnection of Provincial 

Highways. Undivided arterial roads have a design right-of-way width of 30 metres 

and divided arterial roads have a design right-of-way width of 36 metres. All 

Page 258 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

78 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

arterial roads have normal traffic speeds of 60 km/hr or less. Direct access to 

abutting properties is discouraged. 

 

c. Collector Roads are roadways comprised of two (2) lanes that are designed to 

collect and distribute traffic at relatively low operating speeds to and from local 

roads and arterial roads. Collector Roads have a design right-of-way width of 25 

metres. Direct access to abutting properties is generally permitted.  

 

d. Local Roads provide direct access to abutting properties at low operating speeds 

with a design right-of-way width of 20 metres, unless otherwise approved by the 

Town.  

 

e. Pedestrian and Cycling Routes provide the ability to access various 

neighbourhoods, parks and open space, and civic facilities via active 

transportation modes. Such routes may either be shared with streets by means 

of a bicycle lane and sidewalk, or may be comprised of dedicated lane, path, or 

trail rights-of-way. 

 

5.1.2.3 System Planning 

1. Protect adequate road rights-of-way to meet future needs. 

 

2. Maximize the use of existing roads and rights-of-way rather than acquiring new rights-of-

way and/or building new roads. The joint use of road rights-of-way with other utilities is 

encouraged. 

 

3. Recognize that the Future Roads and Future Cycling and Pedestrian Routes identified 

on Schedule B are intended to be illustrative only and may not occur as indicated. 

Detailed studies will be completed in conjunction with any proposed widening of an 

existing right-of-way or the establishment of a new right-of-way. 

 

4. Recognize that the Town may require land to be conveyed at no cost for the purpose of 

widening of an existing right-of-way as a condition of consent, subdivision, or site plan 

approval. Widening shall generally be equal on both sides of the right-of-way, except 

where site-specific conditions necessitate an unequal widening. 

 

5. Provide adequate road capacity to meet the needs of local traffic, but not necessarily 

through-traffic demands which should be met by regional and provincial transportation 

facilities and services. 

 

6. Consider potential environmental impacts when evaluating transportation improvements, 

including public safety, quality of life, and protection of environmental resources. 

Page 259 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 79 

 

 

7. Maximize the effectiveness of Town transportation plans and programs by coordinating 

local plans with neighbouring municipal and provincial initiatives. 

 

8. Provide active input in the planning of regional and provincial transportation facilities and 

services. 

 

9. Encourage the co-location of linear infrastructure, such as roads, pipelines and 

powerlines, where appropriate, and evaluate opportunities for co-location of linear 

infrastructure with neighbouring municipalities where developments span municipal 

borders, such as for the areas north of Highway 401. 

 

10. Consider the future completion of an Active Transportation Master Plan for the Town, 

which may identify: 

 

a. The type and location of active transportation facilities; 

 

b. Required infrastructure improvements to support a healthy and age-friendly 

community; and 

 

c. Connectivity between recreational and tourism assets. 

 

11. Encourage opportunities to partner with neighbouring municipalities on the potential 

development of a future regional bus service, or other transportation modes such as 

water-based connections, to connect neighbouring tourism assets. 

 

5.1.2.4 Development 

1. Encourage a grid-oriented street network in the planning of new development as a 

means of distributing vehicular traffic efficiently and providing more direct and accessible 

routes for pedestrians and cyclists. 

 

2. Encourage new development or redevelopment to consider street connectivity and 

connectivity of active transportation infrastructure, in coordination with the Town. 

 

3. The Town may consider requiring the dedication of lands for active transportation, such 

as pedestrian and bicycle pathways, as a condition of subdivision and site plan 

approvals, in accordance with the Planning Act.  

  

4. Review and evaluate existing street standards to determine if reduced roadway and 

right-of-way width standards are appropriate. 

 

Page 260 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

80 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5. Permit turning circles, roundabouts, or other similar roadway features subject to an 

evaluation by the Town of the functional, operational, servicing and financial issues 

associated with their use. The Town shall consider undertaking a public education 

campaign where significant new roadway features are planned or implemented that will 

have impacts on traffic behaviour and patterns. 

 

6. Consider the implementation of traffic calming measures, such as vehicle speed 

reductions, to improve road safety in the Town. 

 

5.1.2.5 Parking 

1. Require adequate off-street parking for all development in the Town per the standards in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

2. Permit reduced off-street parking standards, particularly in the Downtown Core, where 

municipal off-/on-street parking is provided nearby, subject to an evaluation by the Town. 

 

3. Consider permitting reduced off-street parking requirements for developments containing 

affordable rental housing. 

 

4. Encourage opportunities for shared parking in mixed use areas, such as in the 

Downtown Core, where the peak parking demand characteristics for the land uses are 

complementary, subject to an evaluation by the Town. Parking areas should generally 

be located within 100 metres of buildings they are intended to serve. 

 

5. Require a parking study for any request for shared parking arrangements that 

demonstrates the complementary nature of parking demands for the existing and 

proposed uses, and the ability to provide safe movement of pedestrians between uses. 

 

6. Require barrier-free parking to be located nearest to building entrances, and establish 

barrier-free parking standards in the Zoning By-law in accordance with the Accessibility 

for Ontarians with Disabilities Act. 

 

7. Encourage the location of parking at the side or rear of buildings along commercial and 

residential streets, and require the screening of parking areas by means of landscaping 

consisting of low planting areas. 

 

5.1.2.6 Walking 

1. Include safe, convenient, and attractive pedestrian facilities such as sidewalks, corner 

ramps, and pedestrian signals in the construction and reconstruction of transportation 

and circulation system facilities. Pedestrian facilities may not be required on local 

residential streets. 

Page 261 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 81 

 

 

2. Support and enhance more pedestrian-oriented streetscapes in the Town, particularly on 

Edward Street and in the Downtown Core, with consideration for accessible sidewalks, 

building designs that provide shelter, pedestrian-scaled lighting, street furniture, bicycle 

racks, and landscaping. 

 

3. Review and evaluate existing street standards to determine if more pedestrian-oriented 

standards are appropriate, with consideration for traffic safety. 

 

4. Encourage safe and efficient pedestrian access to a full range of land uses including 

parks and recreation facilities, open space, and the waterfront. 

 

5. Consider pedestrian orientation and amenities in the review of all development 

applications. 

 

5.1.2.7 Active Transportation 

1. Encourage safe and efficient active transportation access to a full range of land uses 

including parks and recreation facilities, open space, and the waterfront through the use 

of bicycles and mobility devices. 

 

2. Provide adequate and secure bicycle parking at civic facilities, in the Downtown Core, 

and the waterfront to encourage bicycle use. 

 

3. The Town shall consider coordination with neighbouring municipalities for the provision 

of trails for non-motorized uses to facilitate safe cycling between communities and 

promote opportunities for cycling-based tourism.  

 

4. When undertaking public works, the Town may consider the provision of bicycle lanes 

and bicycle racks, where appropriate. 

 

5. Recognize the importance of wayfinding measures to supporting Prescott’s tourism and 

recreational assets. 

 

6. Promote opportunities for wayfinding and directional signage, including the provision of 

simple, clear and legible signage throughout the Town. 

 

7. The Town may undertake the completion of a Wayfinding Strategy to identify 

improvements to wayfinding in the Town and provide guidance for the location and 

design of directional signage. 

 

Page 262 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

82 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.1.2.8 Trucks 

1. Consider designating a truck route in the Town and restricting heavy truck traffic to such 

a route to minimize the adverse impacts of such traffic on residential neighbourhoods. 

Truck parking should also be addressed. 

 

2. Contemplate establishing a by-law as provided for under Section 129 of the Municipal 

Act that includes performance requirements for noise, odour, dust, vibration, and other 

factors associated with truck traffic as a means of implementing and enforcing the 

designated truck route. 

 

3. Direct land uses that generate significant truck and commercial traffic primarily to areas 

designated Employment Area, Highway 401 Corridor, and Highway Commercial, and 

secondarily to properties which front on Arterial Roads. 

 

4. Consider reducing the impact of heavy truck traffic on the pedestrian environment by 

providing wider sidewalks and landscaping that reduce the noise and visual impacts on 

pedestrians from traffic. Traffic safety and maintenance will be considered. 

 

5.2 Public Services and Utilities 

Development in the Town requires various public and private services and utilities such as 

water, sewer, hydro, gas, and telecommunications.  Such services must be provided 

concurrently with new development for the health, safety, and welfare of Prescott residents. 

Such services must also be provided and paid for in an equitable manner without an undue 

financial burden on the Town. 

 

5.2.1 Goals 

1. Ensure the provision of adequate public utilities and services for existing and future 

residents and businesses in the Town. 

 

5.2.2 Policies 

5.2.2.1 General 

1. Require that all new development in the Town proceed on full urban services (piped 

water, sanitary sewers, and stormwater systems). Lands north of Highway 401 shall be 

permitted to develop on the basis of private services on an interim basis until such time 

that municipal services are extended north of Highway 401. 

 

Page 263 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 83 

 

2. Require developers to concurrently provide, either directly or through fees, all new 

infrastructure, facilities, and services that must be created, expanded, or modified to 

serve any new development. 

 

3. Ensure that the existence of a public utility or service does not entitle, justify, or 

otherwise permit the creation of a new use or the expansion of an existing use that 

otherwise does not conform with this Official Plan. 

 

4. Work with utility and service providers in the Town to ensure that any future expansion of 

local facilities is designed and planned with minimal impact on existing and future 

residents. 

 

5. Require that all utilities serving new development be located underground, as 

appropriate. 

 

6. Continue to monitor regularly the capacity of Town-owned utilities and services to ensure 

that sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the five (5)- and 15-year housing supply 

targets specified in the Housing Supply Section of this Plan. Monitoring will inform the 

five (5)-year capital budget for such utilities and services. 

 

7. Maintain the five (5)-year capital budget that identifies priorities for the operation and 

maintenance of Town-owned utilities and services, including drinking water treatment 

and distribution, sanitary sewage collection and treatment, stormwater management 

facilities. 

 

8. Ensure that any agreement between the Town and neighbouring jurisdictions to service 

these jurisdictions does not reduce the existing level of service to the Town, result in 

insufficient capacity to accommodate the Town’s housing supply targets, as required by 

Policy 6 above, or result in any additional financial burden on the Town. 

 

9. Development on the basis of private on-site water and sewer services shall only be 

permitted where it is clearly demonstrated that: 

 

a. The proposed development is considered infilling and minor rounding out of 

existing development; and 

 

b. It can be demonstrated that the aquifer can provide a long term sustainable 

ground water supply of acceptable quality and quantity in accordance with MECP 

guidelines and regulations, and that there is no negative environmental impact 

(or cumulative negative impact) resulting from the use of on-site private water 

and sewage services.” 

 

Page 264 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

84 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

5.3 Stormwater Management  

The following policies shall apply for managing stormwater runoff: 

 

1. All new development shall be provided with adequate storm drainage facilities or 

connected to storm sewers or watercourses, as appropriate. The design and 

construction of all storm sewers and improvements to watercourses shall have sufficient 

depth and capacity to serve all areas, which may be ultimately connected to the system. 

 

2. Stormwater facilities shall be integrated with planning for sewage and water services and 

ensure that systems are optimized, feasible and financially viable over the long term in 

accordance with the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Park’s (MECP) 

Stormwater Management Planning and Design Manual. 

 

3. A Stormwater Management Plan may be required for new plans of subdivision and major 

or large-scale development proposals. A Stormwater Management Plan shall include:  

 

a. preparing for the impacts of a changing climate through the effective 

management of stormwater, including the use of green infrastructure;  

 

b. minimizing changes in water balance and erosion;  

 

c. mitigating risks to human health, safety, property and the environment; 

 

d. maximizing the extent and function of vegetative and pervious surfaces; and  

 

e. promotion of stormwater best practices, including stormwater attenuation and re-

use, water conservation and efficiency, and Low Impact Development (LID) 

techniques. 

 

Stormwater Management Plans shall outline means to lessen nutrient input into 

surrounding water bodies and municipal storm sewers after construction. A construction-

mitigation plan shall outline means to lesson nutrient inputs during construction. The 

Stormwater Management Plan shall be submitted to the Town for approval. Approved 

recommendations from Stormwater Management Plans shall be implemented through 

the development approval process. 

 

4. For development located adjacent to, or in the vicinity of, a provincial highway whose 

drainage would impact the highway, a Stormwater Management Plan shall be prepared 

by the proponent, and reviewed by Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO) for 

approval.  

 

Page 265 of 300



 

Section 5.0 Community Services and Transportation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 85 

 

5.  Where required under the Ontario Water Resources Act, permits, approvals, and 

registrations may be required for proposed stormwater management facilities. 

 

5.4 Waste Management  

As with most municipalities, solid waste management continues to be an important municipal 

issue. Since there is no sanitary landfill site within the Town, the Town must continue to work 

with their collection service provider and the community to reduce the amount of waste 

generated, reuse materials to the greatest extent possible, and recycle materials instead of 

disposing of them at the landfill site. 

 

5.4.1 Goals 

1. Manage solid waste in the Town for the purposes of reducing, reusing, and recycling and 

contribute further to Provincial efforts to divert waste from landfill. 

 

5.4.2 Policies 

1. Provide the best possible service for the collection of garbage, recyclables, and green 

waste at the lowest possible cost. 

 

2. Promote opportunities to reduce waste at home and in businesses, and make possible 

the safe disposal of hazardous materials. 

 

3. Require builders to incorporate interior and exterior storage areas for recyclables in new 

commercial and residential buildings, and encourage re-modeled buildings to make 

recycling activities more convenient. 

 

4. Comply with various Provincial requirements under the Waste Management Act, Waste 

Diversion Act, and the Environmental Protection Act for proper handling and storage of 

solid waste, recyclables, and hazardous materials, diversion of solid waste from landfills, 

and provision of programs to make these activities feasible. 

 

5. Continue to obtain input from residents and employers in the Town to ensure that solid 

waste programs effectively address community needs and issues. 

Page 266 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

86 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.0 Implementation 

This Part of the plan provides for the efficient and effective regulatory and decision-making 

procedures that will be used to guide the development and management of the Town’s physical 

environment and to achieve the community vision outlined in the Vision and Guiding Principles 

Section of the Plan. The policies in this Part are intended to be used in conjunction with the 

other policies of this Plan. 

 

6.1 Community Improvement  

Community improvement involves a range of public and private activities that maintain, 

rehabilitate, and revitalize the existing physical condition of the urban environment. Such 

improvements are often used to address various social and economic priorities of the 

community. As municipal governments continue to try and do more with less, it becomes 

increasingly important to establish priorities and pursue opportunities for partnership with the 

private sector and senior levels of government. 

 

The entire Town is designated as a Community Improvement Policy Area, with the intent to 

make possible the designation of a community improvement project area(s) and the preparation 

of a community improvement plan(s) for the designated area(s), as provided for under Section 

28 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.1.1 Goals 

1. Maintain, rehabilitate, and revitalize the physical environment in the Town as a means of 

improving the quality of life for residents, workers, and visitors in the Town. 

 

2. Consider community improvement as an important part of the Town’s commitment to 

local economic development and support for tourism, commerce, and industry in 

Prescott. 

 

3. Recognize community improvement as the primary means by which the Town can 

facilitate brownfield redevelopment. 

 

6.1.2 Policies 

6.1.2.1 Community Improvement Objectives 

1. Continue to improve the quality of life for residents, workers, and visitors in the Town by 

means of the following: 

a. Maintaining and improving municipal services, public utilities and social and 

recreational facilities; 

Page 267 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 87 

 

b. Encouraging improvement activities that contribute to local economic 

development and support tourism, commerce, and industry; 

 

c. Supporting the redevelopment of brownfield sites and their reintegration into the 

urban fabric; 

 

d. Encouraging the maintenance of the existing housing stock, and promoting the 

rehabilitation, renovation, and repair of older buildings; 

 

e. Promoting Downtown revitalization; 

 

f. Encouraging property maintenance and occupancy standards; 

 

g. Preserving historically and/or architecturally significant buildings or areas; 

 

h. Improving traffic and parking patterns making them more compatible with 

surrounding uses and needs; 

 

i. Enhancing conditions in older predominantly residential areas; 

 

j. Improving the overall streetscape and/or aesthetics of commercial and industrial 

areas of the Town; 

 

k. Encouraging and incentivizing the construction of affordable housing through 

intensification, and housing forms that allow residents to age in place, and other 

housing needs of local residents, and of potential investors; 

 

l. Ensuring improvements made are carried out in such a way as to be compatible 

with other goals and policies of this Official Plan; 

 

m. Promoting, where feasible, energy efficient conservation through energy efficient 

land uses; 

 

n. Providing advice and guidance on maintenance and rehabilitation of buildings 

and structures and on energy conservation; 

 

o. Encouraging public participation in the community improvement planning 

process; 

 

p. Undertaking a monitoring program to review budgeting and program direction in 

respect to the attainment of specific policies; and 

Page 268 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

88 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

q. Working with business leaders in the community to identify and facilitate 

improvements. 

 

6.1.2.2 Designation of Community Improvement Project Area(s) 

1. Identify and establish potential community improvement project areas in the Town using 

designation criteria; the importance of each will be determined by the funds available, 

the severity of the problem, the relationship of community improvement to other policies 

in this Plan and capital expenditure priorities of the Town. 

 

2. The following designation criteria shall be used to identify Community Improvement 

Project Areas: 

a. Deficiencies in hard services including roads, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, water 

distribution system, sanitary collection system, and storm sewers; 

 

b. Presence of sub-standard building conditions and housing in need of 

improvement and revitalization; 

 

c. Opportunity to expand the housing stock through the redevelopment or 

conversion of under-utilized lands and/or buildings; 

 

d. Need to provide or improve affordable single and multiple unit residential 

dwellings for low to middle income residents; 

 

e. Presence of vacant lands/buildings that could be developed, redeveloped or 

converted to another use; 

 

f. Presence of brownfield sites that are underutilized, derelict, or vacant and may 

be contaminated; 

 

g. Need to upgrade the streetscape or aesthetics of an area; 

 

h. Need to upgrade elements of the transportation system, including but not limited 

to, sub-standard road conditions and road widths, and poorly designed 

intersections; 

 

i. Need to provide or improve recreational and cultural facilities and public open 

space, including parkland acquisition, facilities improvement, and trails 

enhancement; 

 

j. Presence of incompatible land use activity; 

 

Page 269 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 89 

 

k. Presence of hazard lands that have an impact on the Town's pattern of 

development, including contaminated sites, or areas requiring improvements 

because of poor drainage conditions, including ditching and flood proofing; 

 

l. Presence of buildings or lands of architectural and/or historical merit and sites of 

archaeological significance or interest, in need of improvement or revitalization; 

 

m. Areas requiring shoreline improvements to enhance public usability while 

furthering public efforts at shoreline management along waterbodies; and 

 

n. Presence of points of interest and/or special visual amenities, such as the 

downtown and the waterfront, that provide an opportunity for tourism, and which 

could benefit from protection and enhancement. 

 

6.1.2.3 Community Improvement Implementation Measures 

1. Implement the goals and policies of this section by means of the powers conferred upon 

Town Council under the Planning Act, Building Code Act, Heritage Act, Municipal Act, 

and Drainage Act. Implementation measures could include the following: 

a. Designation by by-law of a Community Improvement Project Area(s) and 

adoption of Community Improvement Plan(s) for the area(s); 

 

b. Acquisition of land within a Community Improvement Project Area(s), and 

clearing, grading, or otherwise preparing the land for community improvement; 

 

c. Undertake the construction, repair, rehabilitation or improvement of buildings on 

land acquired or held by the Town in the Community Improvement Project 

Area(s), and sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any such buildings and lands 

owned by the Town; 

 

d. Seeking funds from other levels of government (county, provincial, and federal) 

where their programs facilitate the implementation of community improvement; 

 

e. Enactment and enforcement of a property maintenance and occupancy 

standards by-law with respect to residential, commercial, and industrial building 

stock and lands (refer to the Land Use Control Section and the policies regarding 

property conditions); 

 

f. Providing grants or loans to owners and tenants of lands and buildings within the 

Community Improvement Project Area(s); 

 

Page 270 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

90 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

g. Accessing financial incentive programs such as the Brownfields Financial Tax 

Incentive Program to redevelop brownfield sites; 

 

h. Providing municipal tax relief as an incentive for building improvements; 

 

i. Encouragement of public participation in the preparation of Community 

Improvement Plan(s); 

 

j. Encouragement of private sector use of government programs where they 

complement community improvement efforts; 

 

k. Encouragement of infill development of vacant and/or under-utilized properties in 

Community Improvement Project Areas; and 

 

l. Upgrading of municipal services. 

 

6.2 Implementation Tools 

The Town has a multitude of tools available to it to implement the principles, goals, and policies 

of this Official Plan. These tools are conferred upon the Town primarily by means of the 

Municipal Act and the Planning Act. These tools provide the regulatory framework and decision-

making procedures necessary to manage physical development in the Town of Prescott. 

 

6.2.1 Goals 

1. Provide a full range of regulatory mechanisms for implementing the goals and policies 

associated with the principles of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Coordinate implementation with the Town’s capital works to maximize benefits to the 

Town’s physical, economic, and social development. 

 

6.2.2 Policies 

1. Recognize the importance of both public and private sector development, in conjunction 

with applicable municipal by-laws and capital works, in implementing the goals and 

policies of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Ensure that all development and agreements regarding subdivisions, condominiums, site 

plans, and buildings conform to the Official Plan. 

 

3. Acquire land, as necessary, for the purposes of implementing any part of the Official 

Plan. 

Page 271 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 91 

 

 

4. Undertake secondary planning studies, as necessary, for specific areas or to address a 

specific planning issue. Secondary planning studies shall be approved by resolution of 

Town Council and shall be incorporated by way of amendment to the Official Plan. 

 

6.3 Indigenous Engagement  

The Town recognizes and respects the cultural values and heritage of local Indigenous 

communities.  

 

6.3.1 Goals 

1. Engage with Indigenous communities that may have an interest in planning matters in 

the Town.  

 

6.3.2 Policies 

1. The Town shall pursue the preparation of a Community Engagement Strategy in 

consultation with local Indigenous communities. The Community Engagement Strategy 

shall outline when and how the Town, and/or development proponents, shall engage 

with Indigenous communities on development applications and land use projects. 

 

2. At a minimum, the following consultation with Indigenous communities shall be required: 

 

a. Consultation on cultural heritage or archaeological studies related to proposed 

developments where areas of Indigenous interest or values and/or the potential 

for encountering Indigenous artifacts have been identified; 

 

b. Consultation prior to the approval by Council of future Official Plan amendments 

or site plan approval, where an Archaeological Assessment has identified the 

potential for encountering Indigenous artifacts; and 

 

c. Input and possible participation in Stage 2 Archaeological Assessments required 

for land use planning or development purposes, where a Stage 1 Archaeological 

Assessment indicates areas of historical interest and/or the potential for 

encountering Indigenous artifacts. 

 

6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring  

To ensure the continued use, relevance, and effectiveness of this Official Plan, it is important 

that the principles, goals, policies, and Schedules of the document are clear, concise, and easily 

Page 272 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

92 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

understood by all who use them. It is also important that the principles, goals, and policies of the 

document are updated, as needed. The following policies regarding interpretation and 

monitoring of the Official Plan will ensure that the Official Plan remains a “living document” well 

into the future. 

 

6.4.1 Goals 

1. Provide guidance in the interpretation of the principles, goals, policies, and Schedules of 

the Official Plan. 

 

2. Evaluate the effectiveness of the Official Plan over time by monitoring the principles, 

goals, policies, and Schedules of the Plan to ensure that it remains relevant, effective, 

and can accommodate future circumstances. 

 

6.4.2 Policies 

6.4.2.1 Agency Names and Responsibility  

1. Recognize that the names of various government ministries and agencies may change 

from time to time and responsibilities may shift from one ministry to another. The names 

of government ministries and agencies responsible for various programs, regulations, 

and approvals related to the Official Plan are accurate as of the adoption date of this 

Plan. It is not intended to amend this Plan each time a change of name or responsibility 

occurs, and this Plan shall be interpreted so as to refer to those agencies named, or to 

their successors, as conditions dictate. 

 

6.4.2.2 Interpretation 

1. Apply the principles, goals, and policies presented in this Plan to all of the lands in the 

Town of Prescott regardless of the land use designation shown on Schedule A, unless 

otherwise specified. 

 

2. Recognize that the land use designations identified on Schedule A, are intended to show 

general use areas.  The boundaries of the land use designations shall be approximate, 

except in cases where such boundaries are defined by fixed physical features such as 

railways, highways, and streets, and are subject to interpretation at the time of 

implementation of the Plan provided the intent of the Plan is maintained. 

 

3. Recognize that where a policy includes a list of requirements, land uses, considerations, 

issues, or other references, such lists are intended to indicate the possible range of 

requirements, land uses, considerations, issues, or other references. Specific items not 

listed may be considered and included by Town Council, as appropriate and in 

conformity with the Official Plan. 

Page 273 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 93 

 

 

4. Permit minor variations from numerical requirements in the Official Plan without an 

Official Plan amendment, provided the general intent of the Plan is maintained. 

 

5. Recognize that site specific policies shall prevail in cases where there is a conflict 

between site specific and general policies. 

 

6. Recognize that, although the land use designations of this Plan are intended to be 

conceptual in nature, in cases where a parcel of land contains two separate land use 

designations, the policies of each designation shall apply only to the portion of the 

property so designated. 

 

6.4.2.3 Legislation  

1. Recognize that various Provincial and Federal Statutes are amended from time to time 

and legislation section numbers may change. It is not intended that this Plan be 

amended each time such a change is made. This Plan shall be interpreted so as to refer 

to subsequent legislation as amended. 

 

6.4.2.4 Monitoring 

1. Review the Official Plan within 10 years of a new plan prepared as a result of a 

comprehensive review and every 5 years thereafter in order to evaluate the need to 

update the Plan as necessary, pursuant to Section 26 of the Planning Act. This review 

shall determine if: 

 

a. The principles, goals, and policies of the Plan remain valid and realistic in view of 

changing circumstances; and 

 

b. The policies of the Plan are adequate to achieve the principles and goals. 

 

2. Monitor the number of amendments to the Official Plan that have been processed and 

any challenges faced in dealing with proposals to change the Plan, as a means of 

determining its effectiveness and evaluating the need to update the Plan as necessary. 

 

3. Maintain an inventory of existing vacant lands and lands with the potential for 

redevelopment. 

 

4. Monitor the supply of residentially-designated land within the Town to ensure that the 

Official Plan targets for housing supply are maintained, in accordance with the Housing 

Supply Section of this Plan. 

 

Page 274 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

94 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

6.5 Land Use Controls  

Through the Zoning By-law and other means, the Town has the ability to control development in 

Prescott. These controls provide the regulatory framework necessary to implement the Official 

Plan. 

 

6.5.1 Goals  

1. Define the uses permitted in specific locations within the Town and the regulations 

relating to how those uses are to be developed and maintained. 

 

6.5.2 Policies 

6.5.2.1 Community Benefits Charges 

Section 37 of the Planning Act provides that Council may by by-law impose community benefits 

charges against land to pay for the capital costs of facilities, services and matters required 

because of development or redevelopment.  

 

1. Council may pass a by-law in accordance with Section 37 of the Planning Act, 

authorizing community benefits charges.  

 

2. Before passing a community benefits charges by-law, the Town shall prepare a 

community benefits charge strategy, in accordance with Section 37 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.5.2.2 Density Incentives  

1. Consider the use of density incentive provisions in the updated Zoning By-law to permit 

increases in height and density of development beyond those permitted by the Zoning 

By-law in exchange for facilities, services, or matters of public benefit. The Town may 

encourage the use of such provisions with regard to the following matters: 

 

a. Provision of a wide range of housing types including special needs, assisted, or 

other low-income housing; 

 

b. Provision of parkland dedication beyond the requirements of the Plan; 

 

c. Protection of natural features, such as wetlands, beyond the parkland dedication 

requirements of the Plan; 

 

d. Provision of public areas and walkways and connections to external public 

walkways/trail systems; 

 

Page 275 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 95 

 

e. Provision of public parking; 

 

f. Provision of community and open space facilities such as small parks, waterfront 

improvements, day care centres, schools, community centres and recreational 

facilities, and other municipal facilities; 

 

g. Conservation of cultural heritage resources; 

 

h. Rehabilitation and redevelopment of any potentially contaminated site; 

 

i. Protection or enhancement of significant views; and 

 

j. Provision of affordable housing beyond any Provincial requirement. 

 

2. Ensure that any density incentive provisions in the updated Zoning By-law establish a 

nexus; i.e., that the facilities, services, or matters of public benefit provided are 

commensurate with the increased height and density permitted. 

 

3. Permit density incentives only in cases where the increased height and density complies 

with all other applicable Zoning By-law regulations, conforms with the intent of the 

Official Plan, and is compatible with adjacent existing or proposed development. 

 

4. Ensure that the facilities, services, or matters of public benefit provided in exchange for 

increased height and density are directly linked or associated with the development 

proposed and are located onsite. 

 

5. Prohibit the transfer of bonus height and density from one site to another or from one 

project to another. 

 

6. Require an agreement between the Town and the landowner as a condition of the 

application to be registered on title. Such an agreement would address, among other 

items, the facilities and services of public benefit to be provided, the timing of their 

provision, the operation and maintenance of such facilities and services, and the 

increased height and density permitted in exchange for the public benefit provided. 

 

6.5.2.3 Holding Zones 

1. Consider including provisions for holding zones in the Zoning By-law, pursuant to 

Section 36 of the Planning Act that would allow Council to specify the future uses of 

lands that, at the present time, are considered premature or inappropriate for 

Page 276 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

96 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

development. Council may only designate a holding zone with the “h” prefix for any one 

or more of the following reasons: 

 

a. Community services and facilities such as sanitary sewers, stormwater 

management facilities, water supply, and parks are insufficient to serve the 

proposed development; 

 

b. Transportation facilities are inadequate or inappropriate based on anticipated 

traffic; 

 

c. The number and location of access points to the site are inadequate and 

incapable of functioning safely and efficiently; 

 

d. Where development relies upon other matters occurring first, such as the 

consolidation of land ownership, to ensure the orderly development of the project 

and to secure funding for infrastructure, services, or outstanding application 

processing costs; and 

 

e. Supporting studies are required on matters related to traffic, soils, protection of 

any site features, environmental constraints, design features or market impact 

analysis prior to development approval. 

 

2. Remove a holding zone only at such time that Council is satisfied that the reasons for 

establishing the holding zone have been addressed. 

 

3. Recognize that not all land use areas designated in the Official Plan will be immediately 

zoned and available for such uses, and no provision of this Plan shall be interpreted to 

require Council to zone any land within the municipality so as to permit the immediate 

development of such lands for a designated use. 

 

4. Prohibit the construction of any building or structure on a site within a holding zone, 

unless permitted by Council or until the holding zone designation is removed. The 

following uses may be permitted: 

 

a. All existing uses, buildings or structures; 

 

b. A home occupation in an existing single-detached dwelling; and 

 

c. A public or private park, provided no permanent buildings or structures are built. 

 

Page 277 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 97 

 

6.5.2.4 Interim Control 

1. Consider the use of interim control by-laws under Section 38 of the Planning Act to 

prohibit for a period of 1 year the use of land, buildings, or structures within defined 

areas of the Town where, in the opinion of Council, circumstances dictate the need to 

review or study land use policies relating to the defined areas. Council may amend the 

by-law to extend the period of interim control by 1 year. 

 

2. Establish the planning justification and demonstrate the need to review or study land use 

policies relating to a specific area when considering the adoption of an interim control 

by- law. Council shall ensure that such a review or study may be completed 

expeditiously. 

 

6.5.2.5 Land Division 

1. Consider plan of subdivision as the primary means of land division in the Town. 

 

2. Recommend plan of subdivision for the division of land creating three or more lots. 

 

3. Recommend consent to sever land only if Council is satisfied that a plan of subdivision is 

clearly unnecessary and only if: 

 

a. No more than two new lots will be created, except where the severed lots would 

constitute the full development of the property and would not jeopardize the 

efficient development of neighbouring undeveloped lands, including interior 

lands; 

 

b. Municipal water and sewer services abut the lot to be severed; 

 

c. Safe access to and from both the severed and retained lots is possible and would 

not adversely affect traffic and parking conditions in the area; 

 

d. The proposed use of both the severed and retained lots is compatible with the 

scale and intensity of development on the adjacent lots; and 

 

e. The consent meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in the 

Zoning By-law. 

 

4. No land within the Town will be divided unless Council is satisfied that: 

 

a. The size of the lots created is appropriate for the proposed use; 

 

Page 278 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

98 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

b. No landlocked parcels are created; 

 

c. No lot will have an unusually limited road frontage; 

 

d. All lots have direct access to a publicly-maintained road; 

 

e. The application does not result in adverse environmental impacts that cannot be 

mitigated; and 

 

f. The application meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in 

the Zoning By-law. 

 

5. Council may adopt a by-law under Section 50 of the Planning Act to deem part or all of a 

plan of subdivision not to be registered, where appropriate. 

 

6.5.2.6 Master Servicing Agreement 

1. Consider the use of master servicing agreements between Council and development 

applicants as a condition of zoning and or subdivision approval. Such an agreement 

would be based on the findings of a servicing master plan or any other study deemed 

necessary by the Town. The agreement would ensure that necessary approvals and 

required contributions of funds and lands and commitments for services would be in 

place and operative prior to or, coincident with, occupancy and use of land. Services 

included in the agreement could include: 

a. Open space; 

b. Water supply; 

c. Sanitary sewer; 

d. Stormwater management; 

e. Road infrastructure and widening; and 

f. Other utilities. 

 

6.5.2.7 Minor Variances  

1. A Committee of Adjustment has been and shall continue to be established by Council, in 

accordance with the enabling provisions of the Planning Act. The Committee of 

Adjustment may authorize variances to: 

 

a. Vary from provisions of the Zoning By-law or an Interim Control By-law, where 

the existing or proposed use complies with the use provisions of the Zoning By-

law which implements this Plan; 

 

b. Allow the extension or enlargement of a legal non-complying use; 

Page 279 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 99 

 

 

c. Allow a change in the use of land or buildings from one legal non-complying use 

to another use that, in the opinion of the Committee, is similar to the existing 

legal non-complying use or that is more compatible with the uses permitted in the 

Zoning By-law; and 

 

d. Allow a use where the uses of land, buildings, or structures permitted in the 

Zoning By-law are defined in general terms.  

 

2. Minor variances are discretionary and are to be considered from a land use planning and 

public interest perspective. In granting any minor variance from the Zoning By-Law, the 

Committee of Adjustment shall be satisfied that the variance: 

 

a. Is minor in nature; 

 

b. Is desirable for the appropriate development or use of land; 

 

c. Maintains the general intent and purpose of the Official Plan; and 

 

d. Maintains the general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law. 

 

3. The Committee of Adjustment may attach such conditions as it deems appropriate to the 

approval of the application for a minor variance, including site plan approvals where 

encouraged in this Plan, any reasonable requirements, recommendations of Town 

departments or the submission of studies.  

 

6.5.2.8 Property Conditions 

1. Consider establishing a program of standards for maintenance and occupancy of 

property in all or any part of the Town, pursuant to the Ontario Building Code Act. The 

program shall contain requirements for the maintenance of both residential and non-

residential properties and shall conform with the Official Plan. Although the quality of 

property and its maintenance in the Town is generally high, there is an ongoing need to 

ensure that adequate standards of maintenance will be pursued in the future to 

safeguard the values built into the physical community. 

 

2. Implement the standards for maintenance and occupancy of property by means of a 

Property Maintenance and Occupancy Standards By-law. Town Council shall ensure 

that all properties affected by the by-law comply with its provisions. Such provisions may 

include or relate to: 

 

a. Garbage disposal; 

Page 280 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

100 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

b. Pest prevention; 

 

c. Structural maintenance of buildings; 

 

d. Building safety; 

 

e. Building cleanliness; 

 

f. Building services, such as plumbing, heating and electricity; 

 

g. Keeping land and waterfront properties free from rubbish; debris; and wrecked, 

discarded, or dismantled objects and materials such as vehicles, boats, trailers, 

and mechanical equipment; 

 

h. Maintenance of lands, yards, parking, and storage areas; 

 

i. Maintenance of fences, swimming pools, accessory buildings, and signs; 

 

j. Occupancy standards; and 

 

k. Administration and enforcement of the by-law. 

 

3. Administer and enforce the standards for maintenance and occupancy in the by-law by 

creating the position of Property Standards Officer. Such a position may be full or part- 

time and such responsibilities may be assumed by current Town staff, as necessary. 

 

4. Continue to use the Property Standards Appeals Committee to consider appeals and 

reviews of orders issued under the by-law respecting standards for the maintenance and 

occupancy of property. 

 

6.5.2.9 Site Plan Control 

1. Pursuant to Section 41 of the Planning Act, the entire Town of Prescott is designated as 

a site plan control area and site plan approval shall be required for all new non-

residential development and residential development of three (3) or more units. A site 

plan control by-law may be enacted by Town Council with reference to specific Zones in 

the implementing Zoning By-law, and may affect all or part of the site plan control area. 

 

Page 281 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 101 

 

2. Exempt the following types of development from the site plan control requirements, 

unless approval conditions as part of the creation of a new lot by plan of subdivision or 

consent to land severance require that they be subject to site plan approval: 

 

a. A single detached dwelling; 

b. A semi-detached dwelling;  

c. A duplex dwelling; and 

d. Additional residential units, accessory buildings, minor renovations, and 

extensions to the above uses. 

 

3. Require that an application for site plan control approval include plans and drawings that 

show the location of all buildings and structures to be built and all facilities to be provided 

as part of the proposed development. Criteria for review of the application should 

include: 

 

a. Compatibility with adjacent uses; 

b. Urban design standards; 

c. Function and efficiency; 

d. Safety and access; 

e. Adequacy of servicing; 

f. Grading and drainage; and 

g. Landscaping and lighting. 

 

4. Require the fulfillment of conditions and an agreement for site plan approval based on 

the provisions for site plan control as specified in the Planning Act. 

 

6.5.2.10 Temporary Uses 

1. Council may adopt by-laws under Section 39 of the Planning Act to authorize the 

temporary use of land, buildings, or structures for any purpose for a period of three (3) 

years. Such by-laws may be extended for additional three (3)-year periods. Council shall 

consider the following when evaluating any application for temporary use: 

 

a. The proposed use must be temporary in nature, compatible with surrounding 

uses, and consistent with the intent of the Official Plan; 

 

b. Special circumstances which may apply to the subject property or the proposed 

temporary use; 

 

c. Appropriateness of the proposed use to the subject property; 

 

Page 282 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

102 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

d. Difficulty involved in terminating the proposed use when the authorizing by-law 

expires in three (3) years; 

 

e. Difficulty in restoring the subject lands, buildings, and structures to either their 

initial state or an improved state; 

 

f. Availability of services for the subject property and the impact of the proposed 

use on adjoining roads and other municipal services available; 

 

g. Appropriate means of minimizing any potential adverse effects of the proposed 

use on adjoining properties; 

 

h. Need for a site plan agreement prior to the approval of the temporary use; and 

 

i. Need to enter into a temporary use agreement with the Town for the duration of 

the temporary use period, which may be extended in accordance with Section 39 

of the Planning Act. 

 

2. In the case of a Garden Suite, the foregoing policies apply, except that the time period 

for the temporary use by-law may be twenty (20) years. 

 

6.5.2.11 Zoning By-law 

1. Complete a comprehensive review of the Town’s Zoning By-law within three (3) years of 

the approval of the Official Plan, in accordance with the Planning Act. During the review 

period, the existing Zoning By-law shall remain in effect and any amendments to the by-

law during the review period shall be required to conform to the approved Official Plan. 

 

2. Amend and update the Zoning By-law, as necessary, to bring it into conformity with the 

adopted Official Plan. Such amendments and updates may relate to any land use 

regulations, development standards, and administrative provisions. 

 

3. Amendments to the Zoning By-law shall only be made after public notice and 

consultation as required by the Planning Act, and consultation with affected authorities 

or agencies, have been undertaken to the satisfaction of Council.  

 

4. Council may by-law, delegate authority to pass by-laws under Section 34 of the Planning 

Act that are of a minor nature to a committee of Council or an individual who is an 

officer, employee or agent of the Town. Council may delegate authority to pass 

temporary use by-laws, lifting of holding symbols and minor zoning by-law amendments. 

 

Page 283 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 103 

 

6.6 Legal Non-Conforming Uses 

Legal non-conforming uses, buildings or structures throughout the Town should eventually 

cease so that the land affected can revert to a use, building, or structure that conforms with the 

intent of the Official Plan and the Zoning By-law. However, in certain circumstances, it may be 

appropriate to consider the extension or enlargement of a non-conforming use, building or 

structure. 

 

6.6.1 Goals  

1. Provide guidance in the management of legal non-conforming uses in the Town, 

consistent with the principles, goals, policies, and schedules of the Official Plan. 

 

6.6.2 Policies 

1. Grant an application for the extension or enlargement of non-conforming uses, buildings, 

or structures if the Committee of Adjustment is satisfied that the extension or 

enlargement: 

 

a. Does not represent an unreasonable increase to the size and intensity of the 

legal non-conforming use; 

 

b. Provides adequate measures to protect other uses through landscaping, 

buffering or screening; appropriate setbacks for buildings and structures; and/or 

devices, and measures for reducing nuisance(s) caused by matters such as 

outside storage, lighting, and advertising; 

 

c. Substantially improves the conditions of the property and/or building; 

 

d. Is compatible, along with the existing non-conforming use, with adjacent uses; 

 

e. Will be adequately served by municipal services that meet the additional needs 

resulting from the expansion or extension of use; 

 

f. Provides adequate off-street parking areas, loading facilities, and screening; 

 

g. Does not adversely affect traffic and parking conditions in the area; and 

 

h. Meets the intent of the Official Plan and standards established in the Zoning By-

law. 

Page 284 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

104 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

6.7 Official Plan Amendments 

From time to time, it may be necessary to amend the Official Plan in order to ensure its 

continued use, relevance, and effectiveness in the longer term. An amendment may be 

needed to address a particular development that meets the intent of the Plan and the 

standards established in the Zoning By-law or to address a future circumstance 

unknown at the time of preparation of the Plan. The need to amend the Plan may also 

result from ongoing monitoring consistent with the policies of Section 6.3 Indigenous 

Engagement  and Section 6.4 Interpretation and Monitoring   

 

6.7.1 Goals 

1. Provide guidance in the amendment of the principles, goals, policies, and schedules of 

the Official Plan. 

 

6.7.2 Policies 

1. Recognize the need to amend this Plan from time to time in order to reflect changing 

conditions and trends, whether originating within the Town or beyond the Town 

boundaries, or in response to a specific request. 

 

2. In accordance with the Planning Act, privately-initiated amendments to a new Official 

Plan (i.e. where the Official Plan was repealed and a new Official Plan was adopted) 

shall not be considered within two (2) years of the date any part of the Official Plan 

comes into effect, unless otherwise permitted by a Council resolution to allow the 

application. 

 

3. Consider the following evidence when evaluating any proposed amendment to the 

Official Plan: 

 

a. The need for the use; 

b. Alternative locations for the proposed use; 

c. Compatibility of the use with surrounding uses; 

d. Impact on natural heritage features and areas, cultural heritage resources, and 

other resources; 

e. Adequacy of water supply and sewage disposal services required by the 

proposed use; 

f. Vehicular and pedestrian access; and 

g. Financial impact on the municipality. 

 

Page 285 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 105 

 

4. When amendments are made to the Official Plan, appropriate amendments shall also be 

made to implementing By-laws so that any such By-law is in conformity with the Official 

Plan.  

 

6.8 Planning Applications – Required Information and Materials 

6.8.1 Goals 

1. Ensure that applications for an Official Plan amendment, Zoning By-law amendment, 

minor variance, site plan control, consent, subdivision and condominium are 

accompanied by the required information and materials needed to comprise a complete 

application pursuant to the Planning Act. 

 

6.8.2 Policies 

1. Require development proponents to consult with the Town prior to submitting 

development applications. The Town may adopt a by-law pursuant to Section 22(3.1)(b) 

of the Planning Act, as amended, to require such consultation. 

 

2. Development applications for an Official Plan amendment, Zoning By-law amendment, 

minor variance, site plan control, consent, subdivision and condominium shall be 

accompanied by the information and materials required under the Planning Act and any 

other legislation or regulation, as amended. Such information and materials shall be 

required at the time of submission of the development application in order for the 

application to be deemed complete.  

 

3. The number and scope of studies and assessments to be required for the submission of 

complete application shall be appropriate and in keeping with the scope and complexity 

of the application, and may include, but is not limited to the following: 

a. Archaeological Assessments and Conservation Plans, including a Marine 

Archaeological Assessment 

b. Concept Plan 

c. Contaminated Site Assessment / Environmental Site Assessment 

d. Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 

e. Heritage Impact Assessment 

f. Ecological Site Assessment 

g. Environmental Impact Study 

h. Erosion and/or Sediment Control Plan 

i. Flooding Hazard Analysis 

j. Geotechnical Report 

k. Grading and Drainage Plan 

l. Groundwater Impact Assessment 

Page 286 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

106 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

m. Hydrogeological Assessment 

n. Landscaping Plan 

o. Land Use Compatibility Study 

p. Mine Hazard Study 

q. Noise / Vibration / Blast Study 

r. Parking Study 

s. Planning Rationale 

t. Public Consultation Strategy 

u. Record of Site Condition 

v. Serviceability Study 

w. Servicing Options Report 

x. Slope Stability Assessment 

y. Source Water Protection 

z. Stormwater Management Plan  

aa. Sun/Shadow Study 

bb. Terrain Analysis 

cc. Traffic Impact Study or Brief 

dd. Tree Conservation and Protection Plan 

ee. Wildland Fire Assessment 

ff. Wildlife Habitat Evaluation 

 

4. The Town may require any of the studies or assessments noted in Policy 3 of this 

Section to be peer reviewed on behalf of the Town in relation to a planning application, 

and at the sole expense of the proponent. 

 

6.9 Public Consultation and Notification 

Public consultation and notification is an essential component of the municipal planning 

process. 

 

6.9.1 Goals 

1. Undertake public consultation and notification in accordance with the requirements of the 

Planning Act.  

 

2. Encourage development proponents to undertake public consultation as part of the 

development approvals process. 

 

6.9.2 Policies 

1. Public consultation and notification shall be undertaken for all Planning Act applications 

in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act, as amended, and its most up to 

Page 287 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 107 

 

date regulations. Council may establish additional requirements for notification which will 

be set out in the procedural guidelines. On a case-by-case basis, additional notification 

over and above the statutory requirements and the Council procedural requirements 

may be implemented.  

 

2. Council may, by resolution, forego public notification in connection with Official Plan, 

Community Improvement Plan, and Zoning By-law Amendments if such amendments 

relate to matters which will not affect the policies and intent of the Official Plan or 

Community Improvement Plan, or the provisions of the Zoning By-law in any material 

way, and may include the following matters: 

 

a. Altering punctuation or language to obtain a uniform mode of expression; 

 

b. Correcting clerical, grammatical, dimensioning or typographical errors; 

 

c. Altering and/or correcting the number and arrangement of any provision; 

 

d. Inserting historical footnotes or similar annotations to indicate the origin and 

approval of each provision; 

 

e. Changing the format of a document; 

 

f. Consolidating amendments; and 

 

g. Transferring Official Plan, Community Improvement Plan, and Zoning By-law 

designations to new base maps. 

 

3. As part of the Town’s complete application requirements, proponents seeking an Official 

Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendments, and/or Plan of Subdivision approval, 

shall be required to identify a Public Consultation Strategy at the time that the application 

is submitted. A Public Consultation Strategy could include any or all of the following:  

 

a. Speak to adjacent landowners directly about proposed development; 

 

b. Post signs within a common area (for multi‐residential buildings and 

developments); 

 

c. Provide additional advertisement of the proposal and public meeting in a local 

newspaper (to be discussed with Planning staff prior to initiating); 

Page 288 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

108 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

d. Host an open house regarding the proposal; 

 

e. Other measures.  

 

4. Public meetings must be held before proposals for Official Plan and Zoning By-law 

Amendments and draft Plans of Subdivision are dealt with by Council, in accordance 

with the Planning Act.  

 

5. For special issues, including but not limited to, new Official Plans and comprehensive 

Zoning By-laws, the Town may consider additional means of public consultation and 

participation includes open houses, public surveys, public displays, area meetings, 

newspaper coverage, cable TV programming, internet postings, and other similar 

means.  

 

6. Written and oral submissions from the public relating to applications for Official Plan 

Amendments, Zoning By-law Amendments, plans of subdivision, plans of condominium, 

consent, and minor variance will be summarized within a staff report to facilitate decision 

making. Where appropriate, the submissions will be consolidated into common or 

overlapping land use planning issues, in addition to an acknowledgement of other issues 

presented through the public consultation process. The notices of decision associated 

with planning applications will recognize written and oral submissions and the effect they 

have had, if any, on planning decisions. 

 

6.10 Public Works and Finance 

Implementation of the principles, goals, and policies of the Official Plan will involve the Town 

directly in the financing of certain projects. The Official Plan outlines the nature and scope of 

these projects, such as the provision of piped water and sanitary sewers, the development of 

parks and playgrounds, the upgrading of roads and the improvement of intersections. No public 

work shall be undertaken unless it conforms with the Official Plan and meets the requirements 

of Section 24 of the Planning Act. 

 

6.10.1 Goals 

1. Ensure that public works conform to the Official Plan and assist in implementing the 

principles, goals, and policies for the future physical development of the Town. 

 

2. Ensure that the implementation of the Official Plan is conducted in a fiscally efficient and 

prudent manner. 

 

3. Ensure adherence to the Town’s Asset Management Plan. 

Page 289 of 300



 

Section 6.0 Implementation 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 109 

 

 

6.10.2 Policies 

6.10.2.1 Public Works 

1. Establish a priority list of projects and estimated costs, where possible, associated with 

implementation of the Official Plan. 

 

2. Continue to utilize the 5-year capital works program as a key means of implementing the 

Official Plan. 

 

3. Planning for infrastructure systems and public service facilities shall be coordinated and 

integrated with land use planning so that they are financially viable over their life cycle, 

which may be demonstrated through asset management planning; and available to meet 

current and projected needs.  

 

6.10.2.2 Finance 

1. Strive to maintain a balanced taxable assessment ratio between residential and non- 

residential consistent with long term municipal financial planning. 

 

2. Ensure that the cost of providing the additional facilities and services, or the extension of 

existing facilities and services, associated with growth are appropriately and equitably 

covered by development proponents and in conformity and compliance with the Official 

Plan and Zoning By-law. 

 

3. Ensure that the cost of providing additional facilities and services not associated with 

growth are funded from taxation, user fees, or other appropriate methods. 

 

4. Require that all necessary agreements be executed prior to any development 

proceeding. Such agreements may include front-end, financial, and development 

agreements to provide the infrastructure necessary to serve the new development. 

 

5. Continue to investigate financial mechanisms and initiatives to ease the burden on the 

general tax levy, including user fees, development charges, public/private partnership, 

government grants and subsidies, and other funding sources. 

  

6. Continue to monitor the fiscal impact of growth and development and ensure that current 

objectives and policies reflect changing fiscal circumstances. 

 

7. Require the analysis of economic impacts associated with a significant development 

proposal, as determined by Council. The analysis will determine the likely short- and 

long-term impacts of the proposal on municipal operating and capital. 

Page 290 of 300



Town of Prescott 
Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 

 
 

 

110 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption August 22, 2022 

 

 

8. Ensure that the Town’s Asset Management Plan is regularly updated and based on best 

practices.  

 

 

 

Page 291 of 300



 

Section 7.0 Schedules and Appendix 

 

 
 

August 22, 2022 Final Official Plan – Issued for Council Adoption 111 

 

7.0 Schedules and Appendix 

The Schedules to this Official Plan include: 

 

1. Schedule A – Land Use  

2. Schedule B – Transportation, Servicing and Source Water Protection 

3. Schedule C – Natural Heritage System and Natural Hazards 

4. Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resources and Human-made Hazards 

5. Schedule E – Wildland Fire Hazard Areas 

 

The Appendix to this Official Plan includes: 

1. Appendix A – Digital Elevation Model 

 

Page 292 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Land Use Designation:

Residential

General Commercial

Highway Commercial

Highway 401 Corridor

Downtown Core

Employment Area

Institutional

Parks & Open Space

R-1 Special Policy Area

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

School

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule A

Land Use

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Page 293 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l
o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

H
ig

hw
ay N

o. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I

r

v

i
n

e

 

S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l
 
C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St E

Wood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Arterial Road

Collector Road

     Existing Road

     Future Road

Local Road

Pedestrian and Cycling Route

     Existing Route

     Future Route

Services:

Water Treatment Plant

Waste Water Treatment Plant

Source Water Protection:

Intake Protection Zone 1 (IPZ 1)

Intake Protection Zone 2 (IPZ 2)

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule B

Transportation, Servicing

and

Source Water Protection

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

(2km East)

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 294 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Natural Heritage System:

Wetlands - Coastal

Wetlands - Other

Significant Woodland

Natural Hazards:

Floodplain

Unstable Soil

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule C

Natural Heritage System

and Natural Hazards

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 295 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Tertiary Sand and Gravel Resource

Bedrock Resource Area

(Covers Entire Town)

Abandoned Mine Site

Abandoned Mine Site

 1km Buffer

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Town Limit

Water Body

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule D

Mineral Aggregate

Resources and

Human-Made Hazards

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 296 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St EWood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Township of Augusta

T

o

w

n

s
h

i
p

 
o

f
 
E

d

w

a

r
d

s
b

u

r
g

h

/
C

a

r
d

i
n

a

l

T

o

w

n

s

h

i
p

 
o

f
 
A

u

g

u

s

t
a

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Wildland Fire Hazard Areas:

Moderate

Low

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Other Features:

Town Limit

Water Courses

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Schedule E

Wildland Fire

Hazard Areas

200m 300m 400m 500m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 297 of 300



Prescott Industrial Park

Prescott Golf Course

Fort

Wellington

Canadian

Coast Guard

Sandra S.

Lawn Harbour

St. Lawrence River

Cemetery

D

e

v

e

l

o

p

m

e

n

t

 

D

r

E

d

w

a

r

d

 
S

t

Highway No. 4
01

H

i
g

h

w

a

y

 
N

o

.
 
4

0

1

V
ic

t
o
r
 
R

d

V

i
c

t
o

r
 
C

r

R

o

b

e

r

t

a

 

C

r

E

d

w

a

r
d

 
S

t

I
r
v

i
n

e

 
S

t

I
n

d

u

s

t
r
i
a

l
 
R

d

Churchill Rd W

Churchill Rd E

Clarendon St

Railway Av

Hyde St W

Jessup St W

James St W

Dibble St W

Henry St W

King St W

Corrine St

Water St W

S
o
p
h
i
a
 
S

t

A
n
n
 
S

t

S
t
 
L
a
w

r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

W

e

s
t
 
S

t

G
e
o
r
g
e
 
S

t

W

a

l
k
e

r
 
S

t

V

i
c
t
o

r
i
a

 
S

t

J
o
s
e
p
h
i
n
e
 
S

t

C
e
n
t
r
e
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E
d
w

a
r
d
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

E

a

s

t
 
S

t

L

i
n

d

a

 
P

l

L

i
n

d

a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

t

W

o

o

d

 
S

t
 
E

P

a

r
k

 
S

t
 
E

J

a

m

e

s

 
S

t
 
E

D

i
b

b

l
e

 
S

t
 
E

R

u

s

s

e

l
l
 
S

t

D

u

k

e

 
S

t

R

o

y

a

l

C

r

P

r
i
n

c

e

 
S

t

Park St E

James St E

Dibble St E

Henry St E

King St E

King St E

Water St

King St W

Henry St W

Dibble St W

James St W

Park St W

Wood St E
Wood St W

Churchill Rd E

B

o

u

n

d

a

r
y

 
S

t

F

o

r
t
 
T

o

w

n

 
D

r

W
o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
D

r

M

a

s

s

i
e

 
R

d

M

a

c

K

e

n

z

i
e

 
R

d

McAuley Rd

McAuley Rd

N

o

r

t
h

 
S

q

u

a

r

e

South Square

M
o
n
t
g
o
m

e
r
y
 
S

t

F

i
s
c
h

l
 
D

r

K

i
n

g

s
t
o

n

 
C

r

Georgina St

F
l
o
r
e
n
c
e
 
S

t

S
u
s
a
n
 
S

t

Eliza St

P
re

s
c
o
tt C

e
n
tre

 D
r

N

Note:  The base information on this plan was prepared from a
variety of map sources and was used by permission of the
Town of Prescott.  It is not a legal plan of survey.  For precise
location of plan features recourse should be had to the original
source data.

Digital Map Created By:

CGIS Spatial Solutions

52 South Street

Perth, ON  K7H 2G7

TEL: 613-368-4321

www.cgis.com

Transportation:

Provincial Highway

CN Railway

Town of Prescott

Official Plan

Appendix A

Digital Elevation

Model

300m200m 500m400m100m

Date:  July 2022

FINAL 

Digital Elevation (72m - 102m)

Date: August 22, 2022

Page 298 of 300



Page 299 of 300



THE CORPORATION OF THE 
TOWN OF PRESCOTT 

 

BY-LAW NO. 38-2022 
 

A BY-LAW TO ADOPT THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNCIL  
MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 22, 2022 

 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, provides 
that Council’s powers shall be exercised by by-law; and 
 
WHEREAS certain actions of Council do not require the enactment of a specific by-law; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Council of the Corporation of the Town of 
Prescott enacts as follows: 
 

1. Subject to Paragraph 3 of this by-law, the proceedings of the above-referenced Council 
meeting, including all Resolutions, By-laws, Recommendations, Adoptions of 
Committee Reports, and all other motions and matters decided in the said Council 
Meeting are hereby adopted and confirmed, and shall have the same force and effect, 
as if such proceedings were expressly embodied in this by-law.  
 

2. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute all such documents, and to direct 
other officials of the Town to take all other action, that may be required to give effect to 
the proceedings of the Council Meeting referred to in Paragraph 1 of this by-law.  
 

3. Nothing in this by-law has the effect of conferring the status of a by-law upon any of the 
proceedings of the Council Meeting referred to in Paragraph 1 of this by-law where any 
legal prerequisite to the enactment of a specific by-law has not been satisfied.  
 

4.  Any member of Council who complied with the provisions of Section 5 of the Municipal 
Conflict of Interest Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter M.50 respecting the proceedings of the 
Council Meeting referred to in Paragraph 1 of this by-law shall be deemed to have 
complied with said provisions in respect of this by-law.  

 
 

 
READ AND PASSED, SIGNED AND SEALED THE 22ND DAY OF AUGUST, 2022. 
 
 
 

 

____________________________  _____________________________ 
          Mayor                               Clerk 

 

Page 300 of 300


	Agenda
	6.1. 07-18-2022 - Council Minutes.pdf
	6.2. 07-28-2022 - Tri-Council Minutes.pdf
	8.2. Staff Report 76-2022-Alzheimers Society Toll Road Fundraiser.pdf
	8.3. Staff Report 77-2022 -  July 2022 Financial Report.pdf
	8.3. Staff Report 77-2022 - Attachment.pdf
	8.4. Staff Report 78- 2022- Tri-Council Meeting Direction (July 28).pdf
	12.1. Staff Report 79-2022 - Official Plan Review Approval.pdf
	12.1. Staff Report 79-2022 - Attachment Town of Prescott_Final Official Plan.pdf
	12.2. Staff Report 80-2022 - Museum Update and Fall Opening Hours.pdf
	12.3. Staff Report 81-2022 - Pedestrian Crossings Evaluation.pdf
	12.4. Staff Report 82-2022 - Services Available to Homeless Individuals.pdf
	14.1. By-law 37-2022 - Adoption of Official Plan.pdf
	14.1. By-Law 37- 2022 -  Schedule A - Town of Prescott_Final Official Plan.pdf
	20. By-Law 38-2022 - Confirmation By-Law (August 22).pdf

